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of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter), based on a total of 12,805,590_shares 14,190,359 shares of common stock held by non-affiliates and a
closing price of $1.86 $0.226 as reported on the NYSE American on June 30, 2022 June 30, 2023. For purposes of this computation, all officers, directors, and 10%
beneficial owners of the registrant are deemed to be affiliates. Such determination should not be deemed to be an admission that such officers, directors or 10% beneficial
owners are, in fact, affiliates of the registrant.
As of March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024, Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. had 15,876,227 15,976,227 shares of common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
None.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 2/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PART [ 1
ITEM 1. Business 1
ITEM 1A. Risk factors 1113
ITEM 1B. Unresolved staff comments 3036
ITEM 1C. Cybersecurity 36
ITEM 2. Properties 3036
ITEM 3. Legal proceedings gl 37
ITEM 4. Mine safety disclosures gl 37
PART II 3238
ITEM 5. Market for registrant’s common equity, related stockholder matters and issuer purchases of equity securities 3238
ITEM 6. [RESERVED] 3339
ITEM 7. Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations 3339
ITEM 7A. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk 4348
ITEM 8. Financial statements and supplementary data 4348
ITEM 9. Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure 4348
ITEM 9A. Controls and procedures 4348
ITEM 9B. Other information 4550
ITEM 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections. 4550
PART III 4651
ITEM 10. Directors, executive officers and corporate governance 4651
ITEM 11. Executive compensation 4954
ITEM 12. Security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters 56 60
ITEM 13. Certain relationships and related transactions, and director independence 5762
ITEM 14. Principal accounting fees and services 6166
PART IV 6267
ITEM 15. Exhibits, financial statement schedules 6267
ITEM 16. Form 10-K Summary 6267
SIGNATURES 6368
i
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 3/162

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

We make forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words such as “may,”
“might,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “continue,” and the negative of these terms
and other comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and assumptions about us, may include
projections of our future financial performance based on our growth strategies and anticipated trends in our business. These statements are only predictions based on our
current expectations and projections about future events. There are important factors that could cause our actual results, level of activity, performance, or achievements to
differ materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. In particular, you should consider
the numerous risks and uncertainties described in this report under the caption “Risk Factors.”

While we believe we have identified material risks, these risks and uncertainties are not exhaustive. New risks and uncertainties emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible to predict all risks and uncertainties, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may
cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

Although we believe the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, level of activity, performance, or
achievements. Moreover, neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of any of these forward-looking statements. You should
not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The forward-looking statements in this report represent our views as of the date on which the
statements are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, and
we do not intend to do so.

Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:

e  our ability to complete, on a timely basis or at all, the proposed Merger (as defined below) with Notes Live, Inc. announced on January 29, 2024, pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement (as defined below);

»

e the likelihood of the satisfaction of certain conditions to the completion of the Merger and whether and when the Merger will be completed;

o the expected number of Fresh Vine securities included in the fully diluted number of outstanding shares of Fresh Vine common stock for purposes of calculating
the exchange ratio for the Merger transaction;

e the continued listing of our common stock on the NYSE American pending closing of the proposed Merger, or the combined company’s ability to satisfy the
initial listing standards of the NYSE American;

e our ability to engage in a sale, license, transfer, disposition, divestiture or other monetization transaction, or winding down of Fresh Vine’s current wine
production business in a manner reasonably acceptable to Notes Live, Inc., which is a condition to the closing of the Merger transaction, and the terms,
conditions and timing of a such a transaction;

e the relative values ascribed to Fresh Vine, Inc. and Notes Live, Inc. for purposes of the Merger transaction, and the risk that as a result of adjustments to the
exchange ratio in the merger transaction, Fresh Vine stockholders or Notes Live shareholders could own less of the combined company than is currently
anticipated;
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e the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstance or condition that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement;

e the sufficiency of Fresh Vine’s cash and working capital to support continuing operations, to pay transaction costs through a closing of the proposed Merger
transaction and to satisfy the net cash requirements that are a condition to the closing of the Merger transaction;

e the effect of the announcement, pendency or completion of the proposed Merger on Fresh Vine’s or Notes Live’s business relationships, operating results and
business generally;

e the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against Fresh Vine, Notes Live or any of their respective directors or officers related to the Merger
Agreement or the transactions contemplated thereby;

e the expected benefits of, and potential value created by, the Merger for the Fresh Vine stockholders and Notes Live stockholders;
e the strategy or future operations of the combined company following the closing of the proposed Merger with Notes Live, Inc.;

e the combined company’s projected financial performance;

e  expectations concerning Fresh Vine’s or Notes Live’s relationships and actions with third parties;

e  future regulatory, judicial and legislative changes in Fresh Vine’s or Notes Live’s industry;

e  our ability to continue as a going concern in the absence of obtaining additional financing;

e  our ability to obtain additional financing within timeframes required on terms acceptable to us, or at all;

e  our ability to hire additional personnel and to manage the growth of our business;

® our reliance on our brand name, reputation and product quality;

e  our ability to adequately address increased demands that may be placed on our management, operational and production capabilities.capabilities;
e the effectiveness of our advertising and promotional activities and investments;

e  our reliance on celebrities ability to endorse refocus our wines marketing and market brand promotion efforts following the termination of the license agreements
with our brand;celebrity brand ambassadors;

e  general competitive conditions, including actions our competitors may take to grow their businesses;
e fluctuations in consumer demand for wine;
e  overall decline in the health of the economy and consumer discretionary spending;

o the occurrence of adverse weather events, natural disasters, public health emergencies, including the COVID-19 pandemic, or other unforeseen circumstances
that may cause delays to or interruptions in our operations;

e  risks associated with disruptions in our supply chain for grapes and raw and processed materials, including corks, glass bottles, barrels, winemaking additives
and agents, water and other supplies;
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e the impact of COVID-19 on our customers, suppliers, business operations and financial results;
e  disrupted or delayed service by the distributors we rely on for the distribution of our wines;

e  our ability to successfully execute our growth strategy, including continuing our expansion in the direct-to-consumer sales channel;

iii
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e  quarterly and seasonal fluctuations in our operating results;

e  our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors;

e  our ability to protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights, including our brand and reputation;

e  our ability to comply with laws and regulations affecting our business, including those relating to the manufacture, sale and distribution of wine;
e the risks associated with the legislative, judicial, accounting, regulatory, political and economic risks and conditions;

e claims, demands and lawsuits to which we are, and may in the future, be subject and the risk that existence or sufficiency of our insurance or indemnities
coverage may not be sufficient;coverage;

e  our ability to operate, update or implement our IT systems;

e  our ability to successfully pursue strategic acquisitions and integrate acquired businesses;

e  our ability to implement additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls in order to satisfy public company reporting requirements;
e the potential liquidity and trading of our securities; and

e the future trading prices of our common stock and the impact of securities analysts’ reports on these prices.prices;

e any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations, including the execution of integration plans and the anticipated
timing of filings; and

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes market data and forecasts with respect to the wine industry. We have obtained this market data and certain industry
forecasts from various independent third-party sources, including industry publications, reports by market research firms, surveys, and other independent sources. Some data
and information are based on management’s estimates and calculations, which are derived from our review and interpretation of internal company research and data,
surveys, and independent sources. We believe the data regarding the industry in which we compete and our market position and market share within this industry generally
indicate size, position, and market share within this industry; however, this data is inherently imprecise and is subject to significant business, economic and competitive
uncertainties and risks due to a variety of factors, including those described in “Risk Factors.” These and other factors could cause our future performance to differ
materially from our assumptions and estimates.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based on information
available to us as of the date of this report. Although we believe that information provides a reasonable basis for these statements, that information may be limited or
incomplete. Our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all relevant information. These statements are
inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely on these statements.

Risk Factor Summary

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Any of the factors set forth under “Risk Factors” may limit our ability to successfully execute our
business strategy. You should carefully consider all of the information set forth in this report, and, in particular, you should evaluate the specific factors set forth under “Risk
Factors” in deciding whether to invest in our common stock. Among these important risks are the following:

iliiv
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Risks related to the proposed Merger transaction

e  The Exchange Ratio will not change or otherwise be adjusted based on the market price of our common stock as the exchange ratio depends on, among other
things, the relative valuations ascribed to us and Notes Live and not the market price of our common stock.

®  Our stockholders and Notes Live’s shareholders may not realize a benefit from the Merger commensurate with the ownership dilution they will experience.

e  Failure to complete the Merger may result in either us or Notes Live paying a termination fee to the other party.

e  The transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement must be approved by our stockholders and by Notes Live’s shareholders.

e  Our stockholders will have a reduced ownership and voting interest in, and will exercise significantly less influence over the management of, the combined
company following the closing of the Merger.

e  During the pendency of the Merger, we may not be able to enter into a business combination with another party on more favorable terms because of restrictions
in the Merger Agreement.

e  Certain provisions of the Merger Agreement may discourage third parties from submitting alternative takeover proposals.

e  There is no public market for Notes Live common stock.

e If the conditions to the Merger are not satisfied or waived, the Merger will not occur.

e If the Merger is not completed, our board of directors may decide to pursue a dissolution of our company.

e  We are substantially dependent on our remaining employees to facilitate the consummation of the Merger.

e  Our ability to complete the Fresh Vine Legacy Transaction is uncertain, and we cannot predict the terms and conditions of any such Fresh Vine Legacy
Transaction.

e  Lawsuits may be filed in the future against us and the members of our board of directors arising out of the proposed Merger.

v
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Risks related to our company and our business

®  We have a limited operating history and have generated limited revenue to date.

e  We have not generated profits from operations to date.

o  We need to hire additional executive officers and other personnel.

o  The success of our existing business depends heavily on the strength of our wine brand.

o  If our business grows, it Business growth will place increased demands on our management, operational and production capabilities that we may not be able to
adequately address. If we are unable to meet these increased demands, our business will be harmed.capabilities.

e  Our advertising and promotional investments may affect our financial results but not be effective.

o  We rely have relied heavily on celebrities and sports organizations to endorse our wines and market our brand.brand pursuant to license agreements which have
been terminated.

o  We rely heavily on third-party suppliers and service providers, and they may not continue to produce products or provide services that are consistent with our
standards or applicable regulatory requirements, which could harm our brand, cause consumer dissatisfaction, and require us to find alternative suppliers and
service providers.

e  We face significant competition with an increasing number of products and market participants that could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial results.participants.

e  Consolidation of the distributors of our wines, as well as the consolidation of retailers, may increase competition in an already crowded space and may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial results.space.

e A reduction in consumer demand for wine which may result from a variety of factors, including demographic shifts and decreases in discretionary spending,
could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.business.

o  Due to the three-tier alcohol beverage distribution system in the United States, we We are heavily reliant on our distributors that resell alcoholic beverages in all
states in which we do business. A significant reduction in distributor demand for our wines would materially and adversely affect our sales and profitability.

e  Our marketing strategy involves continued expansion into the direct-to-consumer channel, which may present risks and challenges for which we are not
adequately prepared and which could negatively affect our sales in these channels and our profitability.prepared.

e A failure to adequately prepare for adverse events that could cause disruption to elements of our business, including the availability of bulk grapes, and the
blending, inventory aging or distribution of our wines could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

e Inclement weather, drought, pests, plant diseases and other factors could reduce the amount or quality of the grapes available to produce our wines, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.wines.

e If we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of premium juice from third-party juice suppliers, the quantity or quality of our annual wine production of wine
could be adversely affected, causing a negative impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.affected.

o If we are We may be unable to identify and obtain adequate supplies of quality agricultural, raw and processed materials, including corks, glass bottles, barrels,
winemaking additives and agents, water and other supplies, or if there is an increase in the cost of the commodities or products our profitability, production and
distribution capabilities could be negatively impacted, which would materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.may increase.

iv
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e  The COVID-19 pandemic has affected our customers, our suppliers and our business operations, and the duration and extent to which this and any future global
health pandemics will impact our business, results of operations and financial results in future periods remains uncertain.

e In addition to litigation that may arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business, we We have been engaged in litigation with each of our former Chief
Operating Officer and former Chief Executive Officer.

o  The impact of U.S. and worldwide economic trends and financial market conditions could materially and adversely affect our business, liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations.

e If we are unable to secure and protect our intellectual property, in domestic and foreign markets, including trademarks for our wine brands and wines, the value
of our wine brands and intellectual property could decline, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
results.decline.

e  We may not be fully insured against catastrophic perils, including catastrophic loss or inaccessibility of wineries, production facilities and/or distribution systems
resulting from fire, wildfire, flood, wind events, earthquake and other perils, which may cause us to experience a material financial loss.

e  From time to time, we may become subject to litigation specifically directed at the alcoholic beverage industry, as well as litigation arising in the ordinary course
of business.litigation.

e A failure of one or more of our key IT systems, networks, processes, associated sites or service providers could have a material adverse impact on business
operations and if the failure is prolonged, our financial condition.

vi
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Our failure to adequately maintain and protect the personal information of our customers or our employees in compliance with evolving legal requirements
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks related to regulation

If our business grows, it will place increased demands on our management, operational and production capabilities that we may not be able to adequately
address. If As a producer of alcoholic beverages, we are unable to meet these increased demands, our business will be harmed.regularly the subject of regulatory
reviews, proceedings and audits by governmental entities.

New and changing environmental requirements, and new market pressures related to climate change, could materially and adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial results.

Changes in foreign and domestic laws and government regulations to which we are currently subject may increase our costs or limit our ability to sell our wines
into certain markets.

Risks related to our common stock

Our failure to maintain compliance with NYSE American listing requirements could result in the delisting of our common stock, and our common stock could
become subject to the penny stock rules.

We incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses associated with being a public company.
We cannot be certain that the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth companies will not make our shares less attractive to investors.
We may fail to develop and/or maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting.

Provisions of our corporate governance documents could make an acquisition of our Company more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management.

Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted by future issuances of capital stock.
An active, liquid trading market for our common stock may not develop.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even
if our business is performing well.

As a public company, we are subject to additional laws, regulations and stock exchange listing standards, which will result in additional costs to us and may
strain our resources and divert our management’s attention.

We have no current plans to pay cash dividends on our common stock.

General risks

®  Our operating results and share price may be volatile, and the market price of our common stock may drop below the price you pay.
e We may require additional debt and equity capital to pursue our business objectives and respond to business opportunities, challenges, or unforeseen
circumstances.
vvii
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Overview

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (referred to in this report as “we,” “us,” “our” “Fresh Vine Wine,” “Fresh Vine” and the “Company”) is a premier producer of low carb, low
calorie, premium wines in the United States. Founded in 2019, Fresh Vine Wine brings an innovative “better-for-you” solution to the wine market. Offering bold, crisp, and
creamy wines that embody health, warmth, and a deeper connection to wellness and an active lifestyle, we offer a unique and innovative collection of today’s most popular
varietals. We currently sell seven proprietary varietals: Cabernet Sauvignon, Pinot Noir, Chardonnay, Sauvignon Blanc, Rosé, Sparkling Rosé, and a limited Reserve Napa
Cabernet Sauvignon. All varietals have been produced and bottled in Napa, California.

Recent Developments — Anticipated Merger with Notes Live, Inc.

On January 25, 2024, we, FVW Merger Sub, Inc., a Colorado corporation and our wholly-owned subsidiary (“Merger Sub”), and Notes, Live, Inc., a Colorado
corporation (“Notes Live”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other things, and subject to the satisfaction
or waiver of certain conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Notes Live, with Notes Live continuing as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the surviving corporation of the merger (the “Merger”).

Notes Live is a Colorado-based live entertainment and hospitality company that currently operates entertainment campuses in both the Colorado Springs, Colorado, and
Atlanta, Georgia metropolitan areas. Notes Live is also in the process of developing its crown-jewel, the Sunset Amphitheater collection, a set of luxury outdoor
amphitheaters designed to set a new standard in entertainment. The flagship Sunset amphitheater location in Colorado Springs is in development and scheduled to open in
August of 2024. Additional amphitheaters have also been announced by Notes Live in Oklahoma City and Broken Arrow, Oklahoma, and it has plans to expand into the
North Texas market.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the closing of the Merger, (i) each then outstanding share of Notes Live common stock (collectively,
“Notes Live common stock”) (which comprises all of Notes Live’s outstanding capital stock) will be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of Fresh Vine
common stock calculated in accordance with the Merger Agreement (the “Exchange Ratio”), (ii) each then outstanding warrant to purchase Notes Live common stock will
be exchanged (or otherwise amended) for a warrant exercisable (at an exercise price adjusted to reflect to the Exchange Ratio) to acquire that number of shares of Fresh
Vine common stock equal to the number of warrant shares multiplied by the Exchange Ratio, and (iii) any then outstanding Notes Live promissory note that is convertible
into Notes Live common stock will be exchanged, or otherwise amended, such that it will be convertible from and after the Merger into shares of Fresh Vine common stock
at a per share conversion price adjusted to reflect the Exchange Ratio. Each share of Fresh Vine common stock and each option and warrant to purchase Fresh Vine common
stock that is outstanding at the effective time of the Merger will remain outstanding in accordance with its terms and such shares of Fresh Vine common stock, options and
warrants will be unaffected by the Merger (subject adjustment based on the proposed Reverse Stock Split described below).

The Exchange Ratio will be calculated using a formula intended to allocate existing Fresh Vine stockholders and Notes Live shareholders a percentage of the combined
company based on agreed upon relative valuations of Fresh Vine and Notes Live in which:

e the Notes Live valuation is equal to $350,875,464, plus an amount equal to the aggregate gross proceeds received or to be received by Notes Live in a private
offering of Notes Live securities being conducted by Notes Live as of the date of the Merger Agreement (the “Notes Live Financing”); and

e the Fresh Vine Valuation is equal to $18.0 million, plus the amount of any Net Cash Surplus.
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For such purposes, “Net Cash Surplus” means the amount by which the cash, cash equivalent assets or other liquid assets of Fresh Vine at the closing of the Merger
transaction exceed the Net Cash Target, and the “Net Cash Target” means an aggregate of $3.5 million; provided that the Net Cash Target will be reduced on a dollar-for-
dollar basis for the gross proceeds of any equity investments in Notes Live made by Fresh Vine, its affiliates, or persons directly introduced to Notes Live by Fresh Vine or
its affiliates from December 1, 2023 through the effective date of the Merger (but not giving effect to the previously disclosed $500,000 equity investment in Notes Live
made by Fresh Vine upon entering into the letter of intent with Note Live for the subject transaction (the “Fresh Vine Equity Investment”)).

On a pro forma basis and without adjustment for gross proceeds from the Notes Live Financing or any Net Cash Surplus, pre-Merger Notes Live shareholders are
expected to own approximately 95.1% of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the combined company and pre-Merger Fresh Vine stockholders are expected to own
approximately 4.9% of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the combined company.

As contemplated by the Merger Agreement, Fresh Vine intends to effect a reverse stock split at or around the effect date of the Merger at a ratio that results in the Fresh
Vine common stock satisfying the initial listing standards of the NYSE American stock exchange (the “NYSE American”) and the exchange ratio in the Merger being as
near to one as reasonably practicable (i.e., so that each share of Notes Live capital stock will be exchanged in the Merger for approximately one share of Fresh Vine
common stock) (the “Reverse Stock Split”).

At the effective time of the Merger, the board of directors of Fresh Vine is expected to consist of seven members, all of whom will be designated by Notes Live.

Each of Fresh Vine and Notes Live has agreed to customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement, including, among others, covenants
relating to (a) the conduct of their respective businesses during the period between the date of signing the Merger Agreement and the closing of the Merger, (b) non-
solicitation of alternative acquisition proposals, (c) Fresh Vine filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and causing to become effective a
registration statement on Form S-4 to register the shares of Fresh Vine common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger (the “Registration Statement”), (d) Notes
Live obtaining shareholder approval for the adoption of the Merger Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereby, (e) Fresh Vine calling, giving notice of and
holding the Fresh Vine Shareholder Meeting (as defined below), (f) Fresh Vine and Notes Live using reasonable best efforts to file or otherwise submit applications, notices,
reports and other documents reasonably required to be filed or otherwise submitted to any governmental authority with respect to the transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement, (g) Fresh Vine using commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the existing listing of Fresh Vine common stock on the NYSE American and to obtain
approval of the listing of the combined company’s common stock on the NYSE American, and (h) Fresh Vine and Notes Live using commercially reasonable efforts to
coordinate with respect to compliance with NYSE American rules and regulations. In addition, the Merger Agreement requires that, on or prior to the closing of the Merger,
Fresh Vine shall engage in a sale, license, transfer, disposition, divestiture or other monetization transaction, or winding down of Fresh Vine’s current wine production
business (the “Fresh Vine Legacy Business”), or the sale, license, transfer, disposition, divestiture or other monetization transaction or other disposition of the assets
comprising the Fresh Vine Legacy Business and in connection therewith causing any and all known obligations or liabilities associated with such assets and the conduct of
the Fresh Vine Legacy Business operations to be satisfied (the “Fresh Vine Legacy Transaction”).

Consummation of the Merger is subject to certain closing conditions, including, among other things, (a) approval by Fresh Vine stockholders of the Fresh Vine
Shareholder Matters (as defined below), (b) approval by Notes Live shareholders of, among other things, the adoption of the Merger Agreement, (c) the effectiveness of the
Registration Statement, (d) NYSE American’s approval of the listing of the shares of Fresh Vine common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger (under the ticker
symbol “VENU”), and, if applicable, NYSE American’s approval of an initial listing application for the combined company, (e) if applicable, the completion of required
filings under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and the expiration or termination any waiting period applicable to the consummation of the
Merger, (f) the absence of material adverse effects impacting Fresh Vine or Notes Live, (g) Fresh Vine having cash, cash equivalent assets or other liquid assets at the
closing of the Merger in an amount that equals or exceeds the Net Cash Target, and having no liabilities on its balance sheet or unpaid or unsatisfied obligations that will
require a cash expenditure by Fresh Vine after the effective time of the Merger, (h) the absence of dissenting Notes Live shareholders, and (i) the entry by Notes Live into
lock-up and leak-out arrangements with its shareholders to its satisfaction. In addition, the closing of the Merger is conditioned upon Fresh Vine having completed the Fresh
Vine Legacy Transaction, or discontinued the Fresh Vine Legacy Business, in a manner reasonably acceptable to Notes Live. Each party’s obligation to consummate the
Merger is also subject to other specified customary conditions, including without limitation regarding the accuracy of the representations and warranties of the other party
and the performance in all material respects by the other party of its obligations under the Merger Agreement required to be performed on or prior to the date of the closing
of the Merger.
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The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights of each of Fresh Vine and Notes Live. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified
circumstances, Fresh Vine may be required to pay Notes Live a termination fee of $1.0 million and/or reimburse Notes Live’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000, and
Notes Live may be required to pay Fresh Vine a termination fee of $1.0 million, reimburse Fresh Vine’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000, and/or, at the election of
Fresh Vine, redeem the Fresh Vine Equity Investment at the same price per share as the purchase price paid by Fresh Vine therefor.

In connection with the Merger, Fresh Vine expects to seek the approval of its stockholders for, among other things, (a) the issuance of the shares of Fresh Vine common
stock issuable in connection with the Merger and the change of control of Fresh Vine resulting from the Merger pursuant to the rules of the NYSE American, (b)
amendments to the Fresh Vine Articles of Incorporation to change the name of Fresh Vine to “Notes Live Holding Corp.” and, solely if doing so will not violate the rules
and regulations of NYSE American, cause its authorized common stock to be divided into two or more separate classes or series, (c) an amendment to the Fresh Vine
Articles of Incorporation to effect the Reverse Stock Split; (d) upon conversion or exchange of Fresh Vine Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, the issuance of shares of
Fresh Vine common stock in excess of the “Exchange Share Cap” and “Individual Holder Share Cap” limitations provided for in the Certificate of Designation of
Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, (e) the liquidation, spinning-out, distribution, or other disposition or discontinuance of the
Fresh Vine Legacy Business, and (f) any other proposal to be agreed upon by Fresh Vine and Notes Live in furtherance of the transactions contemplated by the Merger
Agreement (collectively, the “Fresh Vine Shareholder Matters” and such meeting, the “Fresh Vine Shareholder Meeting”).

The transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are anticipated to close in June 2024, subject to approval by Fresh Vine’s stockholders, and the satisfaction or
waiver of various additional closing conditions.

The preceding summary of the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, which was
filed as Exhibit 2.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 29, 2024 and which is incorporated herein by reference. The Merger Agreement is not intended to
provide factual information about Fresh Vine or Notes Live or to modify or supplement any factual disclosures about Fresh Vine in this report of its other public filings with
the SEC. The Merger Agreement includes representations, warranties and covenants of Fresh Vine, Notes Live and Merger Sub made solely for the purpose of the Merger
Agreement and solely for the benefit of the parties thereto in connection with the negotiated terms of the Merger Agreement. Moreover, certain of those representations and
warranties may not be accurate or complete as of any specified date, may be subject to a contractual standard of materiality different from those generally applicable to SEC
filings or may have been used for purposes of allocating risk among the parties to the Merger Agreement, rather than establishing matters of fact. Investors and stockholders
are not third-party beneficiaries under the Merger Agreement. Accordingly, investors should not rely on the representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger
Agreement or any descriptions thereof as characterizations of the actual state of facts or conditions of Fresh Vine, Notes Live or any of their respective affiliates.

Important Additional Information

In connection with the proposed transaction, Fresh Vine will file materials with the SEC, including a registration statement on Form S-4 (Form S-4), which will include
a document that serves as a proxy statement/prospectus of Fresh Vine and an information statement of Notes Live, and other documents regarding the proposed transaction.
INVESTORS AND SECURITY HOLDERS ARE URGED TO READ THESE MATERIALS, INCLUDING THE FORM S-4 AND THE PROXY
STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS, WHEN THEY BECOME AVAILABLE, BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROPOSED
TRANSACTION AND THE PARTIES TO THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION. Investors and security holders will be able to obtain the Form S-4, the proxy
statement/prospectus and other materials filed by Fresh Vine with the SEC free of charge from the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov or from Fresh Vine at the SEC Filings
section of https:/ir.freshvinewine.com/invest/.
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Our Existing Business

We are a premier producer of low carb, low calorie, premium wines in the United States. Founded in 2019, Fresh Vine Wine brings an innovative “better-for-you”
solution to the wine market. Offering bold, crisp, and creamy wines that embody health, warmth, and a deeper connection to wellness and an active lifestyle, we offer a
unique and innovative collection of today’s most popular varietals. We currently sell seven proprietary varietals: Cabernet Sauvignon, Pinot Noir, Chardonnay, Sauvignon
Blanc, Rosé, Sparkling Rosé, and a limited Reserve Napa Cabernet Sauvignon. All varietals are have been produced and bottled in Napa, California.

Our wines are exclusively focused on the affordable luxury segment, the fastest growing segment of the wine market according to IWSR, addressing the largest wine
drinking segment in the $340 billion world-wide wine market, in which United States consumers spent $53 billion in 2020 for wine produced in the U.S., with an additional
$16 billion spent on imported wines in the U.S. segment. Importantly, our wines stand out in the luxury wine market because they address the preferences of our target
demographic of consumers with moderate to affluent income and with a desire to pursue a healthy and active lifestyles for a low-calorie, low-carb, gluten-free product,
while concurrently delivering the quality and taste profile of a premium wine brand. This allows us to position our wines in the rapidly emerging “better for you” segment
that seeks to appeal to consumers’ emphasis on a healthy lifestyle. While we believe our product offerings have mass appeal among all consumers of affordable luxury
wines, we have positioned the Fresh Vine Wine brand as a complement to the healthy and active lifestyles of younger generation wine consumers.

Our core wine offerings are priced strategically to appeal to mass markets and sell at a list price between $15 and $25 per bottle — - price points that support a premium
product strategy, appeal to mass markets, and allow us to offer significant value across all consumer distribution channels. Given the Fresh Vine Wine brand’s celebrity
backing, “better-for-you” appeal and overall product quality, we believe that it presents today’s consumers with a unique value proposition within this price category. We
have partnered with celebrities Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough to promote our wines and our brand. Additionally, Fresh Vine Wine is one of very few products available
at this price point that includes a renowned Napa Valley winemaker, Jamey Whetstone.

We conducted an international search to find an accomplished winemaker who shared the Fresh Vine Wine vision and have entered into an agreement with
Mr. Whetstone, an established, award-winning winemaker from Napa Valley, to develop our wines. Consulting with the Fresh Vine Wine brand compliments
Mr. Whetstone’s lifestyle as an active surfer, skier, and all-around outdoorsman. His passion for winemaking is mirrored by his passion for adventure, and he too wanted to
create As a better-for-you wine that customers can be proud to bring to the table for any occasion. We believe it is unique for a high-profile winemaker like Mr. Whetstone
to attach his name and reputation to a brand in the better-for-you wine segment, and we believe that Mr. Whetstone’s association with our brand increases consumer
awareness and speaks testament to the quality of our varietals.

As a testament to this quality, varietals, in September 2022 we announced that The Tasting Panel Magazine and The Somm Journal, two highly regarded wine
publications, had awarded Fresh Vine Wine’s California Cabernet Sauvignon, 2020 Vintage, a 92 Rating (out of 100). This is the second of our varietals to receive a 92
Rating during 2022, with our Limited Reserve Napa Cabernet Sauvignon receiving a Rating of 92 from James Suckling, regarded as one of the world’s most influential
wine critics, in July. Also, in July 2022, our 2020 California Pinot Noir and California 2021 Rosé varietals were awarded Bronze Medals by TEXSOM. In 2022, Fresh Vine
Wine varietals were recognized by various industry authorities with a total of 16 separate awards.

Our wines are distributed across the United States and Puerto Rico through wholesale, retail, and direct-to-consumer (DTC) channels. We are able to conduct wholesale
distribution of our wines in all 50 states and Puerto Rico, and we are licensed to sell through DTC channels in 43 states. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, we
hold active relationships with wholesale distributors in 48 states, unchanged from September 30, 2022, and currently have additional states in which licensing is pending. 50
states. We are actively working with leading distributors, including Southern Glazer’s Wine & Spirits (SGWS), Johnson Brothers, and Republic National Distributing
Company (RNDC), to continue and expand our presence across the contiguous United States.
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Our DTC channel enables us to sell wine directly to the consumer at full retail prices. Although these prices are consistent with our suggested retail prices (SRPs), we
incur two mark-ups of approximately 30% each for our distributor and retail partners when selling wine through our wholesale distribution channel, therefore directly
reducing our revenue and margins. Because the DTC channel provides significantly higher margins than sales generated through wholesale distributors, we intend to further
invest in DTC capabilities to ensure it remains an integral part of our business. We also believe continued investment in DTC technologies and capabilities are critical to
maintaining an intimate relationship with our customers, which is becoming increasingly digital. In addition, we also sell through alternative DTC sales platforms, such as
ecommerce marketplaces, product aggregators and virtual distributors, all of which have experienced significant recent growth, as well as sales through home delivery
services.
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We do not own or operate any vineyards. Instead of cultivating our own grapes, we currently use have used Fior di Sole, a third-party supplier, to source grapes with the
help of our winemaker. grapes. This allows us to leverage our supplier’s broad network of vendor relationships and purchasing power to negotiate favorable cost structures.
Because our supplier procures product inputs on our behalf, including bulk juice, we do not currently engage directly with grape growers (“growers”) or bulk distributors of
juice (“bulk distributors”). As a result, we have limited front-end supply chain visibility. This is a strategy by design that we believe provides us with access to diversified
growers and large distributors, which reduces our reliance upon any single vendor and mitigates our exposure to droughts, wildfires, spoilage, contamination and other
supply side risks common to the wine industry.

Our supplier procures grapes and/or juice for our existing varietals from California. This juice is then stored in Napa until time of production, at which point it is made
available for blending and bottling processes at our Napa Valley production and bottling facility. This is significant in that both blending and bottling must occur within
Napa to be considered produced and bottled in Napa — a distinctive product attribute that adds significant production value to our brand in the eyes of consumers.
However, wine produced by the Company will only be labelled with a Napa Valley appellation of origin if it is produced from grapes grown in the Napa Valley American
Viticultural Area (AVA). The labels for the Company’s core wines identify California as the appellation of origin.

Our asset-light operating model allows us to utilize third-party assets, including land and production facilities. This approach helps us mitigate many of the risks
associated with agribusiness, such as isolated droughts or fires. Because we source product inputs from multiple geographically dispersed vendors, we reduce reliance on
any one vendor and benefit from broad availability/optionality of product inputs. This is particularly important as a California-based wine producer where droughts or fires
can have an extremely detrimental impact to a company’s supply chain if not diversified.

Our Strengths
Differentiated Product Offerings — Premium, Napa Valley Wines within the “Better-For-You” Segment

We offer wines that are differentiated from those sold by other wine producers operating within the better-for-you segment of the affordable luxury category based on
our premium quality, our association with an award-winning winemaker and our Napa Valley based state of the art production.

e  Premium Wines. Premium wines are differentiated from other varietals based on consumers’ perception and expectation that they are of exceptional quality. We
have developed a proprietary winemaking process that produces superior quality and taste in the affordable luxury wine category based on consumer preferences
data, direct consumer feedback and careful market research. Importantly, our current wines stand out in the luxury wine market because they address consumers’
growing preference for a less-calorie, less-carb, less sugar and gluten-free option, while concurrently delivering the quality and taste profile of a premium wine
brand.
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e  Award-Winning Winemaker. We conducted an international search to find an accomplished winemaker who shared the Fresh Vine Wine vision and have entered
into an agreement with Jamey Whetstone, an established, award winning winemaker from Napa Valley, to develop our wines. Consulting with the Fresh Vine
Wine brand compliments Mr. Whetstone’s lifestyle as an active surfer, skier, and all-around outdoorsman. His passion for winemaking is mirrored by his passion
for adventure, and he too wanted to create a better-for-you wine that customers can be proud to bring to the table for any occasion. We believe it is unique for a
high-profile winemaker like Mr. Whetstone to attach his name and reputation to a brand in the better-for-you wine segment, and we believe that Mr. Whetstone’s
association with our brand increases consumer awareness and speaks to the quality of our varietals.

e  Produced and Bottled in Napa Valley. Importantly, we are able to market our wines as being produced and bottled in Napa Valley, California. We believe that
this designation impacts consumption decisions of many wine drinkers, as Napa Valley-produced wines are considered by many to be a sign of superior
production quality. However, wine produced by the Company will only be labelled with a Napa Valley appellation of origin if it is produced from grapes grown in
the Napa Valley American Viticultural Area (AVA). The labels for the Company’s existing wines identify California as the appellation of origin. Currently, this
only applies to our Reserve wine.

Capital-Efficient and Scalable Operational Structure

We have strategically structured our organization and operations to minimize our capital investment requirements while maintaining flexibility to rapidly scale our
production capabilities to meet consumer demands. We do this by utilizing our internal capabilities while leveraging a network of reputable third-party providers with
industry experience and expertise that we use to perform various functions falling outside our internal core competencies.

Production and Bottling on an Alternating Proprietorship Basis

We contract contracted with Fior di Sole, an industry leading packaging innovation and wine production company based in Napa Valley, California, to serve as a “host
winery” and to occupy a portion of its production and warehouse facility and utilize its production equipment on an alternating proprietorship basis. Under this arrangement,
we use used capacity at Fior di Sole’s production facility at times mutually convenient to us and Fior di Sole to produce and bottle our wines for an initial set-up fee and a
recurring monthly fee. Fior di Sole iswas responsible for keeping its production equipment in good operating order. When the alternating Premises is was operated by or
used on behalf of our Company, it is was operated pursuant to our federal basic permit and California winegrower’s license. Under the our agreement with Fior di Sole, we
are were solely responsible for managing and conducting our own winemaking activities and we make made all production decisions relating to our wines. However, we
may request could have requested the use of Fior di Sole’s personnel to perform crush, fermentation, blending, cellar, warehousing, barrel topping and/or bottling services
for additional fees. This arrangement hashad allowed us to commence our operations and build the Fresh Vine Wine brand without having to incur the considerable
overhead costs involved with the purchase or full-time lease of a production facility. The term of the agreement commenced in July 2019, had an initial term of one year and
automatically renews for additional one-year terms unless either party provides 90 days written notice to the other of its intent to terminate at the end of the then current
term. Either party may terminate the agreement upon 30 days written notice if the other party is in violation of any law or regulation that renders it impossible to perform its
obligations under the agreement for a period of greater than 30 days, makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or files for bankruptcy protection, or is in material
breach of its obligations under the agreement and such failure to perform is not cured within 30 days of written notice from the other party. We believe we have sufficient
capacity under our current agreement or with alternative suppliers to increase production to meet increased consumers’ demand for our wines.

Fior di Sole also provides provided us with capacity juice and blends, finishes, bottles, stops, labels and packages our wine, which reducesreduced our internal
overhead expenses and allows allowed us to benefit from that company’s increased purchasing power. Fior di Sole provides provided these services on a purchase order
basis, which purchase orders arewere subject to the parties’ mutual agreement and governed by a Custom Winemaking and Bottling Agreement. This agreement
outlines outlined the schedule for placing orders, the responsibility and schedule for delivery of production materials, procedures for establishing the wine bottling date and
delivery date. We are were required to remit 20% of the amount due for wine produced, bottled and packaged pursuant to this agreement upon our submission of a purchase
order. The payment advance is was used by Fior Di Sole to reserve or procure materials on our behalf with additional vendors for bottles, boxes, corks, labels, juice, and
other inputs. We, or our winemaker on our behalf, overseesoversaw the production at the winery approves and approved all components and aspects of the production
process. The balance of the amount due for wine produced, bottled and packaged (the remaining 80%) iswas due following our quality review and acceptance of the
finished product. This agreement was terminated in December 2023.

The ability and willingness of Fior di Sole to supply and provide services to us pursuant to purchase orders delivered under the Custom Winemaking and Bottling
Agreement may be affected by competing orders placed by other companies, the demands of those companies or other factors. If Fior di Sole becomes unable or unwilling
to supply and provide services to us, we believe we can obtain comparable supplies and services from alternative suppliers. However, there can be no assurance that
alternative suppliers will be available when required on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all, or that alternative suppliers will allocate sufficient capacity to us in order to
meet our requirements.
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Licensing, Tax and Regulatory Compliance

We have contracted with a third-party to manage our regulatory licensing and compliance activities. We maintain licenses that enable us to distribute our wine to all 50
states, and to sell direct-to-consumer from our e-commerce website in 48 states. We currently utilize software tools available to the industry and work with our license
compliance service provider to navigate and manage the complex state-by-state tax and other regulations that apply to our operations in the beverage alcohol industry. This
has enabled us to expand our operations and grow our revenue while reducing reduce the administrative burden of tax compliance, reporting and product registration.

Through selective recruiting and hiring, we have also built these capabilities internally; we increasingly perform these activities in-house. This allows us to operate with
greater control and responsiveness over regulatory licensing and compliance requirements, ensuring that our brand and each of its underlying varietals is properly licensed
across state and federal levels.

We believe that leveraging our network of supply chain and compliance partners, consultants and service providers enables us to avoid potential costly and lengthy
delays on nearly every aspect of our business, from grapes to packaging materials, and will accelerate our return on capital due to our limited need to procure expensive
equipment, real estate, and other capital-intensive resources. We believe we are well-positioned to
Sales and Marketing Strategy

We believe we bring a unique sales and marketing approach that will increase the visibility of our brand and product offerings to our target consumers.
Omni-Channel Marketing Approach

Today’s consumers interact with brands through many channels, from traditional media to social media and other digital channels, and through various in-person and
online purchasing methods. In order to build the visibility of our brand and create a grassroots consumer following to support our DTC distribution channel, we have
employed a strategic omnichannel marketing approach that we believe allows us to engage with our target consumers on their terms to expand and deepen their recognition
of our brand. In addition to other mass market promotional activities, our marketing strategy also utilizes modern techniques, efficiency measures, and channels not
commonly seen in the wine industry, including a combination of social media lifestyle and wine influencer activities, through which brand ambassadors or “influencers”
may conduct promotional activities through the Company’s or their own social media channels including, but not limited to, Twitter, Facebook, Instagram, Snapchat,
YouTube and Pinterest, among others.

Celebrity-based Affinity

Recent years have seen a rise in the creation of celebrity owned and/or endorsed alcoholic beverage brands, which utilize fans’ affinity towards celebrities to promote
their product offerings As we expand our marketing presence and drive sales. We are positioned visibility through traditional and modern marketing methods, we expect to
take advantage of this trend based build awareness and name recognition for Fresh Vine Wine in consumers’ minds. Brand awareness will be built substantially through
social media channels. Our brand, and to a large extent our direct-to-consumer sales outlet, has historically been dependent on the image and popularity of, and affinity
towards, Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough, two of our co-founders, each of whom served on our board of directors prior to our initial public offering.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 19/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

In March 2021, we entered into five-year license agreements with Hough. Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough who have a collective followingserved as celebrity
spokespersons and ambassadors of approximately 31 million people our company, and actively endorsed our wines on their Instagramsizable social media platforms
alone, and other outlets pursuant to which they actively promote our business and varietals of wine. Under these license agreements each has alsothat granted us a
license licenses to use her their pre-approved name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity, as well as certain content published by her on her their social media or and
other channels, on and in conjunction with the sale and related pre-approved advertising and promotion of our varietals of wine and marketing materials. Ms. Dobrev and
Ms. Hough have agreed, subject to certain exceptions, not to grant any similar license or render services of any sort on behalf of or in connection with any party in the wine
category anywhere in the world during the term of her agreement, other than with respect to Company. The wine. Such license agreements are scheduled terminated on
September 7, 2023 and, as a result, we will be required to expire in March 2026. However, the refocus our marketing and brand promotion efforts. See “Item 1A Risk
Factors - We have relied heavily on celebrities to endorse our wines and market our brand pursuant to license agreements to provide that each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms.
Hough will which have the right to terminate her agreement if as of the end of calendar year 2023, we have not achieved at least $5.0 million in EBITDA in either fiscal
2022 or fiscal 2023. See “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions — License Agreements with Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough. been terminated.”

We also enjoy support from several other celebrity influencers who have supported our brand without any agreement or obligation to do so. Together with celebrity
brand ambassadors, our marketing efforts have produced highly visible content, including multiple billboards on the Sunset Strip in Los Angeles, promotions in connection
with the opening of Resort World Casino in Las Vegas, product placements in major sports venues and coverage in various print and television media.

Professional Sports Sponsorships

We have previously entered into sponsorship agreements with professional sports organizations and venues spanning all four major United States professional sports
leagues, which support our commitment and outreach to consumers focused on active and healthy lifestyles, including agreements with the following organizations and/or
their affiliates:

e  Washington Capitals (NHL) and Washington Wizards (NBA)
e Tampa Bay Rays (MLB)

e  Washington Commanders (NFL)

e  Los Angeles Chargers (NFL)
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These sponsorship arrangements generally provide us with advertising placements at the stadiums and arenas during sporting and concert events, as well as specified
media and other advertising and promotional benefits, in exchange for our payment of annual sponsorship fees.

We completed our sponsorship agreement with the Los Angeles Chargers Tampa Bay Rays in the fourth quarter of 2022,2023. We intend to reduce or cancel the
remaining sponsorships and do not anticipate pursuing new professional sports sponsorships as part of our marketing and brand awareness initiatives going forward since
our brand has reached national retail distribution.

Labelling and Innovative Packaging Initiatives

We believe wine labelling can have a big impact on consumers’ purchasing practices. We conduct market research to validate the consistency of our wine labels with
our brand narrative. Packaging also continues to be a key driver of brand perception, and we are exploring “active lifestyle packaging” alternatives to traditional bottling
that provides an opportunity for our customers to enjoy Fresh Vine Wines in non-traditional settings now and for future years, including bottles with screw-off caps,
aluminum cans, and smaller size bottles and cans that can be taken on-the-go and are ideal for in-store point of purchase sales.

Engagement with Industry Experienced Third Party Vendors

In October 2022, we executed a strategy that is aimed at amplifying cash preservation initiatives while continuing to focus on accelerating sales growth. The plan
resulted in the termination of ten employees on the Company’s internal sales team and the engagement by the Company of a third party sales and distribution management
company positioned to more efficiently and effectively facilitate current and future product sales. In addition, the Company engaged a reputable third party vendor to
manage marketing initiatives and drive growth primarily within the Company’s Direct-to-Consumer sales channel.
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Consulting Agreement with Whetstone Consulting

On June 12, 2019, we entered into a consulting agreement with Whetstone Consulting, through which our winemaker, Jamey Whetstone, does business, which
agreement was subsequently amended on May 15, 2020, amended and restated on March 16, 2021 and further amended and restated on April 13, 2022 (the “Consulting
Agreement”).

As amended and restated, the Consulting Agreement provides the Company with ownership and intellectual property protections for Inventions (as defined therein)
conceived, made or reduced to practice by Whetstone Consulting that relate to the services provided to the Company. In addition, Whetstone Consulting has agreed, for a
period of one year following termination of the Consulting Agreement, not to directly or indirectly engage or invest in, be employed by, lend credit to, receive compensation
from or render services or advice to any person engaged in a Competing Business located within a twelve-mile radius of a specified Napa, California address. For such
purposes, a “Competing Business” means any business relating to the development, manufacture, marketing and distribution of any product that competes with any low
calorie and/or low sulfite wine products sold or substantially under development by the Company during the one-year restricted period. The Consulting Agreement does not
restrict the acquisition, operation, management, consulting, or other commercial activity by Whetstone Consulting, directly or indirectly in or with a winery, brewery, spirits,
or other alcoholic beverage industry business not concerning “low calorie” or “low sulfite” products or services. The Consulting Agreement also contains non-
solicitation restrictions applicable to clients, customers, suppliers, licensors, and employees for a period of one year follow the agreement’s termination, subject to certain
exceptions.

Under the Consulting Agreement, we pay Whetstone Consulting a base consulting fee of $5,000 per month. In addition, the Company has agreed to pay Whetstone
Consulting additional commission-based compensation subject to satisfaction of identified milestones. Specifically, the Company will pay Whetstone Consulting a $5,000
commission for each non-overlapping 30-day period in which the Company sells Fresh Vine Wine Products to a minimum threshold number of separate True Food Kitchen
locations for sale to customers from their menus. For such purposes, “Fresh Vine Wine Products” means Client’s wine products developed with the assistance of Whetstone
Consulting pursuant to the Services. Whetstone Consulting will also be entitled to receive a one-time $100,000 commission upon the Company selling certain volumes of
Fresh Vine Wine Products within any given non-overlapping 30-day period to at least a minimum threshold number of locations of a single fast casual dining restaurant
chain, and a one-time $40,000 commission upon the Company selling certain volumes of Fresh Vine Wine Products within any given non-overlapping 30-day period to at
least a minimum threshold number of separate fine dining establishments.

The Consulting Agreement has an initial one year term expiring April 13, 2023, but renews automatically for successive one year periods unless either party provides
advance notice of non-renewal to the other. Whetstone Consulting may terminate the Consulting Agreement at any time by giving us written notice at least 30 days prior to
the termination date. We may terminate the Consulting Agreement at any time.

As partial compensation for Whetstone Consulting’s services to the Company pursuant to the Company’s original consulting agreement with Whetstone Consulting, the
Company issued to Whetstone Consulting 619,343 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Whetstone Shares”). If the Company terminates the Consulting Agreement
for “cause,” as such term is defined therein, and such cause arises or relates to an act or acts directly related to Whetstone Consulting’s ownership interest in the Company,
the Company may elect to purchase all Whetstone Shares then held by Whetstone Consulting at their fair market value.
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Related party services

In October 2021, the Company entered into a service agreement with Appellation Brands, LLC, a related party in the wine industry due to common ownership, to
provide representation and distribution services. As of June 15, 2022, the original agreement was terminated. Prior to termination, the Company provided access to new
markets and retail and wholesale customers to the related party. In exchange for these services, the Company received a management fee of $50,000 per month plus a tiered
fee ranging between $5.00 and $6.50 per case of the products sold. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized $297,224 in service revenue related to
this agreement. In September 2022, the Company entered into a new distribution agreement with Appellation Brands, LLC to purchase approximately $195,000 of wine
inventory and sell directly to our customers. Sales associated with the new agreement are recorded within wholesale revenue beginning September 1, 2022. Total sales for
the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 associated with the new agreement was $25,863. approximately $16,000. After our sales of the Appellation Brands,
LLC wine inventory has been was completed, our affiliation with Appellation Brands, LLC is expected to cease ceased altogether.
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Our Strategy for Growth
We expect to deliver meaningful increases in stockholder value by have been executing the following strategies to gain brand and product visibility and increase sales
and market share:

Continuing to establish brand visibility, awareness and credibility through mass and micro marketing tactics and association with other strong brands,
including celebrities, influencers and top tier winemakers, among others. brands. These will range from organic to paid media.

Continuing to build grass roots demand through high visibility sales and marketing activities that promote high margin DTC and home delivery sales
channels, including continued investment in DTC technologies and capabilities that are critical to maintaining an intimate relationship with consumers.

Expanding our U.S.-based wholesale and retail distribution network by leveraging our product and brand differentiation, the emerging better-for-you category
and to provide distribution partners with a differentiated value proposition.

Pursuing distribution of our wines internationally.

Embracing disruptive technologies and customer trends, and exploring and expanding partnerships with other organizations investing in customer-centric
technologies, such as home delivery, third party wine clubs and evolving alternative DTC purchasing methods, such as ecommerce marketplaces, product
aggregators and virtual distributors.

Expanding and strengthening key supply chain relationships, including with current and future juice suppliers, bottlers, materials suppliers, and dry goods
suppliers, to establish a diversified portfolio of partners across all areas of our supply chain and to maintain effective capital management.

Continuing to add to the Fresh Vine Wine product portfolio by developing new varietals that fit within the better-for-you category and are consistent with our
existing brand.

Continuing to invest in packaging innovation, including “active lifestyle packaging” alternatives to traditional bottling that provides an opportunity for our
customers to enjoy Fresh Vine Wines in non-traditional settings.

Capitalizing on upward price mobility — - While many other wine companies are experiencing downward price pressure to enter the coveted under $30
category, our wines currently sell for suggested retail prices ranging from $15 to $25 per bottle.

Increasing our on-premises sales effort. COVID-19 severely limited on-premise sales across the industry. We believe as restrictions continue to loosen, there is
significant opportunity to capture market share and available shelf space.

Developing additional wine brands by replicating the strategies used to build the Fresh Vine Wine brand via business service line agreements.

With over 500,000 licensed retail accounts (according to Neilson) in the United States, there remains ample opportunity to continue broadening distribution of our
wines as well as increasing the volume of wine sold to existing accounts.
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Competition

The wine industry and alcohol markets generally are intensely competitive. Our wines compete domestically and internationally with other premium or higher quality
wines produced in Europe, South America, South Africa, Australia and New Zealand, as well as North America. Our wines compete on the basis of quality, price, brand
recognition and distribution capability. The ultimate consumer has many choices of products from both domestic and international producers. Our wines may be considered
to compete with all alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages.

At any given time, there are more than 400,000 wine choices available to consumers, differing with one another based on vintage, variety or blend, location and other
factors. Accordingly, we experience competition from nearly every segment of the wine industry. Additionally, some of our competitors have greater financial, technical,
marketing and other resources, offer a wider range of products, and have greater name recognition, which may give them greater negotiating leverage with distributors and
allow them to offer their products in more locations and/or on better terms than us. Nevertheless, we believe that our brand offerings, scalable infrastructure and
relationships with one of the largest domestic distributors will allow us to continue growing our business.

IT Systems

We rely on various IT systems, owned by us and third parties, to effectively manage our sales and marketing, accounting, financial, legal and compliance functions. Our
website is hosted by a third party, and we rely on third-party vendors for regulatory compliance for order processing, shipments, and e-commerce functionality. We believe
these systems are scalable to support our growth plans. We recognize the value of enhancing and extending the uses of information technology in our business.

Regulatory Matters
Regulatory framework

We, along with our contract growers, producers, manufacturers, distributors, retail accounts and ingredients and packaging suppliers, are subject to extensive regulation
in the United States by federal, state and local government authorities with respect to registration, production processes, product attributes, packaging, labelling, storage and
distribution of wine and other products we make.

We are also subject to state and local tax requirements in all states where our wine is sold. We monitor the requirements of relevant jurisdictions to maintain compliance
with all tax liability and reporting matters. In California, we are subject to a number of governmental authorities, and are also subject to city and county building, land use,
licensing and other codes and regulations.

Alcohol-related regulation

We are subject to extensive regulation in the United States by federal, state and local laws regulating the production, distribution and sale of consumable food items,
and specifically alcoholic beverages, including by the TTB and the FDA. The TTB is primarily responsible for overseeing alcohol production records supporting tax
obligations, issuing wine labelling guidelines, including grape source and bottle fill requirements, as well as reviewing and issuing certificates of label approval, which are
required for the sale of wine through interstate commerce. We carefully monitor compliance with TTB rules and regulations, as well as the state law of each state in which
we sell our wines. In California, where most of our wines are made, we are subject to alcohol-related licensing and regulations by many authorities, including the
ABC. ABC agents and representatives investigate applications for licenses to sell alcoholic beverages, report on the moral character and fitness of alcohol license applicants
and the suitability of premises where sales are to be conducted and enforce California alcoholic beverages laws. We are subject to municipal authorities with respect to
aspects of our operations, including the terms of our use permits. These regulations may limit the production of wine and control the sale of wine, among other elements.
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Employee and occupational safety regulation

We are subject to certain state and federal employee safety and employment practices regulations, including regulations issued pursuant to the U.S. Occupational Safety
and Health Act (“OSHA”), and regulations governing prohibited workplace discriminatory practices and conditions, including those regulations relating to COVID-19 virus
transmission mitigation practices. These regulations require us to comply with manufacturing safety standards, including protecting our employees from accidents,
providing our employees with a safe and non-hostile work environment and being an equal opportunity employer. In California, we are also subject to employment and
safety regulations issued by state and local authorities.

Environmental regulation

As a result of our wine production activities, we and certain third parties with which we work are subject to federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations.
Federal regulations govern, among other things, air emissions, wastewater and stormwater discharges, and the treatment, handling and storage and disposal of materials and
wastes. State environmental regulations and authorities intended to address and oversee environmental issues are largely state-level analogues to federal regulations and
authorities intended to perform the similar purposes. In California, we are also subject to state-specific rules, such as those contained in the California Environmental
Quality Act, California Air Resources Act, Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, California Water Code sections 13300-13999 and Title 23 of the California
Administrative Code and various sections of the Health and Safety Code. We are subject to local environmental regulations that address a number of elements of our wine
production process, including air quality, the handling of hazardous waste, recycling, water use and discharge, emissions and traffic impacts.

Labelling regulation

Many of our wines are identified by their appellation of origin, which are among the most highly regarded wine growing regions in the world. An appellation may be
present on a wine label only if it meets the requirements of applicable state and federal regulations that seek to ensure the consistency and quality of wines from a specific
territory. These appellations designate the specific geographic origin of most or all (depending on the appellation) of the wine’s grapes, and can be a political subdivision
(e.g., a country, state or county) or a designated viticultural area. The rules for vineyard designation are similar. Although we expect that most of our labels will maintain the
same appellation of origin from year to year, we may choose to change the appellation of one or more of our wines from time to time to take advantage of high-
quality grapes in other areas or to change the profile of a wine.

Privacy and security regulation

We collect personal information from individuals. Accordingly, we are subject to several data privacy and security related regulations, including but not limited to:
U.S. state privacy, security and breach notification laws; the GDPR; and other European privacy laws as well as privacy laws being adopted in other regions around the
world. In addition, the FTC and many state attorneys general are interpreting existing federal and state consumer protection laws to impose evolving standards for the online
collection, use, dissemination and security of information about individuals. Certain states have also adopted robust data privacy and security laws and regulations. For
example, the CCPA, which took effect in 2020, imposes obligations and restrictions on businesses regarding their collection, use, and sharing of personal information and
provides new and enhanced data privacy rights to California residents, such as affording them the right to access and delete their personal information and to opt out of
certain sharing of personal information. In response to the data privacy laws and regulations discussed above and those in other countries in which we do business, we have
implemented several technological safeguards, processes, contractual third-party provisions, and employee trainings to help ensure that we handle information about our
employees and customers in a compliant manner. We maintain a global privacy policy and related procedures, and we train our workforce to understand and comply with
applicable privacy laws.
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Intellectual Property

We strive to protect the reputation of our wine brand. We establish, protect and defend our intellectual property in a number of ways, including through employee and
third-party nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws, domestic and foreign trademark protections, intellectual property licenses and social media and information security
policies for employees. We have been granted three (3) trademark registrations in the United States for FRESH VINE®, FRESH VINE (Stylized)®, and our FV L0g0®, and
numerous trademark registrations in other countries for the FRESH VINE mark, and we have filed, and expect to continue to file, trademark applications seeking to protect
any newly-developed wine brands. We have also been granted a copyright registration in the first version of our website located at www.freshvine.com. Information
contained on or accessible through our website is not incorporated by reference in or otherwise a part of this report. As a copyright exists in a work of art once it is fixed in
tangible medium, we intend to continue to file copyright applications to protect newly-developed works of art that are important to our business.

We also rely on, and carefully protect, proprietary knowledge and expertise, including the sources of certain supplies, formulations, production processes, innovation
regarding product development and other trade secrets necessary to maintain and enhance our competitive position.
Seasonality

There is a degree of seasonality in the growing cycles, procurement and transportation of grapes. The wine industry in general tends to experience seasonal fluctuations
in revenue and net income, with lower sales and net income during the quarter spanning January through March and higher sales and net income during the quarter spanning
from October through December due to the usual timing of seasonal holiday buying. As our operations expand, we expect that we will be impacted by the seasonality
experienced in the wine industry generally.
Employees

As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, we had approximately eight four full-time employees. All of our employees are employed in the United States. None of
our employees are represented by a labor union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good.
Legal Proceedings

‘We may be subject to legal disputes and subject to claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. Except as disclosed in “Item “Item 3 —- Legal Proceedings,” we
are not a party or subject to any pending legal proceedings the resolution of which is expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, cash flows
or financial condition.
Corporate History

We were initially organized on May 8, 2019 as a Texas limited liability company under the name “Fresh Grapes, LLC.” In connection with our initial public offering,
on December 8, 2021, we converted from a Texas limited liability company into a Nevada corporation and changed our name from Fresh Grapes, LLC to Fresh Vine Wine,
Inc., which we refer to herein as the “LLC Conversion.” In conjunction with the LLC Conversion, all of our outstanding units were converted into shares of our common
stock based on the relative ownership interests of our pre-IPO equity holders. While operating as a limited liability company, our outstanding equity was referred to as
“units.” In this report, for ease of comparison, we may refer to such units as our common stock for periods prior to the LLC Conversion, unless otherwise indicated in this
report. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated, we may refer to members’ equity in this report as stockholders’ equity. Further, while operating as a limited liability company,
our governing body was referred to as our Board of Managers, with the members thereof being referred to as “Managers.” We may refer to such governing body throughout
this report as our board of directors and such individuals as our directors.
Company Website Access and SEC Filings

We make available on the Investor Relations section of our website, free of charge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K, Proxy Statements, and Forms 3, 4 and 5, and amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after filing such documents with, or furnishing
such documents to, the SEC. The SEC maintains a website (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC.

Our website is www.freshvinewine.com. We have included our website address in this report as an inactive textual reference only. Information contained on or
accessible through our website is not incorporated by reference in or otherwise a part of this report.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Our company and business involves a number of challenges and risks. In addition to the other information in this report, you should consider carefully the following
risk factors in evaluating us and our business. The risks described below are not the only ones that we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently
deem immaterial may also affect our business, financial condition, operating results, or prospects. In assessing these risks, you should also refer to the other information
contained in this report, including our financial statements and related notes.

Risks related to the proposed Merger transaction

The Exchange Ratio will not change or otherwise be adjusted based on the market price of our common stock as the exchange ratio depends on, among other things,
the relative valuations ascribed to us and Noted Live upon entry into the Merger Agreement and not the market price of our common stock, so the merger consideration
at the closing of the Merger may have a greater or lesser value than at the time the Merger Agreement was signed.

On January 25, 2024, we, Merger Sub (our wholly-owned subsidiary) and Notes Live entered into the Merger Agreement pursuant to which, among other things, and
subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Notes Live, with Notes Live continuing as
our wholly-owned subsidiary and the surviving corporation in the Merger. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the closing of the Merger, and
among other things, each then outstanding share of Notes Live common stock will be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of Fresh Vine common stock
calculated in accordance with the Merger Agreement (the “Exchange Ratio”), (ii) each then outstanding warrant to purchase Notes Live common stock will be exchanged
(or otherwise amended) for a warrant exercisable (at an exercise price adjusted to reflect to the Exchange Ratio) to acquire that number of shares of Fresh Vine common
stock equal to the number of warrant shares multiplied by the Exchange Ratio, and (iii) any then outstanding Notes Live promissory note that is convertible into Notes Live
common stock will be exchanged, or otherwise amended, such that it will be convertible from and after the Merger into shares of Fresh Vine common stock at a per share
conversion price adjusted to reflect the Exchange Ratio.

The Merger Agreement has set the calculation of the Exchange Ratio based on the relative valuations ascribed to us and Noted Live upon entry into the Merger
Agreement, which in turn will be adjusted to reflect the amount of gross proceeds received or to be received by Notes Live in its private offering of securities conducted by
Notes Live as of the date of the Merger Agreement and the Net Cash Surplus, if any, of Fresh Vine on the closing date of the Merger (as well as the impact of the Reverse
Stock Split). The Merger Agreement does not include a price-based termination right. Therefore, if before the completion of the Merger the market price of our common
stock declines from the market price on the date of the Merger Agreement, then Notes Live’s shareholders could receive merger consideration with substantially lower value
than the value of such merger consideration on the date of the Merger Agreement. Similarly, if before the completion of the Merger the market price of our common stock
increases from the market price of our common stock on the date of the Merger Agreement, then Notes Live’s shareholders could receive Merger consideration with
substantially greater value than the value of such merger consideration on the date of the Merger Agreement. Because the Exchange Ratio does not adjust as a direct result
of changes in the market price of our common stock, changes in the market price of our common stock will change the value of the total Merger consideration payable to
Notes Live’s shareholders.

Stock price changes may result from a variety of factors, including changes in our or Notes Live’s respective businesses, operations and prospects, market assessments
of the likelihood that the Merger will be completed, the timing of the Merger, and general market, industry and economic conditions.
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Our stockholders and Notes Live’s shareholders may not realize a benefit from the Merger commensurate with the ownership dilution they will experience in
connection with the Merger.

If the combined company is unable to realize the full strategic and financial benefits currently anticipated from the Merger, our stockholders and Notes Live’s
shareholders will have experienced dilution of their ownership interests in their respective companies without receiving any commensurate benefit, or only receiving part of
the commensurate benefit to the extent the combined company is able to realize only part of the strategic and financial benefits currently anticipated from the Merger.
Failure to complete the Merger may result in either us or Notes Live paying a termination fee to the other party and could significantly harm the market price of our
common stock and negatively affect the future business and operations of each company.

If the Merger is not completed and the Merger Agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, we may be required to pay Notes Live a termination fee of $1.0
million and/or reimburse Notes Live’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000, and Notes Live may be required to pay us a termination fee of $1.0 million, reimburse our
expenses up to a maximum of $500,000 and/or, at the election of Fresh Vine, redeem the $500,000 equity investment in Notes Live made by Fresh Vine upon entering into
the letter of intent with Note Live for the Merger transaction at the same price per share as the purchase price paid by Fresh Vine therefor. Even if a termination fee or
reimbursement of expenses of the other party are not payable in connection with a termination of the Merger Agreement, each of us and Notes Live will have incurred
significant fees and expenses, which must be paid whether or not the Merger is completed.

In addition, if the Merger Agreement is terminated and our board of directors determines to seek another business combination, there can be no assurance that we will
be able to find a partner and close an alternative transaction on terms that are as favorable or more favorable than the terms set forth in the Merger Agreement.

The issuance of our common stock to Notes Live’s shareholders pursuant to the Merger Agreement and the resulting change in control from the Merger must be
approved by our stockholders, and the Merger Agreement and transactions contemplated thereby must be approved by Notes Live’s shareholders. Failure to obtain
these approvals would prevent the closing of the Merger.

Before the Merger can be completed, our stockholders must approve, among other things, the issuance of our common stock to Note Live’s shareholders pursuant to the
Merger Agreement and the resulting change in control from the Merger, and Note Live’s shareholders must adopt the Merger Agreement and approve the Merger and the
related transactions. Failure to obtain the required stockholder approvals may result in a material delay in, or the abandonment of, the Merger. Any delay in completing the
Merger may materially adversely affect the timing and benefits that are expected to be achieved from the Merger.

Our stockholders will have a reduced ownership and voting interest in, and will exercise significantly less influence over the management of, the combined company
following the closing of the Merger as compared to their current ownership and voting interest in our company.

If the proposed Merger is completed, our current stockholders will own a significantly smaller percentage of the combined company than their ownership in our
company prior to the Merger. On a pro forma basis and without adjustment for gross proceeds from the Notes Live Financing or any Net Cash Surplus, pre-Merger Notes
Live shareholders are expected to own approximately 95.1% of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the combined company and pre-Merger Fresh Vine stockholders
are expected to own approximately 4.9% of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the combined company.
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During the pendency of the Merger, we may not be able to enter into a business combination with another party on more favorable terms because of restrictions in the
Merger Agreement, which could adversely affect our business prospects.

Covenants in the Merger Agreement impede our ability to make acquisitions during the pendency of the Merger, subject to specified exceptions. As a result, if the
Merger is not completed, we may be at a disadvantage to our competitors during such period. In addition, while the Merger Agreement is in effect, we are generally
prohibited from soliciting, initiating or knowingly encouraging, inducing or facilitating any inquiries, indications of interest, proposals or offers that constitute or may
reasonably be expected to lead to certain transactions involving a third party, including a merger, sale of assets or other business combination, subject to specified
exceptions. Any such transactions could be favorable to our stockholders, but we may be unable to pursue them.

Certain provisions of the Merger Agreement may discourage third parties from submitting alternative takeover proposals, including proposals that may be superior to
the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

The terms of the Merger Agreement prohibit us from soliciting alternative takeover proposals or cooperating with persons making unsolicited takeover proposals,
except in limited circumstances when our board of directors determines in good faith that an unsolicited alternative takeover proposal is or is reasonably likely to result in a
superior takeover proposal and that failure to cooperate with the proponent of the proposal is reasonably likely to be inconsistent with our board’s fiduciary duties. Any such
transactions could be favorable to our stockholders. In addition, if we terminate the Merger Agreement under certain circumstances, including terminating because of a
decision of ours to enter into a definitive agreement with respect to a superior offer, we would be required to pay a termination fee of $1.0 million to Notes Live and/or
reimburse Notes Live’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000. This termination fee described above may discourage third parties from submitting alternative takeover
proposals to our stockholders, and may cause our board of directors to be less inclined to recommend an alternative takeover proposal.

Because the lack of a public market for Notes Live common stock makes it difficult to evaluate the value of Notes Live common stock, the Notes Live shareholders may
receive shares of our common stock in the Merger that have a value that is less than, or greater than, the fair market value of Notes Live common stock.

The outstanding common stock of Notes Live is privately held and is not traded in any public market. The lack of a public market makes it extremely difficult to
determine the fair market value of Notes Live. Because the percentage of our common stock to be issued to Notes Live’s shareholders was determined based on negotiations
between the parties, it is possible that the value of our common stock to be received by Notes Live’s shareholders will be less than the fair market value of Notes Live, or
that the value of our common stock to be received by Notes Live’s shareholders may be more than the aggregate fair market value for Notes Live.

If the conditions to the Merger are not satisfied or waived, the Merger will not occur.

Even if the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are approved by our stockholders and Notes Live’s shareholders, several other specified conditions set
forth in the Merger Agreement must be satisfied or waived to complete the Merger, including without limitation (i) the effectiveness of a registration statement on Form S-4
to register the shares of Fresh Vine common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger, (ii) NYSE American’s approval of the listing of the shares of Fresh Vine
common stock to be issued in connection with the Merger, and, if applicable, NYSE American’s approval of an initial listing application for the combined company, (iii) if
applicable, the completion of required filings under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and the expiration or termination any waiting period
applicable to the consummation of the Merger, (iv) the absence of material adverse effects impacting Fresh Vine or Notes Live, (v) Fresh Vine having cash, cash equivalent
assets or other liquid assets at the closing of the Merger in an amount that equals or exceeds the Net Cash Target, and having no liabilities on its balance sheet or unpaid or
unsatisfied obligations that will require a cash expenditure by Fresh Vine after the effective time of the Merger, (vi) the absence of dissenting Notes Live shareholders, and
(vii) the entry by Notes Live into lock-up and leak-out arrangements with its shareholders to its satisfaction. We cannot assure you that all of the conditions will be satisfied
or waived. If the conditions are not satisfied or waived, the Merger will not occur or will be delayed, and we may lose some or all of the intended benefits of the Merger.
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If the Merger is not completed, our board of directors may decide to pursue a dissolution of our company. In a dissolution, there can be no assurances as to the amount
or timing of available cash, if any, to distribute to our stockholders after paying our debts and other obligations and setting aside funds for reserves.

Although we have entered into the Merger Agreement with Notes Live, the closing of the Merger may be delayed or may not occur at all and there can be no assurance
that the Merger will deliver the anticipated benefits we expect or enhance stockholder value. If the Merger is not completed and the Merger Agreement is terminated under
certain circumstances, we may be required to pay Notes Live a termination fee of $1.0 million and/or reimburse Notes Live’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000. Even
if a termination fee is not payable in connection with a termination of the Merger Agreement, we will have incurred significant fees and expenses, which must be paid
whether or not the Merger is completed.

If, for any reason, the Merger does not close, our board of directors may elect to, among other things, attempt to complete another strategic transaction like the Merger,
attempt to sell or otherwise dispose of the various assets of ours or continue to operate our business, and/or decide that it is in the best interests of the Fresh Vine
stockholders to suspend or cease its operations, seek to dissolve the company and liquidate its assets, or initiate bankruptcy proceedings. Any of these alternatives would be
costly and time-consuming and may require that we obtain additional funding. We expect that it would be difficult to secure financing in a timely manner, on favorable
terms or at all. We can make no assurances that we would be able to obtain additional financing or find a partner and close an alternative transaction on terms that are as
favorable or more favorable than the terms set forth in the Merger Agreement or that any such alternatives are possible or would be successful, if pursued. To the extent that
we seek and are able to raise additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, our stockholders’ ownership interest will be diluted, and the terms of
these securities may include liquidation or other preferences that adversely affect their rights as a common stockholder. Debt financing or preferred equity financing, if
available, may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital
expenditures, or declaring dividends. Even if we are able to pursue such alternatives, the failure to complete the Merger may result in negative publicity and/or a negative
impression of us in the investment community, could significantly harm the market price of our common stock and may affect our relationship with employees and other
partners in the business community.

If the Merger is not completed, our board of directors may decide that it is in the best interests of our stockholders to suspend or cease its operations, seek to dissolve
the company and liquidate its assets, or initiate bankruptcy proceedings. In that event, the amount of cash available, if any, for distribution to our stockholders would depend
heavily on the timing of such decision since the amount of cash available for distribution continues to decrease as we fund our operations and incur fees and expenses
related to the Merger. In addition, if our board of directors were to approve and recommend, and our stockholders were to approve, a dissolution of our company, we would
be required to pay our outstanding obligations, as well as to make reasonable provision for contingent and unknown obligations, prior to making any distributions to our
stockholders. As a result of this requirement, a portion of our assets may need to be reserved pending the resolution of such obligations. In addition, we may be subject to
litigation or other claims related to a dissolution of our company. If a dissolution were pursued, our board of directors, in consultation with our advisors, would need to
evaluate these matters and make a determination about a reasonable amount to reserve. Accordingly, our stockholders could lose all or a significant portion of their
investment in the event of a dissolution of our company.

We are substantially dependent on our remaining employees to facilitate the consummation of the Merger.

As of December 31, 2023, we had four full-time employees. Our ability to successfully complete the Merger depends in large part on our ability to retain our remaining
personnel. Despite our efforts to retain these employees, one or more may terminate their employment with us on short notice. The loss of the services of certain employees
could potentially harm our ability to consummate the Merger, to run our day-to-day business operations, as well as to fulfill our reporting obligations as a public company.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 31/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Our ability to complete the Fresh Vine Legacy Transaction is uncertain, and we cannot predict the terms and conditions of any such Fresh Vine Legacy Transaction,
including the consideration that we may receive.

As a condition to the closing of the Merger, on or before the closing of the Merger, Fresh Vine shall have engaged in a sale, license, transfer, disposition, divestiture or
other monetization transaction, or winding down of Fresh Vine’s current wine production business (the “Fresh Vine Legacy Business”), or the sale, license, transfer,
disposition, divestiture or other monetization transaction or other disposition of the assets comprising the Fresh Vine Legacy Business and in connection therewith causing
any and all known obligations or liabilities associated with such assets and the conduct of the Fresh Vine Legacy Business operations to be satisfied (the “Fresh Vine Legacy
Transaction”).

Because completion of the Fresh Vine Legacy Transaction is a condition to the closing of the Merger, the success of the combined company will be dependent on the
success of the Notes Live business operations following the merger.

Lawsuits may be filed in the future against us and the members of our board of directors arising out of the proposed Merger, which may delay or prevent the proposed
Merger.

Putative stockholder complaints, including stockholder class action complaints, and other complaints may be filed against us and our board of directors in connection
with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. It is common for public reporting companies engaged in merger transactions to receive letters from purported
stockholders demanding amendments to registration statements and/or proxy statements filed with the SEC to provide additional disclosures that such stockholders allege
were improperly omitted, or complaints asserting claims for allegedly false and misleading statements in such filings. The outcome of demands or complaints that we may
receive or any litigation is uncertain, and we may not be successful in defending against any such claims. Lawsuits that may be filed against us and/or our board of directors
could delay or prevent the Merger, divert the attention of our management team and employees from our day-to-day business and otherwise adversely affect our business
and financial condition.

Risks related to our company and our business.

We have a limited operating history and have generated limited revenue to date.

Our company was recently founded, and to date we have engaged primarily in finalizing our business plan and establishing the corporation and other formalities
necessary to begin operations. Accordingly, we have a very limited operating history on which to base an evaluation of our business and prospects. Our prospects must be
considered in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in their early stage of development, particularly companies in new and
evolving markets such as ours. The risks include, but are not limited to, an evolving business model and the management of growth and product development. To address
these risks, we must, among other things, implement and successfully execute our business strategy and other business systems, respond to competitive developments, and
attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in addressing the risks we may encounter, and our failure to do so could
have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We have generated very limited revenues to date, including revenues of $2,860,001 approximately $1.8 million and $1,700,207 $2.9 million during fiscal 2022 2023 and
fiscal 2021,2022, respectively. We have incurred net losses of $15.20 million $10.6 million and $9.97 million $15.2 million during fiscal 20222023 and 2021,2022,
respectively. We had an accumulated deficit of $15.82 million $26.5 million and total stockholders’ equity of $5.61 million $15.8 million at December 31, 2022. December
31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. We may never generate material revenues or achieve profitability.

We have not generated profits from operations to date. The success and longevity of our company will depend on our ability to generate profits from future operations
or obtain sufficient capital through financing transactions to meet our business obligations.

The report of our independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 included
an explanatory paragraph indicating that there is substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months from the financial statement issuance
date. We incurred net losses of $15.1 million $10.6 million and $9.97 million $15.2 million during fiscal 2022 2023 and 2021, 2022, respectively. Our cash and restricted
cash balance at December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 was $2.1 million. On March 14, 2023, we completed a subscription rights offering of common stock and warrants to
purchase common stock in which we received aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $3.14 million, before deducting dealer-manager fees and offering
expenses. $336,000. Our ability to continue as a going concern, including during the pendency of the Merger transaction, will be determined by our ability to generate
sufficient cash flow to sustain our operations and/or raise additional capital in the form of debt or equity financing.
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We need to hire additional executive officers and other personnel.

Our executive management is currently comprised of ana Chief Executive Officer and a Chief Financial Officer, both of whom are serving in interim positions. Also,
pursuant toIf the Settlement Agreement, Damian Novak, Executive Chairman and a member Merger transaction is not completed, the future success of our board of
directors, resigned as Executive Chairman and removed himself from his management duties with the Company effective February 20, 2023, and resigned from our board of
directors effective March 14, 2023. Rick Nechio, our interim Chief Executive Officer and a member of our board of directors, resigned from our board of directors effective
February 20, 2023 and we continue to search for a permanent chief executive officer to replace Mr. Nechio. Our future success existing wine production business will be
dependent in part upon us locating and retaining qualified individuals who will serve as executive officers on a permanent basis and lead our Company and our business
operations, and on us locating additional members to serve on our board of directors to help oversee and guide our company. We cannot predict with certainty when we will
be able locate such individuals. Following our appointment of a new chief executive officer, Mr. Nechio may aid in the transition of his management duties, we cannot
assure that such transition will be seamless or that it won’t adversely impact our business operations.

In addition, our future success depends on our ability to identify, attract, hire, train, retain and motivate highly skilled executive and technical personnel. Competition for
qualified personnel is intense, particularly in the wine industry in which there exists a limited number of qualified individuals with expertise in launching, managing and
expanding wine brands. If we fail to successfully attract, assimilate, and retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel, our business could suffer.

The success of our business depends heavily on the strength of our wine brand.

Obtaining, maintaining and expanding our reputation as a producer of premium wine among our customers and the premium wine market generally is critical to the
success of our business and our growth strategy. The premium wine market is driven by a relatively small number of active and well-regarded wine critics within the
industry who have outsized influence over the perceived quality and value of wines. If we are unable to maintain the actual or perceived quality of our wines, including as a
result of contamination or tampering, environmental or other factors impacting the quality of our grapes or other raw materials, or if our wines otherwise do not meet the
subjective expectations or tastes of one or more of a relatively small number of wine critics, the actual or perceived quality and value of one or more of our wines could be
harmed, which could negatively impact not only the value of that wine, but also the value of the vintage, the particular brand or our broader portfolio. The winemaking
process is a long and labor-intensive process that is built around yearly vintages, which means that once a vintage has been released we are not able to make further
adjustments to satisfy wine critics or consumers. As a result, we are dependent on our winemakers and tasting panels to ensure that every wine we release meets our
exacting quality standards.

With the advent of social media, word within the premium wine market spreads quickly, which can accentuate both the positive and the negative reviews of our wines
and of wine vintages generally. Public perception of our brands could be negatively affected by adverse publicity or negative commentary on social media outlets,
particularly negative commentary on social media outlets that goes “viral,” or our responses relating to, among other things:

e an actual or perceived failure to maintain high-quality, safety, ethical, social and environmental standards for all of our operations and activities;

e an actual or perceived failure to address concerns relating to the quality, safety or integrity of our wines and the hospitality we offer to our guests at our potential
future tasting rooms;

e  our environmental impact, including our use of agricultural materials, packaging, water and energy use, and waste management; or

e an actual or perceived failure by us to promote the responsible consumption of alcohol.

If we do not produce wines that are well-regarded by the relatively small wine critic community, the wine market will quickly become aware and our reputation, wine
brand, business and financial results of our operations could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if our wine receives negative publicity or consumer reaction,
whether as a result of our wines or wines of other producers, our wines in the same vintage could be adversely affected. Unfavorable publicity, whether accurate or not,
related to our industry, us, our winery brands, marketing, personnel, operations, business performance or prospects could also unfavorably affect our corporate reputation,
company value, ability to attract high-quality talent or the performance of our business.
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Any contamination or other quality control issue could have an adverse effect on sales of the impacted wine or our broader portfolio of wines. If any of our wines
become unsafe or unfit for consumption, cause injury or are otherwise improperly packaged or labelled, we may have to engage in a product recall and/or be subject to
liability and incur additional costs. A widespread recall, multiple recalls, or a significant product liability judgment against us could cause our wines to be unavailable for a
period of time, depressing demand and our brand equity. Even if a product liability claim is unsuccessful or is not fully pursued, any resulting negative publicity could
adversely affect our reputation with existing and potential customers and accounts, as well as our corporate and individual winery brands image in such a way that current
and future sales could be diminished. In addition, should a competitor experience a recall or contamination event, we could face decreased consumer confidence by
association as a producer of similar products.

Additionally, third parties may sell wines or inferior brands that imitate our wine brand or that are counterfeit versions of our labels, and customers could be duped into
thinking that these imitation labels are our authentic wines. For example, there could be instances of potential counterfeiting. A negative consumer experience with such a
wine could cause them to refrain from purchasing our brands in the future and damage our brand integrity. Any failure to maintain the actual or perceived quality of our
wines could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

Damage to our reputation or loss of consumer confidence in our wines for any of these or other reasons could result in decreased demand for our wines and could have
a material adverse effect on our business, operational results, and financial results, as well as require additional resources to rebuild our reputation, competitive position and
winery brand strength.

If our business grows, it will place increased demands on our management, operational and production capabilities that we may not be able to adequately address. If we
are unable to meet these increased demands, our business will be harmed.

Unless we manage our growth effectively, we may make mistakes in operating our business, such as inaccurate forecasting. The anticipated growth of our operations
will place significant demand on our management and operational resources. In order to manage growth effectively, we must implement and improve our operational
systems, procedures and controls on a timely basis. Our key personnel have limited experience managing this type of business. If we cannot manage our business
effectively, our business could suffer.

Our advertising and promotional investments may affect our financial results but not be effective.

Consumer awareness is of great importance to the success of businesses operating in the wine industry. We have incurred, and expect to continue to incur, significant
advertising and promotional expenditures to enhance our wine brand and raise consumer awareness, which we believe is vital to the long-term success of our operations.
These expenditures may adversely affect our results of operations in a particular quarter or even a full fiscal year and may not result in increased sales. Variations in the
levels of advertising and promotional expenditures have in the past caused, and are expected in the future to continue to cause, variability in our quarterly results of
operations. While we strive to invest only in effective advertising and promotional activities in both the digital and traditional segments, it is difficult to correlate such
investments with sales results, and there is no guarantee that our expenditures will be effective in building brand strength or growing long term sales.

We rely have relied heavily on celebrities and sports organizations to endorse our wines and market our brand. brand pursuant to license agreements which have been
terminated.

The success of Our brand, and to a large extent our business is direct-to-consumer sales outlet, has been heavily dependent on the positive image and public popularity
of, and affinity towards, celebrity spokespersons. Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough. Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough two of our founders, currently serve have served as
celebrity spokespersons and ambassadors of our company, who have actively endorse endorsed our wines on their sizable social media and other outlets, and are considered
by many to be the face of our brand. Customers may be drawn to Under our products because of their involvement in our Company as celebrities. We also have sponsorship
arrangements with teams and/or venues associated with the National Football League, National Hockey League, National Basketball Association and Major League
Baseball.
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We have entered into license agreements with Ms. Dobrev and Jaybird Investments, LLC (an entity managed by Ms. Hough), each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough
pursuant to which each granted us a license to use her pre-approved name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity, as well as certain content published by her on her
social media and other channels, on and in conjunction with the sale and related pre-approved advertising and promotion of our wine. The license agreements are scheduled
to expire in March 2026. However,

On August 8, 2023, the license agreements provide that Company received written letters from each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough will have Jaybird Investments, LLC,

notifying the right to terminate her agreement if as Company that it was in default of the end of calendar year 2023, we have not achieved at least $5.0 million in EBITDA in
either fiscal 2022 or fiscal 2023. See “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions — License Agreements with Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough.” If we are
unable to renew our license arrangements with Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough upon the expiration of these agreements in March 2026, or if Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough are
entitled to and elect to terminate the their respective license agreements after 2023, based on failure to pay license fees and providing 30 day notice of termination of their
respective license agreements. Effective September 7, 2023, each license agreement terminated. Upon such termination, the rights and licenses granted to us will be under
such agreements were revoked and we will be were required to cease the marketing and sale of products that feature their name, likeness, image, and other indicia of
identity. In such event, identity after a 90 day run-off period. As a result, we would will be required to refocus our marketing and brand promotion efforts, which may
adversely affect our business and results of operations.
In addition, there is no assurance that our celebrity-based brand promotion and marketing activities will be well-received by consumers and result in the levels of product
sales that we anticipate. Under extreme situations, our marketing efforts through celebrity endorsement may have a material adverse effect on our brand image. For
example, any damage to the reputations of our celebrity founders or any negative or controversial publicities that our celebrities are involved in, either directly or indirectly,
may result in the public’s negative perception of our brands and thus adversely affect our reputation and the marketability and sales of our products. It is possible for
negative posts or comments about our Company or our celebrity spokespersons to be shared quickly and disseminated widely due to the continued growing use of social and
digital media, possibly resulting in “cancellation.” Celebrities’ reputation and favorability in the eyes of the public could also decrease for a number of other reasons,
including, without limitation, participation in media endeavors that are unsuccessful, diminished recognition with the public due to decreased participation in the media
landscape or shifting tastes of the public, failure to generate engagement on new social media platforms at the levels they have enjoyed on existing platforms, and an
inability to access to social media platforms due to violations of terms of use or otherwise.
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If the positive image and public popularity of our celebrity spokespersons wanes or the public’s affinity towards the sports organizations that we sponsor decreases,
regardless of the reason, it would have a material adverse impact on one of our primary marketing activities and could result in decreased demand for our wines, which
would have a material adverse effect on our business, operational results and financial results, and require us to seek additional resources to rebuild our reputation,
competitive position and winery brand strength.

We rely heavily on third-party suppliers and service providers, and they may not continue to produce products or provide services that are consistent with our standards
or applicable regulatory requirements, which could harm our brand, cause consumer dissatisfaction, and require us to find alternative suppliers and service providers.

We have strategically structured our organization and operations with a view towards minimizing our capital investment requirements. We do this by leveraging a
network of third-party providers with industry experience and expertise that we use to perform various functions on our behalf. Specifically, we contract with Fior di Sole,
an industry leading packaging innovation and wine production company based in Napa Valley, California, to serve as a “host” “host winery” and permit us to occupy a
portion of its production and warehouse facility and its production equipment on an alternating proprietorship basis. Under this arrangement, we are able to use capacity at
Fior di Sole’s production facility at times mutually convenient to us and Fior di Sole to produce and bottle our wines. Fior di Sole is responsible for keeping its production
equipment in good operating order. Although we are solely responsible for managing and conducting our own winemaking activities, we may request use of the Fior di
Sole’s personnel to perform crush, fermentation, blending, cellar, warehousing, barrel topping and/or bottling services for additional fees. Under a separate agreement, Fior
di Sole provides us with bulk juice and blends, finishes, bottles, stops, labels, and packages our wine. Fior di Sole provides these services on a purchase order basis, which
purchase orders are subject to the parties’ mutual agreement. This agreement was terminated in December 2023.

In addition, in October 2022, we executed a strategy that is aimed at amplifying cash preservation initiatives while continuing to focus on accelerating sales growth.
The plan resulted in the termination of ten employees on the Company’s internal sales team and the engagement by the Company of a third party sales and distribution
management company positioned to more efficiently and effectively facilitate current and future product sales. In addition, the Company engaged a reputable third party
vendor to manage marketing initiatives and drive growth primarily within the Company’s Direct-to-Consumer sales channel. The Company relies heavily on the third
parties to manage the sales and distribution of our wine and manage our DTC marketing initiatives. We also utilize third parties to help manage all of our regulatory
licensing and compliance activities, and we utilize additional software tools available to the industry to navigate and manage the complex state-by-state regulations that
apply to our operations in the beverage alcohol industry.
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We engage many of our third-party suppliers and service providers on a purchase order basis or pursuant to agreements that are generally one year or less in duration.
The ability and willingness of these third parties to supply and provide services to us may be affected by competing orders placed by other companies, the demands of those
companies or other factors. If we experience significant increases in demand or need to replace a significant third party supplier or service provider, there can be no
assurance that alternative third party vendors will be available when required on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all, or that any such vendor will allocate sufficient
capacity to us in order to meet our requirements. If we fail to replace a supplier or servicer provider in a timely manner or on commercially reasonable terms, we could incur
product disruptions and our operating results and financial condition could be materially harmed. Switching or adding additional vendors, particularly our alternating
proprietorship host winery, would also involve additional costs and require management time and focus.

Except for remedies that may be available to us under our agreements with our third-party vendors, we cannot control whether or not they devote sufficient time and
resources to supporting our business operations. These third parties may also have relationships with other commercial entities, including our competitors, for whom they
may also be providing services, which could affect their performance on our behalf. If these third parties do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or obligations
or meet expected deadlines or need to be replaced for other reasons, it could adversely impact our ability to meet consumers’ demands for our products or comply with
regulatory requirements and subject us to potential liability, any of which may harm the reputation of our company and our products.

Although we carefully manage our relationships with our network of third-party vendors, there can be no assurance that we will not encounter challenges or delays in
the future or that these challenges or delays will not have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and prospects.

We face significant competition with an increasing number of products and market participants that could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial results.

Our industry is intensely competitive and highly fragmented. Our wines compete with many other domestic and foreign wines. Our wines compete with popularly
priced generic wines and with other alcoholic and, to a lesser degree, non-alcoholic beverages, for drinker acceptance and loyalty, shelf space and prominence in retail
stores, presence, and prominence on restaurant wine lists and for marketing focus by the Company’s distributors, many of which carry extensive portfolios of wines and
other alcoholic beverages. This competition is driven by established companies as well as new entrants in our markets and categories. In the United States, wine sales are
relatively concentrated among a limited number of large suppliers, including E&J Gallo, Constellation, Duckhorn, Trinchero, Jackson Family Wines, Ste. Michelle and The
Wine Group, and these and our other competitors may have more robust financial, technical, marketing and distribution networks and public relations resources than we
have. As a result of this intense competition, combined with our growth goals, we have experienced and may continue to face upward pressure on our selling, marketing and
promotional efforts and expenses. There can be no assurance that in the future we will be able to successfully compete with our competitors or that we will not face greater
competition from other wineries and beverage manufacturers.

If we are unable to successfully compete with existing or new market participants, or if we do not effectively respond to competitive pressures, we could experience
reductions in market share and margins that could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial results.
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Consolidation of the distributors of our wines, as well as the consolidation of retailers, may increase competition in an already crowded space and may have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial results.

Other than sales made directly to our consumers, the majority of our wine sales are made through distributors for resale to retail outlets, restaurants and hotels across
the United States. We expect sales to distributors to represent an increasingly substantial portion of our future net sales as we continue to grow our network of wholesale
distributors. Consolidation among wine producers, distributors, wholesalers, suppliers and retailers could create a more challenging competitive landscape for our wines. In
addition, we believe that the increased growth and popularity of the retail e-commerce environment across the consumer product goods market, which accelerated during the
COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting quarantines, “stay at home” orders, travel restrictions, retail store closures, social distancing requirements and other government
action, has and is likely to continue to to change the competitive landscape for our wines. Consolidation at any level could hinder the distribution and sale of our wines as a
result of reduced attention and resources allocated to our winery brands both during and after transition periods, because our winery brands might represent a smaller
portion of the new business portfolio. Furthermore, consolidation of distributors may lead to the erosion of margins as newly consolidated distributors take down prices or
demand more margin from existing suppliers. Changes in distributors’ strategies, including a reduction in the number of brands they carry or the allocation of resources for
our competitors’ brands or private label products, may adversely affect our growth, business, financial results and market share. Distributors of our wines offer products that
compete directly with our wines for inventory and retail shelf space, promotional and marketing support and consumer purchases. Expansion into new product categories by
other suppliers or innovation by new entrants into the market could increase competition in our product categories.

An increasingly large percentage of our net sales is concentrated within a small number of wholesale customers. The purchasing power of large retailers is significant,
and they have the ability to command concessions. There can be no assurance that the distributors and retailers will purchase our wines or provide our wines with adequate
levels of promotional and merchandising support. The failure to bring on major accounts or the need to make significant concessions to retain one or more such accounts
could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial position.

A reduction in consumer demand for wine, which may result from a variety of factors, including demographic shifts and decreases in discretionary spending, could
materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

We rely on consumers’ demand for our wine. Consumer preferences may shift due to a variety of factors, including changes in demographic or social trends, changes in
discretionary income, public health policies and perceptions and changes in leisure, dining and beverage consumption patterns. Our success will require us to anticipate and
respond effectively to shifts in consumer behavior and drinking tastes. If consumer preferences were to move away from our wine brand, our results of operations would be
materially and adversely affected.

A limited or general decline in consumer demand could occur in the future due to a variety of factors, including:

e  ageneral decline in economic or geopolitical conditions;
e a general decline in the consumption of alcoholic beverage products in on-premise establishments, such as those that may result from smoking bans and stricter

laws relating to driving while under the influence of alcohol and changes in public health policies, including those implemented to address the COVID-19
pandemic;

e  agenerational or demographic shift in consumer preferences away from wines to other alcoholic beverages;
e increased activity of anti-alcohol groups;
e concern about the health consequences of consuming alcoholic beverage products; and

e increased federal, state, provincial, and foreign excise, or other taxes on beverage alcohol products and increased restrictions on beverage alcohol advertising
and marketing.

Demand for premium wine brands, like ours, may be particularly susceptible to changing economic conditions and consumer tastes, preferences and spending habits,
which may reduce our sales of these products and adversely affect our profitability. An unanticipated decline or change in consumer demand or preference could also
materially impact our ability to forecast for future production requirements, which could, in turn, impair our ability to effectively adapt to changing consumer preferences.
Any reduction in the demand for our wines would materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.
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Due to the three-tier alcohol beverage distribution system in the United States, we are heavily reliant on our distributors that resell alcoholic beverages in all states in
which we do business. A significant reduction in distributor demand for our wines would materially and adversely affect our sales and profitability.

Due to regulatory requirements in the United States, we sell a significant portion of our wines to wholesalers for resale to retail accounts. A change in the relationship
with any of our significant distributors could harm our business and reduce our sales. The laws and regulations of several states prohibit changes of distributors, except
under certain limited circumstances, making it difficult to terminate or otherwise cease working with a distributor for poor performance without reasonable justification, as
defined by applicable statutes. Any difficulty or inability to replace distributors, poor performance of our major distributors or our inability to collect accounts receivable
from our major distributors could harm our business. In addition, an expansion of the laws and regulations limiting the sale of our wine would materially and adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial results. There can be no assurance that the distributors and accounts to which we sell our wines will continue to
purchase our wines or provide our wines with adequate levels of promotional support, which could increase competitive pressure to increase sales and marketing spending
and could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

Our marketing strategy involves continued expansion into the direct-to-consumer channel, which may present risks and challenges for which we are not adequately
prepared and which could negatively affect our sales in these channels and our profitability.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, we generated total revenue of $2,860,001 from all sources. Of this amount, we generated $911,326 from direct-to-consumer
sales, which represents a $136,905 increase in direct to consumer revenue generate during the year ended December 31, 2021. A portion of our operating strategy is to
expand our sales of wine through this direct-to-consumer channel. However, the direct-to-consumer marketplace is highly competitive and in recent years has seen the
entrance of new competitors and products targeting similar customer groups as our business. To be competitive and forge new connections with customers, we are
continuing investment in the expansion of our direct-to-consumer channel. Such expansion may require significant investment in e-commerce platforms, marketing,
fulfilment, information technology (“IT”) infrastructure and other known and unknown costs. The success of our direct-to-consumer sales channel depends on our ability to
maintain the efficient and uninterrupted operation of online order-processing and fulfilment and delivery operations. As such, we are heavily dependent on the performance
of our shipping and technology partners. Any system interruptions or delays could prevent potential customers from purchasing our wines directly.

Our ability to ship wines directly to our customers is the result of court rulings, including the U.S. Supreme Court ruling in Granholm v. Heald, which allow, in certain
circumstances, shipments to customers of wines from out-of-state wineries. Any changes to the judicial, legal, or regulatory framework that reduce our ability to sell wines
in most states using our direct-to-consumer sales channel could have a materially adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial results.

We may be unable to adequately adapt to shifts in consumer preferences for points of purchase, such as an increase in at-home delivery during the COVID-19
pandemic, and our competitors may react more rapidly or with improved customer experiences. A failure to react quickly to these and other changes in consumer
preferences, or to create infrastructure to support new or expanding sales channels may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
results.
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A failure to adequately prepare for adverse events that could cause disruption to elements of our business, including the availability of bulk grapes, and the blending,
inventory aging or distribution of our wines could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

Disruptions to our operations caused by adverse weather, natural disasters, public health emergencies, including the COVID-19 pandemic, or unforeseen circumstances
may cause delays to or interruptions in our operations. Concerns regarding the availability of water for production is particular to companies that produce and bottle wines
in California. A consequence of any of these or supply or supply chain disruptions, including the temporary inability to produce our wines due to the closure of our
production sites, could prevent us from meeting consumer demand in the near term or long term for our aged wines. For example, as result of the COVID-19 pandemic, our
industry has experienced temporary supply chain disruptions for certain processed materials, cardboard packaging, and glass, as well as increased strain on logistics
networks and shipping partners. The occurrence of any such disruptions during a peak time of demand for such processed materials could increase the magnitude of the
effect on our distribution network and sales. Failure to adequately prepare for and address any such disruptions could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial results.

A catastrophic event causing physical damage, disruption or failure at our production facility could adversely affect our business. Although our wines currently
available for sale do not require substantial aging, we expect that certain of our wines, including the Reserve Cabernet Sauvignon, require aging for some period of time. As
a result, we expect to maintain inventory of aged and maturing wines in warehouses. The loss of a substantial amount of aged inventory through fire, accident, earthquake,
other natural or man-made disaster, contamination or otherwise could significantly reduce the supply of the affected wine or wines, including our aged wines, which are
typically the highest priced and limited production wines.

Any disruptions that cause forced closure or evacuation could materially harm our business, results of operations and financial results. Additionally, should multiple
closings occur, we may lose guest confidence resulting in a reduction in direct sales, which could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial results. If we expand our future operations to include tasting rooms, such closings would also negatively impact visitation.

Inclement weather, drought, pests, plant diseases and other factors could reduce the amount or quality of the grapes available to produce our wines, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

A shortage in the supply of quality grapes may result from the occurrence of any number of factors that determine the quality and quantity of grape supply, including
adverse weather conditions (including heatwaves, frosts, drought and excessive rainfall), and various diseases, pests, fungi and viruses. We cannot anticipate changes in
weather patterns and conditions, and we cannot predict their impact on our operations if they were to occur. Any shortage could cause an increase in the price of some or all
of the grape varietals required for our wine production or a reduction in the amount of wine we are able to produce, which could materially and adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial results.

Factors that reduce the quantity of grapes the growers with which we contract grow may also reduce their quality. Deterioration in the quality of our wines could harm
our winery brand strength, and a decrease in our production could reduce our sales and increase our expenses, both of which could materially and adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial results.
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If we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of premium juice from third-party juice suppliers, the quantity or quality of our annual production of wine could be
adversely affected, causing a negative impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The production of our wines and the ability to fulfill the demand for our wines is restricted by the availability of premium grapes and juice from third-party growers. If
we are unable to source grapes and juice of the requisite quality, varietal and geography, among other factors, our ability to produce wines to the standards, quantity and
quality demanded by our customers could be impaired.

Factors including climate change, agricultural risks, competition for quality, water availability, land use, wildfires, floods, disease, and pests could impact the quality
and quantity of grapes and bulk juice available to our company. Furthermore, these potential disruptions in production may drive up demand for grapes and bulk juice
creating higher input costs or the inability to purchase these materials. Following the 2020 wildfires in Northern California, the price of bulk juice increased substantially in
a very short period of time, leading to some wine producers reducing lot sizes of certain wines. As a result, our financial results could be materially and adversely affected
both in the year of the harvest and future periods.
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If we are unable to identify and obtain adequate supplies of quality agricultural, raw and processed materials, including corks, glass bottles, barrels, winemaking
additives and agents, water and other supplies, or if there is an increase in the cost of the commodities or products, our profitability, production and distribution
capabilities could be negatively impacted, which would materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We use grapes and other raw materials to produce and package our wine, including corks, barrels, winemaking additives, and water, as well as large amounts of
packaging materials, including metal, cork, glass and cardboard. We purchase raw materials and packaging materials under contracts of varying maturities from domestic
and international suppliers.

Glass bottle costs are one of our largest packaging components of cost of goods sold. In North America, glass bottles have only a small number of producers. The
inability of any of our glass bottle suppliers to satisfy our requirements could materially and adversely affect our business. In addition, costs and programs related to
mandatory recycling and recyclable materials deposits could be adopted in states of manufacture, imposing additional and unknown costs to manufacture products utilizing
glass bottles. The amount of water available for use is important to the supply of our grapes and winemaking, other agricultural raw materials, and our ability to operate our
business. If climate patterns change and droughts become more severe, there may be a scarcity of water or poor water quality, which may affect our production costs,
consistency of yields or impose capacity constraints. We depend on sufficient amounts of quality water for operation of our wineries, as well as to conduct our other
operations. The suppliers of the grapes and other agricultural raw materials we purchase also depend upon sufficient supplies of quality water for their vineyards and fields.
Prolonged or severe drought conditions in the western United States or restrictions imposed on irrigation options by governmental authorities could have an adverse effect
on our operations in the region. If water available to our operations or the operations of our suppliers becomes scarcer, restrictions are placed on our usage of water or the
quality of that water deteriorates, we may incur increased production costs or face manufacturing constraints which could negatively affect our production. Even if quality
water is widely available to us, water purification and waste treatment infrastructure limitations could increase our costs or constrain operation of our production facilities.
Any of these factors could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

Our production and shipping activities also use energy in their operations, including electricity, propane and natural gas. Energy costs could rise in the future, which
would result in higher transportation, freight and other operating costs, such as ageing and bottling expenses. Our freight cost and the timely delivery of our wines could be
adversely affected by a number of factors that could reduce the profitability of our operations, including driver shortages, higher fuel costs, weather conditions, traffic
congestion, increased government regulation, and other matters. In addition, increased labor costs or insufficient labor supply could increase our production costs.

Our supply and the price of raw materials, packaging materials and energy and the cost of energy, freight and labor used in our productions and distribution activities
could be affected by a number of factors beyond our control, including market demand, global geopolitical events (especially their impact on energy prices), economic
factors affecting growth decisions, exchange rate fluctuations and inflation. To the extent any of these factors, including supply of goods and energy, affect the prices of
ingredients or packaging, or we do not effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity price risks, or are unable to recoup costs through increases in the price of our
finished wines, our business, results of operations and financial results could be materially and adversely affected.
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The COVID-19 pandemic has affected our customers, our suppliers and our business operations, and the duration and extent to which this and any future global
health pandemics will impact our business, results of operations and financial results in future periods remains uncertain.

The COVID-19 pandemic is having widespread, rapidly evolving and unpredictable impacts on global society, economies, financial markets and business practices.
Federal, state and foreign governments have implemented measures to contain the virus, including social distancing, travel restrictions, border closures, limitations on
public gatherings, work from home requirements and closure of non-essential businesses. While we continue to closely monitor the situation and may adjust our current
policies as more information and public health guidance become available, such precautionary measures, or any similar precautionary measures we are required or deem
advisable to take in the future could negatively affect our business, results of operations and financial results. Our business may suffer should there be supply disruption due
to restrictions on the ability of employees or our suppliers to travel and work, or if government or public health officials limit the travel of individuals impacting our ability
to source materials. These events may impair our ability to make, bottle and ship our wines, our distributors’ ability to distribute our wines or our ability to obtain the grapes
needed to produce our wines. Our operations may become less efficient or otherwise be negatively impacted if critical employees are unable to work or if a significant
percentage of the workforce is unable to work.

In addition to litigation that may arise from time to time in the ordinary course of business, we have been engaged in litigation with each of our former Chief Operating
Officer and former Chief Executive Officer.

As disclosed under Item 3 —- Legal Proceedings, the Company has been involveda defendant in litigation with two of its former executive officers,a lawsuit
styled Timothy Michaels and Janelle Anderson.

v. Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. filed May 27, 2022 in the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County, Minnesota. The lawsuit relates to a complaint filed by Mr.
Michaels’ lawsuit alleges that Michaels resulting from the Company breached a Separation Agreement entered into with Mr. Michael following termination of his
employment by including a restricted “lock-up” legend on certain shares of the Company’s common stock issued to Mr. Michaels pursuant to a settlement agreement that
the Company issued to entered into with Mr. Michaels. The complaint also included counts alleging breach Michaels following termination of the implied covenant of good
faith his employment and fair dealing, issuer liability under Minn. Stat. § 336.8-401 for delay innot removing or directing the Company’s transfer agent to remove such
legend. A jury trial commenced on January 23, 2024. During trial, on January 24, 2024, the lock-up legend from Company filed a motion for judgement in favor of the
shares, conversion and civil theft. Company as a matter of law, which was denied by the Court. On January 25, 2024, the jury in the lawsuit rendered a verdict against the
Company awarding damages to Mr. Michaels in the amount of $585,976.25. The damages awarded to Mr. Michaels by the trial court are not covered by the Company’s
insurance policies.
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The Company has deniedis assessing the allegations and intends options available to vigorously defend against it, including the lawsuit. The Company has made a
motion seeking dismissal possibility of appealing the conversion and civil theft counts, which was granted by the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County,
Minnesota on October 31, 2022.

verdict. Although the Company believes it has denied Mr. Michaels’ claims in his complaint, legal grounds to appeal the verdict, continued litigation and related actions

may be expensive, to defend, the outcome of any litigation (including any appeal) is difficult to predict, and may result in damages, penalties or fines as well as reputational
damage to the Company and its wine brands, and the existence of litigation may impact the ability of management to focus on other business matters. Furthermore, the
Company will be required to post an appeals bond in order to stay execution of the money judgment pending any appeal. Given the Company’s current financial position,
the cost of such an appeals bond is uncertain and may be higher than the typical cost of such a bond or require the Company to provide cash or other collateral. In addition,
adverse judgmentjudgments may result in an increase in future insurance premiums, and any judgments for which the Company is not fully insured may result in a
significant financial loss and may materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, results of operations and financial results..
The complaint in Ms. Anderson’s lawsuit alleged, among other things, that the Company terminated her employment as retaliation for reports of alleged wrongdoing in
violation of the Minnesota Whistleblower Act. Mr. Novak, Executive Chairman and a director of the Company, and Mr Nechio, interim Chief Executive Officer and a
director of the Company, were also named as defendants in Ms. Anderson’s complaint. On January 27, 2023, the Company entered into a Global Mutual Compromise,
Release and Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) among Ms. Anderson and each of Messrs. Novak and Nechio, pursuant to which Ms. Anderson has agreed
to dismiss the lawsuit with prejudice.
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As consideration for Ms. Anderson’s dismissal and release, and provided that she does not revoke or rescind the Settlement Agreement within prescribed time periods,
the Company agreed to make a cash payment to Ms. Anderson in the amount of $1,250,000, less certain attorney fees and relevant taxes and other withholdings, in a lump
sum. This cash payment is in addition to $400,000 that the Company previously paid to Ms. Anderson in January 2023 in respect of 2022 bonus compensation earned by
Ms. Anderson under her employment agreement while employed by the Company. Also as contemplated by the Settlement Agreement, the Company and Ms. Anderson
have agreed to enter into a consulting agreement (the “Anderson Consulting Agreement”) pursuant to which Ms. Anderson will provide certain consulting services to the
Company for a period of six months in exchange for the Company granting and issuing to Ms. Anderson 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Anderson
Consulting Shares”) from the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Anderson Consulting Share Grant”). The cash payment and the Anderson Consulting Share
Grant were scheduled to be made at the “closing” of the Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Closing”), subject to Ms. Anderson not revoking or rescinding the
Settlement Agreement during the applicable revocation period. The Settlement Closing was completed on February 20, 2023. The Anderson Consulting Shares are
unrestricted and freely tradable. If Ms. Anderson were to sell the Anderson Consulting Shares, such sales may adversely impact the market price of our common stock,
especially given the significant number of shares available for sale and the low volume of our shares that trade.

The impact of U.S. and worldwide economic trends and financial market conditions could materially and adversely affect our business, liquidity, financial condition
and results of operations.

We are subject to risks associated with adverse economic conditions in the United States and globally, including economic slowdown, inflation, and the disruption,
volatility and tightening of credit and capital markets. Unfavorable global or regional economic conditions could materially and adversely impact our business, liquidity,
financial condition and results of operations. In general, positive conditions in the broader economy promote customer spending on wine, while economic weakness, which
generally results in a reduction of customer spending, may have a more pronounced negative effect on spending on wine. Unemployment, tax increases, governmental
spending cuts or a return of high levels of inflation could affect consumer spending patterns and purchases of our wines and other alcoholic beverage products. Reduced
consumer discretionary spending and reduced consumer confidence could negatively affect the trend towards consuming premium wines and could result in a reduction of
wine and beverage alcohol consumption in the United States generally. In particular, extended periods of high unemployment, lower consumer discretionary spending and
low consumer confidence could result in lower sales of premium wine brands, including our wine, in favor of wine brands which have a lower average sales price and
generally have lower gross profit margins and lower overall sales, which could negatively impact our business and results of operations. These conditions could also create
or worsen credit issues, cash flow issues, access to credit facilities and other financial hardships for us and our suppliers, distributors, accounts and consumers. An inability
of our suppliers, distributors and retailers to access liquidity could impact our ability to produce and distribute our wines.

If we are unable to secure and protect our intellectual property in domestic and foreign markets, including trademarks for our wine brands and wines, the value of our
wine brands and intellectual property could decline, which could have a material and adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial results.

Our future success depends significantly on our ability to protect our current and future wine brands and wines and to enforce and defend our trademarks and other
intellectual property rights. We rely on a combination of trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual restrictions, to
secure and protect our intellectual property rights. We have been granted three (3) trademark registrations in the United States for FRESH VINE®, FRESH VINE
(Stylized)®, and our FV Logo®, and numerous trademark registrations in other countries for the FRESH VINE mark, and we have filed, and expect to may continue to file,
trademark applications seeking to protect newly-developed wine brands. We have also been granted a copyright registration in the first version of our website located at
www.freshvine.com. While a copyright exists in a work of art once it is fixed in tangible medium, we intend to continue to file copyright applications to protect newly-
developed works of art that are important to our business.

We cannot be sure that any trademark office or copyright office will issue trademark registrations under any of our trademark applications, or copyright registrations
under any of our copyright applications. Third parties may oppose the registration of our trademark applications, contest our trademark rights or copyrights, and petition to
cancel our registered trademarks. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in defending our trademarks or copyrights in actions brought by third parties. There is
also a risk that we could fail to timely maintain or renew our trademark registrations or otherwise protect our trademark rights or copyrights, which could result in the loss
of those trademark rights (including in connection with failure to maintain consistent use of these trademarks). If we fail to maintain our trademarks or a third party
successfully challenges our trademarks or copyrights, we could be forced to rebrand our wineries, wines, and other products, which could result in a loss of winery brand
recognition and could require us to devote additional resources to the development and marketing of new wine brands.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 45/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Notwithstanding any trademark registrations or copyright registrations held by us, a third party could bring a lawsuit or other claim alleging that we have infringed that
third party’s trademark rights or copyrights. Any such claims, with or without merit, could require significant resources to defend, could damage the reputation of our wine
brands, could result in the payment of compensation (whether as a damages award or settlement) to such third parties, and could require us to stop using our wine brands or
otherwise agree to an undertaking to limit that use. In addition, our actions to monitor and enforce trademark rights or copyrights against third parties may not prevent
counterfeit products or products bearing confusingly similar trademarks from entering the marketplace, which could divert sales from us, tarnish our reputation or reduce the
demand for our products or the prices at which we sell those products. Any enforcement litigation brought by us, whether or not successful, could require significant costs
and resources, and divert the attention of management, which could negatively affect our business, results of operations and financial results. Third parties may also acquire
and register domain names that are confusingly similar to or otherwise damaging to the reputation of our trademarks, and we may not be able to prevent or cancel any such
domain name registrations.

In addition to registered intellectual property rights such as trademark registrations and copyright registrations, we rely on non-registered proprietary information, such
as trade secrets, confidential information, and know-how, including in connection with the crafting of our low calorie, low-carb, premium tasting wines. In order to protect
our proprietary information, we rely in part on agreements with our employees, independent contractors and other third parties that place restrictions on the use and
disclosure of this intellectual property. These agreements may be breached, or this intellectual property, including trade secrets, may otherwise be disclosed or become
known to our competitors, which could cause us to lose any competitive advantage resulting from this intellectual property. To the extent that our employees, independent
contractors or other third parties with whom we do business use intellectual property owned by others in their work for us, disputes may arise as to the rights in related or
resulting know-how and inventions. The loss of trade secret protection could make it easier for third parties to compete with our products. In addition, any changes in, or
unexpected interpretations of, intellectual property laws may compromise our ability to enforce our trade secret and intellectual property rights. Costly and time-consuming
litigation could be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintain protection of our trade secrets or other
proprietary information could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and competitive position.

We may not be fully insured against catastrophic perils, including catastrophic loss or inaccessibility of wineries, production facilities and/or distribution systems
resulting from fire, wildfire, flood, wind events, earthquake and other perils, which may cause us to experience a material financial loss.

Although we currently store the bulk of our wine inventory at our third-party warehouse in California, which is prone to seismic activity, wildfires and floods, among
other perils. If any of these facilities were to experience a catastrophic loss in the future, it could disrupt our operations, delay production, shipments and our recognition of
revenue, and result in potentially significant expenses to repair or replace the facility. If such a disruption were to occur, we could breach agreements, our reputation could
be harmed and our business and operating results could be materially and adversely affected. Although we carry insurance to cover property and inventory damage and
business interruption, these coverages are subject to deductibles and self-insurance obligations, as well as caps on coverage that could be below the value of losses we could
incur in certain catastrophic perils. Furthermore, claims for recovery against our insurance policies can be time-consuming, and may result in significant delays between
when we incur damages and when we receive payment under our insurance policies. If one or more significant catastrophic events occurred damaging our own or third-
party assets and/or services, we could suffer a major financial loss and our business, results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Furthermore, increased incidence or severity of natural disasters has adversely impacted our ability to obtain adequate property damage, inventory, and business
interruption insurance at financially viable rates, if at all. For example, we have observed certain insurers ceasing to offer certain inventory protection policies, and we have
supplemented our insurance coverage recently by purchasing policies at higher premiums. If these trends continue and our insurance coverage is adversely affected, and to
the extent we elect to increase our self-insurance obligations, we may be at greater risk that similar future events will cause significant financial losses and materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.
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From time to time, we may become subject to litigation specifically directed at the alcoholic beverage industry, as well as litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business.

Companies operating in the alcoholic beverage industry may, from time to time, be exposed to class action or other private or governmental litigation and claims
relating to product liability, alcohol marketing, advertising or distribution practices, alcohol abuse problems or other health consequences arising from the excessive
consumption of or other misuse of alcohol, including underage drinking. Various groups have, from time to time, publicly expressed concern over problems related to
harmful use of alcohol, including drinking, and driving, underage drinking and health consequences from the misuse of alcohol. These campaigns could result in an
increased risk of litigation against the Company and our industry. Lawsuits have been brought against beverage alcohol companies alleging problems related to alcohol
abuse, negative health consequences from drinking, problems from alleged marketing or sales practices and underage drinking. While these lawsuits have been largely
unsuccessful in the past, others may succeed in the future.

From time to time, we may also be party to other litigation in the ordinary course of our operations, including in connection with commercial disputes, enforcement or
other regulatory actions by tax, customs, competition, environmental, anti-corruption and other relevant regulatory authorities, or, securities-related class action lawsuits,
particularly following any significant decline in the price of our securities. Any such litigation or other actions may be expensive to defend and result in damages, penalties,
or fines as well as reputational damage to our company and our winery brands and may impact the ability of management to focus on other business matters. Furthermore,
any adverse judgments may result in an increase in future insurance premiums, and any judgments for which we are not fully insured may result in a significant financial
loss and may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results.

A failure of one or more of our key IT systems, networks, processes, associated sites or service providers could have a material adverse impact on business operations,
and if the failure is prolonged, our financial condition.

We rely on IT systems, networks, and services, including internet sites, data hosting and processing facilities and tools, hardware (including laptops and mobile
devices), software and technical applications and platforms, some of which are managed, hosted, provided, and used by third parties or their vendors, to assist us in the
management of our business. The various uses of these IT systems, networks and services include, but are not limited to: hosting our internal network and communication
systems; supply and demand planning; production; shipping wines to customers; hosting our winery websites and marketing products to consumers; collecting and storing
customer, consumer, employee, stockholder, and other data; processing transactions; summarizing and reporting results of operations; hosting, processing and sharing
confidential and proprietary research, business plans and financial information; complying with regulatory, legal or tax requirements; providing data security; and handling
other processes necessary to manage our business.

Increased IT security threats and more sophisticated cybercrimes and cyberattacks, including computer viruses and other malicious codes, ransomware, unauthorized
access attempts, denial of service attacks, phishing, social engineering, hacking and other types of attacks pose a potential risk to the security of our IT systems, networks
and services, as well as the confidentiality, availability, and integrity of our data, and we have in the past, and may in the future, experience cyberattacks and other
unauthorized access attempts to our IT systems. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access are constantly changing and often are not recognized until
launched against a target, we or our vendors may be unable to anticipate these techniques or implement sufficient preventative or remedial measures. If we are unable to
efficiently and effectively maintain and upgrade our system safeguards, we may incur unexpected costs and certain of our systems may become more vulnerable to
unauthorized access. In the event of a ransomware or other cyber-attack, the integrity and safety of our data could be at risk, or we may incur unforeseen costs impacting our
financial position. If the IT systems, networks or service providers we rely upon fail to function properly, or if we suffer a loss or disclosure of business or other sensitive
information due to any number of causes ranging from catastrophic events, power outages, security breaches, unauthorized use or usage errors by employees, vendors or
other third parties and other security issues, we may be subject to legal claims and proceedings, liability under laws that protect the privacy and security of personal
information (also known as personal data), litigation, governmental investigations and proceedings and regulatory penalties, and we may suffer interruptions in our ability to
manage our operations and reputational, competitive or business harm, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial results. In addition, such
events could result in unauthorized disclosure of material confidential information, and we may suffer financial and reputational damage because of lost or misappropriated
confidential information belonging to us or to our employees, stockholders, customers, suppliers, consumers or others. In any of these events, we could also be required to
spend significant financial and other resources to remedy the damage caused by a security breach or technological failure and the reputational damage resulting therefrom,
to pay for investigations, forensic analyses, legal advice, public relations advice or other services, or to repair or replace networks and IT systems. As a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic, a greater number of our employees are working remotely and accessing our IT systems and networks remotely, which may further increase our
vulnerability to cybercrimes and cyberattacks and increase the stress on our technology infrastructure and systems. Even though we maintain cyber risk insurance, this
insurance may not be sufficient to cover all of our losses from any future breaches or failures of our IT systems, networks and services.
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Our failure to adequately maintain and protect personal information of our customers or our employees in compliance with evolving legal requirements could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We collect, use, store, disclose or transfer (collectively, “process”) personal information, including from employees and customers, in connection with the operation of
our business. A wide variety of local and international laws as well as regulations and industry guidelines apply to the privacy and collecting, storing, use, processing,
disclosure, and protection of personal information and may be inconsistent among countries or conflict with other rules. Data protection and privacy laws and regulations
are changing, subject to differing interpretations and being tested in courts and may result in increasing regulatory and public scrutiny and escalating levels of enforcement
and sanctions.

A variety of data protection legislation apply in the United States at both the federal and state level, including new laws that may impact our operations. For example,
the State of California has enacted the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 (“CCPA”), which generally requires companies that collect, use, share and otherwise
process “personal information” (which is broadly defined) of California residents to make disclosures about their data collection, use, and sharing practices, allows
consumers to opt-out of certain data sharing with third parties or the sale of personal information, allows consumers to exercise certain rights with respect to any personal
information collected and provides a new cause of action for data breaches. In addition, a new privacy law, the California Privacy Rights Act (“CPRA”), which significantly
modifies the CCPA, was recently approved by ballot initiative during the November 3, 2021 general election. On January 1, 2023 the CCPA became effective and added
additional privacy protection. This may require us to incur additional expenditures to ensure compliance. Additionally, the Federal Trade Commission, and many state
attorneys general are interpreting federal and state consumer protection laws to impose standards for the online collection, use, dissemination, and security of data. The
burdens imposed by the CCPA and other similar laws that have been or may be enacted at the federal and state level may require us to modify our data processing practices
and policies and to incur additional expenditures in order to comply.

Foreign laws and regulations relating to privacy, data protection, information security and consumer protection often are more restrictive than those in the United States.
The European Union, for example, traditionally has imposed stricter obligations under its laws and regulations relating to privacy, data protection and consumer protection
than the United States. In May 2018 the European Union’s new regulation governing data practices and privacy called the General Data Protection Regulation, or GDPR,
became effective and substantially replaced the data protection laws of the individual European Union member states. The law requires companies to meet more stringent
requirements regarding the handling of personal data of individuals in the EU than were required under predecessor EU requirements. In the United Kingdom, a Data
Protection Bill that substantially implements the GDPR also became law in May 2018. The GDPR and other similar regulations require companies to give specific types of
notice and in some cases seek consent from consumers and other data subjects before collecting or using their data for certain purposes, including some marketing activities.
Outside of the European Union, many countries have laws, regulations, or other requirements relating to privacy, data protection, information security, and consumer
protection, and new countries are adopting such legislation or other obligations with increasing frequency. Many of these laws may require consent from consumers for the
use of data for various purposes, including marketing, which may reduce our ability to market our products. There is no harmonized approach to these laws and regulations
globally. Consequently, we would increase our risk of non-compliance with applicable foreign data protection laws by expanding internationally. We may need to change
and limit the way we use personal information in operating our business and may have difficulty maintaining a single operating model that is compliant. In addition, various
federal, state and foreign legislative and regulatory bodies, or self-regulatory organizations, may expand current laws or regulations, enact new laws or regulations or issue
revised rules or guidance regarding privacy, data protection, information security and consumer protection.

Compliance with these and any other applicable privacy and data protection laws and regulations is a rigorous and time-intensive process, and we may be required to
put in place additional mechanisms ensuring compliance with the new privacy and data protection laws and regulations. Our actual or alleged failure to comply with any
applicable privacy and data protection laws and regulations, industry standards or contractual obligations, or to protect such information and data that we process, could
result in litigation, regulatory investigations, and enforcement actions against us, including fines, orders, public censure, claims for damages by employees, customers and
other affected individuals, public statements against us by consumer advocacy groups, damage to our reputation and competitive position and loss of goodwill (both in
relation to existing customers and prospective customers) any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows. Additionally, if third parties that we work with, such as vendors or developers, violate applicable laws or our policies, such violations may also place personal
information at risk and have an adverse effect on our business. Even the perception of privacy concerns, whether or not valid, may harm our reputation, subject us to
regulatory scrutiny and investigations, and inhibit adoption of our wines by existing and potential customers.
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Risks related to regulation.
As a producer of alcoholic beverages, we are reqularly the subject of regulatory reviews, proceedings and audits by governmental entities, any of which could result in
an adverse ruling or conclusion, and which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

We are subject to extensive regulation in the United States by federal, state, and local laws regulating the production, distribution and sale of consumable food items,
and specifically alcoholic beverages, including by the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (the “TTB”) and the Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”). These
and other regulatory agencies impose a number of product safety, labelling and other requirements on our operations and sales. In California, where all of our wines are
made, we are subject to alcohol-related licensing and regulations by many authorities, including the Department of Alcohol Beverage Control (the “ABC”), which
investigates applications for licenses to sell alcoholic beverages, reports on the moral character and fitness of alcohol license applicants and the suitability of premises where
sales are to be conducted. We are also subject to regulatory compliance requirements in all states in which we sell our wines. Any governmental litigation, fines, or
restrictions on our operations resulting from the enforcement of these existing regulations or any new legislation or regulations could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial results. Any government intervention challenging the production, marketing, promotion, distribution or sale of beverage alcohol
or specific brands could affect our ability to sell our wines. Because litigation and other legal proceedings can be costly to defend, even actions that are ultimately decided in
our favor could have a negative impact on our business, results of operations or financial results. Adverse developments in major lawsuits concerning these or other matters
could result in management distraction and have a material adverse effect on our business. Changes to the interpretation or approach to enforcement of regulations may
require changes to our business practices or the business practices of our suppliers, distributors, or customers. The penalties associated with any violations or infractions
may vary in severity, and could result in a significant impediment to our business operations, and could cause us to have to suspend sales of our wines in a jurisdiction for a
period of time.

New and changing environmental requirements, and new market pressures related to climate change, could materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial results.

There has been significant public discussion related to concerns that carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases in the atmosphere have an adverse impact on global
temperatures, weather patterns and the frequency and severity of extreme weather and natural disasters. Federal regulations govern, among other things, air emissions,
wastewater and stormwater discharges, and the treatment, handling and storage and disposal of materials and wastes. State environmental regulations and authorities
intended to address and oversee environmental issues are largely state-level analogues to federal regulations and authorities intended to perform the similar purposes. We are
subject to local environmental regulations that address a number of elements of our wine production process, including air quality, the handing of hazardous waste,
recycling, water use and discharge, emissions and traffic impacts. Compliance with these and other environmental regulation requires significant resources. Continued
regulatory and market trends towards sustainability may require or incentivize us to make changes to our current business operations. We may experience future increases in
the costs associated with environmental regulatory compliance, including fees, licenses and the cost of capital improvements to meet environmental regulatory
requirements. Although we don’t cultivate our own grapes, increased costs associated with environmental regulatory compliance may impact grape growers, which may
increase out costs to purchase bulk juice.

Changes in foreign and domestic laws and government regulations to which we are currently subject, including changes to the method or approach of enforcement of
these government rules and regulations, may increase our costs or limit our ability to sell our wines into certain markets, which could materially and adversely affect
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Government laws and regulations may result in increased production and sales costs, including an increase on the applicable tax in various state, federal and foreign
jurisdictions in which we do business. The amount of wine that we can sell directly to consumers outside of California is regulated, and in certain states we are not allowed
to sell wines directly to consumers at all. Changes in these laws and regulations that tighten current rules could have an adverse impact on sales or increase costs to produce,
market, package or sell wine. Changes in regulation that require significant additional source data for registration and sale, in the labelling or warning requirements, or
limitations on the permissibility of any component, condition or ingredient, in the places in which our wines can be legally sold could inhibit sales of affected products in
those markets.
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The wine industry is subject to extensive regulation by a number of foreign and domestic agencies, state liquor authorities and local authorities. These regulations and
laws dictate such matters as licensing requirements, land use, production methods, trade and pricing practices, permitted distribution channels, permitted and required
labelling, advertising, sequestration of classes of wine and relations with wholesalers and retailers. Any expansion of our existing facilities may be limited by present and
future zoning ordinances, use permit terms, environmental restrictions and other legal requirements. In addition, new or updated regulations, requirements or licenses,
particularly changes that impact our ability to sell DTC and/or retain accounts in California, or new or increased excise taxes, income taxes, property and sales taxes or
international tariffs, could affect our financial condition or results of operations. From time to time, states consider proposals to increase state alcohol excise taxes. New or
revised regulations or increased licensing fees, requirements or taxes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
Risks related to our common stock
Our failure to maintain continued compliance with the listing requirements of the NYSE American exchange could result in the delisting of our common stock.

Our common stock has been listed on the NYSE American exchange since our December 2021 initial public offering. The rules of NYSE American provide
that the NYSE American may, in its discretion, suspend dealings in, or may remove any security from, listing. As a matter of policy, NYSE American will consider
the delisting of a security when the financial condition and/or operating results of a company appear to be unsatisfactory, the extent of public distribution or the
aggregate market value of the security has become so reduced as to make further dealings on the NYSE American inadvisable, the company has sold or otherwise
disposed of its principal operating assets, or has ceased to be an operating company, the company has failed to comply with its listing agreements with the NYSE
American, or any other event shall occur or any condition shall exist which makes further dealings on the NYSE American unwarranted. For example, the NYSE
American considers suspending trading in, or removing the listing of, securities of an issuer that has stockholders’ equity of less than (i) $2 million if such issuer
has sustained losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in two of its three most recent fiscal years, (ii) $4 million if such issuer has sustained losses from
continuing operations and/or net losses in three of its four most recent fiscal years, or (iii) $6 million if such issuer has sustained losses from continuing operations
and/or net losses in its five most recent fiscal years. The NYSE American will also consider suspending trading in, or removing the listing of, securities of an issuer
that has sustained losses which are so substantial in relation to its overall operations or its existing financial resources, or its financial condition has become so
impaired that it appears questionable as to whether such issuer will be able to continue operations and/or meet its obligations as they mature.

On September 8, 2023, we received a written notice (the “Notice”) from NYSE American stating that we were not in compliance with the $4 million
stockholders’ equity requirement of Section 1003(a)(ii) of the NYSE American Company Guide (the “Company Guide”). We reported stockholders’ equity of $2.4
million as of June 30, 2023, the end of our second fiscal quarter of 2023, and have had losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in each of the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and 2022. As required by the NYSE American, we submitted a plan to the NYSE American on October 9, 2023 addressing
actions we have taken or and how we intend to regain compliance with the continued listing standards by March 8, 2025.

On November 21, 2023, we received notification (the “Acceptance Letter”) from NYSE American that the Company’s plan to regain compliance with NYSE
American’s listing standards was accepted. The Acceptance Letter also stated that the Company is not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(i) of the Company
Guide, which requires an issuer to have stockholders’ equity of $2.0 million or more if it has reported losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in two
out of its three most recent fiscal years. The Company reported stockholders’ equity of $1.1 million as of September 30, 2023, the end of its third fiscal quarter of
2023, and has had losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in each of its fiscal years ended December 31, 2020, 2021 and 2022.
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NYSE American has granted the Company a plan period through March 8, 2025 to regain compliance with Sections 1003(a)(i) and (ii) of the Company Guide.
If the Company is not in compliance with all continued listing standards by that date or if the Company does not make progress consistent with the plan during
the plan period, the Company will be subject to delisting proceedings. The Company will be subject to periodic NYSE American reviews, including quarterly
monitoring for compliance with the plan. We cannot make any assurance regarding whether we will be able to make progress consistent with the plan or
ultimately regain compliance with the NYSE American listing standards. Our common stock will continue to be listed on the NYSE American while we attempt to
regain compliance with the listing standard noted, subject to our compliance with other continued listing requirements. Our common stock will continue to trade
under the symbol “VINE,” but will be included in the list of NYSE American noncompliant issuers, and the below compliance (“.BC”) indicator will be
disseminated with our ticker symbol. The website posting and .BC indicator would be removed when we have regained compliance with all applicable continued
listing standards.

If NYSE American delists our common stock from trading on the exchange and we are not able to list our securities on another national securities exchange,
we expect shares of our common shares would qualify to be quoted on an over-the-counter market. If this were to occur, we could experience a number of adverse
consequences, including:

e  limited availability of market quotations for the common stock;

e reduced liquidity for our securities;

e  our common shares being categorized as a “penny stock,” which requires brokers trading in our common shares to adhere to more stringent rules and possibly
result in a reduced level of trading activity in the secondary trading market for our common stock; and

e  decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.

In addition, the National Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996 generally preempts the states from regulating the sale of “covered securities.” Our
common shares qualify as “covered securities” because they are listed on NYSE American. If our common shares were no longer listed on NYSE American, our
securities would not be “covered securities” and we would be subject to regulation in each state in which we offer our securities.

Our If our common stock becomes subject to the penny stock rules, it would become more difficult to trade our shares.

The SEC has adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in penny stocks. Penny stocks are generally equity securities
with a price of less than $5.00, other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or authorized for quotation on certain automated quotation
systems, provided that current executive management has limited direct experience price and volume information with respect to transactions in satisfying such
securities is provided by the exchange or system. If we do not retain our listing on NYSE American and if the price of our common stock is less than $5.00, our
common stock may be deemed a penny stock. The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, before a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from
those rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document containing specified information. In addition, the penny stock rules require that before effecting
any transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, a broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is a
suitable investment for the purchaser and receive (i) the purchaser’s written acknowledgment of the receipt of a risk disclosure statement; (ii) a written agreement
to transactions involving penny stocks; and (iii) a signed and dated copy of a written suitability statement. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of
reducing the trading activity in the secondary market for our common stock, and therefore stockholders may have difficulty selling their shares.

We will incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses associated with our public company reporting requirements and we must implement additional finance
and accounting systems, procedures, and controls in order to satisfy such requirements, which will increase our costs and divert management’s time and
attention. corporate governarnce requirements.

As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company, including costs associated
with our public company reporting requirements and corporate governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well
as new rules implemented by the SEC and the NYSE American. Our current executive management has little to no experience in complying with such
requirements and rules.
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As an example of reporting requirements, we are evaluating our internal control systems in order to allow management to report on our internal control over
financing reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As a company with limited capital and human resources, we anticipate that
more of management’s time and attention will be diverted from our business to ensure compliance with these regulatory requirements than would be the case with
a company that has established controls and procedures. This diversion of management’s time and attention may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are eligible to be treated as an emerging growth company, and we cannot be certain that the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to emerging growth
companies will not make our shares less attractive to investors.

We are an emerging growth company, as defined in the JOBS Act. For as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we may take advantage of
exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies, including, among others,
(1) not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, (2) reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, (3) exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive
compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved and (4) the requirement to present only two years of audited
financial statements and only two years of related “Management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations” in this report. We could
be an emerging growth company for up to five years, although circumstances could cause us to lose that status earlier, including if the market value of our
common stock held by non-affiliates exceeds $700.0 million as of the end of the second fiscal quarter in any fiscal year before that time or if we have total annual
gross revenues of $1.07 billion or more during any fiscal year before that time, in which case we would no longer be an emerging growth company as of the fiscal
year end, or if we issue more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during any three-year period before that time we would cease to be an emerging growth
company immediately. We cannot predict if investors will find our shares of common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some
investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our share price may be more
volatile.

Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can also delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to
private companies. We have elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective
dates for public and private companies and intend to continue such election until the earlier of the date we (i) are no longer an emerging growth company or (ii)
affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to
those of other public companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.
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As a result of being a public company, we are obligated to develop and maintain proper and effective internal control over financial reporting and any failure to
maintain the adequacy of these internal controls may negatively impact investor confidence in our company and, as a result, the value of our common stock.

We are required pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting. This assessment will need to include disclosure of any material weaknesses identified by our management in our internal
control over financial reporting. In addition, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting in our first annual report required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) following the date we are
no longer an emerging growth company. Any failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could severely inhibit our ability to accurately
report our financial condition or results of operations. If we are unable to conclude that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our
independent registered public accounting firm determines we have a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, we could lose investor
confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our common stock could decline, we could be subject to sanctions or
investigations by the NYSE American, the SEC or other regulatory authorities and our access to the capital markets could be restricted.

In this report, our management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting were not effective as
of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 due to the existence of a material weaknesses, including those weakness related to the lack of segregation of duties,
accounting for inventory deposits, accounting for insurance recoveries, and accounting for executive bonus compensation.internal controls over financial
reporting. See Item 9A —- Controls and Procedures. Although we intend to engage in activities aimed at remediating these material weaknesses, our remediation
activities may not be successful, and our management may continue to conclude that our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal control over
financial reporting are not effective in future periods.

Provisions of our corporate governance documents could make an acquisition of our Company more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace
or remove our current management, even if beneficial to our stockholders.

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws and the Nevada Revised Statutes contain provisions that could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us,
even if doing so might be beneficial to our stockholders. These provisions include:

e  advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations;

e the ability of our board of directors to issue new series of, and designate the terms of, preferred stock, without stockholder approval, which could be used to,
among other things, institute a rights plan that would have the effect of significantly diluting the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquirer, likely preventing
acquisitions that have not been approved by our board of directors; and

e limitations on the ability of stockholders to call special meetings and to take action by written consent.

Because our board of directors is responsible for appointing the members of our management team, these provisions could in turn affect any attempt to
replace current members of our management team. As a result, you may lose your ability to sell your stock for a price in excess of the prevailing market price due
to these protective measures, and efforts by stockholders to change the direction or management of the Company may be unsuccessful.

Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted by future issuances of capital stock, which could reduce your influence over matters on which stockholders vote.

Pursuant to our articles of incorporation and bylaws, our board of directors has the authority, without action or vote of our stockholders, to issue all or any
part of our authorized but unissued shares of common stock, including shares issuable upon the exercise of options, or shares of our authorized but unissued
preferred stock. Issuances of common stock or voting preferred stock would reduce your influence over matters on which our stockholders vote and, in the case of
issuances of preferred stock, would likely result in your interest in us being subject to the prior rights of holders of that preferred stock.
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An active, liquid trading market for our common stock may not develop, which may limit your ability to sell your shares.

Prior to our December 2021 initial public offering, there was no public market for our common stock. Although we list shares of our common stock on the
NYSE American under the symbol “VINE,” an active trading market for our shares may not develop or be sustained going forward. A public trading market
having the desirable characteristics of depth, liquidity and orderliness depends upon the existence of willing buyers and sellers at any given time, such existence
being dependent upon the individual decisions of buyers and sellers over which neither we nor any market maker has control. The failure of an active and liquid
trading market to develop and continue would likely have a material adverse effect on the value of our common stock. The market price of our common stock
may decline, and you may not be able to sell your shares of our common stock at or above the price you paid for them, or at all. An inactive market may also
impair our ability to raise capital to continue to fund operations by selling shares and may impair our ability to acquire other companies or technologies by using
our shares as consideration.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause the market price of our common stock to drop significantly, even if our
business is performing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that
the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our common stock.

As a public company, we are subject to additional laws, regulations and stock exchange listing standards, which will result in additional costs to us and may strain our
resources and divert our management’s attention.

Prior to our December 2021 initial public offering, we operated on a private basis. As a public reporting company, we are now subject to the reporting
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act of 2010, the listing requirements of the NYSE American and other applicable securities laws and regulations. Compliance with these
laws and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and make some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly. We also expect that
being a public company and being subject to new rules and regulations will make it more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we
may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. However, the incremental costs that we incur as a result of
becoming a public company could exceed our estimate. These factors may therefore strain our resources, divert management’s attention and affect our ability to
attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors.

Since we have no current plans to pay regular cash dividends on our common stock, you may not receive any return on investment unless you sell your common stock
for a price greater than that which you paid for it.

We do not anticipate paying any regular cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in the
future will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, financial condition, cash
requirements, contractual restrictions, and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is, and may be,
limited by covenants of existing and any future outstanding indebtedness we incur. Therefore, any return on investment in our common stock is solely dependent
upon the appreciation of the price of our common stock on the open market, which may not occur. See Item 5. “Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities - Dividends” for more detail.
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If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, if they adversely change their recommendations regarding our shares or if our
results of operations do not meet their expectations, our share price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our shares will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or our business. We do
not have any control over these analysts. Securities and industry analysts do not currently, and may never, publish research on our Company. If no securities or
industry analysts commence coverage of our Company, the trading price of our shares would likely be negatively impacted. In the event securities or industry
analysts-initiated coverage, and one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our Company or fail to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in
the financial markets, which in turn could cause our share price or trading volume to decline. Moreover, if one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade
our stock, or if our results of operations do not meet their expectations, our share price could decline.

General risks
Our operating results and share price may be volatile, and the market price of our common stock may drop below the price you pay.

Our year-end and quarterly operating results are likely to fluctuate in the future as a publicly traded company.company, which may occur during the
pendency of the Merger transaction or following completion of the Merger. In addition, securities markets worldwide have experienced, and are likely to continue
to experience, significant price and volume fluctuations. This market volatility, as well as general economic, market or political conditions, could subject the
market price of our shares to wide price fluctuations regardless of our operating performance. You may not be able to resell your shares at or above the price that
you paid or pay for them or at all. Our operating results and the trading price of our shares may fluctuate in response to various factors, including:

e  market conditions in the broader stock market;

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial and operating results;

e introduction of new wines by us or our competitors;

e issuance of new or changed securities analysts’ reports or recommendations;

e results of operations that vary from expectations of securities analysis and investors;

e  guidance, if any, that we provide to the public, any changes in this guidance or our failure to meet this guidance;
e  strategic actions by us or our competitors;

e  announcement by us, our competitors or our vendors of significant contracts or acquisitions;

e  sales, or anticipated sales, of large blocks of our stock;

e additions or departures of key personnel;

e regulatory, legal, or political developments;

e public response to press releases or other public announcements by us or third parties, including our filings with the SEC;
e litigation and governmental investigations;

e changing economic conditions;

e changes in accounting principles;

e  default under agreements governing our indebtedness;

e  exchange rate fluctuations; and

e  other events or factors, including those from natural disasters, war, actors of terrorism or responses to these events.
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These and other factors, many of which are beyond our control, may cause our operating results and the market price and demand for our shares to fluctuate
substantially. While we believe that operating results for any particular year or quarter are not necessarily a meaningful indication of future results, fluctuations
in our yearly or quarterly operating results could limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares and may otherwise negatively affect the market price
and liquidity of our shares. In addition, in the past, when the market price of a stock has been volatile, holders of that stock have sometimes instituted securities
class action litigation against the company that issued the stock. If any of our stockholders brought a lawsuit against us, we could incur substantial costs defending

the lawsuit. Such a lawsuit could also divert the time and attention of our management from our business, which could significantly harm our profitability and
reputation.
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We may require additional debt and equity capital to pursue our business objectives and respond to business opportunities, challenges, or unforeseen circumstances. If
such capital is not available to us, our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

‘We may require additional capital to pursue our business objectives and respond to business opportunities, challenges, or unforeseen circumstances, including
to increase our marketing expenditures to improve our wine brand awareness, build and maintain our product inventory, develop new wines, enhance our
operating infrastructure and acquire complementary businesses. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt financings to secure additional funds.
However, additional funds may not be available when we need them on terms that are acceptable to us or at all. Moreover, any debt financing that we secure in the
future could involve restrictive covenants, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain additional capital and to pursue business opportunities. Volatility in
the credit markets may also have an adverse effect on our ability to obtain debt financing. If we raise additional funds through further issuances of equity or
convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities we issue could have rights, preferences, and
privileges superior to those of holders of our common stock. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us when we
require it, we may be forced to obtain financing on undesirable terms or our ability to continue to pursue our business objectives and to respond to business
opportunities, challenges or unforeseen circumstances could be significantly limited, and our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY.

The Company has not adopted any formal cybersecurity risk management program or formal processes for assessing, identifying, and managing material
risks from cybersecurity threats. The full board of directors has oversight responsibility for the Company’s overall risk management, including cybersecurity risk,
and has not delegated oversight authority for cybersecurity risks to any committee. In fiscal year 2023, we did not identify any cybersecurity threats that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Through October 31, 2022, our principal executive offices located at 505 Highway 169 North, Suite 255, Plymouth, Minnesota 55441 were leased by Rabbit
Hole Equity, L.L.C., a Texas limited liability company that serves as a family office that manages a portfolio of business investments held by our former Executive
Chairman Damian Novak and his affiliates (“Rabbit Hole Equity”). Pursuant to an unwritten month-to-month arrangement, a portion of Rabbit Hole Equity’s
lease payments were allocated to the Company. Effective November 1, 2022, we terminated this lease arrangement and currently maintain a virtual administrative
office environment. The address, for mailing purposes, of our principle executive offices is 11500 Wayzata Blvd #1147, Minnetonka, Minnesota 55305.P.0. Box
78984, Charlotte, NC 28271.

Our production facility, which we occupy occupied on an alternating proprietorship basis, iswas located in Napa, California. The initial term of the
Alternating Proprietorship Agreement with our “host winery” expired in July 2022, but is automatically was renewed for successive one-year terms unless either
party provides 90 days’ advance written notice of intent to terminate the agreement at the end of the then current term. The current renewal term will expire and
was ultimately terminated in July 2023, subject to the automatic renewal.December 2023.

We utilize a two warehouse facility facilities in American Canyon, California, for which we California. We pay a storage fee fees per pallet and entry and exit
processing fees.

We expect that the current properties will be adequate for our current office and production needs.

During the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021,2022, respectively, we incurred approximately $94,436 $0 and $81,050 $94,436 in
facilities rental expense.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 571162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

‘We may be subject to legal disputes and subject to claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. Except as set forth below, we are not a party or subject
to any pending legal proceedings the resolution of which is expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, cash flows or financial
condition.

Timothy Michaels Lawsuit

On February 24, 2022, The Company was a defendant in a lawsuit styled Timothy Michaels the former Chief Operating Officer of the Company, signed a
Separation Agreement and Release (the “Separation Agreement”) in connection with the termination of his employment with the Company, which occurred on
February 7, 2022.

Onv. Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. filed May 27, 2022, Mr. Michaels filed a complaint against the Company in the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County,
Minnesota, alleging that Minnesota. The lawsuit related to a complaint filed by Mr. Michaels resulting from the Company breached a February 24, 2022
Separation Agreement entered into with Mr. Michael following termination of his employment by including a restricted “lock-up” legend on certain shares of the
Company’s common stock issued to Mr. Michaels pursuant to a settlement agreement that the Settlement Agreement. The complaint also included counts alleging
breach Company entered into with Mr. Michaels following termination of the implied covenant of good faith his employment and fair dealing, issuer liability
under Minn. Stat. § 336.8-401 for delay in not removing or directing the Company’s transfer agent to remove such legend. A jury trial commenced on January 23,
2024. During trial, on January 24, 2024, the lock-up legend from the shares, conversion and civil theft. The Company has denied the allegations and intends to
defend against the lawsuit. The Company has made filed a motion seeking dismissal of the conversion and civil theft counts, which was granted by the Fourth
Judicial District Court, Hennepin County, Minnesota on October 31, 2022. The action remains pending.

Janelle Anderson Lawsuit and Settlement

On or about July 18, 2022, Janelle Anderson, the former Chief Executive Officer for judgement in favor of the Company served as a complaint matter of law,
which was denied by the Court. On January 25, 2024, the jury in the lawsuit rendered a verdict against the Company awarding damages to Mr. Michaels in the
Fourth Judicial amount of $585,976.25. On February 22, 2024, the Company filed a renewed motion for post-verdict judgment in favor of the Company as a
matter of law. On February 26, 2024, the Judge in the lawsuit denied the renewed motion for post-verdict judgment. The Company is assessing the options
available to it, including the possibility of appealing the verdict. Although the Company believes it has legal grounds to appeal the verdict, continued litigation and
related actions may be expensive, the outcome of any litigation (including any appeal) is difficult to predict, and the existence of litigation may impact the ability
of management to focus on other business matters. Furthermore, the Company will be required to post an appeals bond in order to stay execution of the money
judgment pending any appeal. Given the Company’s current financial position, the cost of such an appeals bond is uncertain and may be higher than the typical
cost of such a bond or require the Company to provide cash or other collateral.

Website-related Plaintiff’s Lawsuit

On January 26, 2024, the Company was served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court Hennepin County, Minnesota, captioned Janelle
Anderson v. Fresh Vine Wine, Inc., Damian Novak, and Rick Nechio, Court File No. 27-CV-22-11491 (the “Lawsuit”), in which Ms. Anderson alleged, among
other things, for the Southern District of New York alleging that the Company terminated her employment as retaliation for reports of alleged wrongdoing has
failed to design, construct, maintain and operate its Internet website to be fully accessible to and independently usable by blind or visually-impaired persons,
thereby denying blind and visually-impaired persons with equal access to the Company’s goods and services in violation of the Minnesota Whistleblower Act.
Defendants also included Damian Novak, former Executive Chairman and a former director Title III of the Company, Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and
Rick Nechio, our interim Chief Executive Officer.

the New York Human Rights Law, the New York Civil Rights Law. On January 27, 2023 February 16, 2024, the Company entered into a Global Mutual
Compromise, Rel and Settl Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) among Ms. Anderson and each of Messrs. Novak and Nechio. Pursuant filed an
Answer to the Settlement Agreement, Ms. Anderson agreed to dismiss complaint denying the Lawsuit with prejudice plaintiff’s allegations and to file with the
court any and all documents necessary to effect such dismissal with prejudice within five business days after all settlement consideration has been actually
received by her, and the parties agreed to general mutual releases. The Company also agreed to indemnify Ms. Anderson and hold her harmless against any
liability, civil damages, penalties, or fines claimed against her for any of her actions done within the course and scope of her employment with the Company as
required by Minn. Stat. §181.970, and under any applicable insurance policies, including but not limited to any directors and officers policies. The Settlement
Agreement also contains a non-disparagement provision.asserting affirmative defenses thereto.

As consideration for Ms. Anderson’s dismissal and release, the Company agreed to make a cash payment to Ms. Anderson in the amount of $1,250,000, less
certain attorney fees and relevant taxes and other withholdings, in a lump sum. The Company recouped approximately $805,000 of this of cash payment from
insurance coverage. The cash payment is in addition to $400,000 that we previously paid to Ms. Anderson in January 2023 in respect of 2022 bonus compensation
earned by Ms. Anderson under her employment agreement while employed by the Company. Also as contemplated by the Settlement Agreement, the Company
and Ms. Anderson have agreed to enter into a consulting agreement (the “Anderson Consulting Agreement”) pursuant to which Ms. Anderson provides certain
consulting services to the Company for a period of six months. As consideration for such services, the Company has agreed to grant and issue to Ms. Anderson
500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Anderson Consulting Shares”) from the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Anderson Consulting
Share Grant”). The cash payment and the Anderson Consulting Share Grant were scheduled to be made at the “closing” of the Settlement Agreement (the
“Settlement Closing”), subject to Ms. Anderson not revoking or rescinding the Settlement Agreement during the applicable revocation period. The Settlement
Closing was completed on February 20, 2023.

In conjunction with entering into the Settlement Agreement, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak entered into Agreements to Forfeit Shares of Common Stock
(the “Forfeiture Agreements”) pursuant to which each agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration 250,000 shares of common stock
of the Company held by them (a total of 500,000 shares), to enable the Company to issue the Anderson Consulting Shares to Ms. Anderson without subjecting the
Company’s other stockholders to dilution therefrom (the “Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures”). The Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures became
effective in connection with the Settlement Closing.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.
Market Information

Our common stock began trading on the NYSE American under the symbol “VINE” on December 14, 2021. Prior to that date, there was no public trading
market for our common stock.
Stockholders

As of March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024, there were 43 stockholders of record of our common stock, one of which was Cede & Co., a nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, or DTC. Shares of common stock that are held by financial institutions as nominees for beneficial owners are deposited into participant accounts
at DTC and are considered to be held of record by Cede & Co. as one stockholder.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate that we will pay any dividends to holders of our common stock in
the foreseeable future. Instead, we currently plan to retain any earnings to finance the growth of our business. Any future determination relating to dividend
policy will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations and capital requirements as well as
other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors.
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by Item 5 is incorporated herein by reference to Item 12 below.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Between December 15, 2022 and December 18, 2022, the Company entered into agreements with six service providing vendors of the Company (the
“Vendors”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue a total of 970,000 shares of its common stock to the Vendors as soon as practicable after the dates of
the agreements. Pursuant to the agreements with certain of the Vendors, the The Company has agreed to issue up to an additional 1,030,000 shares not conducted
sales of common stock upon unregistered securities during the Company achieving specified revenue-related performance objectives within identified timeframes.
Such issuances and contingent future issuances were made period covering this report except as previously disclosed in reliance upon the exemption from
registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, based on the Company’s reasonable belief that the offer and sale of the
warrant has not and will not involve a public offering.Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q or in its Current Reports on Form 8-K.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On December 15, 2022, and in conjunction with the issuance of 970,000 The Company did not purchase shares of the Company’sits common stock to the
Vendors, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak, who are two conducted sales of the Company’s founders, entered into Agreements to Forfeit Shares of Common Stock
(the “Forfeiture Agreements”) pursuant to which Messrs. Nechio and Novak agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration 368,000
and 602,000 shares, respectively, of common stock of the Company held by them (a total of 970,000 shares), to enable the Company to preserve cash by issuing
such number of shares to the Vendors without subjecting the Company’s other stockholders to dilution therefrom. The share forfeitures were effected on
December 19, 2022. The following table provides information reflecting these forfeitures, which were the only acquisitions made by the Company of its
outstanding common stock unregistered securities during the fourth quarter of 2022.2023.

Maximum
Total Number Number
of Shares of Shares
Purchased as that may
Total Part of yet be
Number of Average Publicly Purchased
Shares Price Paid per Announced Under the
Period Purchased Share Programs Programs
(Oct. 1 - Oct. 31, 2022) - 8 i i i
(Nov. 1 — Nov. 30, 2022) CR i - -
(Dec. 1 —Dec. 31, 2022) 970,000 $ - = s
Total 970,000 $ s - £

ITEM 6. [RESERVED].
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related
notes to those statements as included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion and
analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements”
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result
of many factors, including those discussed in Part I “Item 1A. Risk Factors” included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Under this “Fresh Vine Management’s
Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations,” “we,” “us,” “our” “Fresh Vine Wine,” “Fresh Vine” and the “Company” refer to Fresh
Vine.

Overview

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. is a premier producer of low carb, low calorie, premium wines in the United States. Founded in 2019, Fresh Vine Wine brings an
innovative “better-for-you” solution to the wine market. We currently sell seven varietals: Cabernet Sauvignon, Pinot Noir, Chardonnay, Sauvignon Blanc, Rosé,
Sparkling Rosé, and a limited Reserve Napa Cabernet Sauvignon. All varietals are produced and bottled in Napa, California.

Our Fresh Vine’s wines are distributed across the United States and Puerto Rico through wholesale, retail, and direct-to-consumer (DTC) channels. We
are Fresh Vine is able to conduct wholesale distribution of our wines in all 50 states and Puerto Rico, and we areit is licensed to sell through DTC channels in 43
states. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, we hold Fresh Vine holds active relationships with wholesale distributors in 48 states, unchanged from
September 2022, and currently have additional states in which licensing 50 states. Fresh Vine is pending. We are actively working with leading distributors,
including Southern Glazer’s Wine & Spirits (SGWS), Johnson Brothers, and Republic National Distributing Company (RNDC), to expand our presence across
the contiguous United States.

Our Fresh Vine’s core wine offerings are priced strategically to appeal to mass markets and sell at a list price between $15 and $25 per bottle. Given the Fresh
Vine Wine brand’s celebrity backing, “better-for-you” appeal, and overall product quality, we believe Fresh Vine believes that it presents today’s consumers with
a unique value proposition within this price category. Additionally, Fresh Vine Wine is one of very few products available at this price point that includes a named
winemaker, Jamey Whetstone.
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Our Fresh Vine’s marketing activities focus primarily on consumers in the 21-to-34-year-old demographic with moderate to affluent income and on those with
a desire to pursue a healthy and active lifestyles.lifestyle.

Our Fresh Vine’s asset-light operating model allows usit to utilize third-party assets, including land and production facilities. This approach helps us mitigate
many of the risks associated with agribusiness, such as isolated droughts or fires. Because we source Fresh Vine sources product inputs from multiple
geographically dispersed vendors, we reduceit reduces reliance on any one vendor and benefit from broad availability/optionality of product inputs. This is
particularly important as a California-based wine producer where droughts or fires can have an extremely detrimental impact to a company’s supply chain if not
diversified.

Key Financial Metrics

We use net revenue, gross profit (loss), and net income (loss) and Adjusted EBITDA to evaluate the performance of Fresh Vine Wine. Vine. These metrics are
useful in helping us to identify trends in our business, prepare financial forecasts and make capital allocation decisions, and assess the comparable health of our
business relative to our direct competitors.

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022
Net revenue $ 2,860,001 $ 1,700,207 $ 1,826,190 $ 2,860,001
Gross profit $ 308,991 $ 564,939
Gross profit (loss) $ (2,585,929) $ 308,992
Net loss $ (15202,507) $ (9,965,627) $(10,615,035) $(15,202,507)
Adjusted EBITDA $ (11,124,605) $ (4,181,521)

Net revenue

Net revenue represents all revenues less discounts, promotions, and excise taxes. Net revenue is driven through wine sales, merchandise sales, and wine club
membership dues.
Gross profit (loss)

Gross profit (loss) is equal to our net revenue less cost of revenues (or cost of goods sold). Cost of revenues is comprised of all direct product costs such as
juice, bottles, caps, corks, labels, and capsules. Additionally, we also categorize boxes and quality assurance testing within our cost of revenues.
Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that we calculate as operating profits before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and stock-based
compensation. We use this metric to evaluate business performance in comparison to budgets, forecasts, and prior year financial results, providing a measure that
management believes reflects the Company’s core operating performance and overall health.

We believe the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA is relevant and useful for investors because it allows investors to assess the Company’s operating
performance and makes it easier to compare our results with other similar companies, despite the potential impacts of varying financial or capital structures,
depreciation benefits, or tax strategies. In addition, we believe this measure is among the measures used by investors, analysts and peers in our industry for
purposes of evaluating and comparing our operating performance to other companies. Stock-based compensation expense is a non-cash expense arising from the
grant of stock-based awards to employees or other service providers. We believe that excluding the effect of stock-based compensation from Adjusted EBITDA
assists management and investors in making period-to-period comparisons in our company’s operating performance because (i) the amount of such expenses in
any specific period may not directly correlate to the underlying performance of our business operations and (ii) such expenses can vary significantly between
periods as a result of the timing of grants of new stock-based awards. Investors should note that stock-based compensation is a key incentive offered to employees
and service providers whose efforts contributed to the operating results in the periods presented and are expected to contribute to operating results in future
periods. Investors should also note that such expenses may recur in the future.
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Adjusted EBITDA is intended to provide a supplemental way of comparing our company with other companies and is not intended as a substitute for
comparisons based on net income (loss) or operating income (loss). In making any comparisons to other companies, investors should be aware that companies use
different non-GAAP measures to evaluate their financial performance. Investors should pay close attention to the specific definition being used and to the
reconciliation between such measures and the corresponding GAAP measures provided by each company under applicable SEC rules.

The following table provides a reconciliation of EBITDA to the most comparable financial measure reported under U.S. GAAP, net loss, for the periods
presented:

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021
Net loss $ (15,202,507) $  (9,965,627)
Adjustments to net loss

Interest 20,789 45,604

Stock based compensation 4,053,123 5,738,029,

Amortization $ 3,990 $ 473
Adjusted EBITDA $ (11,124,605) $  (4,181,521)

Components of Results of Operations and Trends That May Impact Our Results of Operations
Net Revenuerevenue

Our net revenue consists primarily of wine sales to distributors and retailers, which together comprise our wholesale channel, and directly to individual consumers
through our DTC channel. Net revenues generally represent wine sales and shipping, when applicable, and to a lesser extent branded merchandise and wine club
memberships. For wine and merchandise sales, revenues are generally recognized at time of shipment. For Wine Club memberships, revenues are recognized quarterly at
the time of fulfilment and only after the club member has made three consecutive (monthly) payments.fulfilment.

We refer to the volume of wine we sell in terms of cases. Each case contains 12 standard bottles, in which each bottle has a volume of 750 millilitres. milliliters. Cases
are sold through Wholesale/Retail or DTC channels.

The following factors and trends in our business have driven our net revenue growth since January 1, 2022, results and are expected to be key drivers of our net revenue
for the foreseeable future:

Brand recognition:As we expand our marketing presence and drive visibility through traditional and modern marketing methods, we expect to build awareness and
name recognition for Fresh Vine Wine in consumers’ minds. Brand awareness will be built substantially through social media channels. Our brand, and to a large extent our
direct-to-consumer sales outlet, has historically been dependent on the image and popularity of, and affinity towards, Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough. Ms. Dobrev and
Ms. Hough served as celebrity spokespersons and ambassadors of our company, and actively endorsed our wines on their sizable social media and other outlets pursuant to
agreements that granted us licenses to use their pre-approved name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity, as well as certain content published on their social media
and other channels, where on and in conjunction with the sale and related pre-approved advertising and promotion of our wine. Such license agreements terminated on
September 7, 2023 and, as a result, we are ablewill be required to immediately access more than 30 million potential consumers throughrefocus our celebrities’
Instagram marketing and Facebook platforms.brand promotion efforts. See “Item 1A Risk Factors - We have relied heavily on celebrities to endorse our wines and market
our brand pursuant to license agreements which have been terminated.”

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 62/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Portfolio evolution: As a relatively new, high-growth brand, we expect and seek to learn from our consumers. We will intend to continuously evolve and refine our
products to meet our consumers’ specific needs and wants, adapting our offering to maximize value for our consumers and stakeholders. Our growth mindset, coupled with
our differentiated production and distribution platform, will enable us to accelerate growth and deliver on our value proposition over time.

One way in which we will evolve our portfolio is through product extensions. Fresh Vine Wine added a sixth varietal, Sauvignon Blanc, late in the second quarter of
2022 and seventh varietal, Sparkling Rosé, in the third quarter of 2022, currently offering seven varietals (Cabernet Sauvignon, Cabernet Sauvignon Reserve, Pinot Noir,
Chardonnay, Sauvignon Blanc, Rosé, and Sparkling Rosé) within its product portfolio. In the future, we can use the same knowledge and supplier networks to launch new
varietals with much greater efficiency than we were previously able to achieve.
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Distribution expansion and acceleration: Purchasing by distributors and loyal accounts that continue to feature our wines are key drivers of net revenue. We plan to
continue broadening our distributor network, adding new geographies, and increasing each distributor’s average order size as we accelerate growth.

Opportunistic evaluation of strategic acquisitions: ~ With strong internal knowledge and a depth of experience in private equity and the broader financial services
industry, we intend to maintain a strategic and opportunistic approach to evaluating acquisitions and growing through acquisition. We will also remain open to other
inorganic growth activities, including joint ventures and strategic alliances, as we seek to accelerate this business to market. While we have not identified any prospective
targets to date, we consider this a core competency of our leadership team and believe that this presents us with a viable growth alternative as we move forward.

Seasonality: In line with industry norms, we anticipate our net revenue to peak peaking during the quarter spanning from October through December due to increased
consumer demand around the major holidays. This is particularly true in our DTC revenue channel, where marketing programs will often be aligned with the holiday season
and product promotions will be prevalent.

Revenue Channels

Our sales and distribution platform is built upon a highly developed network of distributor accounts. Within this network, we have signed agreements in place with
several of the nation’s largest distributors including Southern Glazer’s Wine & Spirits and RNDC, among others. While we are actively working with these distributors in
certain markets, they operate across the United States, and we intend to grow our geographic/market presence through these relationships. The development of these
relationships and impacts on to our related product mix will impact on our financial results as our channel mix shifts.

o e Wholesale channel: channel: Consistent with sales practices in the wine industry, sales to retailers and distributors occur below SRP (Suggested Retail Price).
We work closely with distributors to increase wine volumes and the number of products sold by their retail accounts in their respective territories.

® o DTC channel: channel: Wines sold through our DTC channels are generally sold at SRP, although we do periodically offer various promotions. Our DTC
channel continues to grow as a result of a number of factors, including expanded e-commerce sites and social media capabilities.

® e Related party services: services: We have previously entered into service agreements with related parties in the wine industry to provide representation and
distribution services. These services were suspended in June 2022 to allow the Company’s lean team to prioritize the growth and expansion of the Fresh Vine
Wine brand.

Wholesale channel sales made on credit terms generally require payment within 30 days of delivery; however our credit terms with Southern Glazer’s Wine & Spirits
requires payment within 60 days of delivery. During periods in which our net revenue channel mix reflects a greater concentration of wholesale sales, we typically
experience an increase in accounts receivable for the period to reflect the change in sales mix; payment collections in the subsequent period generally reduce our accounts
receivable balance and have a positive impact on cash flows.

While we seek to increase revenue across all channels, we expect the majority of our future revenue to be
driven through the wholesale channel. We intend to maintain and expand relationships with existing distributors and form relationships with new distributors as we work to
grow the Company. With multiple varietals within the Fresh Vine Wine portfolio, we consider ourselves to be a ‘one-stop shop’ for better-for-you wines. We continue to
innovate with new products at competitive price points and strive to enhance the experience as we increase revenue with new and existing consumers.

In the DTC channel, our comprehensive approach to consumer engagement in both online and traditional forums is supported by an integrated e-commerce platform.
Our marketing efforts target consumers who have an interest in healthy and active lifestyles. We attempt to motivate consumers toward a simple and easy purchasing
decision using a combination of defined marketing programs and a modernized technology stack.
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Increasing customer engagement is a key driver of our business and results of operations. We continue to invest in our DTC channel and in performance marketing to
drive customer engagement. In addition to developing new product offerings and cross-selling wines in our product portfolio, we focus on increasing customer conversion
and retention. As we continue to invest in our DTC channel, we expect to increase customer engagement and subsequently deliver greater satisfaction. We also distribute
our wines via other wine e-commerce sites such as Wine.com and Vivino.com and plan to continue to add affiliate retail websites.
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Net Revenue Percentage by Channel

We calculate net revenue percentage by channel as net revenue made through our wholesale channel to distributors, through our wholesale channel directly to retail
accounts, and through our DTC channel, respectively, as a percentage of our total net revenue. We monitor net revenue percentage across revenue channels to understand
the effectiveness of our distribution model and to ensure we are employing resources effectively as we engage customers.

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021
‘Wholesale 58 % 45%
Direct to consumer 32% 46 %
Related party service 10% 9%
100 % 100 %
Year ended
December 31,
2023 2022
Wholesale 73 % 58 %
Direct to consumer 27 % 32%
Related party service -% 10 %
100 % 100 %

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues (or cost of goods sold). Cost of revenues is comprised of all direct product costs such as juice, bottles, caps, corks, labels, and capsules. Additionally,
we also categorize boxes and quality assurance testing within our cost of revenues. We expect Fresh Vine expects that our cost of revenues will increase as our net revenue
increases. As the volume of ourthe product inputs increases, we intend Fresh Vine intends to work to renegotiate vendor contracts with key suppliers to reduce overall
product input costs as a percentage of net revenue. Based on a proposed sale of inventory at a price below the Company’s cost, the Company completed an evaluation of the
net realizable value of our inventory during the year ended December 31, 2023. As a result of this evaluation, the Company recorded a $1.7 million inventory write down to
reflect it at its net realizable value at June 30, 2023 and an additional approximately $100,000 was written down by December 31, 2023. This is recorded in cost of revenue
in the financial statements. The inventory reserve balance at December 31, 2023 is approximately $112,000.

Additionally, the Company includes shipping fees in all DTC revenues. These fees are paid by end consumers at time of order and subsequently itemized within the
cost of each individual sale.

As a commodity product, the cost of wine fluctuates due to annual harvest yields and the availability of juice. This macroeconomic consideration is not unique to Fresh
Vine Wine, although we are conscious of its potential impact to our product cost structure.
Gross Profit (Loss)

Gross profit (loss) is equal to our net revenue less cost of revenues. As we grow our business in the future, we expect gross profit to increase as our revenue grows and
as we optimize our cost of revenues.
Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative expenses consist of selling expenses, marketing expenses, and general and administrative expenses. Selling expenses consist
primarily of direct selling expenses in our wholesale and DTC channels, including payroll and related costs, product samples, processing fees, and other outside service fees
or consulting fees. Marketing expenses consist primarily of advertising costs to promote brand awareness, contract fees incurred as a result of significant sports marketing
agreements, customer retention costs, payroll, and related costs. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of payroll and related costs.
Equity-Based Compensation

Equity-based compensation consists of the accounting expense resulting from our issuance of equity or equity-based grants issued in exchange for employee or non-
employee services. We measure equity-based compensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and recognize the compensation expense over the
requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period. We recognize any forfeitures as they occur.
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Results of Operations

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022
Net revenue $ 2,860,001 $ 1,700,207 $ 1,826,190 $ 2,860,001
Cost of revenues 2,551,009 1,135,268 4,412,119 2,551,009
Gross profit (loss) 308,992 564,939 (2,585,929) 308,992
Selling, general and administrative expenses 11,489,805 4,793,445 6,322,184 11,489,805
Equity-based compensation 4,053,123 5,738,029 1,708,218 4,053,123
Loss from operations (15,233,936) (9,966,535) (10,616,331) (15,233,936)
Other income 31,429 908 1,296 31,429
Net loss $ (15,202,507) $ (9,965,627) $(10,615,035) $(15,202,507)
Comparison of the Fiscal Years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 20212022
Net Revenue, Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit
Year ended December 31, Change
2023 2022 $ %
Net revenue $ 1,826,190 $ 2,860,001 1,033,811 -36%
Cost of revenues 4,412,119 2,551,009 1,861,110 73 %
Gross profit (loss) $  (2,585929) $ 308,992 (2,894,921) -937%

We had net revenue in fiscal 2022 2023 of $2,860,001. $1,826,190. Net revenue in fiscal 2021 2022 was $1,700,207. $2,860,001. The increase decrease in net revenue
was attributable to our increasing presence in decreasing sales and marketing spending, the wholesale market, the launch termination of our wine club, related party sales
agreements and the introduction of service revenues. increased billbacks. We generated net revenue of $1,651,451 $1,328,382 during fiscal 20222023 from our wholesale
distribution channel $911,326 and $497,808 of net revenue from our direct-to-consumer sales channel, and $297,224 from our services from our related party channel. This
revenue distribution represents 58%, 32% 73% and 10% 27%, respectively, of our net revenue during the period.

Year ended December 31, Change

2022 2021 $ %
Net revenue $ 2,860,001 $ 1,700,207 1,159,794 68 %
Cost of revenues 2,551,009 1,135,268 1,415,741 125%
Gross profit $ 308,992 $ 564,939 (255,947) -45 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Year ended December 31, Change
2023 2022 $

Selling expenses $ 965,091 $ 1,238,568 $ (273,477)
Marketing expenses 1,576,324 2,746,432 (1,170,108)
General and administrative expenses 3,780,769 7,504,805 (3,724,035)
Total selling, general and administrative expenses $ 6,322,184 $ 11,489,805 $ (5,167,620)

For the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 140% decreased 45%, compared to the period ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022. Selling, general and administrative expense increases decreases were largely driven by certain one-time charges associated with the
leadership transition in 2022, as well as increasesdecreases in general and administrative expenses due to higherlower staffing headcount and related salaries and
additional less consulting, legal and financial expenses as operational activity increased decreased from 2021 2022 to 2022. In addition, the Company incurred incremental
costs due to the Company being a public reporting company in 2022, such as higher professional services for accounting, finance and legal, as well as higher insurance
expenses and listing fees, among others. The increase in selling expenses primarily relates to our sponsorship agreements in the sports and entertainment industry. 2023. The
year-over-year increase decrease in marketing expenses primarily resulted from increased decreased advertising, social media marketing, tastings, and other promotion
materials and events. We typically expect events as selling and marketing expenses are directly related to follow our sales volume growth as the activities are intended to
generate revenues, however we expect these expenses to be higher in the initial growth phase of the Company and begin to normalize in the coming quarters.sale trends.

Year ended December 31, Change
2022 2021 $
Selling expenses $ 1,238,568 $ 364,204 $ 874,364
Marketing expenses 2,746,432 1,612,648 1,133,784
General and administrative expenses 7,504,805 2,816,593 4,688,212
Total selling, general and administrative expenses $ 11,489,805 $ 4,793,445 $ 6,696,360
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Cash Flows

Year ended
December 31,
2023 2022

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ (4,809,009) $ (13,528,251)

Investing activities (500,000) -

Financing activities 3,565,014 (455,355)
Net (decrease) increase in cash $ (1,743,995) $ (13,983,606)

Net cash provided by (used in)used in operating activities was ($13,528,252)4,809,009) and ($5,789,942)13,528,251) for the years ended December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022, respectively. Cash used in operating activities increased decreased in the period ended December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 primarily because of one-time selling, general and administrative expense increasesexpenses in 2022 driven by certain one-time charges
associated with the leadership transition, as well as increases decreases in general and administrative expenses due to higher lower staffing headcount and related salaries
and additional less consulting, legal and financial expenses as operational activity increased decreased from 20212022 to 2022. In addition, the Company incurred
incremental costs 2023. The decrease is also due to the Company being a public reporting company fact that no inventory purchases were made in 2022, such as higher
professional services 2023 to maintain our inventory levels to meet demand and reductions in costs for accounting, finance staffing and legal, as well as higher insurance
expenses and listing fees. Investments in inventory also contributed to the increase in net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31,
2022.marketing activities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $0 $500,000 and $250 $0 for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2021 December 31,
2022, respectively. Cash used in investing activities in the 2021 periods 2023 period was from the purchase of intangible assets.investment made to Notes Live, Inc, see
Note 5.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was ($455,355) $3,565,014 and $21,849,648 $(455,355) for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
and December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022, respectively. The cash provided in difference is due to the Rights Offering of $2,615,014 and the issuance of preferred stock for
a net of $950,000 during the year ended December 31, 2021 was primarily due to proceeds from the initial public offering.December 31, 2023.

Year ended
December 31,
2022 2021

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ (13,528,251) $  (5,789,942)

Investing activities - (250)

Financing activities (455,355) 21,849,648
Net (decrease) increase in cash $ (13,983,606) $ 16,059,456

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary cash needs are for working capital purposes, such as producing or purchasing inventory and funding operating. Prior to our December 2021 initial public
offering, we operating expenses. We have funded our operational cash requirements primarily with funds advanced from Damian Novak, our former Executive
Chairman operations through equity and co-founder, and entities affiliated with Mr. Novak. We also received proceeds from debt financings, as described under the sale of
Class W Units representing membership interests in the Company, which converted into common stock upon the LLC Conversion, and we received short term loans in the
form of promissory notes from two of our equity holders, which supplemented the loans from Mr. Novak and his affiliates as sources of operating capital, along with limited
cash flows from our operating activities. See caption “Financing Transactions” below.

During the year ending on December 31, 2022, we used a portion of the net proceeds we received from our initial public offering to repay net outstanding related party
payables of $432,000 that we owed to Mr. Novak and his affiliates, and the promissory notes held by our equity holders. We are currently funding our operational cash
requirements with net proceeds from the sale of our common stock in our initial public offering and our recently completed subscription rights offering (discussed below),
supplemented by cash flows from our operating activities.
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We have incurred losses and negative cash flows from operations since our inception in May 2019, including net losses of approximately ($15.2) 10.6) million and
($10.0) 15.2) million during the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, we had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $15.8 million $26.5 million and a total stockholders’ equity deficit of approximately $5.6 million. $830,000. We expect to incur losses
in future periods as we continue to increase our expenses in order to position us to grow operate our business and incur expenses associated with being a public company.

As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, we had $2,080,335 $336,340 in cash and restricted cash, accounts receivable of $259,317,$172,101, inventory of
$3,696,198, $337,873, and prepaid expenses of $961,211.%$42,943. On December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, current assets amounted to approximately $8.6
million $889,000 and current liabilities were $3.0 $2.1 million resulting in a working capital surplus deficit (with working capital defined as current assets minus current
liabilities) of approximately $5.6 million $1.3 million.

On January 27, 2023, we entered into a Global Mutual Compromise, Release and Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Janelle Anderson, among
others, pursuant to which Ms. Anderson has agreed to dismiss her pending lawsuit against us in exchange for (among other things) a cash payment in Since the
amount commencement of $1,250,000 (less certain attorney fees and relevant taxes and other withholdings) in a lump sum. We recouped approximately $805,000 of this of
cash payment from insurance coverage. The cash payment was made at the “closing” of the Settlement Agreement, which occurred on February 20, 2023. The cash payment
is in addition to $400,000 that we previously paid to Ms. Anderson in January 2023 in respect of 2022 bonus compensation earned by her under her employment agreement
while employed by the Company. Our cash payments to Ms. Anderson (net of amounts recouped from insurance) have reduced the amount of our cash reserves, current
assets and working capital.

During the first quarter of 2023, on March 14, 2023, the Company completed an offering to its stockholders as of February 22, 2023 of the right to purchase up to
6,366,129 units (“Units”) at a subscription price of $1.00 per Unit (the “Rights Offering”). The Rights Offering resulted in the sale of 3,143,969 Units for aggregate gross
proceeds of approximately $3.14 million to the Company. Each Unit consisted of one share of common stock and a warrant to purchase one share of common stock (the
“Warrants”). The Warrants were exercisable immediately, expire five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $1.25 per share. If exercised, additional
gross proceeds of up to approximately $3.93 million may be received through the exercise of Warrants issued in the rights offering. The Company expects to use net
proceeds from the sale of the Units, after deducting fees and expenses (including dealer-manager fees) of approximately $2.7 million related to the Rights Offering, to fund
its working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes. See “Financing Transactions” below and note 10 to the accompanying financial statements for
additional information on the Rights Offering.

Although the Company’s revenue generated during the year ended December 31, 2022 represents a 68% increase over its revenues generated in same period of
2021, operations, the Company’s operating and other expenses have significantly exceeded its revenues over these periods.revenues. The Company put in place cash
preservation initiatives in the second half of 2022, including a strategic restructuring plan aimed at cash resources while continuing to focus on accelerating sales growth.
That plan resulted in the termination of members of the Company’s internal sales team, the engagement of a third party vendor positioned to more efficiently and effectively
facilitate sales, and the engagement of a third party vendor to manage marketing initiatives and drive growth within the Direct-to-Consumer sales channel.

During the second quarter of 2023, the Company undertook a review of the Company’s operations and strategic plans, and took measures aimed at improving the
Company’s operational efficiency, curtailing operating expenses and further preserving cash resources. During the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, the
Company purchased additional inventory continued to work to reduce its operating expenses, including reducing its warehousing costs, while continuing to provide
customers the opportunity to experience its wine and supporting its current retail customers and those purchasing via the Company’s wine club or from its website.

Commencing in efforts to mitigate supply chain risks and incurred additional expenses in order to invest in sales and marketing activities and increase staffing and
infrastructure to position the Company for future growth. Meanwhile, June 2023, the Company has put in place several cash preservation initiatives starting worked
aggressively to identify prospective new sources of capital, while working with advisors to assess and improve its liquidity position, including from the sale of existing
inventory. Early in the third quarter, the Company entered into purchase orders for the sale of 2022. up to 45,000 cases of the Company’s wine to Grocery Outlet, a discount
retailer, with sales occurring through the last part of 2023. The Company had sales related to this agreement totaling approximately $829,000 for the year ended December
31, 2023.

On August 2, 2023, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors (the “Purchasers”) pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and sell in a private placement shares of a newly created series of preferred stock designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series A Stock™).
Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Purchasers collectively purchased 10,000 shares of Series A Stock at a per share purchase price equal to $100.00, for
total gross proceeds of $1.0 million. See “Financing Transactions” below for a description of the Company’s offering of Series A Stock.

In August 2023, Fresh Vine announced that it had initiated an exploration of strategic opportunities by way of merger, acquisition, or any accretive strategic transaction
to enhance stockholder value, which is a focus of the Company’s plan to increase its stockholders’ equity and regain compliance with the NYSE American’s continued
listing standards. On January 25, 2024, Fresh Vine entered into the Merger Agreement. See Part I, “Item 1 Business - Recent Developments — Anticipated Merger with
Notes Live, Inc.” included elsewhere in this report.

As disclosed under Item 3 - Legal Proceedings, the Company has been a defendant in a lawsuit styled Timothy Michaels v. Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. filed May 27, 2022 in
the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County, Minnesota. On January 25, 2024, the jury in the lawsuit rendered a verdict against the Company awarding damages to
Mr. Michaels in the amount of $585,976.25. The damages awarded to Mr. Michaels by the trial court are not covered by the Company’s insurance policies. The Company
currently holds no debt and expectsis assessing the options available to seek additional debt or equity financing to sustain existing operations. If adequate financing is not
available, it, including the possibility of appealing the verdict. Although the Company believes it has legal grounds to appeal the verdict, continued litigation and related
actions may be forced expensive, the outcome of any litigation (including any appeal) is difficult to curtail its growth priorities, take measures predict and the existence of
continued litigation may impact the ability of management to severely reduce our expenses focus on other business matters. Furthermore, the Company will be required to
post an appeals bond in order to stay execution of the money judgment pending any appeal. Given the Company’s current financial position, the cost of such an appeals
bond is uncertain and business operations, or discontinue them completely. Such financing may be dilutive. higher than the typical cost of such a bond or require the
Company to provide cash or other collateral.

At the current reduced pace of incurring expenses and without receipt of additional financing, the Company projects that the existing cash balance when added to
anticipated proceeds from budgeted sales, will be sufficient to fund current operations through into the end first quarter of 2023, after which 2024. The Company requires
additional debt or equity financing will be needed to satisfy obligations. its existing obligations, sustain existing operations, pay expenses associated with its pending
business combination transaction and to satisfy financial related conditions to the closing of such transaction. See “Current Strategy - The Merger” below. Additional
financing may not be available on favorable terms or at all. If additional financing is available, it may be highly dilutive to existing shareholders stockholders and may
otherwise include burdensome or onerous terms. The Company’s inability to raise additional working capital in a timely manner would will negatively impact the ability to
fund operations, generate revenues, maintain or grow the business and otherwise execute the Company’s business plan, including its pursuit of its pending business
combination transaction, leading to the reduction or suspension of operations and ultimately potentially ceasing operations altogether. altogether and initiating bankruptcy
proceedings. Should this occur, the value of any investment in the Company’s securities could would be adversely affected.
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These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern.

Our ability to continue as a going concern in the future will be determined by our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to sustain our operations, and/or raise
additional capital in the form of debt or equity financing. financing and/or complete a successful combination transaction with a suitable target company. Our forecast of
cash resources is forward-looking information that involves risks and uncertainties, and the actual amount of our expenses could vary materially as a result of a number of
factors. We have based our estimates on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and our revenue could prove to be less and our expenses higher than we currently
anticipate. Management does not know whether additional financing will be on terms favorable or acceptable to us when needed, if at all. If we are unable to generate
sufficient cash flow to fund our operations and adequate additional funds are not available when required, management may need to curtail its sales and marketing efforts,
which would adversely affect our business prospects, or we may be unable to continue operations.

Current Strategy
The Merger

In August 2023, Fresh Vine announced that it had initiated an exploration of strategic opportunities by way of merger, acquisition, or any accretive strategic transaction
to enhance stockholder value, which is a focus of the Company’s plan to increase its stockholders’ equity and regain compliance with the NYSE American’s continued
listing standards. On January 25, 2024, Fresh Vine entered into the Merger Agreement. See Part I, “Item 1 Business - Recent Developments — Anticipated Merger with
Notes Live, Inc.” included elsewhere in this report.

Although Fresh Vine has entered into the Merger Agreement and intends to consummate the Merger, there is no assurance that it will be able to successfully
consummate the Merger on a timely basis, or at all. Among other conditions to the closing of the Merger, Fresh Vine is required to have cash, cash equivalent assets or other
liquid assets at the closing of the Merger in an amount that equals or exceeds the “Net Cash Target,” and having no liabilities on its balance sheet or unpaid or unsatisfied
obligations that will require a cash expenditure by Fresh Vine after the effective time of the Merger. See “Item 1 — Business - Recent Developments — Anticipated Merger
with Notes Live, Inc.” If, for any reason, the Merger does not close, the Fresh Vine board of directors may elect to, among other things, attempt to complete another
strategic transaction like the Merger, attempt to sell or otherwise dispose of the various assets of Fresh Vine, continue to operate the business of Fresh Vine or dissolve and
liquidate its assets.

If the Merger is not completed, the Fresh Vine board of directors may decide that it is in the best interests of the Fresh Vine stockholders to suspend or cease its
operations, seek to dissolve the Company and liquidate its assets, or initiate bankruptcy proceedings. In that event, the amount of cash available for distribution to the Fresh
Vine stockholders would depend heavily on the timing of such decision and, ultimately, such liquidation, since the amount of cash available for distribution continues to
decrease as Fresh Vine funds its operations and incurs fees and expenses related to the Merger. In addition, if the Fresh Vine board of directors were to approve and
recommend, and the Fresh Vine stockholders were to approve, a dissolution of Fresh Vine, it would be required under Nevada corporate law to pay its outstanding
obligations, as well as to make reasonable provision for contingent and unknown obligations, prior to making any distributions in liquidation to the Fresh Vine stockholders.
As a result of this requirement, a portion or all of Fresh Vine’s assets may need to be reserved pending the resolution of such obligations. In addition, Fresh Vine may be
subject to litigation or other claims related to a liquidation and dissolution of the company. If a liquidation and dissolution were pursued, the Fresh Vine board of directors,
in consultation with its advisors, would need to evaluate these matters and make a determination about a reasonable amount to reserve. Accordingly, the Fresh Vine
stockholders could lose all or a significant portion of their investment in the event of a liquidation and dissolution of Fresh Vine.

Financing Transactions

We have funded our operations through a combination of debt and equity financings.

Since the Company’s inception in May 2019 and prior to its December 2021 initial public offering, Damian Novak, co-founder, and affiliates of Mr. Novak incurred
expenses on our behalf or advanced funds to us from time to time as needed to satisfy our working capital requirements and expenses. The reimbursable expenses and
advances were reflected as related party payables on our balance sheet and were not evidenced promissory notes or other written documentation. On December 17, 2021, we
used a portion of the proceeds from our initial public offering to repay $2.0 million, representing the outstanding amount of these related party payables, net of related party
receivables that Mr. Novak and his affiliates owed to us at that time.

In November 2020, we sold 50,000 Class W Units representing membership interests in the Company to an investor at a price of $5.00 per unit, for gross proceeds of
$250,000. Such Class W Units converted into an aggregate of 309,672 shares of our common stock upon the LLC Conversion.

In January 2021, we sold 40,000 Class W Units representing membership interests in the Company to an investor at a price of $5.00 per unit, for gross proceeds of
$200,000. Such Class W Units converted into an aggregate of 247,738 shares of our common stock upon the LLC Conversion.

During the period from April 2021 through September 2021, we sold an aggregate of 60,388 Class W Units representing membership interests in the Company to
investors at a price of $34.94 per unit, for gross proceeds of $2,109,945. Such Class W Units converted into an aggregate of 374,017 shares of our common stock upon the
LLC Conversion.

In September 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated party to pledge certain eligible accounts receivable for a cash advance at a percentage of
the outstanding amount, with the remaining balance due upon collection from the customer. The agreement had an initial term of one year which automatically renews for
successive one year terms unless the Company provides a notice of termination at least 60 days prior to the termination date. The receivables are pledged with full recourse,
which means we bear the risk of non-payment. The amounts advanced to the Company were classified as a secured loan on our balance sheet and any fees computed on the
outstanding amounts are treated as interest expense on our statement of operations. The Company terminated this arrangement effective October 1, 2022.

In September 2021, we issued a $216,000 promissory note to a stockholder of the Company that became due and payable upon the December 17, 2021 closing of our
initial public offering. In October 2021, we issued another $216,000 promissory note to a different stockholder of the Company that became due and payable upon the
December 17, 2021 closing of our initial public offering. Collectively, the stockholders holding these notes owned approximately 3.63% of our outstanding shares
immediately prior to our initial public offering.

In December 2021, we completed an initial public of our common stock, in which we sold 2,200,000 shares. The shares began trading on the NYSE American on
December 14, 2021. The shares were sold at an initial public offering price of $10.00 per share, resulting in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $19.2 million,
after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.
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During the first quarter of 2023, the Company distributed, at no charge to holders of the Company’s common stock, non-transferable subscription rights to purchase up
to an aggregate of 6,366,129 Units. Each Unit consisted of one share of our common stock and a Warrant to purchase one share of our common stock. The Warrants were
exercisable immediately, expire five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $1.25 per share. For each share of common stock held by a stockholder of
the Company on February 22, 2023, the record date of the Rights Offering, such stockholder received 0.5 subscription rights. Each whole subscription right allowed the
holder thereof to subscribe to purchase one Unit, which we refer to as the basic subscription right, at a subscription price of $1.00 per Unit. In addition, any holder of
subscription rights exercising his, her or its basic subscription right in full was eligible to subscribe to purchase additional Units that remained unsubscribed in the Rights
Offering at the same subscription price per Unit that applied to the basic subscription right, subject to proration among participants exercising their over-subscription
privilege, which we refer to as the over-subscription privilege. The subscription rights period expired on March 9, 2023, and resulted in stockholders subscribing for
3,143,969 Units. Upon the closing of the Rights Offering, which occurred on March 14, 2023, we issued 3,143,969 shares of common stock and 3,143,969 Warrants and
received aggregate gross cash proceeds of approximately $3.14 million. After deducting dealer-manager fees and other fees and expenses related to the Rights Offering, we
received net proceeds of approximately $2.7 million. If exercised, additional gross proceeds of up to approximately $3.93 million may be received through the exercise of
Warrants issued in the Rights Offering. The Rights Offering was made pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-269082), which was declared
effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023, and the prospectus dated February 22, 2023.

On August 2, 2023, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors (the “Purchasers”) pursuant to which the Company
agreed to issue and sell in a private placement (the “Series A Offering”) shares of a newly created series of preferred stock designated as Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock (the “Series A Stock™). The rights and preferences of the Series A Stock were described in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 2, 2023. Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Purchasers collectively agreed to purchase up to 10,000 shares of Series A
Stock at a per share purchase price equal to $100.00, for total gross proceeds of up to $1.0 million. The Purchasers purchased 4,000 shares of Series A Stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $400,000 at an initial closing (the “Initial Closing”) that occurred on August 4, 2023, purchased an additional 4,000 shares of Series A Stock for
an aggregate purchase price of $400,000 at a second closing (the “Second Closing”) that occurred on September 7, 2023, and purchased an additional 2,000 shares of Series
A Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $200,000 at a third closing (the “Third Closing”) that occurred on December 1, 2023. The Company previously engaged The
Oak Ridge Financial Services Group, Inc. (“Oak Ridge”) to serve as a financial adviser to the Company in connection with the capital raising activities. The Company paid
Oak Ridge a $10,000 cash advisory fee upon commencement of the engagement and, in connection with the Series A Offering, the Company has agreed to pay the Oak
Ridge a cash fee equal to 5.0% of the gross proceeds received by the Company in the Series A Offering, in addition to reimbursing Oak Ridge for its out-of-pocket
expenses.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

While all significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 1 (Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) to our audited financial statements, we
believe that the following accounting policies and estimates are critical to our business operations and understanding of our financial results.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable consists of amounts owed to us for sales of our products on credit and are reported at net realizable value. Credit terms are extended to customers
in the normal course of business. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial conditions. We estimate allowances for future returns and doubtful
accounts based upon historical experience and its evaluation of the current status of receivables. Accounts considered uncollectible are written off against the allowance. As
of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 we had $0 in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Allowance for Inventory ObsolescenceReserve

Inventories primarily include bottled wine which is carried at the lower of cost (calculated using the first-in-first-out (“FIFO”) method) or net realizable value. We
reduce the carrying value of inventories that are obsolete or for which market conditions indicate cost will not be recovered to estimated net realizable value. Our estimate
of net realizable value is based on analysis and assumptions including, but not limited to, historical experience, future demand and market requirements. Reductions to the
carrying value of inventories are recorded in cost of revenues. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 there was no allowance for $111,710 and $0
inventory obsolescence.reserve related to estimated net realizable value, respectively.

Useful Lives of Intangible Assets

We assess intangible assets with finite useful lives which are amortized on a systematic basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortization period and amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life reflects the pattern in which the assets’ future economic benefits are expected to be consumed. Where the pattern
cannot be reliably determined, the straight-line method is used. The amortization period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Amortization of
intangible assets with fixed determinable lives is recorded on a straight-line basis over 10 years for trademarks.
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Equity-Based Compensation

We measure equity-based compensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and recognize the compensation expense over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period. We recognize any forfeitures as they occur.

We measure equity-based compensation when the service date precedes the grant date based on the fair value of the award as an accrual of equity-based compensation
and adjusts the cost to fair value at each reporting date prior to the grant date. In the period in which the grant occurs, the cumulative compensation cost is adjusted to the
fair value at the date of the grant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not engaged in any off-balance sheet activities as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.
Accounting Standards and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 (Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) to our audited financial statement for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements.
Emerging Growth Company Status

Pursuant to the JOBS Act, a company constituting an “emerging growth company” is, among other things, entitled to rely upon certain reduced reporting requirements
and is eligible to take advantage of an extended transition period to comply with new or revised accounting standards applicable to public companies. We are an emerging
growth company and have elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have different effective dates for
public and private companies until the earlier of the date we (i) are no longer an emerging growth company or (ii) affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended
transition period provided in the JOBS Act. Our financial statements may, therefore, not be comparable to those of other public companies that comply with such new or
revised accounting standards.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Not required.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

Our financial statements and supplementary data are included beginning on pages F-1 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), defines the term “disclosure controls and procedures” as those controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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Management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023. Based on that evaluation,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act) were not effective as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 due to the material weaknesses weakness in internal control over financial reporting as
described below.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. As defined in the securities laws, internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive and principal financial officer and effected by our Board of Directors, management,
and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the acquisitions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we carried out an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 based on the criteria in “Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO”) in 2013. Based upon this evaluation, we concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 due to the following material weaknesses.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Reporting; Remediation Activities

Lack of Segregation of Duties.Management has had previously determined that the limited number of the Company employees responsible for accounting and there
were material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting functions results in resulting from (i) a lack of segregation of incompatible duties in that such based
on the limited number of employees have access to both physical assets and the related accounting records or to all phases of a transaction. At December 31, 2022, our
principal financial officer had access to the general ledger, access and authority to use Company credit cards, authority to authorize cash disbursements under threshold
amounts and access to inventories. Although the Company’s cash disbursements and credit card transactions are subject to oversight, there is a lack of preventative controls
with cash disbursements and credit card transactions and limited or no controls with oversight of the general ledger and inventory records. In addition, an individual who
serves the Company’s information technology function has transactional access on both of the Company’s primary financial applications and the Company’s principal
financial offering has unrestricted administrative access to responsible for the Company’s accounting application. As a result, a and reporting functions and (ii) the lack of
preventative application properly designed controls exists to prevent or detect material misstatements in the prepare complete and accurate financial statements on a timely
basis.

Accounting for Inventory Deposits. The Company does not have a properly designed control or processand footnotes in place to reconcile the inventory deposit
accounting accordance with US GAAP in a timely manner. An adjustment was identified during In an effort to remediate the audit that could have been material weakness
in our internal control over financial reporting described above, we intend to take the financial statements.actions to implement the processes described below.

Accounting for Insurance Recoveries. Gross versus net balance sheet treatment for the settlement and related insurance recoverable was not considered which resulted
in a material adjustment to gross up assets and liabilities.

Accounting for Executive Bonus Compensation. The performance conditions for the former Chief Executive Officer’s bonus were not evaluated which resulted in a
material entry to record accrued compensation at December 31, 2022.
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Material Weakness Remediation Activities

Lack of Segregation segregation of Duties. duties. To ensure timely and accurate financial reporting, management is designing processes to keep authorization,
recordkeeping, custody of assets, and reconciliation duties separate, and intends to re-evaluate reevaluate its overall staffing levels within the accounting, finance and
information technology departments and may hire additional staff to enable segregation of duties.

Accounting for inventory deposits. The current process requires re-engineering Inability to prepare complete and accurate financial statements and footnotes. To ensure
the inventory deposit balance is accurately measured. In the future, the Company plans timely and accurate financial reporting, management intends to communicate with
our inventory warehouse vendor hire experienced staff to reconcile any discrepancies.remedy this material weakness.

Accounting for insurance recoveries. The Company has gathered and reviewed all applicable guidance regarding the accounting treatment of insurance recoveries. We plan
to use this guidance to appropriately record any future insurance recoveries.
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Accounting for executive bonus compensation. The performance conditions of bonuses will be reviewed periodically to ensure the Company is accurately recording
accrued bonus compensation.

Once the above actions and processes have been in operation for a sufficient period of time for our management to conclude that the material weaknesses have been
fully remediated and our internal controls over financial reporting are effective, we will consider these material weaknesses fully addressed.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of Wipfli, LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, regarding internal control over financial
reporting. Our management report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, which exempts nonaccelerated filers from the independent registered public accounting firm attestation requirement.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the fiscal
quarter year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 that has materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS.

Not Applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
Executive Officers and Directors
Below is a list of the names, ages, positions and a brief account of the business experience of the individuals who served as our executive officers and directors as of
March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024.

Name Age Position
Rick NechioMichael Pruitt 4463 Interim Chief Executive Officer and PresidentDirector
James SpellmireKeith Johnson 6866 Interim Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Eric DoanRick Nechio 4345 DirectorPresident and Head of Sales

Michael PruittEric Doan 6244 Director

Michelle Hawkins WhetstoneBrad Yacullo 5560 Director

Brad Yacullo 58 Director

David Yacullo 5657 Director

Michael Pruitt joined the Company’s Board of Directors on December 13, 2021, which was the effective date of the registration statement for the Company’s initial
public offering. Mr. Pruitt founded Avenel Financial Group, a boutique financial services firm concentrating on emerging technology company investments in 1999. In
2001, he formed Avenel Ventures, a technology investment and private venture capital firm. In February 2005, Mr. Pruitt formed Chanticleer Holdings, Inc., then a public
holding company (now known as Sonnet BioTherapeutics Holdings, Inc.), and he served as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer until April 1,
2020, at which time the restaurant operations of Chanticleer Holdings were spun out into a new public entity, Amergent Hospitality Group, Inc., where Mr. Pruitt continues
to serve as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Pruitt has been a member of the Board of Directors of IMAC Holdings, Inc. (Nasdag- IMAC) since October 2020
and currently serves on its Compensation Committee and as Chair of its Audit Committee. Mr. Pruitt also served as a director on the board of Hooters of America, LLC
from 2011 to 2019. Mr. Pruitt received a B.A. degree from Costal Carolina University. He currently sits on the Board of Visitors of the E. Craig Wall Sr. College of Business
Administration, the Coastal Education Foundation Board, and the Athletic Committee of the Board.

Keith Johnson is an accomplished senior executive and corporate officer with experience in business and technology management, accounting systems, financial
controls, business development and management intelligence. Most recently, Mr. Johnson served as Chief Financial Officer of Watertech Equipment & Sales until 2020.
Previously, Mr. Johnson served as the Manager of Business Development for Hudson Technologies from November 2012 through September 2013. From August 2010
through November 2012, Mr. Johnson was President of Efficiency Technologies, Inc., the wholly owned operating subsidiary of Efftec International, Inc. He was the
President and Chief Executive Officer of YRT? (Your Residential Technology Team) in Charlotte, North Carolina since 2004. Mr. Johnson has a BS in Accounting from
Fairfield University in Fairfield, Connecticut. Mr. Johnson serves on the board of directors of Amergent Hospitality Group Inc. and as chairman of its audit committee and a
member of its compensation committee. Mr. Johnson previously served on the board of directors of Chanticleer from April 2007 through March 31, 2020 and also served as
the chairman of its audit committee and a member of its compensation committee.

Rick Nechiois a co-founder of the Company who served as Chief Marketing Officer from its inception through July 2021, and has served as its President since August
2021. Mr. Nechio has also been serving 2021 and served as interim Chief Executive Officer since from June 2022. 2022 until April 25, 2023. Mr. Nechio currently serves as
President and Head of Sales. Mr. Nechio also served as a director of the Company until February 20, 2023. Mr. Nechio is was also a Founding Partner of Appellation Brands
LLC (producer of Danica Rosé), a wine brand that he helped launch in April 2019, and serves served as a Founding Partner of Nechio & Novak, LLC, a private equity firm
organized in January 2019 that specializes in long-term value creation within the consumer goods segment, and has served as Chairman of Nechio Network, a brand
accelerator formed in 2016. Prior the Company’s inception, Mr. Nechio served as Vice President Business Development for FitVine Wine from February 2017 to February
2019, and held various positions at Anheuser-Busch InBev, including North American Zone Director Transit from January 2015 to January 2017, Director Retail
Development, Trade Relations and Trade Communications from October 2011 to December 2014, and Director, National Retail Sales from May 2010 to October 2011. Mr.
From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Nechio piloted an Anheuser-Busch USA High End chain selling program for the Stella Artois brand. Mr. Nechio was also part of the team that
developed the Michelob Ultra disruptive brand strategy. Mr. Nechio holds a Bachelor of Science, Business Administration degree from University Veiga de Almeida and
has completed an Executive Education Program, Driving Profitability Growth offered by Harvard Business School.

James Spellmire joined the Company as a contractor in August 2022 and was appointed as Interim Chief Financial Officer and Secretary on August 31, 2022. From
September 2021 to September 2022, Mr. Spellmire served as Interim Chief Financial Officer of Gartner Studios LLC, a manufacturer of party goods, stationery products
and other innovative products for celebrating life’s events, from February 2021 to September 2021, served as Interim Chief Financial Officer of Advantia Health, LLC, a
provider of women’s health services including OB/GYN, primary care and mental wellness, and from August 2020 to January 2021 served as Interim Chief Financial
Officer of Dockzilla, Co., a manufacturer of docking systems used in the logistics industry. Previously, Mr. Spellmire served as Chief Financial Officer of National
Cardiovascular Partners, LP from January 2018 to July 2020, and as a Financial Project Consultant for SALO, LLC, a financial services company providing finance and
accounting consulting, from August 2016 to January 2018. Prior to that, Mr. Spellmire held various finance and accounting positions for companies in a variety of industries
dating back to 1980. Mr. Spellmire holds a Masters of Business Administration and a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Florida Atlantic University.

Eric Doan joined the Company’s board of directors on December 13, 2021, which was the effective date of the registration statement for the Company’s initial public
offering. Mr. Doan serves as Chief Financial Officer of Orchard Software Corporation, a position he has held since April 2020. Before joining Orchard Software, Mr. Doan
previously held Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer positions in private equity-backed companies, most recently as Chief Financial Officer of Edmentum
Inc. from July 2018 through March 2020, Chief Financial Officer of myON by Renaissance from May 2017 to July 2018, and Chief Operating Officer of Jump
Technologies, Inc. from September 2016 to May 2017. Mr. Doan holds bachelor’s degrees in Zoology and Classical Humanities and a Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from Miami University.
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Michael Pruitt joined the Company’s board of directors on December 13, 2021, which was the effective date of the registration statement for the Company’s initial
public offering. Mr. Pruitt founded Avenel Financial Group, a boutique financial services firm concentrating on emerging technology company investments in 1999. In
2001, he formed Avenel Ventures, a technology investment and private venture capital firm. In February 2005, Mr. Pruitt formed Chanticleer Holdings, Inc., then a public
holding company (now known as Sonnet BioTherapeutics Holdings, Inc.), and he served as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer until April 1,
2020, at which time the restaurant operations of Chanticleer Holdings were spun out into a new public entity, Amergent Hospitality Group, Inc., where Mr. Pruitt continues
to serve as its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Pruitt has been a member of the Board of Directors of IMAC Holdings, Inc. (Nasdag- IMAC) since October 2020
and currently serves on its Compensation Committee and as Chair of its Audit Committee. Mr. Pruitt also served as a director on the board of Hooters of America, LLC
from 2011 to 2019. Mr. Pruitt received a B.A. degree from Costal Carolina University. He currently sits on the Board of Visitors of the E. Craig Wall Sr. College of Business
Administration, the Coastal Education Foundation Board, and the Athletic Committee of the Board.

Michelle Hawkins Whetstone joined the Company’s board of directors on February 20, 2023. Ms. Whetstone is a native of Napa Valley, California with 35 years of
experience in the hospitality industry and over 15 years of experience in the wine industry. Since 2009, Ms. Whetstone has partnered with Jamey Whetstone, the Company’s
winemaker, to help grow the Whetstone Wine Cellars wine label. During that time, Ms. Whetstone oversaw the acquisition, restoration, and grand opening of the historic
chateau in the heart of the Napa Valley that serves as Whetstone Wine Cellars’ headquarters and tasting room, and oversees Whetstone Wine Cellars’ daily business
operations and the production of events at the property. Prior to Whetstone Wine Cellars, Ms. Whetstone owned and operated a design business and furniture retail stores
located in Texas and California. Ms. Whetstone began her career in the travel industry after graduating from Echols International Travel and Transportation School in San
Francisco in 1987, and worked in sales for Thai Airways International and Garuda Indonesia Airlines.

Brad Yacullo joined the Company’s board Board of directors Directors on December 13, 2021, which was the effective date of the registration statement for the
Company’s initial public offering. Mr. Yacullo joined ACE Outdoor in September 2019, where he currently serves as a partner. ACE Outdoor is a boutique outdoor media
company with bulletin and wall inventory on the Sunset Strip in West Hollywood, California. Mr. Yacullo also co-founded Agra Energy in March 2017.2017 and serves as
its Chief Operating Officer. Agra Energy is a company that converts dairy manure into a renewable sulfur free synthetic fuel. Mr. Yacullo joined ACE Outdoor, a boutique
outdoor media company, in 2007 and served as a partner until the company was sold in September 2021.. Previously, Mr. Yacullo served as Sales Executive at Cisco
Systems from January 1995 until January 2003. Mr. Yacullo began his career in January 1991 at Platinum Technology, where he sold enterprise level software to many
industries. Mr. Yacullo holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration, with a major in information systems, from Drake University.

David Yacullo joined the Company’s board Board of directors Directors on December 13, 2021, which was the effective date of the registration statement for the
Company’s initial public offering. Mr. Yacullo currently serves as Owner/Chairman of Outdoor Solutions, LLC since 2018. Prior to that, Mr. Yacullo served as Chief
Revenue Officer of Van Wagner Outdoor, a position he has held since January 2020. Mr. Yacullo has also served as Chairman of Outdoor Solutions, LLC since 2018. from
2019 through 2022, until the company was sold to Outfront Media. From 2016 until 2018, Mr. Yacullo serves served as Chief Revenue Officer of Holt Media Companies,
Inc. Prior to that, Mr. Yacullo founded Outdoor Media Group (OMG) in 2001 and served as its Chief Executive Officer from 2003 until February 2016. Mr. Yacullo began
his career working for Outdoor Services Inc. (OSI) from January 1989 through 2001, where he served in various positions, including as its President.

Family Relationships

Messrs. Brad and David Yacullo, two of our directors, are brothers. There are no other family relationships between any of the other directors or executive officers.
Board Composition and Director Independence

Our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our board of directors. Our bylaws provide that our board of directors shall consist of one or more members
and that the number of directors may be fixed from time to time by a majority vote of the directors then in office. Our board of directors is currently comprised of the
five four individuals identified above.

When considering whether directors have the experience, qualifications, attributes and skills to enable the Board of Directors to satisfy its oversight responsibilities
effectively in light of our business and structure, our Board of Directors focuses primarily on the information discussed in each of the directors’ individual biographies set
forth above.
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Our Board of Directors periodically reviews relationships that directors have with our Company to determine whether our directors are “independent directors” as such
term is defined in Section 803 of the NYSE American LLC Company Guide. Our Board of Directors has determined that each of Eric Doan, Michael Pruitt, Brad Yacullo
and David Yacullo is an independent director. In making this determination, the Board of Directors considered the relationships that such individuals have with our
Company and other facts and circumstances that the Board of Directors deemed relevant in determining their independence, including ownership interests in us. Under
Section 803A of the NYSE American Company Guide, employment by a director as an executive officer on an interim basis does not disqualify that director from being
considered independent following such employment, provided the interim employment does not last longer than one year; however a director is not considered independent
while serving as an interim officer. As a result, the Board of Directors has determined that Michael Pruitt is not independent while serving as interim Chief Executive
Officer.
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Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

Damian Novak, one of our founders, served as Executive Chair of our Board of Directors from our December 2021 initial public offering until February 20, 2023.
Effective February 20, 2023, our Board of Directors appointed Michael Pruitt to serve as Non-Executive Chair of the Board of Directors. We believe At the time, we
believed that having a chair separate from the Chief Executive Officer createscreated an environment that is more conducive to objective evaluation and oversight of
management’s performance, increasing management accountability and improving the ability of the Board to monitor whether management’s actions are in the best interests
of the Company and our stockholders. On July 19, 2023, the Board of Directors appointed Michael Pruitt to serve as our interim Chief Executive Officer following the
termination of employment of our prior Chief Executive Officer. Given the current streamlined composition of the Company’s executive management and the Board of
Directors, we believe that having Mr. Pruitt serve in such capacities provides for efficiency in pursuing the Company’s objectives, while being subject to oversight by the
full Board of Directors, which monitors whether management’s actions are in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders.
Board Committees

Our Board of Directors has a standing audit committee, compensation committee nominating and corporate governance committee. Each committee operates under its
own written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, which are available on our website at ir.freshvinewine.com/info/.
Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing financial reporting and related internal controls, risk, and ethics and compliance, including but not limited to review
of filings and earnings releases, selection and oversight of the independent registered public accounting firm, oversight of internal audit, interactions with management and
the board, and communications with external stakeholders. Our During 2023, our audit committee is was composed of Eric Doan and Michael D. Pruitt, with Mr. Doan
serving as Chair of the committee. Upon his appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer in July 2023, Mr. Pruitt ceased serving on the audit committee and was
replaced by David Yacullo. Our board Board of directors Directors has determined that each of Messrs. Doan and Pruitt David Yacullo meet the definition of “independent
director” under the rules of the NYSE American and under Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and that each is an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is
defined in Item 407(d)(5)(ii) of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Exchange Act.
Compensation Committee

The compensation committee is responsible for establishing the compensation philosophy and ensuring that elements of our compensation program encourage high
levels of performance among the executive officers and positions the Company for growth. The compensation committee ensures our compensation program is fair,
competitive, and closely aligns the interests of our executive officers with the Company’s short and long-term business objectives. The compensation committee is
responsible for determining the compensation of our officers and directors, or recommending that such compensation be approved by the full board of directors. Our Chief
Executive Officer may not be present during voting or deliberations regarding the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation. The compensation committee also administers
the Company’s equity incentive plans and approves all equity grants made thereunder. Our compensation committee is composed of one director, Eric Doan, who is an
“independent director” under the rules of the NYSE American.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, Mr. Doan served as the sole member of the compensation committee. Mr. Doan has never been an
executive officer or employee of ours or had a relationship requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. None of our officers currently serves, or has served during the last completed year, on the compensation committee or the board of directors of any other entity
that has one or more officers serving as a member of our board of directors or our compensation committee.
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The nominating and corporate governance committee is responsible for selecting directors to be nominated for election to our board Board of directors Directors or
recommending such nominees for selection by the full board. The nominating and corporate governance committee is also responsible for board effectiveness and
governance, with duties that include board succession planning, director recruiting, shaping the Company’s governance policies and practices, and director education and
self-evaluations. Our nominating and corporate governance committee is composed of one director, Eric Doan.
Board Oversight of Risk Management

While the full board of directors has the ultimate oversight responsibility for the risk management process, its committees oversee risk in certain specified areas. In
particular, our audit committee oversees management of enterprise risks as well as financial risks. Our compensation committee is responsible for overseeing the
management of risks relating to our executive compensation plans and arrangements and the incentives created by the compensation awards it administers. Our nominating
and corporate governance committee oversees risks associated with corporate governance, business conduct and ethics, and is responsible for overseeing the review and
approval of related party transactions. Pursuant to the board of directors’ instruction, management reports on applicable risks to the relevant committee or the full board of
directors, as appropriate, with additional review or reporting on risks conducted as needed or as requested by the board of directors and its committees.
Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of conduct that applies to all of our officers, employees and directors, and a separate code of ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer
and senior financial officers. Our code of conduct and code of ethics are available on our Internet website at ir.freshvinewine.com/info/.
Diversity

The Nominating Committee and Governance of the Board of Directors considers and makes recommendations to the Board on all matters pertaining to the effectiveness
of the Board, such as the size and composition of the Board, including the recognition of diversity characteristics and equal opportunity (which is the policy of treating
directors and others without discrimination, especially on the basis of their sex, ethnicity, religion, disability, national origin, sexual orientation or identification, veteran
status, race or age).
Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class
of our equity securities, to file electronically reports of ownership and changes in ownership of such securities with the SEC. Based on review of the copies of Forms 3 and
4 (and amendments thereto, if any) filed electronically with the SEC during the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and Forms 5 (and amendments thereto, if
any) filed electronically with the SEC with respect to such year, or written representations that no Forms 5 were required, we believe that the following is the list of our
officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners who have failed to file on a timely basis all Section 16(a) filing requirements during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023: Janelle Anderson Eric Doan filed a Form 4 on January 3, 2022 April 5, 2023 which was due on December 31, 2021 April 4, 2023;
Nechio & Novak LLC CSS LLC/IL filed a Form 4 on July 29, 2022 April 21, 2023 which was due on July 22, 2022 April 20, 2023; Janelle Anderson Dheri Hitesh filed a
Form 4 on August 29, 2022 May 31, 2023 which was due on August 26, 2022 May 29, 2023; James Spellmire file a Form 3 on September 13, 2022 which was due on
September 12, 2022; and Janelle Anderson CSS LLC/IL filed a Form 4 on September 21, 2022 September 1, 2023 which was due on September 19, 2022 August 31, 2023.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

This section provides an overview of the compensation of (i) each individual who served as ourFresh Vine’s principal executive officer during 2022,2023,
(ii) our Fresh Vine’s two most highly compensated other executive officers who were serving as executive officers at the end of 20222023 and who received total
compensation of more than $100,000 during such year, and (iii) up to two additional individuals that would have qualified under clause (ii) above but for the fact that they
were not serving as executive officers at the end of 2022. We refer 2023. These individuals are referred to these individuals as our Fresh Vine’s “named executive officers.”
Our Fresh Vine’s named executive officers are:

e e Rick Nechio, Michael Pruitt, Interim Chief Executive Officer and President;Officer;
e e Elliot Savoie, Former Chief Financial Officer and Secretary;
e Janelle Anderson, Roger Cockroft, Former Chief Executive Officer; and

e o Ellen Scipta, Rick Nechio, President and Former Interim Chief Financial OfficerExecutive Officer; and
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Mr. Nechio continues to serve Pruitt currently serves as ourof Interim Chief Executive Office and President. Our other named executive officers are no longer
employed by us. Pursuant to an Employment Transition and Consulting Agreement with the Company, as amended, Officer, a position he has held since July19, 2023.
Mr. Savoie Nechio served as an employee Interim Chief Executive Officer from June 13, 2022 until April 25, 2023, and continues to work for Fresh Vine as President and
Head of the Company Sales. Mr. Cockroft served as Fresh Vine’s Chief Executive Officer from April 25, 2023 until December 1, 2022 and is expected to serve as a
consultant through March 31, 2023 July 14, 2023. Ms. Anderson’s employment with the Company terminated on June 8, 2022. Ms. Scipta’s employment with the Company
terminated on June 24, 2022.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our named executive officers in respect of their service to us during fiscal years

20222023 and 2021.2022.

Non-equity
incentive All
Stock Option plan other Total
Name and principal Position Year Salary(l) Bonus Awards(® Awards(® compensation compensation compensation(l)
Rick Nechio® 2022  $ 268750 $ 0 $ 0 s 0 $ 0 3 0 $ 268,750
Interim Chief Executive Officer 2021 $ 116,667 $ 0 $ 0 $ 195120 g 0 $ 0 $ 136,179
Elliot Savoie® 2022 $ 1783330 § 0 $ 0 $ 16723200 g $ $ 345,565
Former Chief Financial Officer 2021 $ 233,083 $ 0 $ 721,556(1D ¢ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 954,639
Janelle Anderson® 2022  $ 125000 $ 0 $ 07 $1,153,40502 $  400,00003) 0 $ 1,678,405
Former Chief Executive Officer 2021 $ 150,897 $ 0 $ 382,00014 g 0 $ 400,000 $ 0 $ 932,897
Ellen Scipta® 2022 $ 53125 § 0 $ 330,000 $ 51689616 g 0 $ 12750007 g 1,027,521
Former Chief Financial Officer
. Non-equity
Stock Option incentive plan All other Total
Name and principal Position Year Salary Bonus Awards® Awards® compensation compensation compensation
5
Michael Pruitt(®) 2023 $ -3 - % - )$ - 8 - $ - $ -
6
Interim Chief Executive Officer 2022 N/A N/A na® N/A N/A N/A N/A
7 8
Roger Cockroft(®) 2023  $ 53,125 $ -3 379,726() $ 241,431() $ -3 -8 674,282
Former Chief Executive Officer 2022 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Rick Nechio®) 2023 $ 150,000 $ - % -8 -3 - $ - % 150,000
President and Former Interim
Chief Executive Officer 2022 $ 268,750 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 268,750

(1) (1) Prior to the completion of our initial public offering Michael Pruitt was appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer on December 17, 2021, Rick Nechio and
Elliot Savoie were employed and paid by Rabbit Hole Equity, L.L.C., a Texas limited liability company that serves as a family office that manages a portfolio of
business investments held by Damian Novak and his affiliates. The amounts set forth for Messrs. Nechio and Savoie in the table above include the portion of their
overall compensation from Rabbit Hole Equity, L.L.C. that was allocated to the Company. Upon completion of our initial public offering, Messrs. Nechio and
Savoie became employees of the Company.July19, 2023.

(2) (2)Roger Cockroft served as Fresh Vine’s Chief Executive Officer from April 25, 2023 until the termination of his employment on July 14, 2023.

(3) Rick Nechio served as Chief Marketing Officer through July 2021, has served as President since August 2021 and has served as interim Chief Executive Officer
since from June 13, 2022 until April 25, 2023. Mr. Nechio currently serves as President and Head of Sales.

(4) (3) Mr. Savoie served as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Company until March 31, 2021, when he began serving as Head of Corporate Development and
Ventures. Mr. Savoie was appointed interim Chief Financial Officer on June 30, 2022 and served in that capacity until August 31, 2022. Pursuant to an
Employment Transition and Consulting Agreement with the Company, as amended, Mr. Savoie continued to serve as an employee of the Company until
December 1, 2022 and is expected to serve as a consultant through March 31, 2023.

(4)  Janelle Anderson commenced employment with the Company as Chief Marketing Officer on August 1, 2021 and was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
September 17, 2021. Ms. Anderson’s employment with the Company terminated on June 8, 2022. Pursuant to a Consulting Agreement with the Company, Ms.
Anderson is expected to serve as a consultant to the Company until July 27, 2023.

(5)  Ellen Scipta commenced employment with the Company and was appointed Chief Financial Officer effective March 30, 2022. Ms. Scipta’s employment with the
Company terminated on June 24, 2022.

(6) These amounts represent compensation expense recognized for financial statement purposes under ASC Topic 718. For a discussion of the assumptions relating to
our valuations of these stock awards and stock options, please see Note 9 to the interim financial statements included in this prospectus. These amounts reflect our
accounting expense for these stock awards and stock options and do not correspond to the actual value that may be recognized by the named executive officer.

(5) (7)Excludes the grant date fair value of 20,000 restricted stock award granted on April 1, 2023 in connection with service on Fresh Vine’s board of directors.

(6) Excludes the grant date fair value of 10,000 restricted stock units granted on March 2, 2022 in connection with service on our Fresh Vine’s board of directors.
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(7) (8) Reflects the grant date fair value of options 463,917 shares of restricted stock and a restricted stock unit with a target payout amount equal to $154,726, each of
which was granted on November 30, 2021 April 25, 2023.

(8) (9) Includes compensation earned by Mr. Savoie during 2022 as a Company consultant from and after December 1, 2022.
(10) Reflects the grant date fair value of a 69,892 1,000,000 share stock option granted on September 1, 2022 April 25, 2023.
(11) Reflects the grant date fair value of 125,926 restricted stock units granted on December 17, 2021.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 82/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

(12) Reflects the grant date fair value of a 427,001 share stock option granted on March 11, 2022.
(13) Includes non-equity incentive plan compensation earned in 2022 and paid in 2023.

(14) Reflects the grant date fair value of Class F Units of Fresh Grapes, LLC granted to Ms. Anderson on August 1, 2021, which converted into 67,676 upon the
Company’s conversion to a corporation in December 2021.

(15) Reflects the grant date fair value of 100,000 restricted stock units granted on March 30, 2022.
(16) Reflects the grant date fair value of a 200,000 share stock option granted on March 30, 2022.
(17) Reflects cash severance payments made to Ms. Scipta under a Separation Agreement entered into following the termination of her employment in June 2022.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Rich Michael Pruitt has served as a director of Fresh Vine since it December 2021 initial public offering. On July 19, 2023, Mr. Pruitt was appointed to serve as Fresh
Vine’s Interim Chief Financial Officer, a position he holds without any written agreement and without compensation.

Rick Nechio has served as President of Fresh Vine since August 2021 and Elliot Savoie were served as interim Chief Executive Officer from June 13, 2022 until April
25, 2023. Mr. Nechio currently serves as President and Head of Sales. Mr. Nechio was employed by us during 20222023 and 20212022 pursuant to an unwritten
employment arrangements arrangement pursuant to which each he received a base salary, which is subject to adjustment, from time to time, at the discretion of our Fresh
Vine’s board of directors. Upon our initial public offering in December of 2021, Messrs. Mr. Nechio and Savoie each began receiving annual base salaries of $300,000. On
February 1, 2022, Mr. Savoie’s an annual base salary was reduced to $220,000. of $300,000. Effective October 15, 2022, Mr. Nechio’s annual base salary was reduced to
$150,000. Messrs. Mr. Nechio and Savoie did not receive bonus payments for 20222023 or 2021. Mr. Nechio continues to be employed by us pursuant to his unwritten
employment arrangement. 2022.

Effective December 17, 2021 April 25, 2023, the Company granted 125,926 restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to Elliot Savoie under the Company’s 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan. Each RSU represented the right to receive one share of Common Stock from the Company upon vesting, with vesting occurring on June 11, 2022 (180 days
after the date of the final prospectus for our initial public offering).

Mr. Savoie served as Chief Financial Officer from October 2019 until March 31, 2022, as Head of Corporate Development and Ventures until June 30, 2022, and then
as interim Chief Financial Officer from June 30, 2022 until August 1, 2022. Effective September 1, 2022, the Company entered into an Employment Transition and
Consulting Agreement with Mr. Savoie (the “Transition Agreement”) pursuant to which he remained employed by the Company through November 30, 2022 in order to
provide for an orderly transition of his roles and responsibilities within the Company. During such period of employment, Mr. Savoie received an annualized salary of
$100,000. The Transition Agreement further provided for the Company’s engagement of Mr. Savoie as a consultant for a nine month period commencing December 1, 2022
and expiring August 31, 2023, during which time the Company agreed to pay Mr. Savoie a $5,000 monthly consulting fee. On the September 1, 2022 effective date of the
Transition Agreement, the Company granted Mr. Savoie a stock option to purchase 69,892 shares of common stock at a per share exercise price equal to $3.04 (the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant). The stock option vested with respect to 3,584 shares on the last calendar day of September, October and
November of 2022, and the balance of the stock option vests in monthly installments as nearly equal as possible (approximately 6,571 shares each) on the last calendar day
of each month from December 2022 through August 2023. On March 20, 2023, the Company and Mr. Savoie entered into an Amendment to the Transition Agreement (the
“Amendment”) pursuant to which the parties agreed that the consulting period (and the Company’s obligation to make monthly consulting payments) would terminate on
March 31, 2023. In exchange for accelerating the expiration of the consulting period, the Company agreed to forgive Mr. Savoie’s obligation to pay approximately $101,000
owed by him to the Company, which the parties previously agreed would be payable on or prior to March 1, 2024.

Effective August 31, 2022, James Spellmire Roger Cockroft was appointed to serve as Chief Financial Executive Officer and Secretary of Fresh Vine, a position he held

until the Company. Under termination of his employment on July 14, 2023. Mr. Cockroft’s employment was governed by an employment agreement, the terms of his
engagement, the Company is paying an hourly wage of $290 to Mr. Spellmire.which are described below.
Janelle Anderson commenced employment with the Company as Chief Marketing Officer on August 1, 2021 and was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on September 1,
2021. Pursuant to her employment agreement, which is described below, the Company paid Ms. Anderson an annual base salary of $400,000 from August 1, 2021 until
September 17, 2021, and a base salary of $300,000 for the remainder of 2021. In each of January 2022 and 2023, the Company also paid Ms. Anderson $400,000 for
achieving all performance objectives under the annual incentive cash bonus plan set forth in her employment agreement, which objectives related to increases in the number
of points of distribution to which the Company sells its wine. Ms. Anderson’s employment agreement contemplated that the Company would, on the initial closing date of
its initial public offering, grant her an option to purchase 427,001 shares of common stock that is exercisable at the initial public offering price; however such stock option
was not granted at the time of the initial public offering because the vesting criteria had not been established. As a result, the fair value of the option is not reflected in the
Summary Compensation Table. On March 11, 2022, the Company granted Ms. Anderson a stock option to purchase up to 427,001 shares of common stock, which option
had an exercise price equal to $3.47 per share (which is the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant) and was scheduled to vest in three
instalments in amounts as nearly equal as possible on the six month, one year and two year anniversaries of the date of grant subject to her continuing to be employed by the
Company through the applicable vesting date. The stock option granted on March 11, 2022 was in lieu of (and not in addition to) the stock option contemplated by
Ms. Anderson’s employment agreement. Ms. Anderson’s employment with the Company terminated on June 8, 2022, and the entire 427,001 share stock option terminated
unvested. See also “Item 3. — Legal Proceedings — Janelle Anderson Lawsuit and Settlement.”Employment Agreements
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Roger Cockroft Employment Agreement
Ellen Scipta commenced employment with the Company and was appointed Chief Financial Officer effective March 30, 2022. Pursuant to her employment agreement,
which is described below, the Company paid Ms. Scipta an annual base salary of $255,000. Upon commencement of her employment on March 30, 2022, Ms. Scipta was
granted (i) a 100,000 share restricted stock award, which was subject to transfer and forfeiture restrictions, one-third of which lapsed on the date of grant, and one-third of
which was schedule to lapse on each of the one-year and two-year anniversary of the date of grant, and (ii) a 200,000 share stock option award, one-third of which vested on
the date of grant, and one-third of which was scheduled to vest on each of the one-year and two-year anniversary of the date of grant. The stock option had an exercise price
equal to $3.30 (the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant).

Ms. Scipta’s resigned and her employment with the Company terminated on June 24, 2022. In connection with the termination of her employment, the Company
entered into a Separation Agreement and Release with Ms. Scipta (the “Release”) pursuant to which, among other things, the Company agreed to provide Ms. Scipta with
certain separation benefits, including a cash payment equal to six months of her base salary and a prorated portion of her target annual incentive bonus for 2022 (based upon
the number of days that she was employed by the Company during 2022), and reimbursement of fees incurred by Ms. Scipta for third-party outplacement organization
services.

Employment Agreements

Janelle Anderson Employment Agreement

Effective August 1, 2021, the Company Chief Executive Officer appointment, Fresh Vine entered into an employment agreement with Janelle Anderson pursuant to
which Ms. Anderson initially served as Chief Marketing Officer and was paid an annualized base salary of $400,000. This agreement was amended and restated effective
September 1, 2021, at which time Ms. Anderson was appointed as Chief Executive Officer, and further amended and restated effective September 17, 2021, at which time
her annualized base salary was reduced to $300,000. The agreement, as further amended and restated, provided that during the period from September 17, 2021 through
December 31, 2021, and during each calendar year thereafter while she was employed under the agreement (each a “performance period”), Ms. Anderson would be eligible
to receive a $100,000 incentive cash bonus each time that the number of points of distribution to which the Company sells its wine is increased by 100 over the number of
points of distribution to which the Company sells its wine at the commencement of the applicable performance period, up to a maximum of $400,000 per performance
period. For such purposes, “points of distribution” included on-premise outlets (e.g., bars, restaurants, arenas and similar venues) and off-premise outlets (e.g., grocery,
liquor and convenient stores and similar outlets). Ms. Anderson was eligible to receive additional discretionary bonuses based upon her performance on behalf of the
Company and/or the Company’s performance in such amounts, in such manner and at such times as determined by the board of directors. Ms. Anderson was also eligible to
participate in the standard benefits which the Company generally provided to its full-time employees under its applicable plans and policies.

Upon commencement of her employment, Ms. Anderson was granted units representing a 0.75% equity interest in the Company, calculated as of August 1, 2021 (the
effective date of the employment agreement), which converted into 67,676 shares of the Company’s common stock upon the Company conversion to a corporation in
December 2021 (the “LLC Conversion”). Ms. Anderson was entitled to receive an additional 33,838 shares of common stock (representing a 0.3725% equity interest in the
Company, calculated as of August 1, 2021) upon each of two milestone events, provided that she remained employed by the Company on the date on which the applicable
milestone event is achieved. The first milestone was to be satisfied upon the Company achieving a market capitalization of at least $225 million, and the second milestone
was to be satisfied upon the later to occur of the Company achieving a market capitalization of at least $300 million and the Company’s completion of a secondary
underwritten public offering of its common stock pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act.
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Under her employment agreement, if Ms. Anderson’s employment was terminated by the Company for any reason other than Cause (as defined in the employment
agreement), or Ms. Anderson resigned as an employee of the Company for Good Reason (as defined in the employment agreement), so long as she signed and did not
revoke a release agreement, she would have been entitled to receive severance in the form of continued base salary payments over a period of six months. In addition, if Ms.
Anderson’s employment was terminated by the Company (or its successor) for a reason other than for Cause or as a result of her death or disability, or she voluntarily
terminated her employment for Good Reason, in either case within twelve months following the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in the employment
agreement) or within 90 days prior to a Change in Control, the vesting of all outstanding unvested equity-based incentive awards would have accelerated. The employment
agreement included a provision allowing the Company to reduce the payment to which Ms. Anderson would have been entitled upon a Change-in-Control transaction to the
extent needed for her to avoid paying an excise tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, unless she would have been better off, on an after-tax basis, receiving the
full amount of such payments and paying the excise taxes due.

Ms. Anderson’s employment agreement provided that the Company would, on the initial closing date of its initial public offering, grant her an option to purchase
427,001 shares of common stock that is exercisable at the initial public offering price; however such stock option was not granted at the time of the initial public offering
because the vesting criteria had not been established. In lieu of such stock option, on March 11, 2022, the Company granted Ms. Anderson a stock option to purchase up to
427,001 shares of common stock at an exercise price equal to $3.47 per share (which is the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant) and was
scheduled to vest in three installments in amounts as nearly equal as possible on the six month, one year and two year anniversaries of the date of grant subject to her
continuing to be employed by the Company through the applicable vesting date. The stock option terminated upon the termination of her employment with the Company.

Ms. Anderson’s employment agreement contained customary confidentiality and intellectual property covenants and a non-competition restriction that provided, among
other things, that Ms. Anderson would not engage in a competitive business or solicit our employees or consultants for a period of one year after termination of
employment. For such purpose, “competitive” business means a business primarily engaged in the development, production, marketing and/or sale of wine varietals and
brands that are primarily marketed to consumers as embodying a connection to health, wellness and/or an active lifestyle.

Ms. Anderson’s employment with the Company terminated on June 8, 2022.

Ellen Scipta Employment Agreement

On March 24, 2022, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Ellen Scipta pursuant to which she commenced employment with the Company on
March 30, 2022 and was appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer on March 31, 2021 Mr. Cockroft dated April 25, 2023. Under her the employment agreement,
which was for an indefinite term, Ms. Scipta Mr. Cockroft was entitled to receive annual base salary of $255,000 $450,000 and was eligible to receive an annual cash bonus
commencing in 2022, 2024 (the “Bonus”), the target amount of which will be equal to 50% of his base salary. The amount of the actual Bonus payable for each year was to
be equal determined by the Fresh Vine board of directors (or a compensation committee thereof) based on the satisfaction of performance objectives to 65% be determined
by the Fresh Vine board of her base salary. directors (or a compensation committee thereof). Achievement of performance objectives for each year was to be determined by
the Fresh Vine board of directors (or compensation committee thereof) upon the filing of Fresh Vine’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the applicable performance year
(the “Vesting Date”); and the Bonus, if earned, was to be paid in a lump sum promptly following such determination, provided that Mr. Cockcroft remained employed by
Fresh Vine on such date. The Company Bonus was payable in a combination of cash and shares of common stock issued out of Fresh Vine’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the
“Equity Incentive Plan”) valued at the closing price of Fresh Vine’s common stock on the Vesting Date. Unless agreed otherwise, the cash portion of the Bonus was to be
the minimum amount of income withholding taxes resulting from payment of the entire Bonus. To the extent that there were not sufficient available shares reserved for
issuance under the actual cash bonus for 2022 would be at least $50,000. Ms. Scipta Equity Incentive Plan (or successor plans) to support Bonus payments otherwise
payable in stock, Fresh Vine was to pay such Bonus payments in cash. Mr. Cockroft was also eligible to receive additional discretionary bonuses based upon her his
performance on behalf of the Company Fresh Vine and/or the Company’s Fresh Vine’s performance in such amounts, in such manner and at such times as may be
determined by the board of directors or a committee thereof.

While employed by the Company, and commencing in 2023, the Company agreed to make annual grants to Ms. Scipta of (i) restricted stock unit awards having a value
equal to 35% of her base salary (as determined in good faith by the Company’s board of directors or a committee thereof), which would vest one-third annually
commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant, and (ii) stock options, exercisable at fair market value on the grant date, having a value equal to 70% of her base
salary (as determined in good faith by the Company’s board of directors or a committee thereof), which would vest one-third annually commencing on the first anniversary
of the date of grant and the per share exercise price for such Stock Option would be equal to the closing price as of the date of grant. Ms. Scipta was also eligible to receive
annual and periodic equity-based compensation awards, with the amount of such awards granted and the terms and conditions thereof to be determined from time to time by
and in the sole discretion of the Company’s Fresh Vine board of directors or a committee thereof, and she was eligible to participate in the standard benefits which the
Company Fresh Vine generally provides to its full-time employees under its applicable plans and policies.
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Upon

During the first 12 months of his employment term, 50% of Mr. Cockroft’s salary, or $225,000, was to be paid in cash installments in accordance with regular payroll
practices. In lieu of cash salary in the amount of the remaining $225,000, Fresh Vine granted Mr. Cockroft an inducement award of 463,917 shares of restricted stock (the
“Restricted Stock”) upon the commencement of her employment on March 30, 2022, Ms. Scipta was granted (i) a 100,000 share restricted stock his employment. The
Restricted Stock award which was subject to transfer and forfeiture restrictions one-third of which lapsed on the date of grant, and one-third of which was that were
scheduled to lapse in four installments as nearly equal in amount as possible on eachthe three, six, nine and twelve month anniversaries of the one-year and two-
year anniversary grant date, subject to continued employment.

Also upon commencement of the date of grant, and (ii) his employment, Mr. Cockroft was granted (i) a 200,000 1,000,000 share stock option award one-third of which
vested on the date of grant, (the “Stock Option”), and one-third of which was scheduled to lapse on each of the one-year and two-year anniversary of the date of grant. (ii) a
restricted stock unit award (“RSUs”). The stock option Stock Option had an exercise price equal to $3.30 (the fair market value $1.00 per share and, subject to continued
employment, was scheduled to vest with respect to 250,000 shares on the one-year anniversary of the Company’s grant date and, thereafter, was scheduled to vest in 36
monthly installments as nearly equal in amount as possible (approximately 20,883 shares) commencing on the 13th month anniversary of the grant date and continuing on
each one month anniversary thereafter. The RSUs had a target payout amount equal to $154,726, which represents 50% of Mr. Cockroft’s salary (i.e., $225,000), but
prorated for the partial 2023 year during which he was employed. The amount of the RSU award actually payable was to be determined by the Fresh Vine board of directors
(or a compensation committee thereof) in its discretion based on Mr. Cockroft’s satisfaction of 2023 performance objectives that were to be determined by the Fresh Vine
board of directors (or a compensation committee thereof). The RSUs were to be settled in shares of Fresh Vine common stock valued at the most recent closing price of
such common stock on the date payment date.

The grants of grant). Upon the termination of Ms. Scipta’s Restricted Stock award, the Stock Option and the RSUs were made separately from Fresh Vine’s 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”) as inducements material to Mr. Cockroft entering into employment with Fresh Vine in accordance with Section 711(a) of the
NYSE American LLC Company Guide, and each was approved by Fresh Vine’s independent compensation committee. Although granted separately from the unvested
portion of her restricted stock award was forfeited Equity Incentive Plan, the Restricted Stock grant, the Stock Option and her stock option terminated. the Restricted Stock
Units were subject to the terms contained in the Equity Incentive Plan, except as otherwise provided for in the agreements governing such awards (the “Restricted Stock
Agreement,” Stock Option Agreement,” and “RSU Agreement,” respectively).

Under her his employment agreement, if Ms. Scipta’s Mr. Cockroft’s employment was were terminated by the Company Fresh Vine for any reason other than Cause (as
defined in the employment agreement), or Ms. Scipta Mr. Cockroft resigned as an employee of the Company for Good Reason (as defined in the employment agreement), so
long as she he signed and did not revoke a release agreement, she would be he was entitled to receive severance in the form of continued base salary and bonus payments
over a period of six months. In addition, if Ms. Scipta’s employment was terminated by the Company (or its successor) for a reason other than for Cause or as a result of her
death or disability, or she voluntarily terminates her employment for Good Reason, in either case within twelve months following upon the occurrence of a Change in
Control (as defined in the employment agreement) or within 90 days prior to a Change in Control, , the vesting of all outstanding unvested equity-based incentive awards
would accelerate. The employment agreement included a provision allowing the Company Fresh Vine to reduce the payment to which Ms. Scipta Mr. Cockroft would be
entitled upon a Change-in-Control transaction to the extent needed for herhim to avoid paying an excise tax under Internal Revenue Code Section 280G, unless she he
would be better off, on an after-tax basis, receiving the full amount of such payments and paying the excise taxes due.

Ms. Scipta’s Mr. Cockroft’s employment agreement contained customary confidentiality and intellectual property covenants and a non-competition non-solicitation
restriction that provides, provided, among other things, that Ms. SciptaMr. Cockroft will not engage in a competitive business or solicit our employees, consultants,
customers, suppliers or consultants other business relations for a period of one year after termination of employment. For such purpose, “competitive” business means a
business primarily engaged in the development, production, marketing and/or sale of wine varietals and brands that are primarily marketed to consumers as embodying a
connection to health, wellness and/or an active lifestyle in the United States and in any other country or U.S. territory in which the Company does business during the term
of Ms. Scipta’s

Mr. Cockroft’s employment with the Company. Fresh Vine terminated on July 14, 2023.

Ms. Scipta’s resigned and her employment with the Company terminated on June 24, 2022.
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Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan

We have Fresh Vine has adopted oura 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”). The 2021 Plan authorizes the granting of stock-based awards to purchase up to
1,800,000 shares of our Fresh Vine common stock. Under the 2021 Plan, ourthe Fresh Vine board of directors or a committee of one or more non-employee directors
designated by our Fresh Vine’s board will administer of directors administers the 2021 Plan and will have the power to make awards, to determine when and to whom
awards will be granted, the form of each award, the amount of each award, and any other terms or conditions of each award consistent with the terms of the 2021 Plan.
Awards may be made to our Fresh Vine’s employees, directors and consultants. The types of awards that may be granted under the 2021 Plan will include incentive and non-
qualified stock options, restricted and unrestricted stock, restricted and unrestricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance units and other stock-based awards.
Each award agreement will specify the number and type of award, together with any other terms and conditions as determined by the Fresh Vine board of directors or
committee in their sole discretion.
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table sets forth certain information regarding outstanding equity awards held by the named executive officers as of December 31, 2022 December 31,
2023:

Options Restricted Stock Units
Number of Market
Number of Number of Units of Value Of
Securities Securities Stock Units of
Underlying Underlying Option Option That Stock That
Grant Options Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not
Date Exercisable  Unexercisable Price Date Vested Vested
Rick Nechio 11/30/2021 — 375,001 $ 10.00 11/30/2031 — —
Elliot Savoie 9/1/2022 — — 3 3.04 9/1/2032 — —
Janelle Anderson N/A — — N/A N/A — —
Ellen Scipta N/A — — N/A N/A — —
Options Restricted Stock
Market
Number of Number of Number of Value Of
Securities Securities Shares of Shares of
Underlying Underlying Option Option Stock That Stock That
Options Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not
Grant Date Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date Vested Vested
Michael Pruitt 4/1/2023 — —  $ N/A N/A 5000 $ 2,195
Roger Cockcroft N/A — — N/A N/A — —
Rick Nechio 11/30/2021 — 375,001 $ 10.00 11/30/2031 — —
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Prior to our December 2021 initial public offering, our Fresh Vine’s directors did not receive compensation for serving as members of ourthe board of directors.
Effective March 2, 2022, we Fresh Vine granted 10,000 restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under the Company’sits 2021 Equity Incentive Plan to each of our Fresh Vine’s
seven directors serving at such time as compensation for their services as directors of the Company Fresh Vine during 2022. Each RSU represented the right to receive one
share of Common Stock from the Company Fresh Vine common stock upon vesting, with vesting occurring on June 18, 2022. In accordance with the Company’s bylaws,
our board of directors adopted resolutions reducing the number of seats on the board of directors from seven to six, which reduction took effect in conjunction with the
election of directors at our November 4, 2022 annual stockholders’ meeting. The Fresh Vine board of directors (or a compensation committee thereof) will periodically
reevaluate reevaluates the form and amount of director compensation and make adjustments that it deems to be appropriate. We will Fresh Vine also reimburse
our reimburses its directors for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of the directors’ services to us upon submission of invoices and receipts for such expenses.

The Company hasFresh Vine adopted a new director compensation program commencing in 2023. Under this program, the Company will pay Fresh Vine pays
quarterly cash compensation of $5,000 to each non-employee member of our the Fresh Vine board of directors, which shall be is paid in quarterly installments in arrears on
the last day of each calendar quarter (or, if not a business day, then the next business day), prorated for partial quarterly periods as appropriate (the “Director Fees”). In
addition, on April 1, 2023 (or as soon as is was administratively possible thereafter), each non-employee member of the Fresh Vine’s board of directors will receive received
a grant of 20,000 shares of restricted stock. The restricted stock will be vested with respect to 5,000 shares on the grant date, and will vest vests with respect to 5,000 shares
on each of July 1, 2023, October 1, 2023 and January 1, 2024, subject to the directors’ continuing to serve as a director through the applicable vesting date.
Director Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation earned for service on our board of directors by our non-employee directors during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023.

Fees
RS Stock Earned Stock
Name Earned or i) Total or Awards®) Total
Paid in Cash ($) Paid in $)
® ) Cash ®)
$)

Damian Novak (2) = 40,800 40,800 - - -
Rick Nechio (3) = 40,800 40,800 = = =
Eric Doan — 40,800 40,800 20,000 8,780 28,780
Michael Pruitt = 40,800 40,800 20,000 8,780 28,780
Brad Yacullo = 40,800 40,800 20,000 8,780 28,780
David Yacullo = 40,800 40,800 20,000 8,780 28,780
Janelle Anderson® — 40,800 40,800

Michelle Whetstone 10,000 8,780 18,780

(1) (1) The amounts reported represent compensation expense recognized for financial statement purposes under ASC Topic 718. In the case of each of our current
directors, the stock award (in the form of an RSU) was granted on March 2, 2022 April 1, 2023. For a discussion of the assumptions relating to our valuations of
stock awards and stock options, please see Note 910 to the interim financial statements of Fresh Vine included in this prospectus. report. These costs reflect our
accounting expense for these stock options and do not correspond to the actual value that may be recognized by the directors.

(2) (2) Ms. Anderson’s Mr. Novak ceased serving as a director on November 4, 2022 March 14, 2023.
(3) Mr. Nechio ceased serving as a director on February 20, 2023.
(4) Ms. Whetstone was appointed to the Fresh Vine board of directors on February 20, 2023 and ceased serving as a director on July 17, 2023.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

We maintain Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”), which, as of December 31 December 31, 2023 is approved to grant up to an
aggregate of 1,800,000 shares of our common stock. The purpose of the 2021 Plan is to increase stockholder value and to advance the interests of the Company by
furnishing a variety of economic incentives designed to attract, retain and motivate employees, certain key consultants and directors of the Company. Incentives may consist
of opportunities to purchase or receive shares of our common stock or other incentive awards. At December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, no 69,892 shares were reserved
for issuance pursuant to outstanding incentive grants, options, and 1,422,223 1,730,108 shares remained available for issuance pursuant to future grants. The 2021 Plan was
approved by Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.’s stockholders.

Effective November 30, 2021, we entered into stock option agreements (the “Founders’ Option Agreements”) with four of our co-founders, Damian Novak, Rick
Nechio, Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough. In connection with these agreements, we established a founders’ option pool comprised of 1,500,004 shares of our common stock
(the “Founders’ Option Pool”). Under the agreements, each co-founder was granted a ten-year option to purchase 25% of the shares comprising the Founders’ Option Pool.
The options will be exercisable, subject to the satisfaction of vesting conditions, at a price per share equal to $10.00, which was the initial public offering price of our
common stock in our initial public offering. Effective February 20, 2023, Damian Novak resigned as Executive Chairman of the Company and removed himself from his
management duties with the Company. Upon his resignation as a director of the Company, the 375,001 share option granted to Mr. Novak pursuant to his Founder Option
Agreement, none of which was vested, terminated. Upon the termination of their respective license agreements with the Company, the 375,001 share option granted to each
of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough pursuant to her Founder Option Agreement, none of which was vested, terminated.

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 with respect to the 2021 Plan and the Founders’ Option Agreements.

Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Number of Weighted- Remaining Remaining
Securities Average Available for . Average Available for
A Securities to be A
to be Exercise Future Exercise Future
) Issued Upon .
Issued Upon Price of Issuances . Price of Issuances
. ) ) Exercise of ) 3
Plan Category Exercise of Outstanding Under Equity Outstandin Outstanding Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Compensation Obtions & Options, Compensation
Options, Warrants Plans o ’ Warrants Plans
) ) Warrants and ) .
Warrants and and Rights (Excluding Rights (A) and Rights (Excluding
Rights (A) B) Securities & B) Securities
Reflected in Reflected in
Column(A)) Column(A))
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security
Holders:
2021 Equity Incentive Plan Total 377,777 $ 0.00 1,422,223 69,892 $ 3.04 1,730,108
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders:
Founders’ Option Agreements 1,500,004 10.00 — 375,001 10.00 -
Total 1,877,781 $ 9.75 1,422,223 444,893 $ 8.91 1,730,108

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024 for (a) each person, or
group of affiliated persons, known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding shares of common stock, (b) each member of our board of directors, (c) each
of our “named executive officers,” as identified in the summary compensation table included in Item 11 — Executive Compensation under the caption “Summary
Compensation Table,” and (d) all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with SEC rules. The information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. In
general, under these rules a beneficial owner of a security includes any person who, directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or
otherwise has or shares voting power or investment power with respect to such security. A person is also deemed to be a beneficial owner of a security if that person has the
right to acquire beneficial ownership of such security within 60 days. To our knowledge, except as otherwise indicated, and subject to applicable community property laws,
the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all common stock beneficially owned by that person.

The percentage of beneficial ownership shown in the table is based on 15,876,227 15,976,227 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024.
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Except as otherwise noted below, the address for each person or entity listed in the table is c/o Fresh Vine Wine, Inc., 11500 Wayzata Blvd., #1147, Minnetonka, MN

55305.P.0. Box 78984, Charlotte, NC 28271.

Percentage of

Shares Shares
Beneficially Beneficially
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Owned
Directors and Executive Officers:
Rick Nechio 1,573,472 9.91%
James Spellmire 0 —
Eric Doan 10,000 (12) S
Michael D. Pruitt 10,000 (12) g
Michelle Hawkins Whetstone 619,343 (1)(12) 3.90%
Brad Yacullo 10,000 (12) &
David Yacullo 10,000 (12) e
All Directors and Executive Officers as a group (7 people): 2,232,815 14.06 %
Other Named Executive Officer(s):
Elliot Savoie (2) 169,533 (3) 1.06 %
Janelle Anderson (4) 521,676 3.29%
Ellen Scipta (5) 33,334 (6) s
Other 5% Stockholders:
CSS, LLC 2,033,289(7) 12.04%
Damian Novak 1,837,672 (8) 11.57%
Nina Dobrev 1,450,622 (9) 9.14%
Julianne Hough 1,207,574 (10) 7.61%
Tribe of Five, LLC (11) 988,938 6.23%
Shares of
Shares of Fresh Vine Percentage of
Common Stock Preferred Stock Percentage of Fresh Vine
Beneficially Beneficially Common Preferred
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Owned(1) Stock Stock
Directors and executive officers:
2
Michael D. Pruitt 30,000( ) 0 i —
Keith Johnson 0 0 s —
3
Rick Nechio 1,573,472( ) 0 9.85% —
2
Eric Doan 30,000( ) 0 & —
2
Brad Yacullo 30,000( ) 0 * —
2
David Yacullo 30,000( ) 0 s —
All directors and executive officers as a group (6 persons) 1,693,472 0 10.60% —
Other 5% stockholders
) ®)
CSS, LLC 1,010,096 0 5.95% —
)
Stephen Edgar Apolant ©) 875,899 5,000 5.48% 50.0%
©)
EROP Enterprises, LLC(®) 797,213 5,000 4.99% 50.0%
10
Nina Dobrev 1,450,622 = 0 9.08% —
11
Julianne Hough 1,207,574( 2 0 7.56 % —
* B Less than 1%
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 90/162

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

REFINITIV [<


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

(1) (1) Consists The holders of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock vote with the common stock as a single class on all matters being submitted to a vote of Fresh Vine
stockholders at the Fresh Vine special meeting, with the exception of Proposal No. 4. The shares of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock vote on an adjusted as-
converted to common stock basis. For purposes of determining voting rights, each share of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock is convertible into the number of shares
held common stock (“Conversion Shares”) calculated by Ms. Whetstone’s spouse, Jamey Whetstone.dividing the “Stated Value” of $100.00 (plus the amount of
accrued dividends on such shares of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock) by an assumed conversion price of $0.47, taking into account, however, certain conversion
limitations set forth in the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Fresh Vine Convertible Preferred Stock.

(2) (2) Mr. Savoie ceased Includes 10,000 shares that were or are subject to serve transfer and forfeiture restrictions that lapse as an executive officer of the Company
effective August 31, 2022 follows: 5,000 shares on October 1, 2023 and 5,000 shares on January 1, 2024.

(3) (3) Includes 43,607 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are scheduled to vest in the next 60 days.

(4)  Ms. Anderson’s employment with the Company terminated on June 8, 2022 and she ceased her service as a director on November 4, 2022.
(5) Ms. Scipta’s employment with the Company terminated on June 24, 2022.

(6) Based solely on a Form 34 filed with the SEC by Mr. Nechio on April 11, 2022 February 21, 2023.

(4) (7) Based solely on a Schedule G filed by CSS, LLC on March 28, 2023. Includes 1,023,193 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 1,010,096 shares of
common stock that are currently exercisable. The address of CSS, LLC is 175 W. Jackson Blvd, Suite 440, Chicago, IL 60604.

(5) Includes warrants to purchase 1,010,096 shares of common stock that are currently exercisable, as reported on a Schedule 13G filed by CSS, LLC on February 9,
2024.
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(8) Includes 1,000,000 shares that have been pledged as security for a loan.The address of the reporting person is 98 Cuttermill Road, Suite 441S, Great Neck,
NY 11021.

(9)Consists of 125,899 shares of common stock held by NYF Group Inc. and 750,000 shares of common stock held by Equity Markets ADV LLC. Stephen Edgar
Apolant is the sole stockholder of both entities and exercises sole voting and dispositive control over the shares of Fresh Vine capital stock held by these entities.
Does not include shares of Fresh Vine common stock issuable upon conversion of 5,000 shares of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock held by NYF Group Inc. Fresh Vine
Preferred Stock may be converted into Fresh Vine common stock by the holder subject to a 4.99% beneficial ownership limitation and a 19.9% exchange share cap
applicable to all holders of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock. The reporting person’s holdings of Fresh Vine common stock already exceed the beneficial ownership
limitation. Based on a Schedule 13G filed by the reporting stockholder on December 11, 2023.

The address of EROP Enterprises, LLC is 30000 Millcreek Avenue, Suite 375, Alpharetta, GA 30022.

Reflects shares of Fresh Vine common stock issuable upon conversion of shares of Fresh Vine Preferred Stock. Among other conversion limitations, the Certificate of
Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Fresh Vine Preferred Stock contains “blocker” provisions that limits the holder(s)’ ability to convert the
Fresh Vine Preferred Stock to the extent that such exercise would cause the stockholder’s and certain related parties’ beneficial ownership in Fresh Vine to exceed
4.99% of Fresh Vine’s shares outstanding, as well as conversion limitations resulting from the Exchange Share Cap and the Individual Holder Share Cap described in
the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Fresh Vine Preferred Stock. The calculation of beneficial ownership in the table above
reflects the 4.99% beneficial ownership conversion limitation..

(10) Consists of shares held by the Nina Dobrev Trust dated September 17, 2018, of which Nina Dobrev serves as trustee. Ms. Dobrev has sole voting and dispositive

power with respect to the shares held by the Nina Dobrev Trust.

(11) (10) Consists of shares held by Jaybird Investments, LLC, a limited liability company wholly-owned by Julianne Hough. Ms. Hough has sole voting and dispositive

power with respect to the shares held by Jaybird Investments, LLC.

(11) Trent Broin may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares held by Tribe of Five, LLC. The address of Tribe of Five, LLC is 11900

West Olympic Blvd., Suite 450, Los Angeles, CA 90064.

(12) Excludes 20,000 shares of restricted stock that are scheduled to be granted to each of our non-employee directors on or about April 1, 2023 under the Company’s

2023 director compensation program. See “Item 11 — Executive Compensation - Director Compensation.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Related Party Transactions Policy

We have adopted a policy with respect to the review, approval and ratification of related party transactions. Under the policy, our audit committee is responsible for

reviewing and approving related party transactions. In the course of its review and approval of related party transactions, our audit committee will consider the relevant facts
and circumstances to decide whether to approve such transactions.
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Transactions with Related Persons
In addition to the compensation arrangements discussed in Item 11 (“Executive Compensation”), the following is a description of each transaction since January 1,
2022 January 1, 2023 and each currently proposed transaction in which:
e we have been or are to be a participant;
e the amount involved exceeds or will exceed $120,000; and
e any of our directors, executive officers, or holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or any immediate family member of, or person sharing the household
with any of these individuals had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

Description of Founder Related Party Payables

Since the Company’s inception in May 2019, Damian Novak, our former Executive Chairman and co-founder, and affiliates of Mr. Novak have incurred expenses on
our behalf or advanced funds to us from time to time as needed to satisfy our working capital requirements and expenses. The reimbursable expenses and advances were
reflected as related party payables on our balance sheet and were not evidenced promissory notes or other written documentation. We used a portion of the proceeds from
our initial public offering to repay approximately $2.0 million, representing the entire outstanding amount of these related party payables, net of related party receivables
that Mr. Novak and his affiliates owed to us at that time.

Arrangement with Rabbit Hole Equity, L.L.C.

Through October 31, 2022, our principal executive offices located in Minneapolis, Minnesota were leased by Rabbit Hole Equity, L.L.C., a Texas limited liability
company that serves as a family office that manages a portfolio of business investments held by Damian Novak and his affiliates (“Rabbit Hole Equity”), and a portion of
Rabbit Hole Equity’s lease payments were allocated to the Company. Effective November 1, 2022, we terminated this lease arrangement.

License Agreements with Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough

In March 2021, we entered into five-year license agreements with each of Nina Dobrev and Jaybird Investments, LLC, an entity managed by Julianne Hough, which
were amended in November 2021 in connection with our initial public offering (as so amended, the “License Agreements”), pursuant to which Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough,
respectively, each agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to help grow and promote our business and varietals of wine. Each has also wine and granted us a license to
use her pre-approved name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity, as well as certain content published by her on her social media or other channels, on and in
conjunction with the sale and related pre-approved advertising and promotion of our varietals of wine and marketing materials. Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough have agreed not
to grant any similar license or render services of any sort on behalf of or in connection with any party in the wine category anywhere in the world during the term of her
agreement, other than with respect to Company. Notwithstanding such restrictions, Company; however, the agreements do did not prevent Ms. Dobrev or Ms. Hough from
(i) appearing in the news, entertainment or information portion of any program or event, regardless of those programs or event’s sponsorship or tie-ins; or (ii) becoming a
passive investor in any other company provided that if the company is in the category of wine, such investment must be financial only and Ms. Dobrev or Ms. Hough, as
applicable, may not provide services or grant any rights in or to her name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity in connection with such investment.

Upon entering into such agreements, the License Agreements, we issued to each of Ms. Dobrev and Hough (or their designees) 156,500 units representing membership
interests in Fresh Grapes, LLC, which represent represented 969,272 shares each on a post-LLC Conversion basis. In addition, each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough will
be were entitled to an annual license fee equal to $300,000 per year commencing in March 2022 (the one year anniversary upon the completion of the effective date of the
agreements). The Company is also required our initial public offering, and to reimburse each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough for reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred
in connection with the promotion of the Company’s varietals of wine.
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The license agreements may be terminated by either party for “Cause” (as defined in the applicable agreement), if the other party materially breaches any material term
of the agreement and fails to cure such breach within 30 days after receiving notice of such breach. In addition, the Company may terminate the agreement upon the death or
physical or mental incapacitation that substantially impairs the ability of Ms. Dobrev or Ms. Hough, License Agreements, as applicable, to render the Services for more than
180 days. Upon expiration or termination of each agreement, the rights and licenses granted under the agreement will be immediately revoked, and the Company must cease
the marketing and sale of products that feature the licensor’s name, likeness, image, and other indicia of identity, amended, provided that the Company may continue to use
approved marketing materials and sell off the remaining product inventory for a sell-off period of up to 90 days.

Effective November 12, 2021, we entered into amendments to the license agreements. As amended, the license agreements provide that payment of the annual license
fees to Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough would commence on the initial closing date of our December 2021 initial public offering. In addition, the amendments provide that each
of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough have the right to terminate her agreement if, as of the end of calendar year 2023, we have not achieved at least $5.0 million $5.0 million in
EBITDA in either fiscal 2022 or fiscal 2023. In connection with entering into the November 2021 amendments, Nechio & Novak, LLC then a Company stockholder)
assigned and transferred to each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough (or their designees) 20,702 additional units representing membership interests in Fresh Grapes, LLC, which
represent represented 128,217 shares each on a post-LLC Conversion basis. Pursuant to the amendments, we have agreed to indemnify and reimburse the licensees for any
United States federal and state income taxes that may become be due and payable by them solely as a result of the assignment and transfer of the additional units, and to
gross-up such payments for income taxes resulting from the indemnification payments. We have agreed to satisfy the licensors’ claims for indemnification and
reimbursement no later than thirty (30) days following the filing of their applicable tax return. During the term of the license agreements,

The License Agreements, as amended, we have granted observer rights to provided that each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough pursuant have the right to which terminate
her agreement if, as of the end of calendar year 2023, we have not achieved at least $5.0 million in EBITDA in either fiscal 2022 or fiscal 2023. In addition, Ms. Dobrev and
Ms. Hough had the right to terminate their respective License Agreements prior to the scheduled expiration date upon a material breach by Fresh Vine that is not cured
within 30 days after receiving notice of such breach. On August 8, 2023, Fresh Vine received written letters from each will be entitled, among of Ms. Dobrev and Jaybird
Investments, LLC, notifying Fresh Vine that they were terminating the License Agreements prior to the scheduled expiration dates, effective September 7, 2023 (the
“Termination Date”). Pursuant to the License Agreements, upon termination of thereof, the rights and licenses granted under thereunder were revoked, and Fresh Vine was
required to cease the marketing and sale of products that feature the licensor’s name, likeness, image, and other things, indicia of identity, provided that Fresh Vine could
continue to attend all meetings, excluding committee meetings use approved marketing materials and executive sessions sell off the remaining product inventory for a sell-
off period of independent directors, of our Board of Directors in a non-voting, observer capacity, subject up to certain exceptions. 90 days.

Founders’ Option Agreements

Effective November 30, 2021, we entered into stock option agreements with four of our co-founders, Damian Novak, Rick Nechio, Nina Dobrev and Julianne Hough.
In connection with these agreements, we have established a founders’ option pool comprised of 1,500,004 shares of our common stock, which will represent 15% of our
outstanding common stock immediately prior to our initial public offering (the “Founders’ Option Pool”). Under the agreements, each co-founder was granted a ten-
year option to purchase 25% of the shares comprising the Founders’ Option Pool.

The options are exercisable, subject to the satisfaction of vesting conditions, at a price per share equal to $10.00 (our initial public offering price). The options will vest,
if at all, during the three year period that commenced on December 17, 2021 (the closing date of our initial public offering) and ending on the third anniversary thereof (the
“Performance Period”), with 20% of the option shares vesting upon the average of the closing sale prices of our common stock over a period of ten consecutive trading days
being equal to or greater than the applicable price set forth in the following schedule (each a “Trigger Price”):

Percent of Shares To Be Vested Trigger Price Trig‘ger
Price
20% $ 20.00 $ 20.00
20% $ 30.00 $ 30.00
20% $ 40.00 $ 40.00
20% $ 50.00 $ 50.00
20% $ 60.00 $ 60.00

All portions of the options that have not vested prior to the expiration of the Performance Period and all of co-founders’ rights to and under such non-vested portions of
the options will terminate upon such expiration. In addition, if, prior to any vesting date, a co-founder ceases to provide services to the Company either as a member of our
board Board of directors Directors a Company employee (with respect to Messrs. Novak and Nechio) or a Company ambassador and licensor under such co-founder’s
license agreement with the Company (with respect to Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough), that portion of such co-founder’s option scheduled to vest on such vesting date, and all
portions of such option scheduled to vest in the future, will not vest and all of such co-founder’s rights to and under such non-vested portions will terminate. Upon his
resignation as a director of the Company, the 375,001 share option granted to Mr. Novak pursuant to his Founder Option Agreement, none of which was vested, terminated.
Upon the termination of their respective license agreements with the Company, the 375,001 share option granted to each of Ms. Dobrev and Ms. Hough pursuant to her
Founder Option Agreement, none of which was vested, terminated.
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Service Agreement with Appellation Brands, LLC

In October 2021, the Company entered into a service agreement with Appellation Brands, LLC, a limited liability company of which Nechio & Novak, LLC was the
majority member. Nechio & Novak, LLC is a limited liability company of which Damian Novak and Rick Nechio were co-founders and collectively the majority members.
Under the service agreement, the Company provided representation and distribution services. We provided access to new markets and retail and wholesale customers to
Appellation Brands, LLC. In exchange for these services, we earned management fees of $50,000 per month plus a tiered fee ranging between $5.00 and $6.50 per case of
the products sold. The term of the agreement was one year and automatically renewed for additional one-year periods until terminated by either party with thirty days prior
written notice. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had recognized $153,075 in service revenue related to this agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Company recognized $297,224 in service revenue related to this agreement. In September 2022, the Company entered into a new distribution agreement with Appellation
Brands, LLC, to purchase approximately $195,000 of wine inventory and sell directly to our customers. Sales associated with the new agreement were recorded within
wholesale revenue beginning September 1, 2022, and total sales for the four months ended December 31, 2022 associated with the new agreement was approximately
$26,000.
Consulting Services Agreement with FELCS, LLC

On January 1, 2022, we entered into a consulting services agreement with FELCS, LLC, a limited liability company owned by Damian Novak, to provide consulting
and advisory services to us, including, among other things, assisting in and advising on the development of our marketing plans, materials and objectives, assisting in the
development and implementation of our growth strategies and processes, and advising on our systems, policies and procedures. As compensation for such services, we pay
FELCS, LLC a $25,000 monthly consulting fee. The consulting services agreement has an initial term of one year and was to be automatically renewed for additional one
year periods unless either party gave the other written notice of non-renewal at least 30 days prior to the end of the then current term, and could be terminated by either
party upon 30 days prior written notice. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized $275,000 in total expense related to this agreement. This
consulting agreement was terminated at the end of November 2022.
Director and Officer Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements (the “Indemnification Agreements”) with each of our current and former officers and directors. The Indemnification
Agreements clarify and supplement indemnification provisions already contained in the Company’s bylaws (the “Bylaws”) and generally provide that the Company shall
indemnify the indemnitees to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, subject to certain exceptions, against expenses, judgments, fines and other amounts actually and
reasonably incurred in connection with their service as a director or officer and also provide for rights to advancement of expenses and contribution.

Founder Vendor-related Share Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures

In December 2022, conjunction with entering into a Settlement Agreement with Janelle Anderson in February 2023, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak, who are officers,
directors and two of the Company’s founders, together agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration 970,000 shares of common stock of the
Company held by them, to enable the Company to preserve cash by issuing such number of shares to certain of the Company’s service providing vendors without subjecting
the Company’s other stockholders to dilution therefrom.
Founder Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures

In conjunction with entering into the Settlement Agreement with Janelle Anderson, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak entered into Agreements to Forfeit Shares of
Common Stock (the “Forfeiture Agreements™) pursuant to which each agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration 250,000 shares of common
stock of the Company held by them (a total of 500,000 shares), to enable the Company to issue such number of shares of the Anderson Consulting Shares Company’s
common stock to Ms. Anderson without subjecting the Company’s other stockholders to dilution therefrom (the “Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures”). The Anderson
Consulting-related Forfeitures became effective in connection with the closing of the Settlement Agreement in February 2023. See “Item 3 - Legal Proceedings — Janelle
Anderson Lawsuit and Settlement.”therefrom.
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Consulting Agreement with Whetstone Consulting
Effective February 20, 2023, the Company’s board of directors elected Michelle Hawkins Whetstone as a director of the Company. Ms. Whetstone is the spouse of

Jamey Whetstone, the Company’s winemaker. On June 12, 2019, we entered into a consulting agreement with Whetstone Consulting, through which our winemaker, Jamey
Whetstone, does business, which agreement was subsequently amended on May 15, 2020, as amended and restated on March 16, 2021 and further amended and restated on
April 13, 2022 (the “Whetstone Consulting Agreement”). See “Item 1 — Business — The Whetstone Consulting Agreement was terminated in May 2023 upon the
commencement of Mr. Whetstone’s employment with the Company. Ms. Whetstone Consulting” forresigned as a description director of the Whetstone Consulting
Agreement.Company on July 17, 2023.

Stock-based Vendor Compensation Arrangements

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 96/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

In December 2022, we entered into agreements with certain of our vendors pursuant to which we agreed to issue a total of 970,000 shares of our common stock to such
vendors as soon as practicable after the dates of the agreements. Pursuant to the agreements with certain of such vendors, we have agreed to issue up to an additional
1,030,000 shares of common stock upon our achieving specified revenue-related performance objectives within identified timeframes, as outlined below. Of such
1,030,000 shares, (i) 50,000 shares would be issued upon our Company recognizing an aggregate of $4 million in total revenue from and after October 25, 2022, (ii) a total
of 730,000 shares would be issued upon our Company recognizing an aggregate of $10 million in total revenue during the two year period expiring in December 2024, and
(iii) an additional 250,000 shares would be issued upon our Company recognizing an aggregate of $15 million in total revenue during the three year period expiring in
December 2025.

On December 15, 2022, we entered into a Consulting Agreement with Tribe of Five, LLC (“Tribe of Five”) pursuant to which Tribe of Five has agreed to advise us with
respect to our sales, marketing and distribution efforts, including assisting with managing our relationships with certain of our third party vendors, for an initial term of
three years. As compensation, we agreed to issue 120,000 shares of our common stock to Tribe of Five as soon as practicable after entry into the Consulting Agreement, and
have agreed to issue an additional 180,000 shares of our common stock to Tribe of Five upon our recognizing an aggregate of $10 million in total revenue during the first
two years of the term of the Consulting Agreement. The shares issued and issuable to Tribe of Five under the Consulting Agreement comprise a portion of the shares issued
or issuable to our vendors, as described in the immediately preceding paragraph.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The following table represents aggregate fees billed to us for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022,

by Wipfli LLP, independent registered public accountants, our principal accountants.

2022 2021 2023 2022
Audit Fees (1) $ 165,000 $ 165,000 $ 225,000 $ 165,000
Audit-Related Fees (2) 0 0 - -
Tax Fees (3) 0 0 - -
All Other Fees (4) 0 0 - -

$ 165,000 $ 165,000 $ 225,000 $ 165,000

(1) Audit Fees were principally for services rendered for the audit of our financial statements, reviews of our interim financial statements, the issuance of accountant
consents, and services that are normally provided by Wipfli LLP in connection with the financial statement audit. Audit Fees for 20212023 also included fees for the
review of our registration statement on Form S-1 for our initial public subscription rights offering, and for the issuance of comfort letters.

(2) Audit-related fees were for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our consolidated financial statements
and are not reported under “Audit fees.”

(3) Tax Fees consist of fees for tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning.

(4) All Other Fees typically consist of fees for permitted non-audit products and services provided.

Audit committee pre-approval policy and procedures
Pursuant to the audit committee charter, the audit committee reviews and approves, the scope and plans for the audits and the audit engagement fees and terms and

approves in advance, all audit and non-audit and tax services to be performed by the independent auditor that are not otherwise prohibited by law or regulations and any

associated fees. Following the adoption of the pre-approval policy, the audit committee has pre-approved all services performed by the independent registered public
accounting firm.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
The following exhibits and financial statements are filed as part of, or are incorporated by reference into, this report:

(1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements are filed with this Annual Report and can be found beginning at page F-1 of this report:

e  Report of independent registered public accounting firm

Balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022

Statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022

Statements of changes in stockholders’ equity/(deficit) for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022
Statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022

e Notes to financial statements
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Separate financial schedules have been omitted because such information is inapplicable or is included in the financial statements or notes described above.

(3) Exhibits
See “Exhibit Index” following the signature page of this Form 10-K for a description of the documents that are filed as Exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or

incorporated by reference herein.
ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.
Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Dated: March 31, 2023March 8, 2024

FRESH VINE WINE, INC
By: /s/ James Spellmire Michael Pruitt

James SpellmireMichael Pruitt
Interim Chief Financial Executive Officer
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints each of Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt and
James Spellmire, Keith Johnson, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of substitution and resubstituting, for such
individual in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents
in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully for all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or the individual’s substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and
on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title
/s/ Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt Interim Chief Executive Officer and Director March 31, 2023 8, 2024
Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt (Principal executive officer)
/s/ James Spellmire Keith Johnson Interim Chief Financial Officer March 31, 2023 8, 2024
James Spellmire Keith Johnson (Principal financial and accounting officer) and Secretary
/s/ Eric Doan Director March 31, 2023 8, 2024
Eric Doan
/s/ Michael Pruitt Director March 31, 2023
Michael Pruitt
/s/ Michelle Hawkins Whetstone Director March 31, 2023
Michelle Hawkins Whetstone
/s/ Brad Yacullo Director March 31, 2023 8, 2024
Brad Yacullo
/s/ David Yacullo Director March 31, 2023 8, 2024
David Yacullo
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EXHIBIT INDEX
FRESH VINE WINE, INC.

FORM 10-K

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 25, 2024, by and among_Fresh Vine Wine, Inc., FVW Merger Sub, Inc., and Notes, Live, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 29, 2024)

3.1 Plan of Conversion (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2022)

3.2 Articles of Incorporation of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2021)

3.3 Bylaws Certificate of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2023)

3.4 Amendment No. 1 to Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2021 on August 2, 2023)

3.5* Bylaws of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (as amended through January 25, 2024)

4.1 Form of specimen certificate representing shares of common stock of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 29, 2021)

4.2 Form of Underwriter Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2021)

4.3 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in rights offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A-1 (File
No. 333-269082) filed on January 27, 2023)

4.4 Form of Warrant Agency Agreement between Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1/A-1 (File No. 333-269082) filed on January 27, 2023),

4.5 Description of the Capital Stock Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2022)

10.110.1% Amended and Restated Consulting Agreement dated April 13, 2022 by and between Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. and Jamey Whetstone d/b/a Whetstone Consulting
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 19, 2022)

10.2F Alternating Proprietorship Agreement dated July 2019 by and between Fior di Sole, LLC and Fresh Grapes, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-261037)_filed on November 12, 2021),

10.310.2 Custom Winemaking and Bottling Agreement dated September 2019 by and between Fior di Sole, LLC and Fresh Grapes, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 12, 2021),

10.410.3# License Agreement dated March 2021 by and between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Nina Dobrev (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 12, 2021)

10.5 Amendment No. 1 dated effective November 12, 2021 to License Agreement dated March 2021 by and between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Nina Dobrev
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-261037)_filed on November 29, 2021)

10.6 License Agreement dated March 2021 by and between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Jaybird Investments, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 12, 2021)

10.7 Amendment No. 1 dated effective November 12, 2021 to License Agreement dated March 2021 by and between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Jaybird Investments,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 29, 2021)

10.8 Contractor Agreement effective March 15, 2021 by and between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Tribe of Five, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-261037) filed on November 12, 2021),

10.9# Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective September 17, 2021 between Fresh Grapes, LLC and Janelle Anderson (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-261037)_filed on November 29, 2021)

10.10# Form of Founders’ Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A (File No. 333-261037) filed on

November 29, 2021)
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390023062527/ea182755ex3-2_freshvine.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021062355/fs12021a1ex4-1_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021066386/ea152713ex4-1_freshvine.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390023005711/fs12023a1ex4-3_freshvine.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390023005711/fs12023a1ex4-4_freshvine.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390022016834/f10k2021ex4-3_freshvine.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021058730/fs12021ex10-2_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021058730/fs12021ex10-2_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021058730/fs12021ex10-3_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021062355/fs12021a1ex10-9_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021062355/fs12021a1ex10-5_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021058730/fs12021ex10-6_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021062355/fs12021a1ex10-7_freshgrapes.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1880343/000121390021058730/fs12021ex10-8_freshgrapes.htm
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10.13#10.6# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, pursuant to the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, between Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. and each of

Timothy Michaels and Elliot Savoie (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed November 29, 2021)
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10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 14, 2022)
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2022)

Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2022)
Global Mutual Compromise, Release and Settlement Agreement dated January 27, 2023 among_the Company, Janelle Anderson, Damian Novak and Rick

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 31, 2023)
Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 2, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2023)

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Policy on Avoidance of Insider Trading

Consent of Wipfli LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of this report)

Section 302 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

Section 302 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Clawback Policy,

Inline XBRL Instance Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

*  Filed herewith.
#  Management contract or compensatory plan
T Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted because they are both (i) not material and (ii) would be competitively harmful if publicly disclosed.
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The audited financial statements for the periods ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022 are included on the following
pages:
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

Financial Statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID# 00344) F-2
Balance Sheets F-3
Statements of Operations F-4
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) F-5
Statements of Cash Flows F-6
Notes to Financial Statements F-7
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, and the related
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 December 31,
2023 and 2021, 2022, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Going Concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements,
the Company has a history of operating losses and insufficient cash flow flows from operations, that raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty.
Basis for Opinion
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on
our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures
that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ Wipfli LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 31, 20238, 2024
‘We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2021.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2022 2023 and 20212022

December 31, December 31, December December
31, 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 2,080,335 $ 16,063,941 $ 236,340 $ 2,080,335
Restricted cash 100,000 -
Accounts receivable 259,317 208,160 172,101 259,317
Accounts receivable - related party - 153,075
Receivables with recourse - 146,314
Related party receivables-less allowances - 376,000
Due from employees 37,733 -
Due from employees — net of credit loss allowance of $0 and $20,000, respectively - 37,733
Insurance recovery receivable 804,907 - - 804,907
Inventories 3,696,198 159,060 337,873 3,696,198
Prepaid expenses and other 961,211 1,150,987 42,943 961,211
Deferred offering costs 68,286 - - 68,286
Total current assets 7,907,987 18,257,537 889,257 7,907,987
Equity investment 500,000 -
Prepaid expenses (long-term) 678,167 991,167 = 678,167
Intangible assets - net - 3,990
Total Assets $ 8,586,154 $ 19,252,694
Total assets $ 1,389,257 $ 8,586,154
Liabilities, and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities, and stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 589,204 $ 416,716 $ 509,337 $ 589,204
Accrued compensation 420,413 416,414 - 420,413
Settlement payable 1,250,000 - 585,976 1,250,000
Accrued expenses 422,931 212,866 810,723 422,931
Accrued expenses - related party 280,000 529,617
Secured borrowings - 171,069
Accrued expenses - related parties 309,333 280,000
Deferred revenue 10,000 13,750 3,407 10,000
Promissory note - related party - 216,000
Related party payables - 200,272
Total current liabilities 2,972,548 2,176,074 2,218,776 2,972,548
Total Liabilities 2,972,548 2,176,074
Total liabilities 2,218,776 2,972,548
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock, $0.001 par value - 100,000,000 shares authorized, 12,732,257 and 12,200,013 12,732 12,200

shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively

Commitment and contingencies — Note 12
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Preferred stock, $0.001 par value - 25,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2022 and
2021, 0 shares issued and outstanding

Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

Series A convertible preferred stock; $0.001 par value — 25,000,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2023 and 2022; 10,000 and 0 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 10 -
2023 and 2022, respectively

Common stock, $0.001 par value - 100,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2023 and

2022; 15,976,227 and 12,732,257 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023 and 15,976 12,732
2022, respectively
Additional paid-in capital 21,420,732 17,681,141 25,631,255 21,420,732
Accumulated deficit (15,819,858) (617,351)  (26,476,760) (15,819,858)
Total Stockholder’s Equity 5,613,606 17,075,990
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (829,519) 5,613,606
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 8,586,154 $ 19,252,694
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) $ 1,389,257 $ 8,586,154

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 20212022
Year ended December 31,

Wholesale revenue

Direct to consumer revenue
Related party service revenue
Total Net Revenue

Total net revenue

Cost of revenues
Gross Profit
Gross profit (loss)

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Equity-based compensation
Operating Income (Loss)

Operating loss

Other income (expense)

Other income

Net Income (Loss)
Net loss
Preferred dividends

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

Net Loss per Share - Basic
Net Loss per Share - Diluted
Net loss per share - basic

Net loss per share - diluted

FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2022 2021 2023 2022
$ 1,651,451 $ 772,711 $ 1,328,382 $ 1,651,451
911,326 774,421 497,808 911,326
297,224 153,075 - 297,224
2,860,001 1,700,207
1,826,190 2,860,001
2,551,009 1,135,268 4,412,119 2,551,009
308,992 564,939
(2,585,929) 308,992
11,489,804 4,793,445 6,322,184 11,489,804
4,053,123 5,738,029 1,708,218 4,053,123
(15,233,936) (9,966,535)
(10,616,331)  (15,233,936)
31,429 908
1,296 31,429
$ (15,202,507) $ (9,965,627)
(10,615,035)  (15,202,507)
41,867 -
$(10,656,902) $ (15,202,507)
12,550,096 8,870,902 15,329,617 12,550,096
12,550,096 8,870,902 15,329,617 12,550,096
$ (121) $ (1.12)
$ (1.21) $ (1.12)
$ 0.69) $ (1.21)
$ 0.69) $ (1.21)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 20212022

Balances at
December 31,
2020

Member units
issued
Equity-based
compensation
Corporate
conversion
from Fresh
Grapes, LLC
to Fresh Vine
Wine, Inc.
Corporate
conversion to
common
stock
Common stock
issued in
initial public
offering, net
of
underwriter
commission
of
$1,760,000
and initial
public
offering costs
of $1,087,273
Net
income/(loss)

Balances at
December 31,
2021

Equity-based
compensation

Stock
Forfeitures

Vendor Stock
Issuance

Net income
(loss)

Balances at
December 31,
2022

Member Contributions

Stockholders’ Equity Additional

Class F

Class W Common Stock Preferred Stock Paid-In Accumulated

Units

Amount

Units Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit

Total

950,000 $

464,227

(1,414,227)

250,000

6,848,871

(7,098,871)

(200,388)

100,000 $ 10,000 - 8 = - $ - $ =

100,388 2,309,852 - - - = - -

193,325 -

(11,071,434) 11,071,434

(2,319,852) 10,000,013 10,000 = = 9,408,723 -

2,200,000 2,200 19,150,527

(9,965,627)

$ (1,723,158) $ (1,463,158)

2,309,852

7,042,196

19,152,727

(9,965,627)

12,200,013 12,200 - - 17,681,141 $

(617,351) $ 17,075,990

532,244 532 - - 2,506,291 -

(970,000) (970) = = 970 =

970,000 970 - - 1,232,300 -

(15,202,507)

2,506,823

1,233,300

(15,202,507 )

12,732,257 $ 12,732 - $ - $ 21,420,732

$ (15,819,858) $ 5,613,606

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Shares

Accumulated
Deficit

Amount Shares Amount

Total
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Balances at December 31, 2021

Equity-based compensation

Vendor stock issuance

Stock forfeitures

Net Loss

Balances at December 31, 2022

Rights offering - common stock and warrants
issued

Issuance of preferred stock

Dividends declared — preferred stock — Series A
($12.00/share)

Equity-based compensation

Stock forfeitures

Net loss

Balances at December 31, 2023

- - 12,200,013 $ 12,200 $17,681,141 $ (617,351) $ 17,075,990
= 2 532,244 532 2,506,291 = 2,506,823
- - 970,000 970 1,232,330 = 1,233,300
= 5 (970,000) (970) 970 = .
= . . . - (15202,507)  (15,202,507)
2 2 12,732,257 12,732 21,420,732 (15,819,858) 5,613,606
= = 3,143,969 3,144 2,543,584 = 2,546,728
10,000 10 . . 949,990 = 950,000
- - - - - (41,867) (41,867)
- - 1,641,332 1,641 715,408 - 717,049
- = (1,541,331) (1,541) 1,541 = .
= 5 . 5 - (10,615,035)  (10,615,035)
10,000 10 15,976,227 $ 15976 $25631,255 $(26,476,760) $ (829,519)
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 20212022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income (loss)

FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2022

2021 2023 2022

$ (15,202,507) $

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities:
Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Amortization
Equity-based compensation
Inventory write-down
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - related party
Insurance recovery receivable
Receivables with recourse
Related party receivables
Due from employee
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Settlement payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses - related parties
Deferred revenue

Related party payables

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Equity investment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from promissory note - related party

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of related party notes payable
Payments of outstanding secured borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

(9,965,627)

$(10,615,035) $ (15,202,507)

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock — net of issuance costs

Payments for deferred offering costs

Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offering costs

3,990 472 . 3,990
4,053,123 5,738,029 1,708,218 4,053,123
1,844,210 -
37,733 .
(51,157) (195,008) 87,216 (51,157)
153,075 (153,075) 3 153,075
(804,907) 5 804,907 (804,907)
146,314 (146,314) = 146,314
376,000 (303,477) 5 376,000
(37,733) - - (37,733)
(3,537,138) 5,510 1,514,115  (3,537,138)
189,776 (765,996) 605,268 189,776
172,488 347,847 (79,867) 172,488
3,999 416,414 (420,413) 3,999
1,250,000 5 (664,024) 1,250,000
210,065 212,366 345,923 210,065
(249,617) 529,617 29,333 (249,617)
(3,750) 13,750 (6,593) (3,750)
(200,272) (1,524,950) . (200,272)
(13,528,251) (5,789,942)
(4,809,009)  (13,528,251)
5 (250)
5 (250)
(500,000) .
(500,000) 5
. 432,000
(216,000) (216,000) = (216,000)
(171,069) 171,069 3 (171,069)
- 2,309,852
950,000 .
(68,286) 5 5 (68,286)
- 19,152,727
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Proceeds from rights offering — net of issuance costs 2,615,014 -

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (455,355) 21,849,648 3,565,014 (455,355)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (13,983,606) 16,059,456
Net decrease in cash (1,743,995) (13,983,606)
Cash - Beginning of Year 16,063,941 4,485
Cash and restricted cash - beginning of year 2,080,335 16,063,941
Cash - End of Year $ 2,080,335 $ 16,063,941
Cash and restricted cash - end of year $ 336,340 $ 2,080,335
2022 2021
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:
Issuance of units for prepaid marketing services $ - 8 1,565,000
2023 2022

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities investing and financing activities:
Dividends declared but not paid $ 41,867 $ =

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022
December 31, 2022 and 2021 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the Company) (“the Company”, “our”, “we”), a Nevada corporation, is a premium wine brand built to complement consumers’ healthy and active
lifestyles. The Company provides a competitively priced premium product that is blended to deliver several important benefits, such as low-cal, low-sugar, low-carb. The
Company’s wines are also gluten-free and keto and vegan friendly.

The Company’s revenue is comprised primarily of wholesale and direct to consumer (DTC) sales, and representation and distribution services. Wholesale revenue is
generated through sales to distributors located in states throughout the United States of America. DTC revenue is generated from individuals purchasing wine directly from
the Company through club membership and the Company’s website. Representation and distribution service revenue is generated by providing access to new markets and
distribution channels.

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared and are presented in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”). The
financial statements include, in the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of normal and recurring items, necessary for the fair presentation of the financial
statements. In certain instances, amounts reported in prior period financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation.

Liquidity, Going Concern, and Management Plan

Although the Company’s revenue generated during the period ended December 31, 2022 represents a 168% increase over the period ended December 31, 2021, historically
the Company’s operating expenses have significantly exceeded its revenues. Since the Company’s IPO, significant cash outflows were required to ensure Historically, the
Company has sufficient inventory to support forecasted demand incurred losses, which has resulted in an accumulated deficit of approximately $26.5 million as well as to
mitigate supply chain risks. of December 31, 2023. Cash flows used in operating activities were $4.8 million and $13.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, the Company had approximately a $1.3 million deficiency in working capital, inclusive of $236,000 in cash and cash
equivalents and $100,000 in restricted cash. The Company has incurred additional expenses increased its liquidity by selling inventory at prices below cost, by significantly
reducing staffing levels and by the termination of celebrity endorsement contracts.

The Company’s ability to invest in sales continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to meet its liquidity needs through a combination of factors including but not
limited to, cash and marketing activities cash equivalents, working capital and strategic capital raises. The ultimate success of these plans is not guaranteed.

In considering our forecast for the next twelve months and the current cash and working capital as of the filing of this Form 10-K, such matters create a substantial doubt
regarding the Company’s ability to position meet their financial needs and continue as a going concern.

The Company received gross proceeds of $1 million from a preferred stock offering during the year ended December 31, 2023. Subsequent to year end, the Company
entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (Agreement) with Notes Live, Inc. See Note 15 for future growth.

further details on the Agreement. The Company currently holds no debt and intends will need to seek additional debt or equity financing in the near term to sustain existing
operations. If adequate financing is not available, the Company may will be forced to curtail near-term growth priorities, take measures to severely reduce our expenses and
business operations or discontinue them completely. Such financing, if available, may be dilutive. See Note 14 for details At the current reduced pace of incurring expenses
and without receipt of additional financing and the Marchreceipt of proceeds from the expected sales of inventory under purchase orders from a discount retailer entered
into in the third quarter of 2023, Rights Offering.

the Company projects that the existing cash balance will be sufficient to fund current operations into the first quarter of 2024, after which additional financing or capital will
be needed to satisfy obligations. Additional financing may not be available on favorable terms or at all. If additional financing is available, it may be highly dilutive to
existing shareholders and may otherwise include burdensome or onerous terms. The Company’s inability to raise additional working capital in a timely manner would
negatively impact the ability to fund operations, generate revenues, maintain or grow the business and otherwise execute the Company’s business plan, leading to the
reduction or suspension of operations and ultimately potentially ceasing operations altogether. altogether and initiating bankruptcy proceedings. Should this occur, the value
of any investment in the Company’s securities could would be adversely affected.

These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue
as a going concern.

In an effort to preserve capital, the Company’s leadership team has already deferred certain investments in additional inventory, curtailed its sales and marketing efforts and
staffing, and taken other measures to reduce expenses and business operations. Collectively, these cost reduction efforts have reduced the Company’s budgeted cash
requirements preserved capital for our highest priority expenses and investments and provided additional runway for the growth strategy to gain traction in the market.

In parallel, the Company continues to execute its growth strategy, opening up new distributor and retail relationships, expanding to new geographic markets, and introducing
new product extensions. The Company believes that these efforts will further accelerate top-line growth in ways that will improve liquidity measures as the Company
converts receivables to cash.

Corporate Conversion

On December 8, 2021, in relation to preparing for its initial public offering (“IPO”), Fresh Grapes, LLC filed a certificate of conversion, whereby Fresh Grapes, LLC
effected a corporate conversion from a Texas limited liability company to a Nevada corporation and changed its name to Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Pursuant to the corporate
conversion, units of membership interest in the limited liability company were converted into shares of common stock of the corporation at a conversion ratio of 6.1934
units for one share of common stock. As a result of the corporate conversion, accumulated deficit was reduced to zero on the date of the corporate conversion, and the
corresponding amount was recorded to additional paid-in capital. The corporate conversion was approved by members holding a majority of the outstanding units, and in
connection with such conversion, the Company filed a certificate of incorporation and adopted bylaws. Pursuant to the Company’s certificate of incorporation, the Company
is authorized to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of common stock $0.001 par value per share and 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock $0.001 par value per share. The
Company determined that the corporate conversion is equivalent to a change in the Company’s capital structure. As such, all references in the audited financial statements to
the number of shares and per-share amounts of member units are now presented as common stock and have been retroactively restated to reflect this conversion.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Initial Public Offering

On December 17, 2021, the Company completed its IPO whereby it sold 2,200,000 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $10 per share. The aggregate net
proceeds received by the Company from the offering were approximately $19.2 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $1.8 million and
offering expenses of approximately $1.1 million. Upon the closing of the IPO, 12,200,013 shares of common stock were outstanding. The shares began trading on
December 14, 2021 on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “VINE”.

Accounting_Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance for inventory obsolescence, equity-based compensation for
employees and non-employees, and the valuation of deferred tax assets.

Cash

The Company maintains its accounts at two financial institutions. At times throughout the year, the Company’s cash balances may exceed amounts insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk.

Restricted Cash

Included in the cash balance is a deposit of $100,000 that the Company operating bank has required us to maintain as a security for collectability of automated clearing
house transactions. These funds are held in a separate account and are not available for disbursements.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of amounts owed to the Company for sales of the Company’s products on credit and are reported at net realizable value. Credit terms are
extended to customers in the normal course of business. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions. The Company estimates
allowances for future returns and doubtful accounts based upon historical experience and its evaluation of the current status of receivables. Accounts considered
uncollectible are written off against the allowance. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 there was no allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Company previously factored outstanding accounts receivable, with full recourse, at a percentage of face value.

Inventories

Inventories primarily include bottled wine which is carried at the lower of cost (calculated using the first-in-first-out (“FIFO”) average cost method) or net realizable value.
The Company reduces the carrying value of inventories that are obsolete or for which market conditions indicate cost will not be recovered to estimated net realizable value.
The Company’s estimate of net realizable value is based on analysis and assumptions including, but not limited to, historical experience, future demand, and market
requirements. Reductions to the carrying value of inventories are recorded in cost of revenues. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 there was no 2022,
the Company had recorded an inventory allowance for inventory obsolescence.of approximately $112,000 and $0, respectively.

Intangible Assets

The Company assesses for impairment intangible assets with finite useful lives which are amortized on a systematic basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortization
period and amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life reflects the pattern in which the assets future economic benefits are expected to be consumed.
Where the pattern cannot be reliably determined, the straight-line method is used. The amortization period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Amortization of intangible assets with fixed determinable lives is recorded on a straight-line basis over 10 years for trademarks. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021 there
were intangible assets of $0 and $3,990, respectively.

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs primarily consist of legal, accounting, SEC filing fees, and any other fees relating to the Company’s subscription rights offering and preferred equity
offering. The deferred offering costs as of December 31, 2022 were capitalized as incurred and were offset against proceeds from the sale of rights at the closing of the
Company’s capital raise completed on March 14, 2023.

Investment in Equity Securities

The Company has elected the measurement alternative for non-marketable equity securities under ASC 321 Investments — Equity Securities. In accordance with ASC 321,
the non-marketable equity securities are initially measured at cost and reviewed at year end for impairment and fair value changes. As of December 31, 2023, there were no
changes recorded for the value of the investment since the initial measurement.
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Revenue Recognition

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

The Company’s total revenue reflects the sale of wine domestically in the U.S. to wholesale distributors or DTC and related party service revenues. Under ASC Topic
606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), the Company recognizes revenue when control of the promised good is transferred to the customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration for which the Company is expected to be entitled to receive in exchange for those products. Each contract includes a single performance
obligation to transfer control of the product to the customer. Control is transferred when the product is either shipped or delivered, depending on the shipping terms, at
which point the Company recognizes the transaction price for the product as revenue. The Company has elected to account for shipping and handling as a
fulfilment fulfillment activity, with amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling included in total revenue.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue Recognition (continued)
The Company also generates revenue through membership in its wine club. Wine club members pay a monthly fee, which varies depending on level of membership, and are
entitled to receive quarterly shipments of wine, free shipping, and discounts on other wine and merchandise purchased. The Company recognizes revenue for the monthly
membership dues when the product is delivered. Any membership dues received before the product is delivered is recorded as deferred revenue on the Company’s balance
sheet.
The Company has determined that related party service revenue should be recognized over the period of time it provides such services. ASC 606 also notes that when
another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer, the entity should determine whether the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (that is, the entity is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (that is, the entity is an
agent). The Company does not bear responsibility for inventory losses and does not have pricing determination; therefore, the Company would be considered the agent and
revenue should be recognized as net sales.
Products are sold for cash or on credit terms. Credit terms are established in accordance with local and industry practices, and typically require payment within 30-60 days
of delivery or shipment, as dictated by the terms of each agreement. The Company has elected the practical expedient to not account for significant financing components as
its payment terms are less than one year, and the Company determines the terms at contract inception. The Company’s sales terms do not allow for the right of return.
Disaggregated Revenue Information
The following table presents the percentages of total revenue disaggregated by sales channels for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021:2022:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022
Wholesale 57.7% 45.4% 72.7%  57.7%
Direct to consumer 31.9% 45.5% 27.3% 31.9%
Related party service 10.4% 9.1% -%  10.4%
Total revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Contract Balances and Receivables

When the Company receives pre-orders or payment from a customer prior to transferring the product under the terms of a contract, the Company records deferred revenue,
which represents a contract liability. The Company will record deferred revenue when cash is collected from customers prior to the wine shipment date. The Company does
not recognize revenue until control of the wine is transferred and the performance obligation is met. When the Company does not receive payment from a customer prior to
or at the transfer of the product under the terms of a contract, the Company records an accounts receivable.

Contract liabilities as of December 31, 2022, 2021, December 31, 2023 and 2020 2022, and January 1, 2022 were $3,407, $10,000 $13,750, and $0, $13,750, respectively.
Revenue recognized in 20222023 and 20212022 from contract liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was $10,000 and December 31, 2020, was
$13,750, and $0, respectively.

Receivables with customers as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2022, and January 1, 2022, 2021, were $172,101, $259,317 and 2020 were $259,317,
$208,160, and $13,152, respectively.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s accounting for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring or
nonrecurring basis adheres to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority
to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e  Level 1 Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities accessible to the Company at the measurement date.

e  Level 2 Inputs: Other than quoted prices included in Level 1 inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the
full term of the asset or liability.

e  Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at measurement date.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in
its entirety.
The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, deferred revenue and other financial working capital items approximate fair value at December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, due to the short maturity nature of these items.
Income Taxes
The Company recognizes uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of evaluating whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. For those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than not recognition threshold, the Company recognizes the largest amount
of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to uncertain tax positions
in income tax expense. There were no uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 or 2021, 2022, and as such, no interest or penalties were recorded
to income tax expense. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, the Company has no unrecognized tax benefits. There are no unrecognized tax
benefits included on the balance sheet that would, if recognized, impact the effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate there will be a significant change in
unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months.
Prior to the Company’s December 2021 conversion to a corporation, the Company was a limited liability company and therefore was a disregarded legal entity for income
tax purposes. Accordingly, no benefit for income taxes was recorded prior to the conversion.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes (continued)

For years before 2020, the Company was not subject to U.S. federal or state income tax examinations. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions as a component of general and administrative expenses.

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company measures equity-based compensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and recognizes the compensation expense over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting period. The Company recognizes any forfeitures as they occur. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022,
there was $991,167 $0 and $1,304,167 $991,167 of unrecognized equity-based compensation expense recorded in prepaid expenses and other assets. The license agreements
were terminated during the third quarter of 2023 and the remaining balance was recognized as expense during this period.

The Company measures equity-based compensation when the service inception date precedes the grant date based on the fair value of the award as an accrual of equity-
based compensation and adjusts the cost to fair value at each reporting date prior to the grant date. In the period in which the grant occurs, the cumulative compensation cost
is adjusted to the fair value at the date of the grant.

Effective December 9, 2021, the Company adopted an equity incentive plan which allows for the granting of incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted and
unrestricted stock and stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance units and other stock-based awards to current and prospective employees and directors of, and
consultants and advisors to, the Company.

See Note 9 for further discussion of equity-based compensation incurred in 2022 2023 and 2021.2022.

Advertising

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021,2022, was
$3,059,429 $1,576,325 and $1,873,479, $3,059,429, respectively.

Application of New or Revised Accounting Standards

Pursuant to the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”), a company constituting an “emerging growth company” is, among other things, entitled to
rely upon certain reduced reporting requirements and is eligible to take advantage of an extended transition period to comply with new or revised accounting standards
applicable to public companies.

The Company is an emerging growth company and has elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards that have
different effective dates for public and private companies until the earlier of the date that the Company (i) is no longer an emerging growth company or (ii) affirmatively and
irrevocable opts out of the extended transition period provide in the JOBS Act.

Recently Issued Accounting_Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase transparency and comparability between organizations by recording assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet relating to both operating and finance leases with terms longer than 12 months and disclosing key information about the lease terms. Topic
842, Leases, supersedes Topic 840. This guidance was effective for the Company beginning with the year ending December 31, 2022, with early adoption permitted. The
adoption of this accounting pronouncement had no effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, NYSE Listing Requirements

On September 8, 2023, the Company received a written notice (the “Notice”) from NYSE American stating that it was not in compliance with Section 1003(a)(ii)
of the NYSE American Company Guide (the “Company Guide”), which requires a listed company that has reported losses from continuing operations and/or net
losses in three of its four most recent fiscal years to maintain at least $4 million of stockholders’ equity. The Company reported stockholders’ deficit of
approximately $712,000 as of December 31, 2023 and have had losses from continuing operations and/or net losses in each of the fiscal years ended December 31,
2020, 2021, 2022 and 20212023. As required by the NYSE American, the Company submitted a plan to the NYSE American on October 9, 2023 addressing actions it has
taken and how it intends to regain compliance with the continued listing standards within the required 18 month period ending March 8, 2025.
On SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

November

21, 2023, the

Company

received

notification

(the

“Acceptance

Letter”) from

NYSE

American

that the

Company’s

plan to regain

compliance

with NYSE

American’s

listing

standards

was

accepted. The

Acceptance

Letter  also

stated that the

Company is

not in

compliance

with Section

1003(a)(i) of

the Company

Guide, which

requires  an

issuer to have

stockholders’

equity of

$2.0 million

or more if it

has reported

losses  from

continuing

operations

and/or  net

losses in two

out of its

three  most

recent fiscal

years. NYSE

American has

granted the

Company a

plan period

through

March 8,

2025 to

regain

compliance

with Sections

1003(a)(i)
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and (ii) of the
Company
Guide. If the
Company is
not in
compliance
with all
continued
listing
standards by
that date or if
the Company
does not
make
progress
consistent
with the plan
during  the
plan period,
the Company

will be
subject to
delisting
proceedings.
1.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, and also
issued subsequent amendments to the initial guidance, collectively, ASC 326, to replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current U.S. GAAP with a
methodology that requires the reflection of expected credit losses and will also require consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to
determine credit loss estimates. For many entities with financial instruments, the standard will require the use of a forward-looking expected loss model rather than the
incurred loss model for recognizing credit losses, which may result in the earlier recognition of credit losses on financial instruments. This guidance will be effective for the
Company beginning with the year December 31, 2023, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not anticipate that adopted this new standard will have a guidance
during the quarter ended March 31, 2023, which had no material impact on its the financial statements.

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 119/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Net Loss per Share
2. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic net loss per share is determined by dividing net loss attributable to shareholders by the weighted-average shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects
potential dilution and is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period increased by the numbers of
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if all potential common shares had been issued and were dilutive. However, potentially dilutive securities are
excluded from the computation of diluted EPS to the extent that their effect is anti-dilutive. The following table shows the components of diluted shares for the years

ending:

Weighted average shares outstanding - basic
Dilutive effect of shares authorized
Shares used in computing net loss per share - diluted

Numerator:
Net loss
Less: dividends on preferred stock
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Denominator:
Basic — weighted shares outstanding
Dilutive effect from shares authorized

Diluted — weighted shares outstanding

Basic loss per share
Diluted loss per share

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
12,550,096 8,870,902
12,550,096 8,870,902
December December
31, 31,
2023 2022

$(10,615,035) $(15,202,507)
41,867 .

$(10,656,902) $(15,202,507)

15,329,617 12,550,096

15,329,617 12,550,096

$ (0.69) $ (1.21)
$ (0.69) $ (1.21)

At December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, 14,748,862 and 2,721,562 and 2,744,778 shares have been excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted

average shares outstanding as the inclusion of these shares would have an anti-dilutive effect.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 3. INVENTORIES
Notes
Inventories primarily include bottled wine which is carried at the lower cost (calculated using the average cost method) or net realizable value. During 2023, the
Company recorded a $1.8 million inventory write down to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
2. INVENTORIES
net realizable value, which is recorded in cost of revenue in the financial statements. The write-down was the result of entering into an agreement to sell products at a price

that was lower than the Company’s cost. The finished goods inventory at December 31, 2023 includes a valuation reserve of $112,000. Inventories consist of the following
at:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Inventory — finished goods $ 337,873 $ 3,683,159
Inventory — merchandise - 13,039
Total $ 337,873 $ 3,696,198
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Inventory — finished goods $ 3,683,159 $ 137,647
Inventory — merchandise 13,039 21,413
Total $ 3,696,198 $ 159,060

4. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS
3. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid expenses and other assets consist of the following at:

December Decemb
December 31,  December31, oo ecember

2022 2021 31, 3L,
2023 2022
Prepaid license and fees $ - 3,395
Prepaid marketing expenses - current 313,000 $ 313,000 $ 9,871 $ 313,000
Prepaid marketing expenses — long-term 678,167 991,167
Prepaid marketing expenses - long-term - 678,167
Inventory deposits 569,377 758,250 - 569,377
Other prepaid expenses 78,834 76,313 33,072 78,834
Total $ 1,639,378 $ 2,142,155 $ 42,943 $1,639,378
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.5. INVESTMENTS

In December 2023, the Company made a $500,000 investment for 50,000 shares of Notes Live, Inc. as part of the letter of intent entered into with Notes Live, Inc. See Note
15 for Agreement and Plan of Merger with Notes Live, Inc. The investment was initially measured at cost. The Company noted no impairment or fair value change as of
December 31, 2023.

Notes to Financial Statements 6. ACCRUED COMPENSATION

December 31, 2022 and 2021

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets subject to amortization consist of the following at:

December 31, December 31,

Useful Life 2022 2021
Trademarks 10 Years $ 3,990 $ 4,788
Accumulated amortization (3,990) (798)
Intangible assets - net $ - $ 3,990

Amortization expense for intangibles for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $3,990 and $472 respectively.
5. DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue represents amounts received prior to period-end but earned in the following period. Deferred revenue consists of the following at:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Orders not yet shipped $ - 8 4,099
Direct to consumer prepayments 10,000 9,651
Deferred revenue $ 10,000 $ 13,750

6. ACCRUED COMPENSATION

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company made certain leadership changes to better align with the Company’s operating goals, including advertising and
marketing plans, as well as cash preservation initiatives. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, , accrued compensation primarily related to unpaid bonus amounts to the Chief
Executive Officer totaled $420,413 and $416,414, respectively.

On June 8, 2022, the Chief Executive Officer’s employment with the Company ended. totaling $420,413. This individual continued to serve as a member bonus was paid in
2023. The balance of the Company’s Board of Directors accrued compensation is $0 as of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023.

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at:

December 31, December 31, b
31, 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022

Sponsorship agreements $ 234,494 $ 80,000 $ 608,818 $ 234,494
Accrued credit card charges 21,013 39,563 7,275 21,013
Series A Stock dividends 41,867 -
Legal and professional 125,704 89,200
Other accrued expenses 167,424 93,303 27,059 78,224
Total $ 422931 $ 212,866 $ 810,723 $ 422,931

The sponsorship agreements relate to marketing contracts with unrelated parties within the sports and entertainment industry. The terms of the agreements range
from two to four years with annual payments ranging from $103,000 to $216,000 per agreement. The total expense relating to these agreements for the years ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, was $353,931 $374,325 and $584,325, $353,931, respectively. During the third quarter of 2022, in accordance with
the Company’s cash preservation initiatives, the Company terminated one of its marketing contracts, resulting in the reversal of $141,000 of expenses, in an effort to control
its marketing expenses.

Accrued credit card charges primarily consist of warehouse, shipping and other operating costs paid via Company credit card as a tool for managing cashflow.
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8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Rights offering

During the first quarter of 2023, the Company distributed, at no charge to holders of the Company’s common stock, non-transferable subscription rights to purchase up to an
aggregate of 6,366,129 Units. Each Unit consisted of one share of our common stock and a Warrant to purchase one share of our common stock. The Warrants were
exercisable immediately, expire five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $1.25 per share. For each share of common stock held by a stockholder of
the Company on February 22, 2023, the record date of the Rights Offering, such stockholder received 0.5 subscription rights. Each whole subscription right allowed the
holder thereof to subscribe to purchase one Unit, which the Company refers to as the basic subscription right, at a subscription price of $1.00 per Unit. In addition, any
holder of subscription rights exercising his, her or its basic subscription right in full was eligible to subscribe to purchase additional Units that remained unsubscribed in the
Rights Offering at the same subscription price per Unit that applied to the basic subscription right, subject to proration among participants exercising their over-subscription
privilege, which the Company refers to as the over-subscription privilege. Upon the closing of the Rights Offering, which occurred on March 14, 2023, the Company
issued 3,143,969 shares of common stock and 3,143,969 warrants and received aggregate gross cash proceeds of approximately $3.14 million. After deducting dealer-
manager fees and other fees and expenses related to the Rights Offering, the Company received net proceeds of approximately $2.6 million. If exercised, additional gross
proceeds of up to approximately $3.93 million may be received through the exercise of warrants issued in the Rights Offering.

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

On July 27, 2023, the Company filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada a Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Series A Stock™), which was amended on August 1, 2023 prior to the issuance of any shares of Series A Stock
by filing Amendment No. 1 thereto (as so amended, the “Certificate”). The Certificate designates 10,000 shares of the Company’s undesignated preferred stock as Series A
Stock and establishes the rights and preferences of Series A Stock.

On August 2, 2023, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors (the “Purchasers”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue and sell in a private placement (the “Offering”) shares of Series A Stock.

Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, the Purchasers collectively agreed to purchase up to 10,000 shares of Series A Stock at a per share purchase price equal to
$100.00 (the “Stated Value™), for total gross proceeds of up to $1.0 million. The Purchasers agreed to purchase 4,000 shares of Series A Stock for an aggregate purchase
price of $400,000 at an initial closing of the Offering (the “Initial Closing”), which occurred on August 2, 2023. The Securities Purchase Agreement provided that the
Company will issue and sell to the Purchasers, and the Purchasers will purchase, an additional 4,000 shares of Series A Stock at a second closing (the “Second Closing”),
which occurred on September 7, 2023. The Securities Purchase Agreement provided that the Company will issue and sell to the Purchasers, and the Purchasers will
purchase, an additional 2,000 shares of Series A Stock at an optional closing (the “Optional Closing”), which occurred on December 1, 2023.

Each share of Series A Stock is convertible, at any time and from time to time from and after the date of the Initial Closing at the option of the holder thereof, into the
number of shares of common stock (“Conversion Shares”) calculated by dividing the Stated Value by a conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) of $0.10. However, if the
Company’s common stock fails to continue to be listed or quoted for trading on a stock exchange, then the Conversion Price thereafter will mean the lesser of (i) $0.10, or
(ii) the closing sale price of the common stock on the trading day immediately preceding the conversion date; provided that the Conversion Price shall not be less than
$0.05 (the “Floor Price”). The Conversion Price is subject to standard adjustments based stock splits, stock dividends, stock combinations and the like, and the Floor Price is
also subject to anti-dilution adjustments resulting from future offerings of common stock (or common stock equivalents) at a price less than the prevailing Conversion Price.
The Series A Stock contains “blocker” provisions restricting the holders’ ability to exercise conversion rights if the issuance of Conversion Shares would result in such
holder beneficially owning in excess of 4.99% of the Company’s common stock. In addition, a Series A Stock holder’s ability to convert Series A Stock to common stock
will be subject to an “Exchange Share Cap” and an “Individual Holder Share Cap.” Under the Exchange Cap, the total number of shares of common stock issuable upon
conversion of outstanding Preferred Shares, when added to any previously issued Dividend Shares (as defined below), may not exceed 19.9% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common stock immediately prior to the date on which shares of Series A Stock are first issued. Under the Individual Holder Share Cap, no holder of Series A
Stock will have the right to acquire common stock upon conversion of the Series A Stock if the issuance of shares of common stock would result in converting holder
beneficially owning in excess of 19.9% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance. The Exchange Share Cap and
the Individual Holder Share Cap will not apply if the Company obtains stockholder approval to issue the shares of common stock exceeding the applicable cap as required
by the NYSE American LLC Company Guide.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021 Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (continued)
8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
During March 2021, Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, amended its operating agreement whether voluntary or involuntary (a
“Liquidation”), the Holders shall (i) first be entitled to create three classesreceive out of units, designated as Class F, Class W the assets, whether capital or
surplus, of the Company an amount equal to 150% times the Stated Value for each share of Series A Stock before any distribution or payment shall be made to
the holders of any junior securities and Class P. (ii) then be entitled to participate in the distribution of remaining assets with the holders of common stock on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis (disregarding for such purposes any conversion limitations).
The Company authorized 1,263,501 may redeem (i) up to 75% of Class F Units, 200,388 Class W Units the issued and 50,000 Class P Units. outstanding shares of
Series A Stock for a price per share equal to 150% of the Stated Value thereof if such redemption occurs within six months from the date of issuance, and (ii) up
to 50% of the issued and outstanding shares of Series A Stock for a price per share equal to 200% of the Stated Value thereof if such redemption occurs after six
months but before the expiration of twelve months from the date of issuance.
Each Class F Member had the right holder of first refusal to purchase their pro rata a share of all additional units that the Company may issue from time to time.
Each Class F member was Series A Stock is entitled to distributions, receive dividends payable, subject to authorization of certain members, with the first 50%
being allocated to pay off a member loan, if applicable, and the remaining 50% conditions, in proportion to their percentage interests. Thereafter, distributions
would be allocated to Class F, Class W, and vested Class P members in proportion to their respective pro rata ownership interests. In conjunction with the
amendment, the Company converted its original member units to Class F and Class W units. As of March 1, 2021, 95 original member units were converted to
950,000 Class F units and 10 original member units were converted to 100,000 Class W units.
Class W and Class P units were non-voting units. Further, Class P units were not entitled to distributions until certain hurdle provisions as set by Board of
Managers at the time of the award would be met and the units were fully vested. Any issued units vest 25% after one year with the remaining 75% vesting
monthly over an additional three-year period.
Corporate Conversion
On December 8, 2021, in connection with its IPO, Fresh Grapes, LLC filed a certificate of conversion, whereby Fresh Grapes, LLC effected a corporate
conversion from a Texas limited liability company to a Nevada corporation and changed its name to Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Pursuant to the conversion, units of
membership interest in the limited liability company were converted into cash or shares of common stock (“Dividend Shares”) valued as either (i) the then
applicable Conversion Price, or (ii) 50% of the corporation then current market price of the Company’s common stock, at a conversion ratio the dividend rate
of 6.1934 units for one share 12% per annum. Dividends are cumulative and will be payable on July 31st of common stock. The each year. However, the Company
had 1,614,615 member units issued may not pay dividends by issuing Dividend Shares if and outstanding as of December 8, 2021. After giving effect to the
corporate conversion, extent that the issuance of such Dividend Shares, when added to all outstanding Class F member units were converted to
8,758,915 Conversion Shares previously issued upon prior conversions of Series A Stock and previously issued Dividend Shares (if any), would exceed the
Exchange Share Cap or result in a Series A Stock holder beneficially owning shares of common stock and all outstanding Class W member units were converted
to 1,241,098 in excess of the Individual Holder Share Cap, in each case unless the Company obtains stockholder approval for such issuances.

The shares of Series A Stock will vote with the common stock. The number stock as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of common shares outstanding
as of such date is 10,000,013. As a resultstockholders of the corporate conversion, accumulated deficit was reduced Company other than any proposal to zero
on approve the date issuance of the corporate conversion, and the corresponding amount was recorded to additional paid-in capital. The corporate conversion was
approved by members holding a majority of the outstanding units, and in connection with such conversion, the Company filed a certificate of incorporation and
adopted bylaws. Pursuant to the Company’s certificate of incorporation, the Company is authorized to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of common stock $0.001 par
value per sharein excess of the Exchange Share Cap or the Individual Holder Share Cap. The Preferred Shares will vote on an as-converted to common stock
basis, taking into account the conversion limitations resulting from the Exchange Share Cap and 25,000,000 shares the Individual Holder Share Cap, if and as
applicable; however, solely for purposes of preferred stock $0.001 par value per share. All references indetermining voting rights, the audited financial
statements Conversion Price shall be equal to the number most recent closing sale price of sharesthe Common Stock as of the execution and per-share
amounts delivery of common stock have been retroactively restated to reflect this conversion. the Securities Purchase Agreement, which was $0.47.
Initial Public Offering
The issuance activity of the Series A Stock is summarized below:
For the
year ended
December 31,
2023
Series A Stock shares issued 10,000
Net proceeds $ 950,000
On December 17, 2021,
The Series A Stock meets the requirements for permanent equity classification as prescribed by the authoritative guidance.
The following table summarizes accrued dividends that the Company completed its IPO whereby it sold 2,200,000 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $10
per share. The aggregate net proceeds received by the Company from the offering were approximately $19.2 million, net of underwriting discounts and commissions of
approximately $1.8 million and offering expenses of approximately $1.1 million. Upon the closing of the IPO, 12,200,013 shares of common stock were outstanding. The
shares began trading on December 14, 2021 on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “VINE”. is legally obligated to pay:
For the
year ended
December 31,
2023
Series A Stock $ 41,867
Third Party Vendor Engagements and Related Founder Share Forfeitures
In December 2022, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak, two of the Company’s founders, together agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration a
total of 970,000 shares of common stock of the Company held by them, to enable the Company to preserve cash by issuing such number of shares to certain of the
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Company’s service providing vendors without subjecting the Company’s other stockholders to dilution therefrom. Also in December 2022, the Company entered into
agreements to issue 970,000 shares to such vendors in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”). Recipients of the shares included our third-party sales and distribution management service Provider, provider, as well as certain advertising, public relations,
consulting, and legal service providers. Pursuant to agreements with certain of these vendors, we have the Company has agreed to issue up to an additional 1,030,000 shares
of common stock upon ourthe Company achieving specified revenue-related performance objectives within identified timeframes. The Company recorded equity-based
compensation totaling $1,233,300 during 2022 related to the share awards. Equity-based compensation expense related to the additional shares subject to revenue-related
performance objectives was not material to the 2023 or 2022 financial statements.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective December 9, 2021, the Company adopted an equity incentive plan which allows for the granting of incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted and
unrestricted stock and stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance units and other stock-based awards to current and prospective employees and directors of, and
consultants and advisors to, the Company.

In March 2021, the Company authorized 140,300 Class F member units in exchange for consulting services related to securing celebrity members and ambassadors of the
Company and executed license agreements with the celebrity members, both of which occurred in March 2021. The fair value of the award totaled $4,902,802 and was
expensed in full during the year ended December 31, 2021.

In March 2021, the Company issued 313,000 Class F partner investor units in exchange for various advertising and marketing services over a 5-year period with an
estimated value of $1,565,000 to be amortized over 5 years. In addition to the 313,000 Class F partner investor units issued in March 2021, the agreement included a put
option if a threshold of $5,000,000 in earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (EBITDA) in either fiscal year 2022 or 2023 were not met in which the
member would have the option to withdraw from the Company which would trigger the mandatory sale of the member’s entire membership interest back to the Company.
As these units were contingently redeemable, they were presented as “Mezzanine Equity” on the Company’s balance sheet until December 8, 2021 when the Company
converted from a limited liability company to a C-Corporation. Upon conversion and amendment of the Company’s operating agreement, the units previously recorded
under “Mezzanine Equity” were converted to shares of common stock which no longer have the put option.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021
9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
As of December 31, 2022, December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was $0 and $991,167, respectively, of unrecognized equity-based compensation expense recorded in prepaid
expenses and other assets. The estimated This expense was for various marketing and advertising services in exchange for Class F member units, now common stock
described inand was being expensed over the preceding paragraph forlifetime of license agreements with celebrity endorsers. The license agreements were terminated
during Q3 2023 and the periods subsequent to December 31, 2022 is full balance of $991,167 was recognized as follows:expense during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Advertising
and Marketing
Expense
2023 313,000
2024 313,000
2025 313,000

2026 52,167
$ 991,167

Restricted Stock Units

On December 17, 2021, the Company granted 125,926 and 251,851 restricted stock units to its Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer, respectively. Restricted
stock units represent the right to receive one share of common stock from the Company upon vesting. These restricted stock units had a vesting period of 180 days after the
date of the final IPO prospectus. On February 24, 2022, the Company entered into a separation agreement with the former Chief Operating Officer (COO). Among other
things, the Company agreed to provide the former COO with cash and expense reimbursements totaling $175,000 and an amendment of the COO’s Restricted Stock
Agreement to accelerate the vesting of the 251,851 restricted stock units. Due to the modification of the terms of this award, the fair value was remeasured as of the
modification date. Total equity-based compensation expense related to both of these this restricted stock unit awards was $1,658,485 and $171,216 for the years year ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. . During the second quarter of 2022, these awards were fully vested and the shares of common stock underlying the awards had
been delivered.

During the second quarter of 2022, the Company granted 47,800 restricted stock units to employees of the Company, all of which vested and were delivered in the second
quarter of 2022. Total equity-based compensation expense related to these restricted stock units and shares was $219,648 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

On March 2, 2022, the Company granted 70,000 restricted stock units to members of the Company’s Board of Directors that fully vested on June 18, 2022. Total equity-
based compensation expense related to these restricted stock units was $285,600 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

On April 24, 2023, the Company granted 319,023 restricted stock units to its Chief Executive Officer. On May 11, 2023, the Company granted 170,958 restricted stock units
to its Executive Vice President Sales and Marketing. On May 25, 2023, the Company granted 124,902 restricted stock units to its Chief Financial Officer. These restricted
stock units had a vesting period that coincided with the Company filing its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 and had a stipulation that each of the
executives attained performance objectives. These employees terminated during the third quarter of 2023 and therefore the stock units were forfeited.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Notes to Financial Statements

9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Restricted stock unit activity as of and for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 was as follows

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Remainging Nul:fber Remainging
RSUs Contractual Contractual
Term RSUs Term
(Years) (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 377,777 0.45
Granted 377,777 0.45 117,800 0.33
Forfeited - - (495,577) -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 377,777 0.45
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 - -
Granted 117,800 0.33 614,883 0.86
Vested or released (495,577) -
Forfeited - - (614,883) -

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 - -

Outstanding at December 31, 2023 - -

Shares of Restricted Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company granted 10,000 shares of restricted stock to an employee upon commencement of employment in May
2022, of which 3,334 shares vested immediately with the remaining 6,666 shares scheduled to vest in two equal installments in May 2023 and May 2024. Restricted
stock consists of shares of common stock that are subject to transfer and forfeiture restrictions that lapse upon vesting. Total equity-based compensation expense
related to the grant of these shares of restricted stock was $9,264 for the year ended December 31, 2022. Effective January 2023, this employee resigned from the
Company and 6,666 unvested shares of restricted stock was were forfeited.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company hired a new Chief Financial Officer. Pursuant to the employment agreement, the Company granted
100,000 shares of restricted stock. The restricted stock vests in three equal installments with the first third vesting immediately on the grant date of March 30,
2022, and the remaining tranches were scheduled to vest on the one year and two year anniversaries of the grant date subject to continued employment with the
Company through the applicable vesting date. Effective June 24, 2022, this employee resigned from the Company and 66,666 unvested shares of restricted stock
were forfeited. Total equity-based compensation expense related to these shares of restricted stock was $110,602 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

In January 2023, there was a new grant of 500,000 shares of restricted stock which related to a consulting arrangement entered into in connection with the
settlement reached with a previous employee, as further disclosed in Note 12. Total equity-based compensation expense related to these shares of restricted stock
was $565,500 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

On April 24, 2023, the Company granted 463,917 shares of restricted stock to its Chief Executive Officer. On May 11, 2023, the Company granted 380,952 shares
of restricted stock to its Executive Vice President Sales and Marketing. On May 25, 2023, the Company granted shares of 196,463 restricted stock to its Chief
Financial Officer. All shares of restricted stock granted on April 24, 2023, May 11, 2023 and May 25, 2023 were forfeited and canceled during the third quarter of
2023.

In April 2023, the Company Board of Directors were granted a total of 100,000 shares of restricted stock. Total equity-based compensation expense related to
these shares of restricted stock was $39,510 for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Restricted stock activity for the year years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of Remaining
Shares of Contractual
Restricted Term
Stock (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 - -
Granted 110,000 9.27
Vested or released (36,668) -
Forfeited (66,667 ) -
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 6,666 0.90
Granted 1,641,332 0.57
Vested or released (570,000) -
Forfeited (1,057,998) -
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Outstanding at December 31, 2023 20,000 0.00
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Stock Options9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Vendor Stock Awards

Vendor stock award activity subject to revenue-related performance objectives during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was as follows:

Outstanding at December 31, 2021
Granted

Vested or released

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2022
Granted

Vested or released

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2023

Stock Options

Weighted
Average
Number of Remaining
Shares of Vesting
Vendor Stock Term
Awards (Years)
1,030,000 2.25
1,030,000 2.25
1,030,000 1.25

On March 11, 2022, the Company granted the option to purchase 427,001 shares of common stock at $3.47 per share to its Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to the Chief
Executive Officer’s employment agreement with the Company. The shares vest in three equal installments on the nine month, one year, and two year anniversaries of the
grant date and are exercisable for 10 years from the grant date. On June 8, 2022, the Chief Executive Officer’s employment with the Company ended resulting in the

forfeiture of the entire award, which remained unvested at the time.

On March 30, 2022, in addition to the restricted stock granted to the Company’s new Chief Financial Officer, the Company granted the Chief Financial Officer an option to
purchase 200,000 shares of common stock at $3.30 per share, pursuant to the employment agreement. The shares vest in three equal installments. The first third vested
immediately on the grant date of March 30, 2022, and the remaining tranches were scheduled to vest on the one year and two year anniversaries of the grant date subject to
continued employment with the Company through the applicable vesting date. The options are exercisable for 10 years from the grant date or, if earlier, ninety (90) days
following termination of employment. Effective June 24, 2022, this employee resigned from the Company and the unvested options were subsequently forfeited.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
Notes to Financial Statements

9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Effective September 1, 2022, the Company entered into an Employment Transition and Consulting Agreement with the previous interim Chief Financial Officer.
Pursuant to the Transition Agreement and Consulting Agreement, the Company granted a stock option to purchase 69,892 shares of the Company’s common
stock at a per share exercise price equal to $3.04 (the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant). The stock option will vest vested
with respect to 3,584 shares on the last calendar day of September, October and November of 2022, and the balance of the stock option will vest vested in monthly
installments as nearly equal as possible (approximately 6,571 shares each) on the last calendar day of each month from December 2022 through August 2023. The
total expense recognized as of for the year years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $41,449.$125,783 and $41,449, respectively.

In November 2021, the Company executed founder option agreements with four Class F members. The terms of the agreements grant each founder the right and
option to purchase common stock up to 25% of the total shares in the Founders’ Option Pool upon the consummation of the Company’s IPO. The Founder’s
Option Pool is a pool of shares reserved for founding members of the Company and will be comprised of 15% of the total shares of common stock outstanding
immediately prior to the initial closing of the IPO. The options will vest in 20% instalments. installments. Each instalment installment will vest upon the closing
price of common stock reaching certain milestones ranging from 200% to 600% of the IPO price. If the vesting condition is not achieved within three years of the
grant date, the options will forfeit. As of December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, the options have not reached any of the vesting milestones required
and as such, the probability of reaching each milestone has been factored into the value to be recognized over the three-year vesting period. As of December 31,
2023, three of the four members had terminated their agreements and only 375,000 options remained.

Equity-based compensation expense totaling $223,224 $112,040 and $22,109 $223,224 has been recognized relating to these stock options during 20222023 and
2021, 2022, respectively. The total unrecognized equity-based compensation expense was $6,259 and $176,835 as of December 31, 2022.December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

In conjunction with the consummation of the IPO, the Company also granted to the underwriter a 45-day option to purchase up to 330,000 additional shares of
common stock at $9.20 per share. As of December 31, 2021, none of these stock options were exercised.

Stock option activity for the years ended December 31,2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 was as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Number of Average Remaining
Options Exercise Contractual Options Exercise Contractual
Price Term Price Term
(Years) (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 - $ = -
Granted 1,830,000 9.86 8.18
Exercised - - -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 1,830,000 $ 9.86 8.18 1,830,000 $ 9.86 8.18
Granted 701,893 3.37 10 701,893 3.37 10.00
Exercised - - - - - -
Forfeited (957,001) 5.41 - (957,001) - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 1,574,892 $ 9.67 8.94 1,574,892 $ 9.67 8.94
Granted 1,500,000 0.50 5.00
Exercised 5 - -
Forfeited (2,628,333) - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 446,559 $ 8.88 8.08
Exercisable at December 31, 2022 18,990 $ 3.02 9.65
Exercisable at December 31, 2023 71,559 $ 3.03 8.67
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Warrants

9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

Warrants
On December 17, 2021, in connection with the Company’s IPO, the Company granted to the underwriter warrants to purchase up to 110,000 shares of common
stock at $12 per share. These warrants vest one year from the date of issuance and are exercisable for four years after the vesting date.
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As disclosed in Note 8, 3,143,969 warrants were granted as part of the Rights Offering in March 2023.
FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)
As of and for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, the underwriter warrants to purchase common shares of the Company
outstanding were as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number of Aviage Remainging Nul:fber Avegrage Remainging
Warrants Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual
Price Term Warrants Price Term
(Years) (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 - $ - -
Granted 110,000 12.00 4.96
Vested or released - - -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 110,000 $ 12.00 4.96 110,000 $ 12.00 4.96
Granted - - - - - -
Vested or released - - - - - -
Forfeited - - - - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 110,000 $ 12.00 3.96 110,000 $  12.00 3.71
Exercisable at December 31, 2022 110,000 $ 12.00 3.96
Granted 3,143,969 1.25 5.00
Vested or released - - -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 3,253,969 $ 1.61 4.16

There was no net impact recognized by the Company in the accompanying statements as the warrants and stock options issued to the underwriter were equity-
based awards issued for services rendered by the underwriter for the IPO that was offset by the Company recognizing the fair value as direct incremental costs
associated with the IPO by reducing paid-in capital for the same amount.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of equity-based awards. The inputs for the Black-Scholes valuation model
require management’s significant assumptions. Prior to the Company’s IPO, the price per share of common stock was determined by the Company’s board based
on recent prices of common stock sold in private offerings. Subsequent to the IPO, the price per share of common stock is determined by using the closing market
price on the New York Stock Exchange on the grant date. The risk-free interest rate is 3.38%, is based on the rate for U.S. Treasury securities at the date of grant
with maturity dates approximately equal to the expected life at the grant date. The expected term for employee and nonemployee awards ranged from 5 to 10
years based on industry data, vesting period, contractual period, among other factors. The expected volatility was estimated at 75% based on historical volatility
information of peer companies that are publicly available in combination with the Company’s calculated volatility since being publicly traded. The Company does
not expect to pay dividends. For awards with a performance condition, stock compensation is recognized over the requisite service period if it is probably that the
performance condition will be satisfied.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 10. INCOME TAXES

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

10. INCOME TAXES

Components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021 2022 were as follows:

2022 2021 2023 2022
Current $ - $ - $ - 8% -
Deferred - - - -
Total $ - $ - $ - $ -

Following the conversion of Fresh Grapes, LLC to Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. on December 7, 2021, Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. began filing federal and state returns where
required. No income tax benefit was recorded for the yearyears ended December 31, 2022 or the period from December 8, 2021 through December 31,
2021, December 31, 2023 and 2022 due to net losses and recognition of a valuation allowance. The following table represents a reconciliation of the tax expense
computed at the statutory federal rate and the Company’s tax expense for the years ending December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021: 2022:

2023 2022
Tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate $ (2,229,000) 21.0% $ (3,193,000) 21.0%
State income tax expense (benefit), net of federal tax effect (377,000) 3.6% (162,000) 1.1%
Change in valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 2,360,000 -22.2% 3,355,000 -22.1%
Stock award forfeiture 440,000 -4.3% - -0.0%
Change in deferred tax rate (102,000) 1.0% - 0.0%
Return to provision adjustments (92,000) 0.9% - 0.0%
Income tax expense (benefit) $ o 00% $ o 0.0%

2022 2021
Tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate $ (3,193,000) 21.0% $ (2,093,003) 21.0%
State income tax expense (benefit), net of federal tax effect (162,000) 1.1% (14,000) 0.1%
Change in valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 3,355,000 -22.1% 519,000 -5.2%
Conversion from LLC to C Corporation - -0.0% 1,588,000 -15.9%
Income tax expense (benefit) $ = 00% $ = 0.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for income tax purposes. The Company’s deferred tax assets relate primarily to its net operating loss carry forwards and other balance sheet basis differences. In
accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” the Company recorded a valuation allowance to fully offset the net deferred tax asset, because it is more likely than not that the
Company will not realize future benefits associated with these deferred tax assets at December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021.2022. The tax effects of temporary
differences and carry forwards that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets are as follows:

December December December December
31, 31, 31, 31,
2022 2021 2023 2022

Deferred tax assets:

Accrual to cash $ - $ 234,000

Deferred revenue 3,000 3,000 $ 1,000 $ 3,000

Amortization 1,000 - 1,000 1,000

Stock based compensation 868,000 45,000 120,000 868,000

Net operating losses 3,002,000 237,000 5,686,000 3,002,000

Inventory reserve 27,000 -

Accrued expenses 407,000 -

Prepaid expenses (8,000) -

Valuation allowance (3,874,000) (519,000) (6,234,000) (3,874,000)
Net deferred tax assets: $ - $ - 8 - 8 -

At December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $13.3 million $23.9 million and $2.2
million $9.1 million, respectively. At December 31, 2021 December 31, 2022, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $1.0
million $13.3 million and $0.3 million $2.2 million, respectively. The net operating loss carry forwards have no expiration.

The Company recognizes uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740 on the basis of evaluating whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be
sustained upon examination by tax authorities. For those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than not recognition threshold, the Company recognized the largest amount
of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has no unrecognized tax
benefits. There are no unrecognized tax benefits included on the balance sheet that would, if recognized, impact the effective tax rate. The Company does not anticipate
there will be a significant change in unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal or state income tax examinations. The Company’s federal, state and local income tax returns are subject to examination by taxing
authorities for the three years after the returns are filed, and the Company’s federal, state, and local income tax returns for 2022 and 2021 remain open to examination. Prior
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to the Company’s December 2021 conversion to a corporation, the Company was a limited liability company and therefore was a disregarded legal entity for income tax
purposes. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of general and administrative expense.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 11. SUPPLIER AND CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 and 2021

11. SUPPLIER AND CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION

The Company has an agreement with an unrelated party for various wine making activities, including production, bottling, labelling, and packaging. The Company

purchases finished goods through blanket sales orders that require a 20% deposit. In addition to the purchases of finished goods, the Company pays certain storage,

administrative fees and taxes related to the purchased goods. There is no specified term of the agreement but continues as additional blanket sales orders are issued. For the

years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, more than 2022, 100% and 96% and 90%, respectively, of the Company’s inventory purchases were from this

supplier.

The Company also engages with other suppliers for the purchase of a select varietal of wine to be offered in limited quantities. There are no formal agreements due to the

infrequency of activity with these suppliers.

A significant portion of the Company’s wholesale revenue comes from two three national distributor customers that operate in several markets. For the years ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021,2022, 74% and 58% and 45% of the Company’s wholesale revenue came from these customers, respectively. At

December 31, 2022, December 31, 2023 and 2022, these customers accounted for 73% and 90%, respectively, of accounts receivable. .At December 31, 2021, one customer

accounted for 61% of accounts receivable.

12. 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

License agreements

During March 2021, the Company entered into two license agreements with the Class F partner certain equity investors for marketing and advertising services. The

agreements require ongoing payments of $300,000 per agreement each year for an initial term of five years. Additionally, the agreements require the Company to reimburse

out of pocket expenses related to promotion of the Company’s products. In November 2021, the These two agreements were amended to include, among other provisions,

partners investor options to terminate terminated during the agreements if a $5 million EBITDA threshold is not met in either 2022 or 2023. third quarter of 2023 and the

remaining prepaid license fee was expensed. The totalnet expense relating to the agreements was $380,000 $1,000,500 and $500,000 $380,000 for the years ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, respectively.

Sponsorship Agreements

The estimated expense for the sponsorship agreements as described in Note 7 for the periods subsequent to December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Sponsorship
Agreements

2024 $ 162,553

Advertising
and
Marketing
Expense

2023 480,000

2024 480,000

2025 480,000

2026 80,000

$ 1,520,000
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 13. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Sponsorship Agreements

During 2021, the Company entered into multiple sponsorship agreements with unrelated parties within the sports and entertainment industry. The terms of the agreements

range from two to four years with annual payments ranging from $103,000 to $216,000 per agreement. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, many of these agreements were

postponed or renegotiated to reduce payments until in-person fan attendance at the stadiums returns to normal. The total expense relating to these agreements for the years

ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $353,931 and $584,325, respectively.

The estimated expense for the sponsorship agreements as described above for the periods subsequent to December 31, 2022 is as follows:
Advertising

and
Marketing
Expense

2023 423,926
2024 160,147

$ 584,073

Accounts Receivable Financing

In September 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated party to pledge eligible accounts receivable for a cash advance at a percentage of the
outstanding amount, with the remaining balance due upon collection from the customer. The agreement has an initial term of one year which will automatically renew for
successive one-year terms unless the Company provides a notice of termination at least 60 days prior to the termination date. The receivables are pledged with full recourse,
which means the Company bears the risk of non-payment and, therefore, does not meet the definition of a factoring arrangement under ASC 310-10-05-6. The amounts
advanced to the Company are classified as a secured loan on the Company’s balance sheets and any fees computed on the outstanding amounts are treated as interest
expense on the Company’s statement of operations. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had pledged $0 and $171,069, respectively, as receivables with
recourse. Total interest expense recorded for the periods ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, in association with the secured loan was $15,898 and $22,256, respectively.
13. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company had an arrangement with Rabbit Hole Equity, LLC (RHE), a related party due to common ownership, under which RHE provided development,
administrative and financial services to the Company. RHE is solely owned by the majority member of Nechio and Novak, LLC, which is the majority shareholder of the
Company. Under the agreement, the Company will pay or reimburse RHE, as applicable, for any expenses it, or third parties acting on its behalf, incurs for the Company.
For any selling, general and administrative activities performed by RHE or RHE employees, RHE, as applicable, charged back the employee salaries and wages, rent and
related utilities. Beginning in December 2021, the Company entered into a payroll arrangement with a third party and now incurs employee salary and wage expenses
directly.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021
13. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
The shared expenses are as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023 and 2021:2022:

2023 2022
Rent $ - $ 94,436
Utilities - 5,470
$ -3 99,906

2022 2021
Salaries and wages $ - $ 1,598,655
Rent 94,436 81,050
Utilities 5,470 3,950
$ 99,906 $ 1,683,655

In addition to the expenses paid by RHE to be reimbursed by the Company, several other related parties have incurred expenses or advanced cash to be reimbursed by the
Company. Damian Novak, former Executive Chairman of the Company and majority shareholder of Nechio and Novak, LLC, which is a majority shareholder of the
Company. Damian Novak is also the majority member of Kratos Advisory, LLC, Appellation Brands, LLC, TC Healthcare, LLC and is the sole member of Rabbit Hole
Equity DTP, LLC. The Company will pay or reimburse, as applicable, for any expenses the related parties incur while acting on behalf of the Company.

Additionally, the Company records receivables related to any expenses incurred on behalf of or cash advances to related entities.

Amounts due to related parties were as follows as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Rabbit Hole Equity, LLC $ - $ 111,545
Appellation Brands, LLC - 88,727
$ -3 200,272
Amounts due from related parties were as follows as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:
2022 2021
Damian Novak - 325,346
TC Healthcare, LLC - 5,177
Kratos Advisory, LLC - 45,477
$ - 8 376,000

In September 2021, the Company issued a promissory note to a Class F member in exchange for $216,000. The term of the note was the later of 2 months from the date of
the note or upon successful consummation of the IPO. The annual interest rate on the note was the maximum legal amount allowed under the applicable usury laws minus
1%, which was 7% at December 31, 2021. The Company repaid all of the principal balance plus accrued interest of $9,125 in December 2021.

In October 2021, the Company issued an additional a promissory note to a Class F member in exchange for $216,000. The term of the note was the later of 2 months from
the date of the note or upon successful consummation of the IPO. The annual interest rate on the note was the maximum legal amount allowed under the applicable usury
laws minus 1%, which was 7% at December 31, 2021. The Company may repay all or any portion of the principal balance at any time without penalty. The total amount of
interest accrued on this note as of December 31, 2021 was $9,125. In January 2022, the Company repaid the $216,000 promissory note in full plus accrued interest of
$9,125.

In October 2021, the Company entered into a service agreement with Appellation Brands, LLC, a related party due to common ownership in the wine industry, to provide
representation and distribution services. As of June 13, 2022, the original agreement was terminated. Prior to termination, the Company received a management fee of
$50,000 per month plus a tiered fee ranging between $5.00 and $6.50 per case of the products sold. For the years year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,, the Company
had recognized $297,224 and $153,075, respectively, in service revenue related to this agreement. In the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company purchased inventory
from Appellation Brands, LLC in the amount of $195,116.

In January 2022, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with FELCS, LLC, an entity owned by Damian Novak to provide consulting and advisory services to the
Company in exchange for $25,000 per month. The agreement expires in December 2022, subject to automatic one-year renewals unless written notice to terminate the
contract is given by either party. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recognized $275,000 in total expense related to this agreement. This agreement was
terminated in November 2022.

In April 2022, the Company amended its agreement with Whetstone Consulting to include additional bonus commissions ranging from $5,000 to $100,000 subject to
specific distribution milestones in addition to the existing $5,000 per month base compensation. The agreement has an initial term of one year and automatically renews for
successive one-year periods unless terminated by either party with advance notice. This agreement terminated in May 2023 when the consultant was hired as an employee
of the company. For the years ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023, and 2021, 2022, the Company recognized base compensation and commissions expense related
to this agreement totaling $40,000 and $90,000, and $60,000, respectively.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC. 14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Notes Timothy Michaels

On February 24, 2022, Timothy Michaels, the former Chief Operating Officer of the Company, signed a Separation Agreement and Release (the “Separation

Agreement”) in connection with the termination of his employment with the Company, which occurred on February 7, 2022.

On May 27, 2022, Mr. Michaels filed a complaint against the Company in the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County, Minnesota, alleging that the

Company breached the February 24, 2022 Separation Agreement by including a restricted “lock-up” legend on shares of the Company’s common stock issued to

Financial Statements

December 31, 2022 Mr. Michaels pursuant to the Settlement Agreement. The complaint also included counts alleging breach of the implied covenant of good faith
and 2021fair dealing, issuer liability under Minn. Stat. § 336.8-401 for delay in removing or directing the Company’s transfer agent to remove the lock-up legend from the

shares, conversion and civil theft.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has denied the allegations and intends to vigorously defend against the lawsuit. The Company made a motion seeking dismissal of the conversion and civil
theft counts, which was granted by the Fourth Judicial District Court, Hennepin County, Minnesota on October 31, 2022. On August 9, 2023, the Company moved for
summary judgment on Mr. Michaels’ remaining claims. A jury trial commenced on January 23, 2024. During trial, on January 24, 2024, the Company filed a motion for
judgement in favor of the Company as a matter of law, which was denied by the Court. On January 25, 2024, the jury in the lawsuit rendered a verdict against the Company
awarding damages to Mr. Michaels in the amount of $585,976.25, which is included in settlement payable in the accompanying balance sheet. On February 22, 2024, the
Company filed a renewed motion for post-verdict judgment in favor of the Company as a matter of law. On February 26, 2024, the Judge in the lawsuit denied the renewed
motion for post-verdict judgment.

Website-related Plaintiff’s Lawsuit

On January 26, 2024, the Company was served with a complaint filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York alleging that the Company
has failed to design, construct, maintain and operate its Internet website to be fully accessible to and independently usable by blind or visually-impaired persons, thereby
denying blind and visually-impaired persons with equal access to the Company’s goods and services in violation of the Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990 and the New York Human Rights Law, the New York Civil Rights Law. On February 16, 2024, the Company filed an Answer to the complaint denying the plaintiff’s
allegations and asserting affirmative defenses thereto.

Janelle Anderson Litigation Settlement and Related Founder Share Forfeitures

The Company has been was a party to an action pending in Hennepin County District Court, captioned Janelle Anderson v. Fresh Vine Wine, Inc., Damian Novak, and Rick
Nechio, Court File No. 27-CV-22-11491 (the “Lawsuit”), in which Ms. Anderson alleged, among other things, that the Company terminated her employment in retaliation
for reports of alleged wrongdoing pursuant to the Minnesota Whistleblower Act. Defendants also included Damian Novak, former Executive Chairman and a former
director of the Company, and Rick Nechio, former interim Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company. The suit was dismissed on March 6, 2023, with prejudice.
On January 27, 2023, the Company entered into a Global Mutual Compromise, Release and Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) among Ms. Anderson and
each of Messrs. Novak and Nechio. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Ms. Anderson agreed to dismiss the Lawsuit with prejudice and to file with the court any and all
documents necessary to effect such dismissal with prejudice within five business days after all settlement consideration has been actually received by her, and the parties
agreed to general mutual releases. The Company also agreed to indemnify Ms. Anderson and hold her harmless against any liability, civil damages, penalties, or fines
claimed against her for any of her actions done within the course and scope of her employment with the Company as required by Minn. Stat. §181.970, and under any
applicable insurance policies, including but not limited to any directors and officers policies. The Settlement Agreement also contains a non-disparagement provision.
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14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (continued)

Janelle Anderson Litigation Settlement and Related Founder Share Forfeitures (continued)

As consideration for Ms. Anderson’s dismissal and release, and provided that she does not revoke or rescind the Settlement Agreement within prescribed time periods, the
Company agreed to make a cash payment to Ms. Anderson in the amount of $1,250,000, less certain attorney fees and relevant taxes and other withholdings, in a lump sum.
The Company expects to recoup recouped approximately $805,000 of this of cash payment from insurance coverage. The cash payment is in addition to the $400,000 that
the Company previously paid to Ms. Anderson in January 2023 in respect of 2022 bonus compensation earned by Ms. Anderson under her employment agreement while
employed by the Company. Also as contemplated by the Settlement Agreement, the Company and Ms. Anderson have agreed to enter into a consulting agreement (the
“Anderson Consulting Agreement”) pursuant to which Ms. Anderson will would provide certain consulting services to the Company for a period of six months. As
consideration for such services, the Company has agreed to grant and issue to Ms. Anderson 500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Anderson Consulting
Shares”) from the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Anderson Consulting Share Grant”). The cash payment and the Anderson Consulting Share Grant were
scheduled to be made at the “closing” of the Settlement Agreement (the “Settlement Closing”), subject to Ms. Anderson not revoking or rescinding the Settlement
Agreement during the applicable revocation period. The Settlement Closing was completed on February 20, 2023, with prejudice. No additional expense has been recorded
during 2023 regarding this matter.

Also pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Damian Novak, former Executive Chairman and a member of our board of directors, director, resigned as Executive Chairman
and removed himself from his management duties with the Company effective February 20, 2023, and has agreed to resignresigned from our board of directors promptly
following completion of the subscription rights offering. offering on March 14, 2023. In addition, Rick Nechio, the Company’s former interim Chief Executive Officer and a
member of our board of directors, director, resigned from our board of directors effective February 20, 2023. The Settlement Agreement further provided that the Company
would announce by the date of the Settlement Closing that it is searching for a permanent Chief Executive Officer to replace Mr. Nechio, who has been serving as Chief
Executive Officer in an interim capacity since June 2022. Following the Company’s appointment of a new Chief Executive Officer, the Company may elect to employ
Mr. Nechio in an advisory capacity to aid in the transition of his management duties.

In conjunction with entering into the Settlement Agreement, Rick Nechio and Damian Novak entered into Agreements to Forfeit Shares of Common Stock (the “Forfeiture
Agreements”) pursuant to which each agreed to forfeit and transfer back to the Company without consideration 250,000 shares of common stock of the Company held by
them (a total of 500,000 shares), to enable the Company to issue the Anderson Consulting Shares to Ms. Anderson without subjecting the Company’s other stockholders to
dilution therefrom (the “Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures”). The Anderson Consulting-related Forfeitures became effective in connection with the Settlement
Closing.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Agreement and Plan of Merger with Notes Live, Inc.

On January 25, 2024, the Company, FVW Merger Sub, Inc., a Colorado corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Merger Sub”), and Notes, Live, Inc.,
a Colorado corporation (“Notes Live”), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other things, and subject to the
satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into Notes Live, with Notes Live continuing as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the surviving corporation of the merger (the “Merger”).
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS(continued)
Agreement and Plan of Merger with Notes Live, Inc. (continued)

Rights offering

During the first quarter of 2023, the Company distributed, at no charge to holders of the Company’s common stock, non-transferable subscription rights to purchase up to an
aggregate of 6,366,129 Units. Each Unit consisted of one share of our common stock and a Warrant to purchase one share of our common stock. The Warrants were
exercisable immediately, expire five years from the date of issuance and have an exercise price of $1.25 per share. For each share of common stock held by a stockholder of
the Company on February 22, 2023, the record date of the Rights Offering, such stockholder received 0.5 subscription rights. Each whole subscription right allowed the
holder thereof to subscribe to purchase one Unit, which we refer to as the basic subscription right, at a subscription price of $1.00 per Unit. In addition, any holder of
subscription rights exercising his, her or its basic subscription right in full was eligible to subscribe to purchase additional Units that remained unsubscribed in the Rights
Offering at the same subscription price per Unit that applied to the basic subscription right, subject to proration among participants exercising their over-subscription
privilege, which we refer to as the over-subscription privilege. The subscription rights period expired on March 9, 2023, and resulted in stockholders subscribing for
3,143,969 Units. Upon the closing of the Rights Offering, which occurred on March 14, 2023, we issued 3,143,969 shares of common stock and 3,143,969 warrants and
received aggregate gross cash proceeds of approximately $3.14 million. After deducting dealer-manager fees and other fees and expenses related to the Rights Offering, we
received net proceeds of approximately $2.7 million. If exercised, additional gross proceeds of up to approximately $3.93 million may be received through the exercise of
warrants issued in the Rights Offering. The Rights Offering was made pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-269082), which was declared
effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2023, and the prospectus dated February 22, 2023.
Appointment of Non-Executive Board Chair; Appointment of Director

Effective February 20, 2023, the Company’s board of directors appointed Michael Pruitt to serve as Non-Executive Chair of the board of directors.

Also effective February 20, 2023, the Company’s board of directors elected Michelle Hawkins Whetstone as a director of the Company to fill the vacancy on the board of
directors resulting from Mr. Nechio’s resignation from the board of directors.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 31, 2023, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the closing of the Merger, (i) each then outstanding share of Notes Live common stock (collectively, “Notes
Live common stock”) (which comprises all of Notes Live’s outstanding capital stock) will be converted into the right to receive a number of shares of Fresh Vine common
stock calculated in accordance with the Merger Agreement (the “Exchange Ratio”), (ii) each then outstanding warrant to purchase Notes Live common stock will be
exchanged (or otherwise amended) for a warrant exercisable (at an exercise price adjusted to reflect to the Exchange Ratio) to acquire that number of shares of Fresh Vine
common stock equal to the number of warrant shares multiplied by the Exchange Ratio, and (iii) any then outstanding Notes Live promissory note that is convertible into
Notes Live common stock will be exchanged, or otherwise amended, such that it will be convertible from and after the Merger into shares of Fresh Vine common stock at a
per share conversion price adjusted to reflect the Exchange Ratio. Each share of Fresh Vine common stock and each option and warrant to purchase Fresh Vine common
stock that is outstanding at the effective time of the Merger will remain outstanding in accordance with its terms and such shares of Fresh Vine common stock, options and
warrants will be unaffected by the merger (subject adjustment based on the proposed Reverse Split described below).

As contemplated by the Merger Agreement, Fresh Vine intends to effect a reverse stock split at or around the effect date of the merger at a ratio that results in the Fresh Vine
common stock satisfying the initial listing standards of the NYSE American stock exchange and the exchange ratio in the Merger being as near to one as reasonably
practicable (i.e., so that each share of Notes Live capital stock will be exchanged in the Merger for approximately one share of Fresh Vine common stock) (the “Reverse
Split”).

At the effective time of the Merger, the board of directors of Fresh Vine is expected to consist of seven members, all of whom will be designated by Notes Live.
Consummation of the Merger is subject to certain closing conditions, as described in the Merger Agreement.

The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights of each of Fresh Vine and Notes Live. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under specified circumstances,
Fresh Vine may be required to pay Notes Live a termination fee of $1.0 million and/or reimburse Notes Live’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000, and Notes Live may
be required to pay Fresh Vine a termination fee of $1.0 million, reimburse Fresh Vine’s expenses up to a maximum of $500,000, and/or, at the election of Fresh Vine,
redeem the Fresh Vine Equity Investment at the same price per share as the purchase price paid by Fresh Vine therefor.

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, (a) officers, directors and certain 10% or greater shareholders of Notes Live (solely in their respective capacities
as Notes Live shareholders) holding approximately 42% of the outstanding shares of Notes Live capital stock entitled to vote have entered into voting and support
agreements with Fresh Vine to vote, among other things, all of their shares of Notes Live capital stock in favor of adoption of the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby, and against any alternative acquisition proposals (the “Notes Live Support Agreements”), and (b) certain officers, directors and stockholders of Fresh
Vine have entered into voting and support agreements with Notes Live to vote, among other things, all of their shares of Fresh Vine capital stock in favor of the Fresh Vine
Shareholder Matters and against any alternative acquisition proposals (the “Fresh Support Agreements”, and together with the Notes Live Support Agreements, the “Support
Agreements™).

F-26

Exhibit 10.313.5

BYLAWS

OF
FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
(Non-Employee Director)
This ResTrICTED SToCK AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made effective as of [ , 20__] by and between Fresh Vine Wine, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (the “Company”), and [ 1 (“Director”).
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Backcrounn(A NEVADA CORPORATION)

A. (As amended, effective January 25, 2024)
ARTICLE I—OFFICES

Section 1.01Registered Office. The Company has adopted corporation shall maintain in the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the
“Plan”), State of Nevada a registered office and a registered agent whose business office is identical with such registered office.

Section 1.02Locations of Offices. The corporation may also have offices at such other places both within and without the state of Nevada as the board of
directors may from time to increase stockholder value and to advance time determine or the interests business of the Company by furnishing a variety of economic
incentives (“Incentives”) designed to attract, retain and motivate employees, certain key consultants and directors corporation may require.

ARTICLE II—STOCKHOLDERS

Section 2.01Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Company.

B. The Board stockholders shall be held on such date and at such time as is designated by the board of Directors directors and as is provided for in the
notice of the Company (the “Board”) or meeting. If the Compensation Committee election of directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for the
annual meeting of the Board (the “Committee”) believes that entering into this Agreement with Director is consistent with stockholders, or at any adjournment
thereof, the stated purposes for which the Plan was adopted.

C. The Company desires to grant restricted stock to Director, and Director desires to accept such restricted stock, on the terms and conditions set forth
herein and in the Plan.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

1. Grantboard of Stock. Subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement and the Plan, the Company hereby grants to Director [ 1
(I 1) shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per shares, of the Company (such shares are referred to hereinafter as the “Shares”). Upon the execution of
this Agreement, the Shares shall be registered on the books of the Company, and the Company directors shall cause the transfer agent and registrar of its common
stock to issue one or more certificates in Director’s name evidencing the Shares (each a “Stock Certificate”). Director shall deposit with the Company (and, if
required by the Company, a stock power duly endorsed in blank in the form provided by the Company), each Stock Certificate election to be held by at a special
meeting of the Company until such timestockholders as the restrictions set forth herein and under the Plan have lapsed pursuant to paragraph 4 of this
Agreement. The Stock Certificate(s) shall bear a legend in substantially the following form: soon thereafter as may be convenient.

The transferabilitySection 2.02Special Meetings. Special meetings of this certificate and the shares stockholders may be called at any time by the chairman
of Common Stock represented the board, the chief executive officer, the president, or in their absence or disability, by it are subject to any vice president, or by the
terms and conditions (including conditions board of forfeiture) contained directors (by action of a majority of the directors). No business shall be acted upon at a
special meeting of stockholders except as set forth in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the “Company”), and an agreement
entered into between the registered owner and the Company. A copy notice of the Plan and meeting.

Section 2.03Place of Meetings. The board of directors may designate any place, either within or without the agreement State of Nevada, as the place of
meeting for any annual meeting or for any special meeting. If no designation is on file in made, the place of meeting shall be at the principal office of the
corporation. The board of directors may, in its sole discretion, determine that a meeting of stockholders shall not be held at any place, but may instead be held
solely by means of electronic communications, videoconferencing, teleconferencing or other available technology in accordance with Section 2.15.

Section 2.04Notice of Meetings. The secretary or assistant secretary, if any, shall cause notice of the Company. time, place, and purpose or purposes of all
meetings of the stockholders (whether annual or special), to be mailed at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the meeting, to each stockholder
of record entitled to vote.

Section 2.05Waiver of Notice. Any stockholder may waive notice of any meeting of stockholders (however called or noticed, whether or not called or
noticed and whether before, during, or after the meeting), signing a written waiver of notice or a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the
minutes thereof. Attendance at a meeting, in person or by proxy, shall constitute waiver of all defects of notice regardless of whether a waiver of notice, consent to
the holding of such meeting, or any approval of the minutes thereof is signed or any objections are made, unless attendance is solely for the purpose of objecting,
at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. All such waivers, consents, or approvals
shall be made a part of the minutes of the meeting.
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AtSection 2.06Fixing Record Date. For the Company’s election, Shares purpose of determining stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting
of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, or stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or entitled
to exercise any rights in respect to any change, conversion, or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the board of directors may fix in
advance a date as the record date for any such determination of stockholders, such date in any case to be not more than sixty (60) days and, in case, of a meeting
of stockholders, not less than ten (10) days prior to the date on which the particular action requiring such determination of stockholders is to be taken. If no
record date is fixed for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting, the day preceding the date on which notice of the meeting is
mailed shall be the record date. For any other purpose, the record date shall be the close of business on the date on which the resolution of the board of directors
pertaining thereto is adopted. When a determination of stockholders entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders has been made as provided in this section,
such determination shall apply to any adjournment thereof. Failure to comply with this section shall not affect the validity of any action taken at a meeting of
stockholders.

Section 2.07Voting Lists. The officers of the corporation shall cause to be prepared from the stock ledger at least ten days before every meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at such meeting or any adjournment thereof, arranged in alphabetical order, and showing the
address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open to the examination of any stockholder, for
any purpose germane to the meeting, during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten days prior to the meeting, either at a place within the city where
the meeting is to be held, which place shall be specified in book entry form subject to a restricted stock legend (and corresponding stop transfer instructions) until
restrictions relating to the Shares have lapsed.

2. Rights of Director. Upon the execution of this Agreement and issuance notice of the Shares, Director shall become a stockholder with respect meeting,
or, if not so specified, at the place where the meeting is to the Shares and shall have all of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the Shares, including the right
to vote the Shares and to receive all dividends and other distributions paid with respect to the Shares; provided, however, that the Shares shall be subject to the
restrictions set forth in paragraph 3 of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the Board or the Committee may, in its discretion, instruct the Company to withhold any stock dividends or
stock splits issued on or with respect to Shares that are subject to the restrictions provided for in paragraph 3 of this Agreement, which stock dividends or
splits held. The list shall also be subject to produced and kept at the restrictions provided for in paragraph 3 of this Agreement.

3. Restrictions. Director agrees that, in addition to the restrictions set forth in the Plan, at all times prior to the lapse of such restrictions pursuant to
paragraph 4 hereof:

(a) Director shall not sell, transfer, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise encumber the Shares; time and

(b) If Director shall cease to be serve as a member place of the Company’s Board of Directors (for meeting, during the whole time thereof, and
may be inspected by any reason stockholder who is present. The original stock ledger shall be the only evidence as to who are the stockholders entitled to
examine the stock ledger, the list required by this section, or no reason), then, subject to paragraphs 4 and 5 hereof, Director shall, for no consideration,

forfeit and transfer to the Company all of the Shares that remain subject to the restrictions set forth in this paragraph 3.

4. Lapse of Restrictions. Subject to Section 10.13 of the Plan, and except as may otherwise be provided in a written agreement between Director and the
Company, the restrictions set forth in paragraph 3 shall lapse with respect to the Shares as set forth in the following schedule:

No. of Shares Date of Lapse
L1 L1
[ 1 L 1
L1 L 1
[ 1 1]

Upon request of Director at any time after the date that the restrictions set forth in paragraph 3 of this Agreement have lapsed with respect to any of the Shares,
and such Shares have become vested, free and clear of all restrictions, except as provided in the Plan, the Company shall remove any restrictive notations placed
on the books of the Company and the Stock Certificate(s) corporation, or to vote in connection with such restrictions. person or by proxy at any meeting of
stockholders.

5. No Right to Continuation of Service or Corporate Assets. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to grant Director any right to continue
to serve as a directorSection 2.08Quorum. A majority of the Company for any period shares of time or to any right to continue his or her present or any other
rate each class, and series of compensation, nor shall this Agreement be construed as giving Director, Director’s beneficiaries or any other person any equity or
interests of any kind in the assets of the Company or creating a trust of any kind or a fiduciary relationship of any kind between the Company and any such
person.

6. Withholding of Tax. To the extent that the receipt of the Shares or the lapse of any restrictions thereon results in income to Director for federal or state
income tax purposes, Director shall deliver to the Company at the time of such receipt or lapse, as the case may be, such amount of money as the Company may
require to meet its withholding obligation under applicable tax laws or regulations, if any, and, if Director fails to do so, the Company may elect to take such
actions permitted under the Plan. Only if and each class, to the extent permitted applicable (unless more than one class and or series votes as a class, in which case
a majority of the shares voting as a class) of stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote, present in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a
quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided by statute or by the Committee in its sole discretion,
Director may satisfy this obligation in whole articles of incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or in part by electing (the “Election”) to
forfeit and have the Company withhold from the Shares, shares of Common Stock having a value up to the minimum amount of withholding taxes required to be
collected on the transaction, in accordance with the Plan. The Committee may disapprove of represented at any Election.

7. Section 83(b)_Election. Director understands that Director shall be responsible for his or her own federal, state, local or foreign tax liability and any of
his other tax consequences that may arise as a result of transactions in the Shares. Director shall rely solely on the determinations of Director’s tax advisors or
Director’s own determinations, and not on any statements or representations by the Company or any of its agents, with regard to all such tax matters. Director
understands that Section 83 meeting of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the “Code”) taxes as ordinary income stockholders, the difference
between the amount paid for the Shares and the fair market value of the Shares as of the date any restrictions on the Shares lapse. Director understands that
Director may elect stockholders, entitled to be taxed at the time the Shares are received rather than when and as the restrictions on the Shares lapse vote thereat,
present in person or expire represented by filing an election under Section 83(b) of the Code with the Internal Revenue Service within 30 days from the date of the
acquisition. If Director files an election under Section 83(b) of the Code, such election shall contain all information required under the applicable treasury
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regulation(s) and Director shall deliver a copy of such election to the Company contemporaneously with filing such election with the Internal Revenue Service.
DIRECTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS DIRECTOR’S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY AND NOT THE COMPANY’S TO FILE TIMELY THE ELECTION
UNDER SECTION 83(B) OF THE CODE, EVEN IF DIRECTOR REQUESTS THAT THE COMPANY OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES MAKE THIS FILING
ON DIRECTOR’S BEHALF.

8. Director Representations. Director hereby represents and warrants that Director has reviewed with his or her own tax advisors the federal, state, and
local tax consequences of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Director is relying solely on such advisors and not on any statements or representation
of the Company or any of its agents. Director understands that he or she will be solely responsible for any tax liability that may result to him or her as a result of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

9. The Plan; Administration. The Shares are granted pursuant to the Plan and is governed by the terms thereof, which are incorporated herein by
reference. The Board and/or the Committee proxy, shall have the sole and complete discretion with respect power to all matters reserved to it by adjourn the Plan
and decisions of the Board and/or the Committee with respect thereto and to this Agreement shall be final and binding upon the Director. In the event of any
conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern and control. By the execution of this Agreement,
Director acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

10. General.

(a) Any notice required to be delivered to the Company under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company at the Company’s principal corporate offices. Any notice required to be delivered to Director under this Agreement shall be in writing and
addressed to Director at Director’s address as shown in the records of the Company. Either party may designate another address in writing (or by such
other method approved by the Company) meeting from time to time. time without notice (other than the announcement at the meeting) until a date and
time that a quorum shall be present. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented any business may be transacted which
might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. If the adjournment is for more than thirty (30) days, or if after the adjournment a new
record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to vote at the
meeting.

(b) This Agreement may be amended only bySection 2.09Vote Required. When a written agreement executed by the Company and Director.
(c) This Agreement and the Plan embody the entire agreement made between the parties hereto with respect to matters covered herein and shall
not be modified except in accordance with paragraph 10(b) of this Agreement.

(d) Nothing herein expressed or implied quorum is intended or shall be construed as conferring upon or giving to any person, firm, or
corporation other than the parties hereto, any rights or benefits under or by reason of this Agreement.

(e) Each party hereto agrees to execute such further documents as may be necessary or desirable to effect the purposes of this Agreement.

(f) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute
one and the same agreement.

(g) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall be
constitute but one in the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page by facsimile or other means of electronic transmission
utilizing reasonable image scan technology (or DocuSign technology) shall be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this
Agreement.

(h) If the parties should have a dispute arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement or the parties’ respective rights and duties hereunder, then
the parties will resolve such dispute in the following manner: (i) any party may present at any time deliver to meeting, the others a written dispute notice
setting forth a brief description vote of the issue for which such notice initiates the dispute resolution mechanism contemplated by this Section 10(h); (ii)
during the 30-day period following the delivery holders of stock having a majority of the notice described voting power present in this Section 10(h)
above, person or represented by proxy shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the parties will refer the issue (to the exclusion of a
court of law) to final and binding arbitration in Minnesota in accordance with the then existing rules (the “Rules”) question is one on which by express
provision of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court
having jurisdiction thereof; provided, that the law applicable to any controversy shall be the laws statutes of the state of Nevada regardless of principles of
conflicts of laws. In any arbitration pursuant to this Agreement, (1) discovery shall be allowed and governed by the Rules, and (2) the award or decision
shall be rendered by a single arbitrator who shall be appointed by mutual agreement of the Company articles of incorporation or as otherwise specifically
required by these bylaws a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and Director. In control the event decision of
failure such question.

Section 2.10Voting of Stock. Unless otherwise provided in the articles of incorporation, each stockholder shall at every meeting of the parties stockholders
be entitled to one vote in person or by proxy for each share of the capital stock having voting power held by such stockholder, subject to the dispute to agree
within 30 days after the commencement modification of such voting rights of any class or classes of the arbitration proceeding upon the appointment of the single
arbitrator, the single arbitrator shall be appointed corporation’s capital stock by the AAA in accordance with the Rules. Upon the completion articles of the
selection of the single arbitrator, an award or decision shall be rendered within incorporation. There is no more than 30 days. Failure of the arbitrator to meet the
time limits of this subsection will not be a basis for challenging the award. The arbitrator will not have the authority to award punitive damages to either party.
Each party will bear its own expenses, but the parties will share equally the expenses of the arbitrator. The arbitrator may elect to award attorneys’
fees cumulative voting. If and other related costs payable by the losing party to the successful party. This Agreement will be enforceable, and any arbitration
award will be final and non-appealable, and judgment thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY,

ANY MATTER (WHETHER IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR CONNECTED WITH

THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATED DOCUMENTS OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

(i) This Agreement, in its interpretation and effect, shall be governed extent allowed by the laws of the State of Nevada without regard to its
conflicts-of-law principles; provided that if the jurisdiction of incorporation and of the Company is United States, stockholders may vote electronically.

Section 2.11Proxies. At each meeting of the stockholders, each stockholder entitled to vote shall be entitled to vote in person or by proxy, provided
however, that the right to vote by proxy shall exist only in case the instrument authorizing such proxy to act shall have been executed in writing by the registered
holder or holders of such stock, as the case may be, as shown on the stock ledger of the corporation or by his attorney thereunto duly authorized in writing. Such
instrument authorizing a jurisdiction proxy to act shall be delivered at the beginning of such meeting to the secretary of the corporation or to such other than
Nevada, then this Agreement officer or person who may, in the absence of the secretary, be acting as secretary of the meeting. In the event that any such
instrument shall instead designate two or more persons to act as proxy, a majority of such persons present at the meeting, or if only one be governed present, that

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 144/162
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

one shall (unless the instrument shall otherwise provide) have all of the powers confirmed by the instrument on all persons so designated. Persons holding stock in
a fiduciary capacity, shall be entitled to vote the stock so held and the persons whose shares are pledged shall be entitled to vote, unless, the transfer by the pledgor
in the books and records of the corporation shall have expressly empowered the pledgee to vote thereon, in which case the pledgee, or his proxy, may represent
such stock and vote thereon. No proxy shall be voted or acted on after three years from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period. If and to the extent
allowed by the laws of the jurisdiction State of incorporation Nevada and of the Company, without regard United States, stockholders may provide proxies
electronically.

Section 2.12Stockholder Action by Written Consent Without a Meeting. Any action required to its conflicts-of-law principles. The venue for be taken at any
annual or special meeting of stockholders of the corporation, or any action relating to this Agreement that may be taken at any annual or special meeting of such
stockholders, may be taken by a consent in writing by the stockholders holding a majority of the voting power.

Section 2.13Business at Annual Meeting. At any annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been brought
before the federal meeting (a) by or state courts located at the direction of the board of directors or (b) by any stockholder of record of the corporation who is
entitled to vote with respect thereto and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in Minneapolis, Minnesota, to which venue each party hereby submits.

Signature Page follows.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Restricted Stock Agreementsection. For business to be effective as properly brought before an
annual meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the secretary of the corporation. To be timely, a stockholder’s
notice must be received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not less than 120 calendar days in advance of the date firstin the current fiscal year
that corresponds to the date in the preceding fiscal year on which the corporation’s notice of meeting and related proxy statement were released to stockholders in
connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders, except that if no meeting was held in the immediately preceding year or if the date of the
annual meeting in the current year varies by more than 30 calendar days’ from the corresponding date of such meeting in the preceding fiscal year, such notice by
the stockholder proposing business to be brought before the meeting of the stockholders must be received not less than 30 days prior to the date of the current
year’s annual meeting; provided, that in the event that less than forty (40) days’ notice of the date of the meeting is given to stockholders, to be timely, a
stockholders notice of business to be brought before the meeting shall be so received not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the day on which
such notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed. A stockholder’s notice to the secretary shall set forth above. as to each matter such stockholder proposes
to bring before the annual meeting (a) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for conducting such
business at the annual meeting, (b) the name and address, as they appear on the corporation’s books, of the stockholder of record proposing such business, (c) the
class and number of shares of the corporation’s capital stock that are beneficially owned by such stockholder, and (d) any material interest of such stockholder in
such business. Notwithstanding anything in these bylaws to the contrary, no business shall be brought before or conducted at an annual meeting except in
accordance with the provisions of this section. The officer of the corporation or the person presiding at the annual meeting shall, if the facts so warrant, determine
and declare to the meeting that business was not properly brought before the meeting in accordance with such provisions, and if such presiding officer should so
determine and declare to the meeting that business was not properly brought before the meeting in accordance with such provisions and if such presiding officer
should so determine, such presiding officer shall so declare to the meeting, and any such business so determined to be not properly brought before the meeting
shall not be transacted.

Section 2.14Notification of Nominations. Nominations for the election of directors may be made by the board of directors or by any stockholder who both
is entitled to vote for the election of directors and who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this section and any applicable provisions in the
corporation’s articles of incorporation. Any stockholder entitled to vote for the election of directors at a meeting may nominate persons for election as directors
only if written notice of such stockholder’s intention to make such nomination is delivered or mailed to and received by the Secretary of the corporation, at the
principal executive offices of the corporation not later than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days in advance of the date in the current fiscal year that
corresponds to the date in the preceding fiscal year on which the corporation’s notice of meeting and related proxy statement were released to stockholders in
connection with the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders, except that (i) with respect to an election to be held at an annual meeting of stockholders, if no
annual meeting was held in the immediately preceding year or if the date of the annual meeting in the current fiscal year has been changed by more than thirty
(30) calendar days from the corresponding date of such meeting in the preceding fiscal year, such notice by the stockholder must be received not less than thirty
(30) days prior to the date of the current year’s annual meeting; provided further, that in the event that less than forty (40) days’ notice of the date of the meeting
is given or made to stockholders, to be timely, a stockholders notice shall be so received not later than the close of business on the 10th day, following the day on
which such notice of the date of the annual meeting was mailed, and (ii) with respect to an election to be hold at a special meeting of stockholders for the election
of directors, the close of business on the seventh day following the date on which notice of such meeting is first given to stockholders. Each such notice shall be
signed and verified by the issuing stockholder under penalties of perjury, and shall set forth:

DIRECTOR: (a) the name and address of the stockholder who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated;

(b) a representation that such stockholder is a holder of record of stock of the corporation entitled to vote at such meeting, and intends to appear in person or
by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or person specified in the notice;

(o) a description of all arrangements or understandings between such stockholder and each nominee, and any other person or persons (naming such person or
persons) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by such stockholder; and

(d) such other information regarding each nominee proposed by such stockholder as would have been required to be included in a proxy statement filed

pursuant to the proxy rules promulgated pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, had each nominee been nominated, or proposed to
be nominated by the board of directors.
Each such notice must be accompanied by an original signed written consent of each nominee, if elected, to serve as a director of the corporation.
The chairman and/or secretary of a meeting of the stockholders may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made in compliance with the
foregoing procedure.

Section 2.15Remote Communications. Stockholders may participate in a meeting of stockholders by means of any electronic communications,
videoconferencing, teleconferencing or other available technology permitted under the Nevada Revised Statutes (the “NRS”). If any such means are utilized, the
corporation shall, to the extent required under the NRS, implement reasonable measures to (a) verify the identity of each person participating through such
means as a stockholder, and (b) provide the stockholders a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the
stockholders, including an opportunity to communicate, and to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting in a substantially concurrent manner with such
proceedings. For the purposes of establishing a quorum and taking any action at the meeting, participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section 2.15 constitutes
presence in person at the meeting. A meeting of stockholders may be held solely by remote communication pursuant to this Section 2.15.

ARTICLE III—DIRECTORS
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Section 3.01Number, Term, and Qualifications. The board of directors shall consist of one or more members, each of whom shall be a natural person. The
number of directors which shall constitute the whole board shall be fixed from time to time by a majority vote of the directors then in office even though less than
a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director before that director’s
term of office expires. At each annual meeting of stockholders or special meeting in lieu thereof, directors elected to succeed those directors whose terms expire
shall be elected for a term of office to expire at the succeeding annual meeting of the stockholders or special meeting in lieu thereof until their successors are duly
elected and qualified. Directors need neither be residents of the state of incorporation nor stockholders of the corporation.

Section 3.02Vacancies and Newly Created Directorships. Vacancies resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors or any vacancies in
the board of directors resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or other cause may be filled only by a majority vote of
the directors then in office even though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, and not by the stockholders. In the event of any increase or decrease
in the authorized number of directors, each director then serving as such shall nevertheless continue as a director until the expiration of his or her current term or
his or her prior death, retirement, removal or resignation. In the event of a vacancy in the board of directors, the remaining directors, except as otherwise
provided by law, may exercise the powers of the full board of directors until the vacancy is filled. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each director shall serve until his
or her successor is duly elected and qualified or until his or her death, resignation or removal. If there are no directors in office, then an election of directors may
be held in the manner provided by statute.

Section 3.03General Powers. The business of the corporation shall be managed under the direction of its board of directors which may exercise all such
powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute or by the articles of incorporation or by these bylaws directed or required to
be exercised or done by the stockholders.

Section 3.04Regular Meetings. A regular meeting of board of directors shall be held without notice immediately following and at the same place as the
annual meeting of stockholders. The board of directors may provide by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the state of incorporation, for the
holding of additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

Section 3.05Special Meetings. Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by or at the request of the chairman of the board, the chief
executive officer, the president, or any two directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the board of directors may fix any place, either
within or without the state of incorporation, as the place for holding any special meeting of the board of directors called by them.

Section 3.06Telephonic and Electronic Communications. Members of the board of directors or of any committee designated by the board of directors may
participate in a meeting of the board of directors or such committee through electronic communications, videoconferencing, teleconferencing or other available
technology permitted under the NRS. If any such means are utilized, the corporation shall, to the extent required under the NRS, implement reasonable measures
to (a) verify the identity of each person participating through such means as a director or member of the committee, as the case may be; and (b) provide the
directors or members a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the directors or members, as the case may be,
including an opportunity to communicate and to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting in a substantially concurrent manner with such proceedings. For the
purposes of establishing a quorum and taking any action at the meeting, such directors or members of the committee, as the case may be, participating pursuant
to this Section 3.06 shall be deemed present in person at the meeting.

Section 3.07Notice. Notice of any special meeting shall be delivered personally or by telephone or by facsimile or by email to each director or sent by first-
class mail, charges prepaid, addressed to each director at that director’s address, phone number, facsimile number, or email (as the case may be) as shown on the
records of the corporation. If the notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail at least four (4) days before the time of the holding of the meeting.
If the notice is delivered personally or by telephone or by facsimile or by email, it shall be delivered at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the holding
of the meeting Any director may waive notice of any meeting. Attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except
where a director attends a meeting solely for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or
convened.

Section 3.08Quorum. A majority of the number of directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the
board of directors, but if less than a majority is present at a meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without
further notice.

Section 3.09Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the board of
directors, unless the question is one on which by express provision of the statutes of the state of Nevada or of the articles of incorporation or as otherwise
specifically required by these bylaws a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question, and
individual directors shall have no power as such.
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Section 3.10Written Consent to Action by Directors. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the directors of the corporation or any other action
which may be taken at a meeting of the directors or of a committee, may be taken without a meeting, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall
be signed by all of the directors, or all of the members of the committee, as the case may be. Such consent shall have the same legal effect as a unanimous vote of
all the directors or members of the committee.

Section 3.11. Interested Directors. No contract or transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the
corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of its directors or officers are directors or officers or
have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable solely for this reason, solely because the director or officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the
board of directors or committee thereof which authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for such purpose, if: (1) the
fact as to his relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction is known to the board of directors or the committee, and the board of directors or
committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative vote of a majority of the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested
directors be less than a quorum; (2) the fact as to his or her relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction is known to the stockholders entitled to
vote thereon, and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by veote of the stockholders; or (3) the contract or transaction is fair as to the
corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified by the board of directors, a committee thereof, or the stockholders. Common or interested
directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board of directors or of a committee which authorizes the contract or
transaction.

Section 3.12Committees of Directors. The board of directors may designate and appoint one or more committees as the board of directors considers
appropriate, which shall consist of one or more directors of the corporation. Persons who are not directors of the corporation are not eligible to serve on
committees of the board of directors. The board of directors may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any
absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee. Each committee, to the extent provided in the resolution of the board of directors creating same,
shall have and may exercise such of the powers and authority of the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation as the
board of directors may direct and delegate, except, however, those matters which are required by statute to be reserved unto or acted upon by the entire board of
directors. The board of directors shall have the power at any time to fill vacancies in, to change the membership of, or to dissolve, any such committee. Unless
otherwise provided for in a resolution of the board of directors designating a committee, a majority of the authorized number of members of such committee shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business of such committee, and the vote of a majority of the members of such committee present at a meeting of such
committee at which a quorum is present shall be the act of such committee except where otherwise required by these bylaws or the charter of such committee.
Unless otherwise appointed by the board of directors, each committee may fix its own presiding and recording officer or officers, and may meet at such place or
places, at such time or times and on such notice (or without notice) as it shall determine from time to time. Each committee shall keep written minutes of its
proceedings and shall report such proceedings to the board of directors as appropriate.

Section 3.13Compensation. Unless otherwise restricted by the articles of incorporation or these bylaws, the board of directors shall have the authority to
fix the compensation of directors. No such compensation shall preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving
compensation therefor.

Section 3.14Presumption of Assent. A director of the corporation who is present at a meeting of the board of directors at which action on any corporate
matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting, unless he shall file his
written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof, or shall forward such dissent by registered or
certified mail to the secretary of the corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a director who voted in
favor of such action.

Section 3.15Resignation and Removal. A director may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to the chief executive officer, the president, a
vice president, the secretary or assistant secretary, if any. The resignation shall become effective upon delivery unless otherwise stated therein. Subject to any
rights of the holders of preferred stock, if any, and except as otherwise provided in the NRS, any director, or the entire board of directors, may be removed from
office by a vote of stockholders representing not less than two-thirds of the voting power of the issued and outstanding stock entitled to vote at an annual or
special meeting of the stockholders duly noticed and called in accordance with these bylaws.

ARTICLE IV—OFFICERS

Section 4.1 Elected Officers. The board of directors shall elect and appoint a president, a secretary and a treasurer. The board of directors may from time
to time, by resolution, elect or appoint such other officers and agents as it may deem advisable, who shall hold office at the pleasure of the board of directors, and
shall have such powers and duties and be paid such compensation as may be directed by the board of directors. Any individual may hold two or more offices.

Section 4.2 Removal; Resignation. Any officer elected or appointed by the board of directors may be removed by the board of directors with or without
cause. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the corporation. Any such removal or resignation shall be subject to the rights, if any, of the
respective parties under any contract between the corporation and such officer or agent.

Section 4.3 Vacancies. A newly created officer position and a vacancy in any elected officer position because of death, resignation, or removal may be filled
by the board of directors.

Section 4.4 Chief Executive Officer. The board of directors may appoint a chief executive officer who, subject to the supervision and control of the board
of directors, shall have the ultimate responsibility for the management and control of the business and affairs of the corporation, and shall perform such other
duties and have such other powers which are delegated to him or her by the board of directors, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.5 President. The president, subject to the supervision and control of the board of directors, shall supervise and control the business and affairs of
the corporation. The president shall keep the board of directors fully informed as the board of directors may request and shall consult the board of directors
concerning the business of the corporation. The president shall perform such other duties and have such other powers which are delegated and assigned to him or
her by the board of directors, the chief executive officer, if any, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.6 Chief Financial Officer. The board of directors may appoint a chief financial officer. The chief financial officer shall in general have overall
supervision of the financial operations of the corporation. The chief financial officer shall perform such other duties and have such other powers which are
delegated and assigned to him or her by the board of directors, the chief executive officer, if any, the president, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.7 Vice Presidents. The board of directors may appoint one or more vice presidents. In the absence or disability of the president, or at the
president’s request, the vice president or vice presidents, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors, and if not ranked, the vice presidents in the
order designated by the board of directors, or in the absence of such designation, in the order designated by the president, shall perform all of the duties of the
president, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions on the president. Each vice president shall perform such other
duties and have such other powers which are delegated and assigned to him or her by the board of directors, the chief executive officer, if any, the president, these
bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.8 Secretary. The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, in one or more books provided for that purpose, the minutes of all meetings of the
board of directors, the committees of the board of directors and the stockholders. The secretary shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the
provisions of these bylaws and as required by applicable law. The secretary shall see that the books, reports, statements, certificates and other documents and
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records required by applicable law to be kept and filed are properly kept and filed. The secretary shall perform all other duties commonly incident to his or her
office and shall perform such other duties which are assigned to him or her by the board of directors, the chief executive officer, if any, the president, these bylaws
or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.9 Assistant Secretaries. An assistant secretary, if appointed by the board of directors, shall, at the request of the secretary, or in the absence or
disability of the secretary, perform all the duties of the secretary. He or she shall perform such other duties as are assigned to him or her by the board of directors,
the chief executive officer, if any, the president, the secretary, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.10 Treasurer. The treasurer shall exercise general supervision over the receipt, custody and disbursement of corporate funds. The treasurer shall
perform all other duties commonly incident to his or her office and such other duties as may, from time to time, be assigned to him or her by the board of
directors, the chief executive officer, if any, the president, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.11 Assistant Treasurers. An assistant treasurer, if appointed by the board of directors, shall, at the request of the treasurer, or in the absence or
disability of the treasurer, perform all the duties of the treasurer. He or she shall perform such other duties which are assigned to him or her by the board of
directors, the chief executive officer (if any), the president, the treasurer, these bylaws or as may be provided by law.

Section 4.12 Execution of Negotiable Instruments, Deeds and Contracts. All checks, drafts, notes, bonds, bills of exchange, and orders for the payment of
money of the corporation; all deeds, mortgages, proxies, powers of attorney and other written contracts, documents, instruments and agreements to which the
corporation shall be a party; and all assignments or endorsements of stock certificates, registered bonds or other securities owned by the corporation shall be
signed in the name of the corporation by such officers or other persons as the board of directors may from time to time designate. Such authority may be general
or confined to specific instances as the board of directors may determine. The board of directors may authorize the use of the facsimile or other electronic
signatures of any such persons.

Section 4.15Salaries. The salaries or other compensation of the officers of the corporation shall be fixed from time to time by the board of directors,
except that the board of directors may delegate to any person or group of persons the power to fix the salaries or other compensation of any subordinate officers
or agents appointed in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws. No officer shall be prevented from receiving any such salary or compensation by reason of
the fact that he is also a director of the corporation.

Section 4.16Surety Bonds. In case the board of directors shall so require, any officer or agent of the corporation shall execute to the corporation a bond in
such sums and with such surety or sureties as the board of directors may direct, conditioned on the faithful performance of his duties to the corporation, including
responsibility for negligence and for the accounting of all property, monies, or securities of the corporation which may come into his hands.

ARTICLE V—CAPITAL STOCK

Section 5.01Stock Certificates. The shares of the corporation shall be evidenced by certificates in such form as the board of directors of the corporation
may from time to time prescribe; provided that the board of directors may provide by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of
stock of the corporation shall be uncertificated shares. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each holder of uncertificated shares shall be entitled, upon request, to a
certificate representing such shares. Shares represented by certificates shall be numbered and registered in a share register as they are issued. Share certificates
shall exhibit the name of the registered holder and the number and class of shares and the series, if any, represented thereby and the par value of each share or a
statement that such shares are without par value, as the case may be. Except as otherwise provided by law, the rights and obligations of the holders of
uncertificated shares and the rights and obligations of the holders of certificated shares of the same class and series shall be identical.

Each certificate shall be signed by the chairman or president or vice-president and treasurer or assistant treasurer or the secretary or assistant secretary
or such other officers designated by the board of directors from time to time as permitted by law, and shall bear the seal of the corporation. The corporate seal
and any or all of the signatures or corporation officers may be in facsimile if the stock certificate is manually counter-signed by an authorized person on behalf of
a transfer agent or registrar other than the corporation or its employee. If an officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed, or whose facsimile signature has
been placed on, a certificate shall have ceased to be such before the certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he were such
officer, transfer agent or registrar at the time of its issue.

Section 5.02Transfer of Stock. Transfers of stock of the corporation shall be made on the books of the corporation by the holder of record thereof, or by
his attorney thereunto duly authorized by a power of attorney duly executed in writing and filed with the secretary of the corporation or any of its transfer agents,
and on surrender of the certificate or certificates, properly endorsed or accompanied by proper instruments of transfer, representing such stock. Except as
provided by law, the corporation and transfer agents and registrars, if any, shall be entitled to treat the holder of record of any stock as the absolute owner thereof
for all purposes, and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any legal, equitable, or other claim to or interest in such stock on the part of any other person
whether or not it or they shall have express or other notice thereof.

Section 5.03Regulations. Subject to any provisions contained in the articles of incorporation, the board of directors may make such rules and regulations
as they may deem expedient concerning the issuance, transfer, redemption, and registration of certificates for stock of the corporation.

Section 5.04Maintenance of Stock Ledger at Principal Place of Business. A stock ledger (or ledgers where more than one kind, class, or series of stock is
outstanding) shall be kept at the principal place of business of the corporation, or at such other place the board of directors shall determine, containing the names
alphabetically arranged of original holders of the corporation, their addresses, their interest, the amount paid on their shares, and all transfers thereof and the
number and class of stock held by each. Such stock ledgers shall at all reasonable hours by subject to inspection by persons entitled by law to inspect the same.

Section 5.05Transfer Agents and Registrars. The board of directors may appoint one or more transfer agents and one or more registrars with respect to
the certificates representing stock of the corporation, and may require all such certificates to bear the signature of either or both. The board of directors may from
time to time define the respective duties of such transfer agents and registrars. No certificate for stock shall be valid until countersigned by a transfer agent, if at
the date appearing thereon the corporation had a transfer agent for such stock, and until registered by a registrar, if at such date the corporation had a registrar
for such stock.

Section 5.06Closing of Transfer Books and Fixing of Record Date.

(a) The board of directors shall have power to close the stock ledgers of the corporation for a period of not to exceed sixty (60) days preceding the date of
any meeting of stockholders, or the date for payment of any dividend or other distribution, or the date for the allotment of rights or capital stock, or a date
in connection with obtaining the approval of stockholders for any purpose.

(b) In lieu of closing the stock ledgers as aforesaid, the board of directors may fix in advance a date not exceeding sixty (60) days preceding the date of any
meeting of stockholders, or the date for the payment of any dividend, or the date for the allotment of rights, or the date when any change or conversion or
exchange of capital stock shall go into effect, or a date in connection with obtaining any such consent, as a date for the determination of the stockholders
entitled to a notice of, and to vote at, any such meeting and any adjournment thereof, or entitled to receive payment of any such dividend, or to any such
allotment of rights, or to exercise the rights in respect of any such change, conversion or exchange of capital stock, or to give such consent.

(0) If the stock ledgers shall be closed or a record date set for the purpose of determining stockholders entitled to notice or to vote at a meeting of
stockholders, such books shall be closed for or such record date shaft be at least ten (10) days immediately preceding such meeting.
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Section 5.07Lost or Damaged Certificates. The corporation may issue a new certificate for stock of the corporation in place of any certificate theretofore
issued by it alleged to have been lost or destroyed, and the board of directors may, in its discretion, require the owner of the lost or destroyed certificate or his
legal representatives, to give the corporation a bond in such form and amount as the board of directors may direct, and with such surety or sureties as may be
satisfactory to the board of directors, to indemnify the corporation and its transfer agents and registrars, if any, against any claims that may be made against it or
any such transfer agent or registrar on account of the issuance of such new certificate. A new certificate may be issued without requiring any bond when, in the
judgment of the board of directors, it is appropriate to do so.

ARTICLE VI—INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by the NRS, the corporation shall indemnify and make advancement of expenses to the extent and as required (and in the

discretion of the board of directors, as allowed) in the articles of incorporation.
ARTICLE VII—FISCAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the board of directors.
ARTICLE VIII—DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions may be declared, subject to the provisions of the laws of the State of Nevada and the Articles of Incorporation, by the Board and may be

paid in cash, property, shares of corporate stock, or any other medium.
ARTICLE IX—AMENDMENTS
Except as otherwise expressly provided in these bylaws, these bylaws may be amended, revised, or repealed or new bylaws may be made adopted,
only by a vote of (a) a majority of the board of directors, or (b) stockholders representing not less than a majority of the voting power of the issued and
outstanding stock entitled to vote at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders duly noticed and called in accordance with the bylaws.
ARTICLE X
FORUM SELECTION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, and unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Eighth Judicial District
Court of Clark County, Nevada (or, if that court does not have jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Nevada or other state courts of the State of
Nevada) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the exclusive forums for (a) any derivative action or proceeding brought in the name or right of the
Corporation or on the Corporation’s behalf, (b) any action asserting or based upon a claim of breach of any duty owed by any director, officer, employee or agent
of the Corporation to the Corporation or to the Corporation’s stockholders, (c) any action or assertion of a claim arising pursuant to any provision of Chapter 78
or Chapter 92A of the NRS or the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws (as each may be amended from time to time), (d) any action to interpret, apply,
enforce or determine the validity of the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws or (e) any action asserting a claim against the Corporation governed by the
internal affairs doctrine. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Article X will not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any other claim for which the federal courts have exclusive
jurisdiction. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of,
and consented to, the provisions of this Article X.

ARTICLE XI
INAPPLICABILITY OF NRS 78.378 THROUGH 78.3793

Section 11.01.Acquisition of Controlling Interest. The provisions of NRS 78.378 through 78.3793, inclusive, shall not apply to any “acquisition” of a
“controlling interest” (as each term is defined therein) in the corporation resulting from the Agreement and Plan of Merger Agreement, dated as of January 25,
2024, by and among the corporation, FVW Merger Sub, Inc., a Colorado corporation, and Notes Live, Inc., a Colorado corporation, or any amendments thereto
(the “Merger Agreement”), including without limitation the acquisition of shares of the corporation’s capital stock issued in the “Merger,” or the acquisition of
shares of the corporation’s capital stock pursuant to the documents, instruments and arrangements contemplated by the Merger Agreement or upon the
consummation of any transactions contemplated thereby, including without limitation (i) any deemed acquisition of shares of the corporation’s capital stock by
parties to the Fresh Vine Shareholder Support Agreements (as defined in the Merger Agreement) and related documents by reason of entering into such Fresh
Vine Shareholder Support Agreements and related documents, and (ii) the acquisition of shares of the corporation’s common stock upon conversion or exchange
of the corporation’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (which conversion or exchange is a condition to the closing of the transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement).
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Exhibit 19.1

FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
POLICY ON AVOIDANCE OF INSIDER TRADING
Updates adopted as of November 2, 2023
The Board of Directors of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the “Company”) has adopted this Insider Trading Policy for our directors, employees (including officers) and
consultants with respect to the trading of the Company’s securities, as well as the securities of publicly traded companies with whom we have a business
relationship.
As a public reporting company, United States federal and state securities laws prohibit the purchase or sale of a company’s securities by persons who are aware of
material information about that company that is not generally known or available to the public. These laws also prohibit persons who are aware of such material
nonpublic information from disclosing this information to others who may trade. Companies and their controlling persons are also subject to liability if they fail
to take reasonable steps to prevent insider trading by company personnel.
It is important that our directors, employees (including officers) and consultants understand the breadth of activities that constitute illegal insider trading and the
consequences, which can be severe. Both the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the Financial Industry Regulatory Agency (FINRA)
investigate and are effective at detecting insider trading. The SEC, together with the U.S. Attorneys, pursue insider trading violations vigorously. Cases have been
successfully prosecuted against trading by employees through foreign accounts, trading by family members and friends, and trading involving only a small
number of shares.
This policy is designed to prevent insider trading or allegations of insider trading, and to protect the Company’s reputation for integrity and ethical conduct. It is
your obligation to understand and comply with this policy. Should you have any questions regarding this policy, please contact the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer, who serves as the “Compliance Officer” for purposes of this Policy. Consequences of violating this Policy may be severe and may include civil and
criminal penalties resulting in significant fines and imprisonment. Violations of this Policy may also subject you to Company-imposed sanctions, including
dismissal for cause.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
POLICY ON AVOIDANCE OF INSIDER TRADING
Updates adopted as of November 2, 2023
Purpose
This Policy on Avoidance of Insider Trading (this “Policy”) provides guidelines with respect to transactions in the securities of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the
“Company”) and the handling of confidential information about the Company and the companies with which the Company does business. The Company’s Board
of Directors has adopted this Policy to promote compliance with federal, state and foreign securities laws that prohibit certain persons who are aware of material
nonpublic information about a company from trading in securities of that company or providing material nonpublic information to other persons who may trade
on the basis of that information.
Scope of Policy
Persons Covered By This Policy
e  Company Officers, Directors, Employees and Others. This Policy applies to all officers of the Company, all members of the Company’s Board of Directors and
all employees of the Company. The Company may also determine that other persons should be subject to this Policy, such as contractors or consultants who have
access to material nonpublic information.

e  Family Members. The same restrictions that apply to you apply to your family members who reside with you (including a spouse, a child, a child away at
college, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, siblings and in-laws), anyone else who lives in your household and any family members
who do not live in your household but whose transactions in Company securities are directed by you or are subject to your influence or control (such as parents
or children who consult with you before they trade in Company securities) (collectively referred to as “Family Members”). You are responsible for the
transactions of these other persons and therefore should make them aware of the need to confer with you before they trade in Company securities, and you
should treat all such transactions for the purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws as if the transactions were for your own account. This Policy does
not, however, apply to person securities transactions of Family Members where the purchase or sale decision is made by a third party not controlled by,
influenced by or related to you or your Family Members.

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
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e  Entities that You Influence or Control. This Policy applies to entities that you influence or control, including any corporations, partnerships or trusts (collectively
referred to as “Controlled Entities”), and transaction by these Controlled Entities should be treated for purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws as if
they were for your own account.

Transactions Covered By This Policy

This Policy applies to transactions in the Company’s securities (collectively referred to in this Policy as “Company Securities”), including common stock, options to
purchase common stock, common stock purchase warrants and any other type of securities that the Company may issue, as well as derivative securities that are
not issued by the Company such as exchange-traded put or call options or swaps relating to the Company’s Securities.

Administration of This Policy

The Company has appointed its Chief Financial Officer, to serve as the Compliance Officer for purposes of this Policy, and in such officer’s absence another
employee designated by the Compliance Officer, shall be responsible for administration of this Policy. All determinations and interpretations by the Compliance
Officer shall be final and not subject to further review.

Statement of Policy

It is the policy of this Company that no person who is subject to this Policy who is aware of material nonpublic information relating to the Company may, directly,
or indirectly through family members or other persons or entities:

il Engage in transactions in Company Securities, except as otherwise specified in this Policy under the heading “Exceptions From This Policy”;
2. Recommend the purchase or sale of any Company Securities;
B! Disclose material nonpublic information to persons within the Company whose jobs do not require them to have that information, or outside of the

Company to other persons, including, but not limited to, family, friends, business associates, investors and expert consulting firms, unless any such
disclosure is made in accordance with the Company’s policies regarding the protection or authorized external disclosure of information regarding the
Company; or
4. Assist anyone engaged in the above activities.
In addition, it is the policy of this Company that no person who is subject to this Policy who, in the course of working for the Company, learns of material
nonpublic information about a company with which the Company does business (such as a customer or supplier) and those with which the Company may be
negotiating major transactions (such as an acquisition, investment or sale) may trade in that company’s securities until the information becomes public or is no
longer material. Information that is not material to the Company may nevertheless be material to one of those other firms.
There are no exceptions to this Policy, except as specifically noted herein. Transactions that may be necessary or justifiable for independent reasons (such as the
need to raise money for an emergency expenditure), or small transactions, are not excepted from this Policy. The securities laws to not recognize any mitigating
circumstances, and, in any event, even the appearance of an improper transaction must be avoided to preserve the Company’s reputation for adhering to the
highest standards of conduct.
Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
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Definition of Material Nonpublic Information

Note that “inside information” has two important elements--materiality and public availability.

Material Information. Information is considered “material” if a reasonable investor would consider it important in deciding whether to buy, hold or sell securities.
Any information that could reasonably be expected to affect the Company’s stock price, whether it is positive or negative, should be considered material. There is
no bright-line standard for assess materiality, rather, materiality is based on an assessment of all of the facts and circumstances, and is often evaluated by
enforcement authorities with the benefit of hindsight. For this reason, questions concerning the materiality of particular information should be resolved in favor
of materiality, and trading should be avoided. Although it is not possible to define all categories of material information, some examples of information that
ordinarily would be regarded as material are:
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e  Financial results, projections of future earnings or losses, or other financial guidance;

e  An acquisition, disposition, license, sublicense or other transaction involving the Company’s major products, services or significant company assets;
e  News of a pending or prospective merger, acquisition or tender offer transaction or an acquisition or disposition of significant assets;

o  News regarding the gain or loss of a significant customer, service agreement or supplier;

e  Major events regarding the Company’s securities, including the offering of additional securities or the declaration of a stock split;

e  Proposed or pending equity or debt securities offerings;

e  Severe financial liquidity problems;

e  Actual or threatened major litigation, or the resolution of such litigation;

o A change in management; and

o  Pending or threatened significant litigation, or the resolution of such litigation.
When Information is Considered Public. Information that has not been disclosed to the public is generally considered to be nonpublic information. In order to
establish that the information has been disclosed to the public, it may be necessary to demonstrate that the information has been widely disseminated. Information
generally would be considered widely disseminated if it has been released broadly to the marketplace, such as pursuant to the issuance of a press release, filing of a
public disclosure document with the SEC, publication in a widely-available newspaper, magazine or news website, or broadcast on widely available radio or
television programs. By contrast, information would likely not be considered widely disseminated if it is available only to the Company’s employees and/or
consultants, or if it is only available to a select group of analysts, broker and institutional investors.
Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
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Once information is widely disseminated, it is still necessary to afford the investing public with sufficient time to absorb the information. As a general rule,
information should not be considered fully absorbed by the marketplace until the second full trading day after the information is released. For example, if the
Company announces financial earnings before trading begins on a Tuesday, you should not trade in Company Securities until the opening of the market on
Thursday (assuming you are not aware of other material nonpublic information at that time). However, if the Company announces earnings after trading begins
on that Tuesday, you should not trade in Company Securities until the opening of the market on Friday. Depending on the particular circumstances, the Company
may determine that a longer or shorter period of time should apply to the release of specific material nonpublic information.
Exceptions From This Policy
Exceptions for Transactions Under Company Plans. This Policy does not apply in the case of the following transactions, except as specifically noted:
e  Stock Option Exercises. This Policy does not apply to the grant or exercise of a stock option acquired pursuant the Company’s equity incentive plans, or to the
exercise of a “net exercise” or tax withholding right pursuant to which a person has elected to have the Company withhold shares subject to an option to satisfy
payment of the option exercise price or tax withholding requirements. This Policy does apply, however, to any sale of stock of the underlying stock or to a
cashless exercise of the option through a broker (i.e., a “broker-assisted cashless exercise”), or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the cash
needed to pay the exercise price of an option or tax obligations triggered by that exercise.

®  Restricted Stock Awards. This Policy does not apply to the vesting of restricted stock, or the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which you elect to
have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax withholding requirements upon vesting of any restricted stock. This Policy does apply, however, to any
market sale of restricted stock, including a market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay taxes triggered upon vesting of restricted stock.

®  Performance Shares and Restricted Stock Units. This Policy does not apply to the issuance of shares under performance share awards or restricted stock units
awards, or to the exercise of a tax withholding right pursuant to which a person has elected to have the Company withhold shares of stock to satisfy tax
withholding requirements upon the issuance of such shares. This Policy does apply, however, to any market sale of Company Securities, including a market sale
for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay taxes triggered upon the issuance of such shares.

®  401(k) Plan. If the Company sponsors a 401(k) plan that allows you to purchase Company Securities through the periodic contribution of money to the plan

pursuant to a payroll deduction election, this Policy will not apply to such purchases. This Policy will apply, however, to certain elections that you may make
under such a 401(k) plan, including: (a) an election to increase or decrease the percentage of your periodic contributions that will be allocated to the Company
stock fund; (b) an election to make an intra-plan transfer of an existing account balance into or out of the Company stock fund; (c) an election to borrow money
against your 401(k) plan account if the loan will result in a liquidation of some or all of your Company stock fund balance; and (d) an election to pre-pay a plan
loan if the pre-payment will result in allocation of loan proceeds to the Company stock fund. This Policy will also apply to your sales of Company Securities
purchased under the plan.
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o  Employee Stock Purchase Plan. If the Company sponsors an employee stock purchase plan, this Policy will not apply to purchases of Company Securities in any
such plan resulting from your periodic contribution of money to the plan pursuant to the election you made at the time of your enrollment in the plan. This
Policy also will not apply to purchases of Company Securities resulting from lump sum contributions to such a plan, provided that you elected to participate by
lump sum payment at the beginning of the applicable enrollment period. This Policy will apply, however, to your election to participate in such a plan for any
enrollment period, and to your sales of Company Securities purchased pursuant to the plan.

e  Dividend Reinvestment Plan. This Policy will not apply to purchases of Company Securities under a Company dividend reinvestment plan resulting from your
reinvestment of dividends paid on Company Securities. This Policy will apply, however, to voluntary purchases of Company Securities resulting from additional
contributions you choose to make to such a dividend reinvestment plan, and to your election to participate in the plan or increase your level of participation in
the plan. This Policy will also applies to your sale of any Company Securities purchased pursuant to such a plan.

®  Other Similar Transactions. Any other purchase of Company Securities from the Company or sales of Company Securities to the Company are not subject to

this Policy.
EXxceptions for Transactions Not Involving a Purchase or Sale. Bona fide gifts of securities are not transactions subject to this Policy unless the person making the
gift has reason to believe that the recipient intends to sell the Company securities while the officer, employee, director or other person subject to this Policy is
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aware of material nonpublic information. Further, transactions in mutual funds that are invested in Company Securities are not transactions subject to this
Policy.

Exception for Approved 10b5-1 Plans. Trades by covered persons in the Company’s securities that are executed pursuant to an approved and compliant 10b5-1
plan are not subject to the prohibition on trading on the basis of material nonpublic information contained in this Policy or to the restrictions set forth above
relating to pre-clearance procedures and blackout periods. Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, provides an affirmative defense
from insider trading liability under the federal securities laws for trading plans that meet certain requirements. In general, a 10b5-1 plan must be entered into
before you are aware of material nonpublic information. Once the plan is adopted, you must not exercise any influence over the amount of securities to be traded,
the price at which they are to be traded or the date of the trade. The plan must either specify (including by formula) the amount, pricing and timing of
transactions in advance or delegate discretion on those matters to an independent third party. The Company requires that all 10b5-1 plans, and any amendments
or modification thereof, be approved in writing in advance by the Compliance Officer and meet the requirements of Rule 10b5-1 and the Company’s “Guidelines
for 10b5-1 Plans,” which is attached as Exhibit A to this Policy. A 10b5-1 plan should be submitted for approval at least five business days prior to the entry into
the 10b5-1 plan. No further pre-approval of transactions conducted pursuant to the 10b5-1 Plan will be required.
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Additional Procedures — Blackout Periods; Preclearance
The Company has established additional procedures in order to assist the Company in the administration of this Policy, to facilitate compliance with laws
prohibiting insider trading while in possession of material nonpublic information, and to avoid the appearance of any impropriety.

e  The “Blackout Periods” outlined below are applicable to all persons subject to this Policy.

e  The pre-clearance procedures outlined below are only applicable to members of the Company’s Board of Directors and the Company’s executive officers that are
Section 16 individuals (the “Insiders”); however, other persons may be notified by the Compliance Officer from time to time that they will be considered to be
Insiders and subject to the pre-clearance requirements if the Compliance Officer believes that, in the normal course of their duties, they are likely to have regular
access to material non-public information.

Blackout Procedures. To help prevent inadvertent violations of the federal securities laws and to avoid even the appearance of trading on the basis of inside
information, the Company has designated certain “Blackout Periods” during which all persons subject to this Policy may not trade in Company Securities,
directly or through family members or other persons or entities. Even if a Blackout Period is not in effect, at no time may you trade in Company Securities if you

are aware of material nonpublic information about the Company.
Quarterly Blackout Periods. The Company’s announcement of its quarterly financial results almost always has the potential to have a material effect on the
market for the Company’s securities. Therefore, to avoid even the appearance of trading on the basis of material nonpublic information, persons subject to
this Policy, as well as their Family Members or Controlled Entities, may not conduct any transactions involving the Company’s Securities (other than as

4th

specified by this Policy), during a Blackout Period beginning on the 14™ day prior to the end of each fiscal quarter and ending following the expiration of two

full trading days after the Company’s public release of its earnings results for that quarter. If the 14th day falls on a weekend, the applicable Blackout Period
will begin at the close of business on the last trading day prior to that weekend.
Event-Specific Trading Restriction Periods. From time to time, an event may occur that is material to the Company and is known by only a few directors,
officers, employees and/or others subject to this Policy. So long as the event remains material and nonpublic, the persons designated and notified by the
Compliance Officer may not trade Company Securities. In addition, the Company’s financial results may be sufficiently material in a particular fiscal quarter
that, in the judgment of the Compliance Officer, designated persons should refrain from trading in Company Securities even sooner than the typical Blackout
Period described above. In that situation, the Compliance Officer may notify these persons that they should not trade in the Company’s Securities. The
existence of an event-specific trading restriction period or extension of a Blackout Period will not be announced to the Company as a whole, and should not be
communicated to any other person. If, however, a person whose trades are subject to pre-clearance requests permission to trade in the Company’s securities
during an event-specific Blackout, the Compliance Officer will inform the requesting person of the existence of a Blackout Period, without disclosing the
reason for the restriction. Any person made aware of the existence of an event-specific blackout should not disclose the existence of the Blackout Period to any
other person. The failure of the Compliance Officer to designate a person as being subject to an event-specific Blackout Period will not relieve that person of
the obligation not to trade while aware of material nonpublic information.
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EXxceptions to Black-out Periods. The quarterly trading restrictions and event-driven trading restrictions do not apply to those transactions to which this Policy
does not apply, as described above under the headings “Transactions Under Company Plans” and “Transactions Not Involving a Purchase or Sale.” Further,
the requirement for pre-clearance, the quarterly trading restrictions and event-driven trading restrictions do not apply to transactions conducted pursuant to
approved Rule 10b5-1 plans, described under the heading “Rule 10b5-1 Plans.”
Pre-Clearance Procedures. Insiders, as well as the Family Members and Controlled Entities of such Insiders, may not engage in any transaction involving
Company Securities without first obtaining pre-clearance of the transaction from the Compliance Officer; provided, however, that the Compliance Officer may
not engage in such transactions without first obtaining pre-clearance from a designated member of the Company’s Board of Directors.
A request for pre-clearance should be submitted to the Compliance Officer or designated Board member (as applicable) at least two business days in advance of
the proposed transaction. The Compliance Officer or designated Board member is under no obligation to approve a transaction submitted for pre-clearance, and
may determine not to permit the transaction. If a person seeks preclearance and permission to engage in the transaction is denied, then he or she should refrain
from initiating any transaction in Company Securities, and should not inform any other person of the restriction.
When a request for pre-clearance is made, the requestor should carefully consider whether he or she may be aware of material non-public information about the
Company, and should describe fully those circumstances to the Compliance Officer or designated Board member. If the requestor is a director or a Section 16
officer, the requestor should also indicate whether he or she has effected any non-exempt “opposite-way” transactions within the past six months, and should be
prepared to report the proposed transaction on an appropriate Form 4 or Form 5.
Each individual subject to this Policy is responsible for making sure that he or she complies with this Policy, and that any family member, household member or
entity whose transactions are subject to this Policy, as discussed herein, also comply with this Policy. Receipt of pre-clearance from the Compliance Officer or
designated Board member does not in any way constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from liability under applicable securities laws. See “Personal
Responsibility” below.
Special and Prohibited Transactions
The Company considers it improper and inappropriate for those employed by or associated with the Company to engage in short-term or speculative transactions
in Company Securities or in other transactions in Company Securities that may lead to inadvertent violations of the insider trading laws. Accordingly, your
trading in Company securities is subject to the following additional guidance.
Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
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Short Sales. Short sales of Company Securities (i.e., the sale of a security that the seller does not own) may evidence an expectation on the part of the seller that the
seller lacks confidence in the Company’s prospects. In addition, short sales may reduce a seller’s incentive to seek to improve the Company’s performance. For
these reasons, short sales of Company Securities are prohibited. In addition, Section 16(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, prohibits officers
and directors from engaging in short sales.

Publicly Traded Options. Given the relatively short term of publicly-traded options, transactions in options may create the appearance that a director, officer,
employee or other person subject to this Policy is trading based on material nonpublic information and focus his or her attention on short-term performance at
the expense of the Company’s long-term objectives. Accordingly, transactions in put options, call options or other derivative securities, on an exchange or in any
other organized market, are prohibited by this Policy.

Hedging Transactions. Hedging transactions can be accomplished through a number of possible mechanisms, including through the use of financial instruments
such as prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, collars and exchange funds. Such hedging transactions might permit a person to own Company Securities
without the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, that person may no longer have the same objectives as the Company’s other stockholders. In
addition, certain forms of hedging or monetization transactions are extremely complex and can present unique insider trading risks. For these reasons, hedging
transactions are prohibited by this Policy.

Margin Accounts and Pledges. Securities held in a margin account as collateral for a margin loan may be sold by the broker without the customer’s consent if the
customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities pledged (or hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on
the loan. Because a margin or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when you are aware of material nonpublic information or otherwise are not permitted to trade
in Company Securities, you are prohibited from, directly or indirectly, holding Company Securities in a margin account or pledging Company Securities as
collateral for a loan unless you have received consent in advance from the Compliance Officer. Advance consent may be granted where you wish to pledge
Company Securities as collateral for a loan (not including margin debt) and clearly demonstrate the financial capacity to repay the loan without resort to the
pledged securities. Even in such situations, the Company strongly discourages you from pledging Company Securities as collateral for a loan. If you wish to pledge
Company Securities as collateral for a loan, you must submit a request for approval to the Compliance Officer prior to the proposed execution of documents
evidencing the proposed pledge.

Standing and Limit Orders. Standing and limit orders (except standing and limit orders under approved 10b5-1 plans) create heightened risks for insider trading
violations similar to the use of margin accounts. There is no control over the timing of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker, and as
a result the broker could execute a transaction when a director, officer, employee, or other person subject to this Policy is in possession of material nonpublic
information. The Company therefore discourages placing standing or limit orders on Company Securities. If a person subject to this Policy determines that he or
she must use a standing or limit order, the order should be limited to short duration and should otherwise comply with the restrictions and procedures outlined
herein under the heading “Additional Procedures —Preclearance; Blackout Periods.”
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Post-Termination Transactions

This Policy continues to apply to your transactions in Company securities even after you have terminated employment or other services to the Company or a
subsidiary as follows: if you are aware of material nonpublic information when your employment or service relationship terminates, you may not trade in
Company Securities until that information has become public or is no longer material. The pre-clearance specified under the heading “Additional Procedures —
Preclearance; Blackout Periods — Preclearance Procedures” above, however, will cease to apply to transactions in Company Securities upon the expiration of a
Blackout Period or other Company-imposed trading restrictions applicable at the time of the termination of employment of service relationship.

Unauthorized Disclosure

Maintaining the confidentiality of Company information is essential for competitive, security and other business reasons, as well as to comply with securities laws.
You should treat all information you learn about the Company or its business plans in connection with your employment or other engagement the Company as
confidential and proprietary to the Company. Inadvertent disclosure of confidential or inside information may expose the Company and you to risk of
investigation and litigation.
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The timing and nature of the Company’s disclosure of material information to outsiders is subject to legal rules, the breach of which could result in substantial
liability to you, the Company and its management. Accordingly, it is important that responses to inquiries about the Company by the press, investment analysts or
others in the financial community be made on the Company’s behalf only through authorized individuals.

Please refer to other Company policies that may be in place from time to time for more details regarding the Company’s policy on speaking to the media, financial
analysts and investors.

Cooperation of Covered Persons

Persons covered by this Policy shall obtain and maintain accurate and complete records of their trading activity in Company securities in order to demonstrate
compliance with this Policy. Further, persons covered by this Policy shall respond promptly, accurately and completely to any request from the Compliance
Officer for information and/or materials in order to demonstrate or confirm such persons’ compliance with this Policy. Requests may include but are not limited
to documentation evidencing trading activity of such persons and their Family Members.

Personal Responsibility

Each individual is responsible for making sure that he or she complies with this Policy, and that any family member, household member or entity whose
transactions are subject to this Policy, as discussed herein, also comply with this Policy. In all cases, the responsibility for determining whether an individual is in
possession of material nonpublic information rests with that individual, and any action on the part of the Company, the Compliance Officer or any other
employee, director or agent of the Company with respect to this Policy (or otherwise) does not in any way constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from
liability under applicable securities laws. You could be subject to severe legal penalties and disciplinary action by the Company for any conduct prohibited by this
Policy or applicable securities laws, as described below in more detail under the heading “Consequences of Violations.”

Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
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Company Assistance

Your compliance with this Policy is of the utmost importance both for you and for the Company. If you have any questions about this Policy or its application to
any proposed transaction, you may obtain additional guidance from the Compliance Officer.

Consequences of Violations

Civil and Criminal Penalties. The purchase and sale of securities while aware of material nonpublic information, or the disclosure of material nonpublic
information to others who then trade in Company Securities, is prohibited by federal and state laws. Insider trading violations are pursued vigorously by the SEC,
U.S. Attorneys and state enforcement authorities as well as the laws of foreign jurisdictions. Punishment for insider trading violations is severe, and could include
significant fines and imprisonment.

Controlling Person Liability. Although regulatory authorities concentrate their efforts on individuals who trade, or tip inside information to others who trade, the
federal securities laws also impose liability on companies and other “controlling persons” if they fail to take reasonable steps to prevent insider trading by
company personnel.

Company Sanctions. In addition, an individual’s failure to comply with this Policy may also subject the individual to Company-imposed sanctions whether or not
the employee’s failure to comply with this Policy results in a violation of law, including without limitation suspension or termination for cause. Needless to say, a
violation of law, or even an SEC investigation that does not result in prosecution, can tarnish a person’s reputation and irreparably damage a career.

Conflicts with Other Policies

If the terms of this Policy conflict with any obligations set forth in any codes, handbooks or policies of the Company or its controlled subsidiaries, the terms of this
Policy shall control.

Certification

All persons subject to this Policy must certify their understanding of, and intent to comply with, this Policy; provided, however, that any director, employee,
officer of the Company, or any consultant to the Company that has been notified that such consultant is subject to this Policy, shall be bound by this Policy even if
a certification is not signed by such party, provided that such party has received a copy of this Policy.
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
POLICY ON AVOIDANCE OF INSIDER TRADING
CERTIFICATION
To Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.:
I certify that I have read and understand the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Policy on Avoidance of Insider Trading. I hereby agree to comply with the specific
requirements of the Policy in all respects during my employment or other service relationship with Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.

(Signature)

(Date)
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FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
POLICY ON AVOIDANCE OF INSIDER TRADING
REQUEST TO TRADE IN COMPANY SECURITIES

TO: Compliance Officer - Fresh Vine Wine, Inc.
FROM:
RE: Transaction in Company Securities
DATE:
The undersigned intends to engage in transactions in Company Securities as described below:
[ ]

In connection with such transaction(s), the undersigned hereby requests permission from Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the “Company”) to engage in the above described
transaction and hereby certifies to the Company, that, to the best knowledge of the undersigned, I am not in possession of any information that is not also
available to the public at large or which could affect the market price of the above security or to which a reasonable investor would attach importance in deciding
whether to buy, sell, or retain such security.

FRESH VINE WINE, INC.:Signature
Approved as of
FRESH VINE WINE, INC.
By:
Name: By:
Title:  Name:

20
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EXHIBIT A
GUIDELINES FOR 10B5-1 PLANS

Trades by covered persons in the Company’s securities that are executed pursuant to an approved 10b5-1 plan are not subject to the prohibition on
trading on the basis of material nonpublic information contained in the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Policy on Avoidance of Insider Trading (the “Policy”) or to the
restrictions set forth therein relating to pre-clearance procedures and blackout periods. Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
provides an affirmative defense from insider trading liability under the federal securities laws for trading plans that meet the requirements set forth in Rule 10b5-
1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. In general, a 10b5-1 plan must be entered into before you are aware of material nonpublic
information. Once the plan is adopted, you must not exercise any influence over the amount of securities to be traded, the price at which they are to be traded or
the date of the trade. The plan must either specify (including by formula) the amount, pricing and timing of transactions in advance or delegate discretion on
those matters to an independent third party.

As specified in the Policy, entry into or modification of a 10b5-1 plan must be approved in writing in advance by the Compliance Officer. A 10b5-1 plan
(or any amendment or modification thereof) should be submitted for approval at least five days prior to the entry into or modification of the 10b5-1 plan. No
further pre-approval of transactions conducted pursuant to the 10b5-1 Plan will be required.

The following guidelines apply to 10b5-1 plans:

Title: # You may not enter into, suspend or otherwise modify a 10b5-1 plan during a Blackout Period or while in possession of material nonpublic information.

e  Any entry into, suspension or other modification of a 10b5-1 plan must be made in good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions
of Rule 10b5-1.

e  For directors and officers of the Company, each 10b5-1 plan must include a representation that such director of officer is (i) not aware of material non-
public information about the Company or its securities and (ii) adopting the 10b5-1 plan in good faith and not as a scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule
10b-5.

o  Before trading can commence, you must comply with the following mandatory cooling-off period after the adoption, suspension or modification of a 10b5-1
plan:

o  Officers and Directors — the later of (i) 90 days after adoption or modification and (ii) two business days after the disclosure of the Company’s
financial results for the fiscal quarter in which the 10b5-1 plan was adopted or modified (not to exceed 120 days); and

o  All Other Company Personnel — 30 days after adoption or modification.

These cooling off periods are required by SEC rules and designed to minimize the risk that a claim will be made that you were aware of material
nonpublic information when you entered into the 10b5-1 plan and that the plan was not entered into in good faith.

Signature e  You may not have more than one 10b5-1 plan outstanding at the same time, except in limited circumstanced pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 and subject in all
Page - cases to preapproval by the Compliance Officer.

Restricted

Stock

Agreement

e  Subject to and in accordance with the terms of Rule 10b5-1, you may not have more than one “single trade” 10b5-1 plan during any 12-month period.

510b5-1 plans must be operated in good faith and otherwise comply with Rule 10b5-1. None of the requirements or plan terms currently contemplated by
these Guidelines are exhaustive or limiting on the Company. The Company has the right to require the inclusion of additional provisions in your 10b5-1 plan
designed to protect you and/or the Company.

Each director, officer and other Section 16 insider understands that the approval or adoption of a 10b5-1 plan in no way reduces or eliminates such
person’s obligations under Section 16 of the Exchange Act, including such person’s disclosure and short-swing trading liabilities thereunder. If any questions
arise, such person should consult with their own counsel in implementing a 10b5-1 plan.

The Company will be required to make certain quarterly disclosures, in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 and the disclosure requirements under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, regarding any adoption, modification or termination of a 10b5-1 plan by a director or executive officer. Upon the
occurrence of any such adoption, modification or termination, such persons are required to promptly furnish the Compliance Officer information regarding the
date of adoption, termination or modification of the 10b5-1 plan, the 10b5-1 plan’s duration, the aggregate number of securities to be sold or purchased under the
10b5-1 plan and any other information reasonably requested by the Compliance Officer.

Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement Statements of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. on Form S-8 (No. 333-262906) and Form S-1 (No.
333-333-269082) of our report dated March 31, 2023, March 8, 2024 relating to the financial statements of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2022 December 31, 2023 appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
/s/ Wipfli LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
March 31, 2023 8, 2024
Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Rick Nechio, Michael Pruitt, certify that:
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1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fresh Vine Wine Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15-d-15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024 /s/ Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt

Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt
Interim Chief Executive Officer (Principal
(Principal Executive Officer)
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

1, James Spellmire, Keith Johnson, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fresh Vine Wine Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15-d-15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;
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(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024 /s/ James Spellmire Keith Johnson
James Spellmire Keith Johnson

Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal
(Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fresh Vine Wine Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2022 December 31, 2023
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Rick Nechio, Michael Pruitt, Interim Chief Executive Officer, and I,
James Spellmire, Keith Johnson, Interim Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, certify, pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. § 1350,
that to our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 31, 2023 March 8, 2024 /s/ Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt
Rick Nechio Michael Pruitt

Interim Chief Executive Officer (Principal
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James Spellmire Keith Johnson

James Spellmire Michael Pruitt

Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal
(Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 97.1

Clawback Policy
(Adopted as of November 2, 2023)

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. (the “Company”) believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders to adopt this Clawback Policy (the “Policy”), which provides for the recovery of certain incentive compensation in the event of an Accounting
Restatement (as defined below). This Policy is designed to comply with, and shall be interpreted to be consistent with, Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), Rule 10D-1 promulgated under the Exchange Act (“Rule 10D-1”) and Section 811 of the NYSE American Company
Guide (the “Listing Standards™).

1. Administration. Except as specifically set forth herein, this Policy shall be administered by the Board or, if so designated by the Board, a committee
thereof (the Board or such committee charged with administration of this Policy, the “Administrator”). The Administrator is authorized to interpret and construe
this Policy and to make all determinations necessary, appropriate or advisable for the administration of this Policy. Any determinations made by the
Administrator shall be final and binding on all affected individuals and need not be uniform with respect to each individual covered by the Policy. In the
administration of this Policy, the Administrator is authorized and directed to consult with the Board or such other committees of the Board, as may be necessary
or appropriate as to matters within the scope of such other committee’s responsibility and authority. Subject to applicable law, the Administrator may authorize
and empower any officer or employee of the Company to take any and all actions necessary or appropriate to carry out the purpose and intent of this Policy
(other than with respect to any recovery under this Policy involving such officer or employee).
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2. Definitions. For purposes of this Policy, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) “Accounting Restatement” means an accounting restatement of the Company’s financial statements due to the Company’s material
noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, including any required accounting restatement to correct an error in
previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements (a “Big R” restatement), or that is not material to
previously issued financial statements but would result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in
the current period (a “little r” restatement).

(b) “Administrator” has the meaning set forth in Section 1 hereof.
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(c) “Applicable Period” means the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date on which the Company is required to prepare an
Accounting Restatement, as well as any transition period (that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year) within or immediately following those
three completed fiscal years (except that a transition period that comprises a period of at least nine months shall count as a completed fiscal year). The
Board, or the officers of the Company authorized to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that
the Company is required to prepare an Accounting Restatement or (ii) the date a court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the Company to
prepare an Accounting Restatement, in each case regardless of if or when the restated financial statements are filed.

(d) “Covered Executives” means the Company’s current and former “officers,” as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act, which
include the Company’s president, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer (or if there is no such accounting officer, the controller), any
vice-president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division, or function (such as sales, administration, or finance), any other officer of
the Company who performs a policy-making function, or any other person who performs similar policy-making functions for the Company.

(e) The “Effective Date” means October 2, 2023 (the effective date of the Listing Standards).

(f) “Erroneously Awarded Compensation” has the meaning set forth in Section 5 of this Policy.

(g) A “Financial Reporting Measure” is any measure that is determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in
preparing the Company’s financial statements, and any measure that is derived wholly or in part from such measure. Stock price and total shareholder
return (“ISR”) (and any measures that are derived wholly or in part from stock price or TSR) shall, for purposes of this Policy, be considered Financial
Reporting Measures. A Financial Reporting Measure need not be presented within the Company’s financial statements or included in a filing with the
SEC.

(h) “Incentive-Based Compensation” means any compensation that is granted, earned or vested based wholly or in part upon the attainment of a
Financial Reporting Measure.

(i) Incentive-Based Compensation is “received” for purposes of this Policy in the Company’s fiscal period during which the Financial Reporting
Measure specified in the Incentive-Based Compensation award is attained, even if the payment or grant of such Incentive-Based Compensation occurs
after the end of that period.

(j) “SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

3. Covered Executives; Incentive-Based Compensation. This Policy applies to Incentive-Based Compensation received by a Covered Executive (a) after
beginning services as a Covered Executive; (b) if that person served as a Covered Executive at any time during the performance period for such Incentive-Based
Compensation; and (c) while the Company had a listed class of securities on a national securities exchange.

4. Required Recoupment of Erroneously Awarded Compensation in the Event of an Accounting Restatement. If the Company is required to prepare an
Accounting Restatement, the Company shall reasonably promptly recoup the amount of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation received by any Covered
Executive, as calculated pursuant to Section 5 hereof, during the Applicable Period. For the avoidance of doubt, recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation
is on a “no fault” basis, meaning that it will occur regardless of whether the Covered Executive engaged in misconduct or was otherwise directly or indirectly
responsible, in whole or in part, for the Accounting Restatement.

the Policy, as determined by the Administrator, is the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation received by the Covered Executive that exceeds the amount of
Incentive Based Compensation that would have been received by the Covered Executive had it been determined based on the restated amounts included in the
Accounting Restatement. This Policy is intended to apply broadly to Incentive-Based Compensation and, with respect to any compensation plans or programs that
take into account Incentive-Based Compensation, the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation subject to recovery hereunder includes, but is not limited to,
the amount contributed to any notional account based on Erroneously Awarded Compensation and any earnings accrued to date on that notional amount.
Erroneously Awarded Compensation shall be computed by the Administrator without regard to any taxes paid by the Covered Executive in respect of the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation. For Incentive-Based Compensation based on (or derived from) stock price or TSR, where the amount of Erroneously
Awarded Compensation is not subject to recalculation from the information in the applicable Accounting Restatement: (a) the Administrator shall determine the
amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on a reasonable estimate of the effect of the Accounting Restatement on the stock price or TSR upon which
the Incentive-Based Compensation was received; and (b) the Company shall maintain documentation of the determination of that reasonable estimate and provide
such documentation to the NYSE American.

6. Method of Recoupment. In event of an Accounting Restatement, the Administrator shall determine the amount of any Erroneously Awarded
Compensation received by each Covered Executive and shall promptly deliver a written notice to each Covered Executive containing the amount of any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation and a demand for the return or repayment of such compensation, as applicable. Thereafter, the Administrator shall
determine, in its sole discretion, the timing and method for promptly recouping Erroneously Awarded Compensation hereunder, which may include without
limitation (a) seeking reimbursement of all or part of any cash Incentive-Based Compensation previously paid, (b) seeking recovery of any gain realized on the
vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer, or other disposition of an equity-based awards, (c) cancelling prior cash or equity-based awards, whether vested or
unvested or paid or unpaid, (d) cancelling or offsetting against any planned future cash or equity-based awards, and (e) any other method permitted by applicable
law or contract. Subject to compliance with any applicable law, the Administrator may affect recovery under this Policy from any amount otherwise payable to
the Covered Executive, including amounts payable to such individual under any otherwise applicable Company plan or program, including base salary, bonuses
or commissions and compensation previously deferred by the Covered Executive.

7. Reimbursement of Recovery Expenses. If a Covered Executive fails to repay all Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the Company pursuant to the
Company’s written notification and demand, such Covered Executive shall be required to reimburse the Company for any and all expenses reasonably incurred
(including legal fees) by the Company in recovering such Erroneously Awarded Compensation.

8. Duplicative Payment. To the extent that a Covered Executive has already reimbursed the Company for any Erroneously Awarded Compensation
received under any duplicative recovery obligations established by the Company or applicable law, such reimbursed amount shall be credited to the amount of the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation that is subject to recovery under this Policy.

Erroneously Awarded Compensation in compliance with this Policy unless the Compensation Committee of the Board (or in the absence of such a committee, a
majority of the independent directors serving on the Board) has determined that recovery would be impracticable solely for the following limited reasons, and
subject to the following procedural and disclosure requirements:
(a) The direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the Policy would exceed the amount to be recovered; or
(b) Recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the
Company, to fail to meet the requirements of 26 U.S.C. 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. 411(a) and regulations thereunder.
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Before concluding that it would be impracticable to recover any amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation based on expense of enforcement under
subsection 9(a) above, the Company must make a reasonable attempt to recover such erroneously awarded compensation, document such reasonable attempt(s) to
recover and provide that documentation to the NYSE American.

10. Prohibition of Indemnification and Insurance. Notwithstanding the terms of any indemnification or insurance policy or any contractual arrangement
with any Covered Executive that may be interpreted to the contrary, the Company shall not indemnify or insure any Covered Executives against (a) the loss of any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation, or (b) any claims relating to the Company’s enforcement of its rights under this Policy, including any payment or
reimbursement for the cost of third-party insurance purchased by any Covered Executives to fund potential obligations under this Policy. Further, the Company
shall not enter into any agreement that exempts any Incentive-Based Compensation that is granted, paid, or awarded to an Executive Officer from the application
of this Policy or that waives the Company’s right to recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation, and this Policy shall supersede any such agreement
(whether entered into before, on or after the Effective Date).

11. Administrator Indemnification. Any members of the Administrator, and any other members of the Board who assist in the administration of this
Policy, shall not be personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made with respect to this Policy and shall be fully indemnified by the
Company to the fullest extent under applicable law and Company policy with respect to any such action, determination or interpretation. The foregoing sentence
shall not limit any other rights to indemnification of the members of the Board under applicable law or Company policy.

12. Effective Date; Retroactive Application. This Policy shall be effective as of the Effective Date. The terms of this Policy shall apply to any Incentive-
Based Compensation that is received by Covered Executives on or after the Effective Date, even if such Incentive-Based Compensation was approved, awarded,
granted or paid to Covered Executives prior to the Effective Date. Without limiting the generality of Section 6 hereof, and subject to applicable law, the
Administrator may affect recovery under this Policy from any amount of compensation approved, awarded, granted, payable or paid to the Covered Executive
prior to, on or after the Effective Date.

13. Amendment; Termination. The Board may amend, modify, supplement, rescind or replace all or any portion of this Policy at any time and from time
to time in its discretion, and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary to comply with applicable law or any rules or standards adopted by a national securities
exchange on which the Company’s securities are listed.

14. Other Recoupment Rights; Company Claims. The Board intends that this Policy shall be applied to the fullest extent of the law. Any right of
recoupment under this Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company under
applicable law or pursuant to the terms of any similar policy in any employment agreement, equity award agreement, or similar agreement and any other legal
remedies available to the Company. Any employment agreement, equity award agreement, compensatory plan or any other agreement or arrangement with a
Covered Executive shall be deemed to include, as a condition to the grant of any benefit thereunder, an agreement by the Covered Executive to abide by the terms
of this Policy. Nothing contained in this Policy, and no recoupment or recovery as contemplated by this Policy, shall limit in any respect (a) any claims, damages or
other legal remedies the Company or any of its affiliates may have against a Covered Executive arising out of or resulting from any actions or omissions by the
Covered Executive, or (b) the Company’s right to take or not to take any action with respect to any Covered Executive’s employment, (c) or, subject to Section 8,
the obligation of the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the Company to reimburse the Company in accordance with Section 304 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended.

15. Enforceability; Successors. This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against each of the Company’s Covered Executives and their beneficiaries,
heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives, whether or not such Covered Executive executed and delivers a written Clawback Policy
Acknowledgement.

16. Mandatory Disclosure. The Company shall file this Policy and, in the event of an Accounting Restatement, will disclose information related to such
Accounting Restatement in accordance with the requirements of the Federal securities laws, including the disclosure required by the applicable SEC filings.

Clawback Policy Acknowledgment
I, the undersigned, agree and acknowledge that I am fully bound by, and subject to, all of the terms and conditions of the Fresh Vine Wine, Inc. Clawback
Policy (as may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Policy”). In the event of any inconsistency between the Policy
and the terms of any employment agreement to which I am a party, or the terms of any compensation plan, program or agreement under which any compensation
has been granted, awarded, earned or paid, the terms of the Policy shall govern. In the event it is determined by the Committee that any amounts granted,
awarded, earned or paid to me must be forfeited or reimbursed to the Company, I will promptly take any action necessary to effectuate such forfeiture and/or
reimbursement. Any capitalized terms used in this Acknowledgment without definition shall have the meaning set forth in the Policy.

Date: By:
Name:
Title:
6
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A
COMPARISON OF TWO FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR
INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY
DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR
OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED
TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'’S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER
DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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